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In the claim presented on direct appeal, petitioner discussed only the application of the
requirement in N.R.S. 175.291 that accomplice testimony be independently corroborated. Petitioner
did not invoke any federal constitutional provisions, and he cited no state or federal decisions
whatsoever. The Supreme Court of Nevada analyzed the issue presented solely with respect to “the
statutory standard of independent evidence connecting the defendant to the crime,” pursuant to N.R.S.
175.291. The state supreme court did not directly or indirectly cite to or apply the federal due process
standard for sufficiency of the evidence under Jackson v. Virginia, 443 U.S. 307, 99 S.Ct. 2781, 61
L.Ed.2d 560 (1979).°

In Ground 6, petitioner alleges that he was denied due process and equal protection of the laws
in violation of the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendments when the state district court sentenced him
as a habitual criminal.

In the claim presented on direct appeal, petitioner contended that the state district court “abused
its discretion™ in sentencing him as a habitual criminal. Petitioner did cite to and discuss at a fair
amount of length federal constitutional authority holding that state sentencing procedural requirements
may give rise to a liberty interest protected by the due process clause.® However, petitioner did not
argue that constitutional error occurred in Ais case. He instead argued:

It appears clear that the district court make [sic] a ﬁndiréﬁrof
habitual criminal status based upon all the evidence presented. The three
prior certifications of judgment of convictions alflpear to be
constitutionally sound. The district court listened to all the parties,
considered aggravating and mitigating evidence, and incorporated
language consistent with due process protection. However, the district
court abused its discretion when finding two counts satisfied the habitual
criminal statute and ran those life sentences consecutively. When
considering Appellant’s untreated mental health problems and the fact
that the prior convictions were not violent, the district court abused its
discretion.

#22, Ex. 59, at 17-18 (emphasis added). The Supreme Court of Nevada, consistent with the argument
presented, analyzed the claim exclusively under state law. See #22, Ex. 68, at 7-9.

1

*See #22,Ex. 59,at 11-12; id., Ex. 68, at 5-7.

422, Ex. 59, at 16-17.
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The federal constitutional claims presented in federal Grounds 3 through 6 were not fairly
presented to the Supreme Court of Nevada and exhausted. Fair presentation requires that the petitioner
present the state courts with both the operative facts and the federal legal theory upon which the claim
is based. E.g., Castillo, 399 F.3d at 999. Here, none of the four grounds fairly presented the federal
legal theories now pursued on federal habeas review.

With regard to federal Ground 5, which challenges the sufficiency of the corroboration of the
accomplice testimony under N.R.S. 175.291, the Ninth Circuit has held that a state law requiring
corroboration of accomplice testimony does not itnplicate constitutional concerns. See,e.g., Laboa v.
Calderon, 224 F.3d 972, 979 (9® Cir. 2001). The mere assertion of the claim challenging the
sufficiency of corroboration of accomplice testimony in satisfaction qf the state statutory requirement
therefore did not, in and of itself, present a federal due process challenge to the sufficiency of the
evidence under Jackson v. Virginia.

With regard to federal Ground 6, which challenges the habitual criminal adjudication, no
appellate court would have construed petitioner’s state law argument on the claim as presenting a
federal constitutional claim. While petitioner discussed due process protections, he expressly conceded
that the sentencing court’s findings were “consistent with due process protection,” and he instead argued
only that the court abused its discretion.”

Grounds 3 through 6 therefore are not exhausted.

7The state court claim further did not even discuss equal protection, which is also is alleged as a legal theory in
federal Ground 6.

Petitioner relies upon a sentence fragment by respondents stating: “although the opening brief cited to federal
aythority.” A sentence fragment of course is not a complete sentence, and the rest of the sentence goes on to state, as
also is observed in the text, that the brief conceded that the district court complied with due process. See #19, at 3, lines
19-20. Respondents did not concede that Ground 6 — or any of the other grounds in question — were exhausted.

Petitioner further relies — with respect to the habitual criminal adjudication claim — upon a motion to recall the
remittitur in pursuit of an untimely petition for rehearing. This motion filed after the conclusion of the post-conviction
appeal does not lead to a different outcome on the exhaustion 1ssue for at least two reasons. First, neither the motion nor
the proposed petition for rehearing articulated any federal claims. Second, the state supreme court denjed the motion
and denied permission to submit a late petition for rehearing. See #25, Exhs. 149-150. Even if, arguendo, the untimely
petition for rehearing had presented a federal claim, presenting a claim in a procedural context where the merits will not
be considered or will be considered only in special circumstances does not fairly present a claim. Castille, supra.
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Ground 8

In Ground §, petitioner alleges that he was denied rights to effective assistance of counsel, due
process, equal protection of the laws, and a fair trial when trial counsel allowed him to be subjected to
an indictment that allegedly : (a) contained alleged multiplicitous and duplicitous charges, violating
his right to be free from double jeopardy; (b} was not supported by the trial evidence; and (c) lacked
specificity such that petitioner was left with no ability to defend the charges.

The Court is persuaded by respondents’ contention that subparts (b) and (c) as described above
were not exhausted. The only claim presented to and/or considered by the Supreme Court of Nevada
on the state post-conviction appeal pertained to trial counsel’s alleged failure to challenge charges as
multiplicitious and duplicitious and thus violative of double jeopardy protections.®

The Court further sua sponte holds that the independent substantive claims based on an alleged
denial of rights to due process, equal protection, and a fair trial were not exhausted. In the state post-
conviction appeal, petitioner presented a claim only of ineffective assistance of trial counsel to the
Supreme Court of Nevada in this regard. He did not present any independent substantive claims based
upon an alleged denial of rights to due process, equal protection and a fair trial.’

Ground 8§ therefore is exhausted oniy to the extent that petitioner alleges that he was denied
effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel allowed him to be subjected to an indictment that
allegedly contained multiplicitous and duplicitous charges, violating his right to be free from double
jeopardy. Ground 8 is unexhausted to the extent that petitioner alleges that he was denied rights to due
process, equal protection of the laws, and a fair trial and also to the extent that petitioner alleges that
he was denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel allowed him to be subjected to an

indictment that allegedly was not supported by the trial evidence and lacked specificity.

8See #25, Ex. 137, at 7-8: id,, Ex. 147, at 4-5.

’See #25, Ex. 137, at 7-8. Respondents contend that petitioner may not combine the independent substantive
claims with the claims of ineffective assistance of counsel within a single ground. See #19, at 6, That very well may be
true at the very least under Local Rule LSR 3-1 and the instructiens for the petition form required thereby. However,
there would appear to be little utility in directing a pro se habeas petitioner to amend a 143-page petition to separate out
independent substantive claims into separate grounds where not only the vast majority of the claims in the petition are
unexhausted but, further, the independent substantive claims themselves are not exhausted.
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Ground 9

In federal Ground 9, petitioner alleges that he was denied rights to effective assistance of
counsel, due process, equal protection and a fair trial when trial counsel failed to request jury
instructions for lesser included offenses. As noted previously, petitioner was charged and convicted
of one count of conspiracy to commit crimes against property, eight counts of burglary, and one count
of unlawful possession, making, forgery, or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels. Petitioner urges
that these charges “are lesser-included offenses of each other, in particular, the Burglary charges are
lesser-included offenses of each other and the conspiracy charge.” He maintains that he “could not have ,

committed the elements of the Conspiracy Offense without committing the elements of the Burglary

w . S . t
offenses.”® "~ '

Respondents note that petitioner referred to the state district court’s rejection of the ineffective
assistance claim in state Ground 9 in the argument on state Ground 8 on the state post-conviction
appeal. Respondents contend, however, that petitioner nonetheless did not provide any argument
specifically challenging the ruling and claiming that the offenses are lesser included offenses.

Respondents’ argument is not without force. Petitioner’s state court briefing does refer to the
state district court’s rejection of the ineffective assistance claim in state Ground 9 with little if anything .

' However, giving petitioner a

in the way of argument as to the issue of lesser included offenses.
substantial benefit of the doubt, the Court will read the state court briefing as challenging the rejection
of the ineffective assistance claims in both state Grounds 8 and 9 on the same b;clsis, that the charges
were merged into one. The state court briefing on this point is far from a model of clarity. However,
giving petitioner the benefit of the doubt, the Court will hold that the ineffective assistance claim in
Ground 9 is exhausted.

The Court is persuaded by petitioner’s alternative argument that the ineffective assistance claim

in federal Ground 9 clearly is without merit. Under 28 U.S.C. § 2254(b)(2), an unexhausted claim may

be dismissed on the merits notwithstanding a lack of exhaustion. As construed by the Ninth Circuit,

047 at 49-50,
Ugee #25, Ex. 137, at 7-8.
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a district court can dismiss an unexhausted claim on the merits under § 2254(b)(2) “only when it is
perfectly clear that the applicant does not raise even a colorable federal claim.” Cassett v. Stewart, 406
F.3d 614, 623-24 (9" Cir, 2005).

It is perfectly clear that the ineffective assistance claim in federal Ground 9 does not raise even
a colorable federal claim. The state supreme court held that the crimes of burglary and of unlawful
possession, making forging or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels are distinct individual offenses
with different elements.'"? This holding on Nevada state law by the state’s highest court is the end of
the matter with regard to that subsidiary point, as the Supreme Court of Nevada is the final arbiter of
Nevada state law. Petitioner’s contention that he could not have committed the conspiracy without
committing the burglaries plainly is meritless on its face. It is axiomatic that commission of a
conspiracy offense does not require full commission of the underlying offense that is the subject of the
conspiracy. See,e.g., Nunneryv. Eighth Judicial District Court, 124 Nev. 477, 480, 186 P.3d 886, 888
(2008)(under Nevada law, conspiracy is committed under N.R.S. 199.480 upon reaching the unlawful
agreement, without the requirement even of an overt act).

The claim of ineffective assistance of counsel in Ground 9 therefore will be dismissed on the
merits under § 2254(b)(2) as not raising even a colorable federal claim.

The Court further sua sponte holds that the independent substantive claims in federal Ground
9 based on an alleged denial of rights to due process, equal protection, and a fair trial were not
exhausted. Inthe state post-conviction appeal, petitioner presented a claim, at the very level best, only
of ineffective assistance of trial counsel to the Supreme Court of Nevada in this regard. He did not
present any independent substantive claims based upon an alleged denial of rights to due process, equal
protection and a fair trial."? ..~

11117

111

2425, Ex. 147, at 4-5.
BSee also note 9, supra. As an alternative holding, the Court holds that the independent substantive claims in

federal Ground 9 further do not raise even a colorable federal claim, for the reasons discussed in the text as to the claim
of ineffective assistance of counsel.
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Ground 18

In Ground 18, petitioner alieges that he was denied rights to effective assistance of counsel, due
process, equal protection, and a fair trial when trial and appellate counsel allowed him to be sentenced
as a habitual criminal. Petitioner maintains; (a) that the Nevada legislature did not intend for non-
violent property crimes to be subject to habitual criminal sentencing under N.R.S. 207.010; and (b) that
a February 11, 2004, conviction did not constitute a pﬁor offense under N.R.S. 207.010.

On the state post-conviction appeal, petitioner pursued a claim only that trial and appellate
counsel were ineffective because they failed to argue that the 2004 conviction was not a prior offense.'*

With regard to Ground 18(a), petitioner thus did not exhaust a claim that trial and appellate
counsel were ineffective for failing to argue that the Nevada legislature did not intend for non-violent
property crimes to be subject to habitual criminal sentencing under N.R.S. 207.010. No such claim was
presented to the Supreme Court of Nevada in the state post-conviction appeal.

With regard to Ground 18(b), the Court is not persuaded by respondents’ argument that Ground
18(b) presents only an independent substantive ground rather than a claim of ineffective assistance of
counsel. Fairly read, part (b) of Ground 18 specifies the substantive issue that trial and appellate
counsel allegedly were ineffective for failing toraise. Soread, the claim of ineffective assistance of trial
and appellate counsel in Ground 18(b) is exhausted.

That said, any and all independent substantive grounds asserted in Ground 18 — including the
claimed deprivation of rights to due process, equal protection, and a fair trial — are not exhausted. Only
a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel was pursued on the state post-conviction appeal. Further,
the challenge to the habitual criminal adjudication pursued on direct appeal maintained that the state
district court abused its discretion in adjudicating petitioner a habitual criminal. The underlying
substantive arguments in neither Ground 18(a) nor Ground 18(b) were presented to the state supreme

court.!® s

%425, Ex. 137, at 3-7; id., Bx. 147, at 2-4.
BSee also note 9, supra. The Court is not necessarily persuaded by respondents’ initial suggestion that

petitioner violated Rule 2(c) of the Rules Governing Section 2254 Cases when petitioner divided Ground 18 into two
(continued...)
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Ground 18 therefore is exhausted only to the extent that petitioner alleges in Ground 18(b) that
he was denied effective assistance of counsel because trial and appellate counsel did not argue that the
February 11, 2004, conviction did not constitute a prior offense under N.R.S. 207.010 for purposes of
habitual criminal enhancement. Ground 18 is unexhausted to the extent that petitioner alleges: (a) that
he was denied effective assistance of counsel because trial and appellate counsel did not argue that the
Nevada legislature did not intend for non-violent property crimes to be subject to habitual criminal
sentencing under N.R.S. 207.010; and (b) that he was denied rights to due process equal protection, and
a fair trial.

Ground 23

In Ground 23, petitioner alleges that he was denied rights to effective assistance of counsel, due
process, equal protection, and a fair trial when trial counsel failed to protect him from the erroneous
application of the habitual criminal statute. In support of this ground, petitioner alleges a variety of
alleged errors in the habitual criminal adjudication, including alleged improper reliance on the February
11, 2004, conviction as a prior conviction, reliance upon a detective’s testimony as to prior bad acts,
reliance upon the detective’s testimony as to hearsay statements by petitioner’s ex-wife without his
being able to confront or cross-examine her, reliance upon another detective’s testimony as to hearsay
statements by petitioner’s accomplice, consideration of evidence not admitted at trial and facts not
established beyond a reasonable doubt before the jury, and dissimilar treatment of petitioner in violation
of equal protection.

Iy

B(...continued)
subparts. The Court is not sanguine that Rule 2(c) operates in such a hypertechnical matter. Moreover, respondents
have argued in past cases that the pleading rules require that a petitioner subdivide claims of ineffective assistance of
counsel.

As an alternative holding, the Court holds that all claims in Ground 18(a) do not raise even a colorable federal
claim, The underlying moving premise that N.R.S. 207.010 does not contemplate imposition of habitual criminal
sentencing based upon nonviolent crimes is fundamentally flawed. See,e.g., Arajakis v. State, 108 Nev. 976, 933, 343
P.24 800, 805 (1992)(“N.R.S. 207.010 makes no special allowance for nen-vielent crimes or for the remoteness of
convictions; instead, these are considerations within the discretion ¢f the court.”) The frequent contention by pro se
petitioners that the habitual criminal statute does not authorize habitual criminal sentencing when only nonviolent crimes
are involved is one that holds sway in the jailhouse, not the courthouse.
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Respondents contend that Ground 23 is at least partially unexhausted. The Court is persuaded
that the only exhausted claim in the ground is redundant of the claim in another partially exhausted
ground. The entire ground therefore either is unexhansted or redundant.

Petitioner raised claims pertaining to the habitual criminal adjudication on direct appeal and in
the state post-conviction appeal. As discussed, supra, regarding federal Ground 6, petitioner fairly
presented only a state law claim on direct appeal alleging that the state district court abused its
discretion in adjudicating petitioner a habitual criminal. He exhausted no independent substantive
federal law claims on direct appeal with regard to the habitual criminal adjudication. As further
discussed, supra, regarding federal Ground 18(b), on the state post-conviction appeal, petitioner fairly
presented only a claim that trial and appellate counsel were ineffective for failing to argue that the
February 11, 2004, conviction did not constitute a prior offense under N.R.S. 207.010. None of the
remaining myriad specific claims of ineffective assistance of counsel and/or specific underlying
independent substantive error outlined in Ground 23 were fairly presented to the Supreme Court of |.
Nevada either on direct appeal or on the state post-conviction appeal. Federal Ground 23 thus is
exhausted only to the extent that petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object
to the use of the February 11, 2004, conviction as a prior conviction. Hoﬁvever, the claim is wholly
redundant of the exhausted portion of Ground 18(b) to the limited extent that it is exhausted.

The Court will dismiss Ground 23 in part as redundant of Ground 18(b) to the extent that
Ground 23 alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object to the use of the February 11,
2004, conviction as a prior conviction. Ground 23 in all other respects is unexhausted.

Sua Sponte Consideration of Exhaustion of the Substantive Claims in Grounds 7 and 11

In Ground 7, petitioner alleges that he was denied rights to effective assistance of counsel, due
process, equal protection, and a fair trial when trial counsel failed to protect him from an allegedly
excessive restitution order by the sentencing court.

In Ground 11, petitioner alleges, inter alia, that he was denied rights to effective assistance of
counsel, due process, equal protection, and a fair trial when trail counsel failed to protect him from the
admission of irrelevant, inconsistent, and/or perjured testimony at trial by petitioner’s accomplice and

co-conspirator, Brett Bowman.
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With regard to Ground 7, the only claim that was exhausted was a claim on the state post-
conviction appeal alleging that petitioner was denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel
failed to protect him from an allegedly excessive restitution order by the sentencing court. No
independent substantive claims of'trial court error —whether as violations of rights to due process, equal
protection and a fair trial or otherwise — were fairly presented to the state supreme court in this regard."®

With regard to Ground 11, the only claim that was exhausted was a claim on the state post-
conviction appeal alleging that petitioner was denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel
failed to impeach accomplice Bowman’s allegedly inconsistent and/or perjured testimony with his prior
inconsistent statements. No independent substantive claims of error were fairly presented to the state
supreme court in this regard."”

With regard to the independent substantive claims, as noted previously, respondents contend that
petitioner may not combine the independent substantive claims with the claims of ineffective assistance
of counsel within a single ground. As discussed previously, that may well be true at the very least under
the instructions for the Court’s required habeas petition form. However, as also noted previously, there
would appear to be little utility in directing a pro se habeas petitioner to amend a 143-page petition to
separate out independent substantive claims into separate grounds where not only the vast majority of
the petition is unexhausted but, further, .the independent substantive claims themselves are not
exhausted. The Court accordingly takes up the lack of exhaustion sua sponte rather than taking up
pleading technicalities in the first instance.'®

Ground 7 therefore is exhausted only to the extent that petitioner alleges that he was denied
effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel failed to protect him from an allegedly excessive

restitution order by the sentencing court. All other claims therein are unexhausted."

18See #25, Ex. 137, at 9-10; id., Ex. 147, at 5-6.
See #25, Ex. 137, at 10-11; id., Ex. 143, at 9-12; id., Ex. 147, at 6.
183 ¢e note 9, supra.

1t appears subject to substantial question whether the claim seeking a reduction in the restitution order is
(continued...)
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Ground 11 therefore is exhausted only to the extent that petitioner alleges that he was denied
effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel failed to impeach accomplice Brett Bowman’s
allegedly inconsistent and/or perjured testimony with his prior inconsistent statements. All other claims
therein are unexhausted. -

Petitioner’s Generalized Exhaustion Arguments

The Court is not persuaded by petitioner’s remaining generalized, across-the-board arguments
secking to establish that all or part of the foregoing claims nonetheless are exhausted and/or that the lack
of exhaustion of the claims should be disregarded.

Petitioner’s various arguments challenging respondents’ ability to pursue the defenses raised
herein by a motion to dismiss are without merit. Moreover, the scheduling order (#17) in this matter
specifically provided for the assertion of defenses raised herein by way of a motion to dismiss. The
presentation of defenses such as lack of exhaustion, failure to state a claim, and failure to raise a
colorable claim via such a motion is entirely proper. Petitioner’s arguments regarding the interaction
between the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and habeas practice in this context are without merit.

Petitioner’s argument that the motion to dismiss is based upon sealed documents that have not
been provided to him also is meritless. Respondents filed three documents under seal — the presentence
report and two orders for payment of attorneys fees to state post-conviction counsel. While these
documents possibly may have relevance to issues later in the case, a point which the Court does not
address at this juncture, the issues raised by the motion to dismiss do not turn on these documents. The
content of petitioner’s presentence report and of the two orders have nothing to do, in particular, with
the question of whether petitioner exhausted his claims in the state courts. That issue turns upon the
content of his briefing in the state supreme court. Petitioner’s arguments regarding the sealed exhibits,

here and as discussed infa as to other issues, present nothing more than a red herring. ~

P(...continued)
cognizable in federal habeas corpus. See Bailey v. Hill, 599 F.3d 976 (9" Cir. 2010). Further, there is no clearly
established federal law vis-a-vis the adequacy of rcpresentation at a noncapital sentencing proceeding. Davis v. Grigas,
443 F.3d 1155, 1158 (9th Cir.2006)(quoting prior authority); Davis v Belleque, 2012 WL 76897 (9th Cir., Jan. 11,
2012)(unpublished); Vigil v. McDonald, 2011 WL 5116915 (9th Cir., Oct. 28, 2011}(unpublished}{harmonizing circuit

authority).
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Petitioner further contends that respondents’ state court record exhibit No. 62, designated as a
“Notice of Election Not to File a Reply Brief,” filed on the direct appeal, is incomplete. Petitioner urges
that “this exhibit most certainly provide [sic] additional supporting legal memorandum(sic].”*® This
argument lacks any rationally conceivable merit. A notice by appellate counsel that she was not filing
a reply brief - by definition - would not be accompanied by any briefing, much less briefing fairly
presenting claims not included in the appellant’s opening brief on direct appeal.”! |

Petitioner’s reliance upon the presentation of claims in his state post-conviction petition as
establishing exhaustion is misplaced. To exhaust a claim, petitioner must fairly present the claim in the
state courts all the way through to the state’s highest court, here the Supreme Court of Nevada.
Peterson, supra; Vang, supra. A claim that is asserted in the state district court but that is not
specifically argued thereafter on the state post-conviction appeal is not exhausted@

Petitioner further maintains that he could not present claims pro se on the represented direct
appeal and state post-conviction appeal. However, even on a direct appeal in the underlying criminal
case, arepresented defendant has no right to have pro se filings considered because a criminal defendant
has no constitutional right to both self-representation and the assistance of counsel in the same
proceeding. See,e.g., United States v. Bergman, 813 F.2d 1027, 1030 (9th Cir.1987); United States v.
Halbert, 640 F.2d 1000, 1009 (9th Cir.1981). Moreover, a criminal defendant has no right of
self-representation on direct appeal in the first instance. Martinez v. Court of Appeal of California, 528
U.S. 152, 120 S.Ct. 684, 145 L.Ed.2d 597 (2000). And, even on direct appeal, a defendant does not
have a constitutional right to have appointed appellate counsel present every nonfrivolous issue

requested by the defendant. See Jones v. Barnes, 463 U.S. 745,103 S.Ct. 3308, 77 L.Ed.2d 987 (1983).

0431, at 8-9,

2 The Court further takes judicial notice of the content of the online docket record of the Supreme Court of |
Nevada for No. 43203, The copy in the record in this Court is in every respect identical to the copy available on the
state supreme court’s online docket. Both have a cover page as page 1, a body of the notice as page 2, and a certificate
of mailing as a page 4, with no page 3. See http://cascinfo.nvsupremecourt.us/public/caseView.do?¢sIID=11054, It
again is completely ludicrous to suggest that such a filing would include a missing phantom brief exhausting claims on
direct appeal that were not included in the appellant’s opening brief.

CﬂThc automatic inclusion of the state petition in the record exhibit appendix as required by state appeliate rules
did not fairly present any claim. See text, supra, at 6.
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Appellate counsel instead is expected to exercise independent professional judgement in selecting the
issues to pursue on appeal. /d.

P:etitioner has not identified- any pro se submissions that he sought to present to the state
supreme;court on either the represented direct appeal or state post-conviction appeal. However, even
if petitioner had made such submissions that were not accepted for filing, the submissions would not
have exhausted any claim. Again, presenting a claim in a procedural context in which the merits of the
claim will not be considered, or will be considered only in special circumstances, does not constitute
fair presentation of the claim. See,e.g., Castille, supra. Merely because a defendant or petitioner would
not have been able to present claims pro se on represented state court appeals does not give a federal
habeas petitioner carte blanche thereafter to raise claims that never were fairly presented to the state
supreme court. It would be a strange exhaustion rule indeed that would allow the state courts to be
automatically bypassed in this fashion for what then would be a de nove review in federal court of
claims that two attorneys did not deem worthy of specific argument on direct appeal or a state post-
conviction appeal. Any alleged déﬁciencies in the state appellate representation are more approprately
addressed under procedural default doctrine, not by circ;umventin g exhaustion rules in the first instance.

In this same vein, petitioner urges that any failure to exhaust on state post-convictionreview was
due to counsel’s alleged fatlure to comply with state procedural requirements. The issue at present,
however, is whether the claims were exhausted. They were not. The mere fact that counsel did not
pursue a claim in the state courts does not necessarily establish deficient representation as opposed to
an independent professional judgment as to the most potentially viable claims to argue on an appeal.
If petitioner believes that he can establish cause and prejudice for his failure to present the claims
previously to the state supreme court based on alleged failures by his appellate counsel, he must make
that argument in the first instance to the state courts, as discussed below.

In this regard, the Court is not persuaded by petitioner’s argument on the showing made that the
claims should be deemed exhausted on the basis that they would be found to be procedurally barred by
the state courts. The standards for excusing a procedural default are substantially the same in Nevada
state court as they are in federal court. Accordingly, this Court does not hold claims to be exhausted

on this basis in the absence of an unequivocal stipulation by a petitioner that the unexhausted claims
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in fact would be denied on state procedural grounds if he returned to state court to present the claims. .
Such an unequivocal stipulation, to in truth be unequivocal in light of the application of the procedural
default rules under Nevada state post-conviction procedure, must include concessions: (1) that petitioner
cannot avoid dismissal of the claims in the state courts because he cannot demonstrate cause and
prejudice in the state courts to overcome the state procedural bars;™ (2) that petitioner cannot avoid
dismissal of the claims in the state courts because he cannot demonstrate in the state courts that the
alleged constitutional violation probably has resulted in the conviction of one who is actually innocent
and cannot thereby overcome these procedural bars;** and (3) that the procedural bars otherwise are now
consistently applied by the Nevada state courts, such that it is not possible that the state courts, as a
discretionary matter, would consider the claims despite the procedural default and despite a failure to
demonstrate either cause and prejudice or actual innocence.

In the absence of such concessions, the Court will not hold that there is no possibility that the
unexhausted claims would be considered by the state courts on the merits. In the presence of such
concessions, the Court will dismiss the claims instead with prejudice on the basis of procedural default.
Given the substantial similarity of the Nevada and federal standards, there simply is no reason for not
according the state courts the first opportunity to address a petitioner’s efforts to overcome a state
procedural bar.

The Court accordingly is not persuaded, on the showing made, that there is an absence of
corrective process in the state courts and/or that exhaustion would be futile on the premise that the
unexhausted claims necessarily would be deemed procedurally barred. |

Nor is the Court persuaded that exhaustion otherwise would be futile because the state supreme

court allegedly has rejected similar claims previously. See,e.g., Engle v. Isaac, 456 U.5. 107,130, 102

22'Se'e',e.g.. Mitchell v. State, 149 P.3d 33, 36 (Nev. 2006)(*A petitioner can overcome the bar to an untimely or
successive petition by showing good cause and prejudice.”); see also Robinson v. Ignacio, 360 F.3d 1044, 1052 n.3 (o"
Cir, 2004)(recognizing that Nevada's cause and prejudice analysis and the federal cause and prejudice analysis are
nearly identical).

24 : . .
See,e.g., Mitchell, 149 P.3d at 36 (“Even when a petitioner cannot show good cause sufficient to overcome
the bars to an untimely or successive petition, habeas relief may still be granted if the petitioner can demonstrate that ‘a

constitutional violation has probably resulted in the conviction of one who is actually innocent,” citing Murray v.
Carrier, 477 U.8. 478, 496, 106 8.Ct. 2639, 01 L.Ed.2d 397 (1986)).
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S.Ct. 1558, 1573, 71 L.Ed.2d 783 (1982)(“If a defendant perceives a constitutional claim and believes
it may find favor in the federal courts, he may not bypass the state courts simply because he thinks they
will be unsympathetic to the claim. Even a state court that has previously rejected a constitutional
argument may decide, upon reflection, that the contention is valid.”).

The Court accordingly rejects all of petitioner’s generalized arguments seeking to overcome the
lack of exhaustion of the foregoing claims. To exhaust his claims, petitioner must fairly present them
to the state courts through to the Supreme Court of Nevada, along with any arguments that he may have
to overcome any procedural defenses raised in those courts.

Remaining Issues on the Motion to Dismiss

The Court’s exhaustion holdings eliminate any need to reach the remaining issues raised by
respondents in the motion to dismiss except as to one issue.

Respondents contend that Ground 18(b) is moot. In the exhausted portion of Ground 13(b),
petitioner alleges that he was denied effective assistance of counsel because trial and appellate counsel
failed to argue that the February 11, 2004, conviction did not constitute a prior offense under N.R.S.
207.010 for purposes of habitual criminal enhancement. Respondents urge that these claims are moot
because the Supreme Court of Nevada held on the state ﬁost-conviction appeal that the error in
considering the 2004 conviction was harmless because the State presented a sufficient number of other
prior convictions. The Court is not persuaded that the state supreme court’s holding renders Ground

18(b) moot. A state court’s holding that an error was harmless does not render a claim moot. Rather,
the issue remains for the merits of whether the state court’s rejection of the claims of ineffective
assistance of counsel was contrary to or an unreasonable application of clearly established federal law.

On another issue, petitioner requests in the alternative in his opposition that he be granted a stay
to return to state court to exhaust any unexhausted claims. To seek a stay, a party must file a separate
motion. Parties may not present such requests for other relief within a brief. This order provides
pwmmﬁammpmmdwmmummhmﬁbammmnEHMmmmhfmcmmeﬁmmmﬁanM%ﬂ
of only the unexhausted claims and/or for other appropriate relief. If petitioner wishes to move for a
stay, that is the juncture in the proceedings to request same.

1
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Petitioner should note in this regard that the requirements for a stay under Rhines v. Weber, 544
U.S. 269, 125 S.Ct. 1528, 161 L.Ed.2d 440 (2005), operate independently of one another. That is, a
petitioner must show, for example, good cause for the failure to exhaust the clafms as a separate and
mmdependent requirement from the requirement that he must show that the unexhausted claims include
at least one claim that is not plainly meritless. Petitioner contends in his opposition that “this Court
should find good cause, as Ground 23 is not meritless, and Volpicelli has shown some extreme or
unusual event beyond his control.”” The question of whether a claim is not plainly meritless is a
separate and distinct question from whether the petitioner had good cause for the failure to exhaust the
claim. Showing that a claim is not plainly meritless does not establish good cause.

Remaining Matters

Petitioner’s motion for leave to file a traverse, i.e., a surrreply, to respondents reply or in the
alternative renewed motion for appointment of counsel will be denied.

As discussed supra at 18, the sealed exhibits — primarily petitioner’s presentence report — have
nothing to do with the issues decided on the motion to dismiss. The filing of the sealed exhibits thus
provides a basis neither for the filing of an additional memorandum or for the appointment of counsel.

As also discussed supra at 19, petitioner’s suggestion that Exhibit 62 — a notice of intent to not
file a reply brief on direct appeal — is incomplete and might show exhaustion of otherwise unexhausted
claims is simply ludicrous. The Court is not going to grant leave to file a surreply, appoint counsel,
order expansion of the record, and/or order discovery to pursue petitioner’s utterly frivolous argument
in thisregard. The copy of Exhibit 62 in the record in this matter is identical to the copy on the online
docket record of the state supreme court, and - in all events — any suggestion that the document would
demonstrate exhaustion of claims, again, is wholly without merit.

Petitioner’s contention that respondents have presented new argument in their reply is without
merit. All of the argument presented in the reply was in response to argument by petitioner.

The renewed request for appointment of counsel is denied, for the reasons previously assigned

in #11. Petitioner is an experienced frequent litigator in this Court, and he has demonstrated an

Bu31, at 21.
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adequate ability to articulate his claims, both in this and other matters. To the extent that petitioner
expresses concern about the alleged complexity of the case — on a 143-page petition that he filed in
proper person — it would appear that the case potentially is about to become markedly less complicated.
Petitioner in any event has demonstrated the ability to articulate both a multitude of claims and
voluminous argument in support of same. While almost any pro se litigant would be better served with
the assistance of counsel, that is not the standard for appointment of counsel.
Respondents’ motion to substitute a successor officer for the prior warden will be granted.
Respondents — in the briefing — seek clarification of the order (#29) granting their motion (#26)
to file exhibits under seal and in camera®® Respondents filed a motion that the Court granted without
qualification. To the extent that the motion sought, and obtained, an order directing the filing of the
exhibits not only under seal but also in camera, respondents state a willingness to provide petitioner a
copy of the scaled exhibits other than the presentence report at this time. Respondents further state a
willingness to provide petitioner an opportunity to review the presentence report if it becomes at issue,
pursuant to the procedure in NDOC AR 568. The Court has no objection to petitioner being copied
with the other exhibits, and it has no objection to petitioner being allowed to review his presentence
report in a manner consistent with required institutional procedures. The Court indeed has no objection
to respondents doing both without waiting for the presentence report to become at issue, if it ever will,
to, hopefully, eliminate any further discussion in this regard.
IT THEREFORE IS ORDERED that respondents’ motion (#19) to dismiss is GRANTED IN
PART, such that;
0} Ground 9 is DISMISSED IN PART on the ments under § 2254(b)(2) as not
raising even a colorable federal claim to the extent that petitioner claims
ineffective assistance of counsel in Ground 9;
(2) Ground 23 is DISMISSED IN PART as redundant of Ground 18(b} to the extent
that Ground 23 alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object to

the use of the February 11, 2004, conviction as a prior conviction; and

26433 at 2-3.
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(3)  the Court holds that the following grounds and/or claims (hereafter, the

“unexhausted claims™) are not exhausted:

(a)
(b)

()

(d)

(€)

®

(8

1

Grounds 1 through 6, 10, 12 through 17, and 19 through 22;
all claims in Ground 7 other than the claim that petitioner was
denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel failed
to protect him from an allegedly excessive restitution order by
the sentencing court;

all claims in Ground 8 other than the claim that petitioner was
denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel allowed
him to be subjected to an indictment that allegedly contained
multiplicitous and duplicitous charges, violating his right to be
free from double jeopardy;

any and all claims remaining in Ground 9 following upon the
Court’s dismissal of the claim of ineffective assistance of
counsel in Ground 9;

all claims in Ground 11eother than the claim that petitioner was
denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel failed
to impeach accomplice Brett Bowman’s allegedly inconsistent
and/or perjured testimony with his prior inconsistent statements;
all claims in Ground 18 other than the claim in Ground 18(b)
that petitioner was denied effective assistance of counsel when
trial and appellate counsel did not argue that the February 11,
2004, conviction did not constitute a prior offense under N.R.S.
207.010 for purposes of habitual criminal enhancement; and
any and all claims remaining in Ground 23 following upon the
Court’s dismissal of Ground 23 in part as redundant of a claim

in Ground 18(b).
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IT FURTHER IS ORDERED that petitioner shall have thirty (30) days from entry of this order
within which to mail to the Clerk for filing a motion for dismissal without prejudice of the entire
petition, for partial dismissal only of the unexhausted claims, and/or for other appropriate relief. The
entire petition will be dismissed without prejudice for lack of complete exhaustion if a motion is not
timely filed. Further, if petitioner secks dismissal only of the unexhausted claims, he shall specify the
claims as to which dismissal is sought, using the same language as is used in subparagraphs 3(a)
through (g) in the above paragraph. Any failure to unambiguously so identify the specific claims to be
dismissed on a motion for partial dismissal may result instead in the entire petition being dismissed, for
lack of a clear election of requested remedies by petitioner.

IT FURTHER IS ORDERED that the standard opposition (14 days from service of the motion)
and reply (7 days from service of the opposition) times under Local Rule LR 7-2 shall apply to any
motion filed.

IT FURTHER IS ORDERED that petitioner’s motion (#34) for leave to file a traverse to the
reply or in the altemmative renewed motion for counsel is DENIED.

IT FURTHER IS ORDERED that respondents’ motion (#36) to substitute party is GRANTED,
and Robert LeGrand shall be substituted for Jack Palmer as a respondent.

IT FURTHER IS ORDERED that, notwithstanding any prior order, respondents may provide
petitioner copies of Sealed Exhibits 2 and 3 in #27 and, in their discretion, may enable petitioner to
review Sealed Exhibit 1in #27 in a manner consistent with the applicable administrative regulations and
institutional procedures.

DATED this 16th day of May, 2012.

LARRY R. HICKS
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEVADA
FERRILL J. VOLPICELL,
Petitioner, 3:10-¢v-00005-LRH-VPC
VS,
ORDER
JACK PALMER, ef al,
Respondents.

Following upon petitioner’s motion (#47) for partial dismissal of the claims held by the Court
to be unexhausted,
IT IS ORDERED that petitioner’s motion (#47) for partial dismissal is GRANTED and that the
following claims are DISMISSED without prejudice: :
(@  Grounds 1 through 6, 10, 12 through 17, and 19 through 22;

(b)  allclins in Ground 7 other than the claim that petitioner was |

demed effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel failed
to protect him from an allegedly excessive restitution order by
the sentencing court;

(¢}  all clains in Ground 8 other than the claim that petitioner was
denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel allowed
him to be subjected to an indictment that allegedly contamed
multiplicitous and duplicitous charges, violatmg his right to be
free from double jeopardy;
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(d) any and all chins remaining in Ground 9 following upon the
Court’s dismissal of the clain of meffective assistance of
counsel in Ground 9;

(e) all claims in Ground 11lother than the claim that petitioner was
denied effective assistance of counsel when trial counsel failed
fo impeach accomplice Brett Bowman’s allegedly inconsistent
and/or perjured testimorny with his prior inconsistent statements;

® all claims in Ground 18 other than the clhim n Ground 18(b)
that petitioner was denied effective assistance of counsel when
trial and appellate counsel did not argue that the February 11,
2004, conviction did not constiite a prior offense under N.R.S.
207.010 for purposes of habitual crimmnal enhancement; and

® any and all claims remaining in Ground 23 following upon the
Court’s dismissal of Ground 23 i part as redundant of a claim
in Ground 18(b).

IT FURTHER IS ORDERED that respondents shall file an answer to the remaining claims
within thirty (30) days of entry of this order and that petitioner shall have thirty (30) days from service
of the answer within which to mail a reply to the answer to the Clerk for filing,

Due to the age of the case, extensions of time will be considered only for extraordinary
circumstances. In the event of scheduling conflicts with other matters in this Court, any request
for extension of time should be sought in the later-filed case.

DATED this 19th day of November, 2012. . /: E ._: -

LARRY R HICKS
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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Statement O0f The Case

A Grand Jury was convened on June 11, 2003, to determine whether a
true bill should be made against Ferrill Joseph folpicelli.
hereinafter called Petitioner. An Indictment was filed against
Petitioner on June 11, 2003, Aan a?raignmenb on the Indictment was

heard on June 18, 2003. Trial counsel filed a Petitlon for Writ of
Habeas Corpus on September 4, 2003, An Opposition to Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus was filed on September 4, 2003. Trial
counsel filed a Reply In Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus on September 17, 2003, The State filed Notice of Intent to
Seek Habitwnal Criminal Status on October 9, 2093. The district
court filled an Order granting the Motion to Suppress regarding the
presentation of Petitioner's prior bad acts to the grand jury and
denied the Motion to Quash the Indictment. Jury trial commenced
and Petitioner was found gnilty of all charges within the
Indictment. A presentence report was done on November 23, 2003. A
sentencing hearing- vasa held on April 1, 2004. During sentencing,
trial counsel argued that Petitioner had some mental health
problems and referred to competency reporkts that had been requested
and received in another recent case. Additional information was
provided during the sentencing hearing for district court's
congideration. , These iIncluded exhibits 1-7, certificates of
achievment, and 1letters of completion from trial counsel. The
State presented three certificates of judgment of convictions 1997,
1998 and 2004, and a photograph of Petitioner while in custody,
vhich was sent to his family. Judgment was filed o; April 1, 2004.
Notice of Appeal was filed onm April 19, 2004. An Order declaring

2
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Petitioner a Habitual Criminal was filed on June 1, 2004. Counsgl
for Appellant filed an Opening Brief in the Nevada Supreme Court on
or abouit July 14, 2004. Respondents filed an Answering Brief on or
about August 6, 2004. The Nevada Supreme Court issuwed it's Order

of Affirmance on JUNE 29, 2005.

Remittitur issued on .August 1, 2005.

Petitioner now brings forth the instant petition.

Statement Of The Facts
Petitioner was on parole and 1living in Reno, Nevada from
approximately June 1, 2001 through October, 17, 200l. Petitioner
was being investigated by the Washoe County Repeat Offender Program
(ROP) . ROP detectives conducted surveillance on Petitioner in a
non-contintous fashion. ROP detectives also non-continuonusly
surveilled Petitioner's alleged co-conspirator, Brett Bowman; also
on parole at the time of the instant offenses.
The State and detectives allege that Petitioner entered several
retail establishments in the Reno area and proceeded Lo write
information on a tablet, allegedly copying pricing information from
variouns jtems.
Detectives testified that Brett Bowman entered various rebéil
establishments wherein he would affix' pricing 1labels ¢to
merchandise, purchase the merchandise at a discounted rate, and
leave the retail establishment with the property, thus constituting
burglary, larceny, uttering forged instruments and/or obtaining
property under false pretense.
The State alleges that the property purchased from the Reno area

3
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stores was then returned to the retail establishments for a correct
retail price, thus alloving Petitioner ;nd Brett Bowman to reap a
profit. (However, accérding to police recards, detectives located
and searched a personal stofage wnit rented by Petitioner's
step-daughter. ROP detectives secured numerous items, new, and in
unopened boxes from the storage unit. Datectives or other
personnel returned the items to various retail stores in the Reno
area, thus eliminating any and 211 financial impact on the
establishments. Additionally, if the State's theory is accurate,
the retail establishments reaped a profit by securing their
property vhicﬁ was originally purchased at gome price.)
On October 17, 2001, Petitioner waited outside a Wal-Mart store in
south Reno where Brett Bowman exited the store with a bicycle.
Bowman then piaced the bicycle in the van with Petitioner, and
Brett Bowman sat in the passenger sgeat of the vehicle while
Petitioner drove nortﬁ on Virginia Street. ROP detectives
commenced a trafffic stop on Petitioner and Bowman who were then
both subsequently. arrested. A subsequent search of Lthe van
ravealed a small black vinyl bag containing a label maker, UPC bar
code labels, receipts, the hicycle, and numerous other items.
Brett Bowman and various detectives testified at Petitioner's trial
alleging the entire above noted sclieme was entirely the result of
Petitioner's actions and planning.
Brett Bowman eventually received a sentence of only sixteen to
forty two (16-42) months for lhis actions, while the Petitloner was
sentenced to nine (9) l1ife sentences.-.

4
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" Applicable Law-Standard For Effective gistance Counsge

‘Petitioner has no choice but to raise the guestions regarding the

effectiveness of his coungel through the forum of a Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction). See Franklin v. State, 110

Ney. 750, 877 P2d 1058 (1994). The question of ineffective

assistance of counsel shonld not be considered in 2 direct appeal

from a judgment of conviction. Instead, the Issues should be

'raised, in the first instance, in the district court in a petition

for post-conviction ralief so that an evidentiary record regarding
counaeel's performance can be created. See W clh_v. State, 106
Nev. 470, 796 P2d 224 (1990).

It 1is possible for Petitioner to go straight to the Nevada Supreme

Court on the issues of ineffectiveness of counsel, but the fact
setting must be one where the Supreme Court can determine that
there was not good reason for counsel's actions that could exist.
See Jolies v. State, 110 Nev. 730, 877 P24 1052 (1994).

In the case at hand, the appropriate process is for the Petitioner
to raise the claims of ineffective assistance of counsel at the
district. court level in the procedure of a petition for
post-conviction relief and the district court to entertain the
matter by Eonducting an evidentiary hearing.

In State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 865 p2d 322 (1993), the Nevada

Supreme Court reviewed the issue of vwhether or not a Defendant had

received ineffective assistance of counsel at trial in violation of
the Sixth Amendment. The Nevada Supreme Court held that this
question {e a mixed question of law in fact aid 1s subject to

3
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independent review. The Supreme Court relterated the ruling of

gtrickland v. Washingten, 466 U.S. 668 1984). The Nevada Supreme

court {indicated that the test on a claim of ineffective assistance
of counsel is that of “reascnably effective asslstance" as
enunciated by the United States Supreme Court in Strickland. The
Nevada Supreme Court rgvi:ited this issue in Warden v. Lyons, 100

Nev. 430 (1984) and Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112 (1992]. The

Supreme Conrt has provided a two-prong test in that the Defendant
must show first "that counsel's performance was deficient and
second, that the Defendant was prejudiced by this deficiency.

The court will uphold a presumptioﬁ that counsel was effective,
Petitioner must, therefore, show that his attorney's performance
was unreasonable under prevailing profeséional norma and that he
vag prejudiced as a result of the deficient performaﬁce.

In Smithhart v. State, 86 Nev. 925, (1970), the Nevada Supreme

Court -held ¢that 1L will presume that an attorney has fully
discharged theilr duties and that euch presumption can only be
overcome by sirong and convincing proof to the contrary. The Court

went on in Warden vy. Lischko, 90 Nev. 220 (1974) to hold that the

standard of review of counsel's performance was whether the
representation of counsel was of such low caliber as to reduce the
trial to a sham, a farce or a pretemse. Thus, Petitioner is
properly befors the court on issues of inaffegbive assistance of
counsel and wonld request this court grant him an evidénbiary

hearing on thesa iszues.

[o)]
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GROUND ONE

APPELLATE COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO PRESENT ISSUES ON
DIRECT APPEAL TO THE NEVADA SUPREME COURT IN A PROPER
CONSTITUTIONAL MANNER ; THEREBY PREJUDICING AND BURDENING
PETITIONER. THIS TANTAMOUNTS TO A VIOLATION OF PETITIONER'S RIGHTS
TO EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AND THE DUE PROCESS OF LAW AS
GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE
UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

The court appointed Appellate counsel , Mary Lou Wilson, Eszqg., to
represent Petitioner on direct appeal. However, she failed to
present 1issnes to the Nevada Supreme Courkt in a federalized and
constitutional manner. This effectively precluded PeFibianer from
presenting those 1ssues to a federal court for review at a possible
future date. |

Appellate counsel presented the following 1ssues to the Nevada
Supreme Court in an Opening Brief. (See Supreme Court Case No.
43203)

I. WHETHER THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN FINDING THE INDICTMENT
LAWFUL WHEN THE PROSECUTOR ADMITTED THE 1998 BURGLARY CONVICTION
DURING THE GRAND JURY HEARING.

II. WHETHER AFPELLANT WAS COMPETENT DURING THE CRIMES.

i WHETHER THE JURY FOUND SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE T0 CONVICT
APPELLANT OF ALL COUNTS IN THE INDICTMENT.

IV. WHETHER THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION WHEN FINDING
HABITUAL CRIMINAL STATUS FCR TWO COUNTS AND RUNNING THEM
CONSECUTIVE.

The issues, as noted above, were not presented as constitutional
issues; thereby preventing the Nevada Supreme Court's review of the
issues under constitutional (U.S, & Nevada) scrutiny.

As 1s clear, counsel never pointed to constitutional errors or

federal Jaw in the above issues in order to preserve those issues

7
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for federal. review. This c¢learly put Petitiioner at a
disadvantage, wherein Petitioner could have filed a Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus pursuant to 28 U.S.C 2254 in the ‘United
States District Court i{f it were not for the fallures of counsel.

A federal court will not grant a state prisoner's petition for
habeas rellef until priscner has exhausted his available state

remedies for all claims raised. See Rose v. Lundy, 455 U.8. 509

1982}, State remedies have not been exhausted unless the claim
has been r"fairly presented" Lo the state courts and the highest
state court has disposed of the claim on the merits. See Carothers

Y. Rhay, 594 F2d4 225, 228 (9th Cir. 1979). Furthermore, the state

remedies are only exhausted where the Petitioner "characterized the

claims. he raised in the state proceedings specifically as federal

claims.® See Lyons v. Crawford, 232 F34 666, 670 {9th Cir. 2000).

The constitutional rights to effective assistance of counsel extend

ko a direct appeal. See Burke v. State, 110 Nev. 1366, 1368, 887

P2d 267, 268 (1994); and Evitts v. Lucey, Supra. A claim of

ineffective assistance of counsel is reviewed under the "reasonable

affective assistance" teast set forth in Strickland v. Washington,

Supra and Kirksey v. Stake, Supra.

Even the issues counsel did raise in the Opening Brief. Statement
were not addressed as far as their federal implications are
concerned. It was ineffective for counsel to ignore comstitutional
igsues, as fallure to raise them on appeal may preclude further
remedy In the federal court system. Generally, any exhausted
claims must be dismissed without prejudice for fallure to exhaust

:2
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all state created remedies. . 7o satisfy the exhaustion
requirement, Petitioner must present every claim raised in the
federal petition to each 1level of state courts." See Doctor v.
Walters, 96 F3d 675 (3rd cir. 1996).
Appellate counsel's failure to raise all viable issues on appeal,
including all constitutional i{ssues, fell below an objective
standard of reasonableness. Because counsel failed to use her
expartise and legal training to present all of Petitioner's
appellate 1issues before. the counrt, Petitioner was prejudiced.
Pursuant to the standards set forth in Strickland ,Supra, counsgl
denied Petitioner the right to effective assistance of counsel
during appeal.
Due .to counsel's errors, Petitioner Is forced to bring forth
Grounds Two, Three, Four, Five and Six which are cited below. ‘
GROUND THWO
PETITIONER WAS DENIED DUE PROCESS OF LAW AND EQUAL PROTECTION WHEN
THE NEVADA SUPREME COURT FAILED TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE APPELLATE

REVIEW ON DIRECT APPEAL; IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTE AND
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

Oon behalf of Petitioner, appellate counsel, Mary Lou Wilson,
submitted an Opening Brief to the Nevada Supreme Court on or about
&uly 14, 2004. Petitioner did not review or sign or authorize the
contents of the brief prior to submittal. The pleading-contﬁiued
brief arguments on four (4) grounds for relief outlined in Ground

One, above.

ho
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The Nevada Supreme Court issued ap Order of Affirmance on

vherein the court did not apply the controlling precedent(s) of the
United States Supreme Court. The court did not apply the just and
proper review neceasary, under constitutional scrutiny, to protect
Petitioner's rights as guaranteed by the U.S. Constitution.

The Eevada'Sﬂp:eme Court has discretion to review issues of a U.S.
Constitutional magnitude pursuant to the Nevada Constitution,
Article 1 sec. 2, as well as Article 6 sec.(s) 4 & 6.

The Nevada Supreme Court has exercised its power Lo review U.S.

Constitutional 1issues 1in the past. see e.g. Natchez v. State, 721

P24 361.

Article 1, section 2 of the Nevada Constitution gives the Nevada
Supreme Court the "power to compel obedience to. the U.S.
09natitutiona1 Authority.” .
The Nevada Supreme ‘Court Falled boh provide the necessary and
adequate judicial review as necessary to protect Petitioner's U.S.
Constitutional righte of equal protection and due pfocess of lawv as
guaranteed by the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the
U.S. Constitution.

Petitioner is now compelled to bring forth the following gropudg
(Grounds Three, Four, Five & Six) as outlined below, for this
Court's review, seeking application of the U.S. Supreme Court and

Constitutional precedence.
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GROUND THREE

PETITIONER'S RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS WERE VIOLATED WHEN TEE
PROSECUTOR ADMITTED A PRIOR BURGLARY CONVICTION TO THE GRAND JURY
IN SUPPORT OF AN INDICTMENT IN VIOLATION OF THE RIGHTS GUARANTEED
UNDER THE FIFTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES
CONSTITUTION.

The district court erred iIn finding the Indictment should stand
after the prosecutor admitted Petitioner's 1998 burglary
conviction. At the conclusion of a nine-witness grand jury hearing
on June 11, 2003, the prosecutor admitted Exhibit iﬁ, Petitioner’'s
1998 burglary conviction, ¢for a limited purpose. The prosecutor
explained that the allegation is not relevant as to vhether
Petitioner committed the offenses charged in the Indictment.
Hovever, it was relevant for the sentencing judge {f the Petitloner
was couvicted of any of the burglary charges. Thereafter, trial
counsel filed a pretrial petition for writ of habeas corpus. It
stated that the prior burglary conviction was improperly presented
for the grand jury's consideration. The State filed an Opposition
to the writ of habeas corpus on September 4, 2003, indicating that
the habeas corpus 1§ an inappropriate vehicle to challenge the
State's - evidence at a grand jury proceeding; the State
appropriately iutroduced the 1998 burglary conviction for a limited
purpose of notice; and the State's evidence at the grand jury was
suffictent to indict the Petitioner even if the prior conviction
was Inadmissible. The proper vehicle to challenge the validity of
evidence presented at the grand jury procgedings is a Motion. NRS

174.105(1), Franklin v. State, 89 Ney., 382, 387, 513 P2d 1252, 1256

1
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(1973); Cook v. State, 85 Nev. 692, 462 P2d 523 (1969), and Turpin

y. Sheriff, 87 Nev, 236, 484 P2d 1083 (1971). The State relled

upon NRS 484.3792 (2), Nevada's DUI sentencing provision, requiring
that evidence of prior DUI convictions used to enhance a DUI to a
felony be presented to the grand jury. Finally, the State argued
that even If the admissibility of the 1998 burglary conviction was
improper, there was sufficient evidence to return a true bill. The
State relied on the nine witnesses and fifteen exhibits to bolster
their argument. Trial counsel replied by asking the district court
to consider the writ as a motion, NRS 4B84.3792(2) inapplicable to
the facts, and Petitioner was unfaifly prejudiced by the admlssion
of the 1998 burglary conviction. The district court held that the
Petitioner's pretrial writ of habeas corpus was considered as a
motion to suppress under NRS 174.105(2). After consideration of
the arguments submitted, the court granted the Petitioner's motion
to suppress finding that the prior burglary conviction, when
presented during a seven count burglary grand jury proceeding, vas
improper bad act evidence and the cases cited by the State relating
to DUI 1lav were inapplicable. However, the request to guash the
Indictment was denied because the State presented nine witnesses,
including an accomplice, who testified to witnessing various acts
committed by Petitioner during the ten charged crimes, as well as
describing the merchandise obtained.

The district court erred in not quashing the Indictment based upon
the 1mproper admission of the 1998 burglary conviction becanse the
gran? jurors were tainted by this information and returned a true

12
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bill. Forthermore, even if the nature of the witnesses and exhibits
presented during the grand Jury hearing made it reasonable to
believe that the slight to marginal test for the Indictment was
met, the question of whether Improper evidence substantially
influenced the grand jury's decision to indict, or whether there is
grave doubt that the decision to indict was free from substantial
influence of improper evidence, thereby justifying a disﬁissal of
said Indictment, requires examination of the state of mind of the

. .reasonable grand juror. U.S. v. Sigma Intern, 244 F33 B841.

Evidence is unfairly prejudicial if it tempts the jury to decide

the case on an improper basis; especially vhen there exlsts a
similarity between the charged criminal act{s) and the prior bad
act. The more similar the acts, the greater the likelihood that
the jury will drav the improper inference that if the defendant did
it once, he probably di{d it again. Wjlljams v. State, 99 P3d 432,
441. |

. In addition, even if this Court considers that the prosecutorial
misconduct was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt given the
subsequent jury trial convictions, there [s case precedence from
the U.S. Supreme Court which redirects the harmless error analysis
to the grand Jury proceedings; rather than the outcome of the
krial. There, {t was held that when a defendant raises a
constitutional objection prior to the conclusion of trial-the rule
set forth in Bank of Nova Scotla controls. That is to say. courts
should not hesitate to remedy the violation because the Indictment
1s NOT, in reality, "of a grand jury" (USCA 5). U.S. v. Bank of

i3
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Nova Scotia, 108 Sct 2369, 2374.
In sum, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals has held that a
prosecutor lmay not seek a grand Jjury Indictment by proffering

tainted, prejudicial evidence to the grand jury. U.S. v. De Rosa,

783 P24 140 1) fr. 1986). Also, the existence of

prosecutorial discretion may not be arbitrary and capriclous. U.S.

. Saman 607 F24 877, 881 th Cir. 1979).

GROUND FOUR

* PETITIONER'S CONVICTIONS ARE CONSTITUTIONALLY INVALID DUE TO

PETITIONER'S MENTAL INCOMPETENCE AT THE TIME OF THE ALLEGED CRIMES
IN VIOLATION OF PETITIONER'S RIGHTS OF EQUAL PROTECTION AND DUE
PROCESS OF LAW UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO
THE U.S. CONSTITUTION. '

In an earlier case, Petitioner was evalnated for competency by Dr.

 Robert Hiller and Dr. Bill Davis. -At that time, Dr. Hiller noted

that Petitioner presented with numerous characteristics associated

with a significant personality disorder and a history of

" gignificant polysubstance dependeanca. Additionally, Dr. Davis

‘opined that Petitioner had an adjustment disorder with mixed

anxiety and depressed mood. The Department of Parole and Probhation
interviewed Petitioner after his conviction, and, at that time,
purported that the Petitioner admitted to suffering from asthma,
sleep apnea, vertigo, depression, panic anxiety disorder, and drng
addiction. Puring sentencing, trial counsel advised the parties
that Petitioner was dlagnosed with clinical depression, prescribed
Prozac, and felt better than he had ever felt in his whole life.
Furthermore, since Petitioner was in cuatody, October 2001, he was

14
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shcceasfully treated for his mental illness condition and that he
ha@ been productive. Thereafter, trial counsel admitted several
positive . documents showing Petitioner's achievments while in
custody awalting sentencing. Therefore, Petitioner was untreated
for his mental iliness until) he was placed in custody. Thereafter,
Petitioner had improved mentally and become productive, completing
programs and staying trouble free at jail. Petitioner described
his family meﬁbers as having mental Illnesses., For examplsa,
Petitionerfs sister had been on psychotropic medication for ten to
fifteen years, becatse of a familial chemical imbalance.
Petitioner further explained his drug addiction and hov that came
about because he wa self-medicating and attempting to produce some
endorphins. Petitioner believed that he needed some psychotherapy
te lhelp his mental 1llness. Therefore, given the nature of
Petitioner's mental health problems, and his obvious rehabilitation
after receliving medical treatment, he was ostensibly not competent
during the crimes.

Toe this, the courts have 1long held that a defendant must be
competent at the time of the alleged crimes for a valid conviction.
Additionally, a person lacks sufficient mens rea if he is hentally
incompebent abt the time of the alleged crimes. See Santobello V.

New York, 404 U.S. 257, 92 Sct 495 (1971}; Moran V. Godinez, 57 F3d

690, .

Clearly, there exists gufficient evidence in support of
Petitioner's mental incompetence during the alleged crimes. Heuce,

the 1imposition of sentence on Petitioner is a vioclation of his

constitutional rights and must be wvacated.

15
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GROUND FIVE

PETITIONER'S SENTENCES AND CONVICTIONS ARE CONSTITUTIONALLY INVALID
DUE TO INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE BEING PRODUCED AT TRIAL IN VIOLATION
OF PETITIONER'S RIGHTS OF EQUAL PROTECTION AND DUE PROCESS OF LAW
AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIXTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE
U.S. CONSTITUTION.

The evidence presented during the jury trial encompassed many
witnesses and documents. For example, on November 12, 2003, the
prosecutor called Detective Dslla to testlify that he and other
detectives surveyed Petitioner ower a period .of time noticing that
he had access to a storage unit in Sparks in which he moved hoxes
in and out of; picked up Brett Bowman while driving his van;
observed Mr., Bowman purchase a mountain bike at a great reduction
in price; arrested Petilioner and Mr. Bowman while driving after a
frandulent purchase; and located property and indicia of fraud
within the vehicle. Other surveillance officers presented were
Detective Scott Armitage, who noticed Petitioner looking at labels
and recording information on a small note pad; inventoried
Petitioner's wan upon arrest; and located comforters, a moutttain
bike, a label maker, bar code labels, receipts and a transposition
sheet inside said vehicle. Detective Lodge also noticed Petitioner
looking at items from Home Depol and writing down notes on a note
pad. Detective Brown noticed the smame alleged susplcious behavior
from Petitioner while shopping at WalMart. After arrest, Detective
Thomas received a search warrant for Lhe storage unit Lo whiclh the
Petitioner had legal access and located three plck-up truckloads of
merchandise. After receiving cooperating information from
Accomplice Brébb Bowman, Lhe receipts and transposition sheet vere

16
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used to mabtch frandnlently purchased items. According to Mr.
Bowman, Petitioner would make fictitious labels reflecting lower
prices and then Mr. Bowman would affix these UPC bar codes -on
higher priced merchandise; thereby reflecting savings of -several
dollars to hundreds of dollars. This included the purchases of one
or more home theater systems, computer monitors, sewing machines,
rags, coffee machines, a tolilet, & toothbraush, and other
miscellaneous items.

The defense requested, hut was denied, a Motion to Dismiss the
State's case for failure to prove their case based upon a violation
of NRS 175.291, opining that there was no independent evidence to
show Petitioner's gullt outside of Accomplice Brett Bowman's
testimony. The prosecutor then argued that the guestion was
properly for the jury to decide and that the physical evidence
found in Petitioner's wvan and the storage unit supported Accomplice
Bowman's testimony. The district court agreed with the state.

As a result, the jury convicted based upon insufficient evidence
because not one witness, except Accomplice Brett Bowman, ever
testified about any criminal condnct exhibited by Petitioner, and
that Mr; Bowman counld have achieved all crimes by himself-having
access to all indicia of fraud.

Therefore, absent Accomplice Brett Bowman's testimony, nobody
viewed Petitioner commit any crime. In addition, mere.presence and
knowledge of Accomplice Bowman's intentions are insufficient to
convict alding and abetting cnlpability. 512 P24 923, and U.S. v
Pingle 114 F3d 307 (D.C. Cir. 1997). As such, the Jury convicted
based upon insufficlent evidence since NRS 175.291 provides (1} a

17
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conviction shall not be had on Lhe testimony of an accomplice
unless he is corroborated by other avidence which in itself, and
without the ald of the testimony of Lhe accomplice, tends te
connect the defendant with the commission of the offense; and the

corrobration shall not be sufficient 3f it merely shows the

commisgion of the offense or the circumstances thereof.

It is ahindantly clear that the confts have long recognized not
only that the nncorroborated testimeny of an accomplice has
doubtful worth, but that -his incrimination of another is not
corroborated simply becanse he accurately describeg the crime or
the circumstances thereof. The requirement that a criminal charge
mnst be proven beyond a reasonable doubt is "indispensable, for it
impresses on the trier of fact the necessity of reaching a
subjective state of certitnde of the facts in iasnes." In_re
Wwinship, 397 U.S. 358, 364, 90 Sct 1068, 1072, 25 I..Ed. 2d 368

(1970) .

Hence, since a conviction shall not be had based on uncortrohorated

testimony of an accomplice, as cited at NRS 175.291 (1) and in

Austin v, State, 491 pP2d 714 (Nev. 1971), as well as U.S. v. Laing,
889 F2d  (D.C. Cir. 1989), Petitioner's convictions rest solely on

the testimony of an alleged Accomplice and evidence snbmitted on
the  basis of the Accomplice's testimony; thereby rendering

Petitioner's convictions and sentences constitutionally invalid.
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'PETITIONER'S CONVICTIONS AND SENTENCES ARE UNCONSTITUTIONAL UNDER
THE EQUAL PROTECTION AND DUE PROCESS OF LAW PROTECTIONS OF THE
FIFTH, SIXTH AND FOURTEENTR AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES’
CONSTITUTION WHEN THE COURT IMPOSED THE HABITUAL CRIMINAL STATUTES
UPON PETITIONER.

=

L2

The_ﬂéﬁatg ffxed Notica of fnbanb bo-Seek the Habitnal Criminal
qkatus on October 9, 2003, under NRS 207.010. Upon review of the

prior .wermﬂfﬁcates of Ymdgment of convictioms from 1997, 1998 ,a'and

2004, and heariny argumens agd Wicueswus aucoling sentenuing, ciw
@18Cr1Ct CONrT Iouna Pecigioner to be an Habicual Craminal anu
filed an Ordeé on June 1, 2004. During the seﬁhencing hearing, the
State requested that the district court ‘Tind Petitioner an habitual
criminal for a variety-of reasons. Initially, the State marked and

admitted the three prior certificates of -judgment of convictions
SEE Exthv e U [ : '

under exhibits 1, 2, and 3. The first certificate of conviction

was filed February 11, 2004, in CRO2-0148, involving the crime of

aiding and abetting in the commission of attempting to obtain money

by false pretenges. The prior certification shoved that Petitioner
was represented by counsel, had a sentencing, and judgment of
conviction sentencing Petitioner to 12-48 months in prison
cansecutive to CRO3-1263, The second prior certificate of
conviction of judgment was filed November 3, 2003, 1998, in
CR98-2160, invelving two counts of burglary. This prior
certification showed an arraignment with the assistance of counsel,
a gquilty plea memorandum, and eentence of 24-72 and 15-72 moﬁbhs in
prison to run consecutive to each other and consecutive to the
federal ©prison term. The third certificate of Jjudgment of

19
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’convictiou was filed on May 16, 1997, in CR-N-96-46-HDM (RAM}, in
1bhe United BStates District Court, inveoiving four counts of tax
perjury. Pebitionér was represented by counsel and received 22
months for each count to run concurrent with each other.

Thereafter, the State requested thaé the district court Impose a
sentence of 1life of imprisonment with 10 years minimum gerved in
prison on each felony count. The State called Officer Scott
Hopkins as . a sentencing wltness. During the survelllance of
Petitioner in 1997, he testiffed that le observed Petitioner
committing these crimes after he had been sentenced for his federal
cage. Allegedly, the Petitioner had commented to the officer that
the federal prison time of 22 months was worth a million:
inginuatuing that he had made a miilion dollars through his various
frand scams. The officer identified a photograph of Pebitioner
that was allegedly sent by him to Lori, Petitioner's wife at the
time, which was inscribed on the back stating, "I'm too sexy for
thig place. It has been 1ike a vacation. Just misaing stores."” The
State called Officer Reed Thomas to describe the Repeat Offender
Prﬂg}am's involvement with the Petitioner, and the officer's
contact with Petitioner and Brett Bowman. The officer discussed
Petitioner's use of his son to obtain money by false prekenses;
advising his danghter to run np their credit cards; putting the
skorage it in his step-daughter's name; and describing the
contents of the atoragas unit packed with stolen items. Finally,
the office testified to making a report as to the eshimate‘of value
and property 1located in the storage unit at over ten thousand
dollars of merchandise, as well as a speculative Ildea of

20
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Petitioner's alleged tax-free income per year at somewhere betweeﬁ
f1£Ly thousand to ulnety three thousand dollars. The State
explained the federal conviction for tax perjury to the parties
during the sentencing hearing, explaining that from 1989 and 1992,
Petitioner allegedly managed Lo accumulate eight hundred thousand
dollars worth of credite on his credit cards which were allegedly
used teo pay down mortgages, obtain a rental mit, and purchased
personal items for himself and his family. Thereafter, trial
connsel attempted tg bring forward mitigating evidence on behalf of
pPetitioner. Aftar finally being properly dlagnosed and treated for
his mental 1llness, Petitioner was presented as. feeling better than
he had ever felt in his life. From the evaluations done by Drs.
#Hiller and Davig, Petitioner received mental health care through
psychotropic medication during the last two years of incarceration.
Trial counsel then outlined Petitioner's productivity during his
jaly experience and proffered letters and certificates of
achievement. Although not specifically reviewed by trial counsel,
these documents included: Street Readiness Program, FParenting
Modulé, Substance Abuse Addiction and Recovery Module, Relapse
Prevention Module, Anger Management Module, two classes in computer
assisted Chemical Abuse Prevention, and a Domestic Vielence Module.
Additional credentials incinded Inmate Achievment Certificates in
Survive And Change Programs, two classes for Life Skills And
overcoming Substance Abuse, Literacy/ESL Tutor Training, NSP
Gardening Class I, Participation in Bridges to Freedom, the Way Teo
Happiness Course, Self Improvement and Job Search Workshop, and
Cchristian Way In Marriage. Thereafter, trial counsel argued that

21
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Petitioner was ready to 1lead a lawful 1life now that he had been
treated for mental health conditions; he had honorable discharges
from periods of probation; the disparity in treatment between -
Petitioner and Mr. Bowman was great wherein Accomplice Bowman
received a mere 16-42 months; the mature age and intelligence of
the Petitioner, all of which contribute tc the Petitioner deserving
a sentence of 4-40 years in prison and no habitunal offender status.
Petitioner explained to the district court about his troubled
childhood, familial chemical imbalance, self-medication with drugs,
and the need for psychotherapy. Thereafter, the district ccu;t
found that upon review of Petitioner's prior record, including the
prior felony convictions; the long pattern of theft, and the fact
that he had allegedly made a living for years as a career criminal,
he was the poster child for habitual criminality. Therefore, the
district court imposed 9 terms of 1life In prison with the
possibiblty of parole {n ten years; Ewo of which wotld run
consecutive to one another and the others to run concurrently.
Hence, Pebitioner wouid have Lo spend at least twenty years in
prison Dbefore parcle eligibilicy and 'the sentences vould run
consecutive to any other sentemcing currently being served. This
ineludes initially expiring cases CR QB-ZiGD, OR-N-96-46-HDM (RAM),
CRO2-0147 and CR0O2-0148. Thus, this would then bring the aggregate
minimum time 1in custody wherein Petitoner would he eligible for
parcle when he aktalns 80 years of age. .

NRS  207.010(2) indicates that the trial judge may, at his
discretion, dismiss a connt under the section, which is inclpdeﬂ in
any indictment or information for purposes of habi tual criminai

22
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status. Clark v. State, 109 Nev. 426, 428, 851 P24 426, 427 (1993).

The decision to adjndicate an individual as a habitual criminal is

not an auntomatic one. Sessions v, State, 106 Nev, 186, 190, 789 P24

1242, 1244 (1990). The district court may dismiss counts brought

under the habitnal ocriminal statute when the prior offenses are
stale, trivial, or where an adjudication of habitual criminallty
wonld not eserve the interests of the statute or justice. Some
considerations within the discreb{on of the district court are
whether ¢the prior conv;cbions wvere violent or remote in time.

Arajakas v. State, 108 Nev. 976, 983, B43 P24 800, 805 (1992). The

district court should provide reasons for finding an habitval

criminal status, however, this Court has stated that there is not a
requirement for the district courts to utter talismanle phrases
snch as "just and proper". Hughes v. State, 116 Nev. 327, 3 996
P2d 890, 893 (2000).

In HWalker v. Deeds, 50 F3d 673 (1995), the district court must

weigh the appropriate factors for and against the habitual criminal

enhancement. The sentencing jndge is required to make an actnal
judgment on the question of whether it is jnst and proper for the
defendant to he punished and segregated as a habitual eriminal. In

Hicks v. Oklahoma, 447 U.S. 343, 346, 100 Sct 2227, 2229 (1980),

the Supreme Court held that the state laws gnaranteeing a defendant

-procedural rights at sentencing may create 1liberty Interests

protected against arbitrary deprivations by the due process clause

:of the Fouiteenth Amendment. Therefore, when a-state has provided

a ‘'specific method for determining whether a certain sentence shall
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be imposed, "it is not Lo say that the defendant's interest in
having that method adhered to is merely a matter of state

procedural law." Fetterly v. Pagkett, 997 F2d 1295, 1300 (9th Cir.

993) citing Hicks v. Oklahoma, cert. denied,-—-—-U.8.--—-;115 Sct.
290, 130 L.EQ.2d 205 {1994). Based on Hicks, this Conrt found that

state law requiring that the Washington Supreme Court review and

make particular findings before affirming a death sentence created

a constitutionally protected interest. Campbell y. Blodgstt, 997

9th Cir. cert. denied

1337, 127 L.Bd2d 685 (1994). Nevada's law requiring a court to
review and make particularized €£indings that it is “juat and
proper* for a defendant to be adjudged a habitual offender also
creates a constitntionally protected liberty intereat in a

sentencing procedure. ITn Walker v. Deeds, 50 F3d 673 (9th Cir.

1995), it was held that because the state conrt did not make the
requisite individnaiized determination that it was "just and
proper”, Walker be adjudged a habitual offender as mandated by
Nevada law, Walker's due process rights wera violated.

In the present case, the district court determined habitual statns
after hearing from all parties. In particular, the finding was the
following:

Well, in reviewing Petitioner's record, I have to consider the
nature of his prior felony convictions, and the prior felony
convictions, in fact, are Ilargely part of a theft scheme that
Petitioner developed years ago and persisted in stealing from
stores over the course of a long time and perhaps various methoda.

.Apparently, he starts this activity with getting duplicate
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copies of credit card receipts and then using that method to return
property for full value that wasn't purchased for the full value, and
progressed to more sophisticated crime of using false UPC labels on
boxes of merchandise. But that shows a long pattern\pf this type

of theft. ‘

And not only is it theft, but it’s a theft that was actually
used to support Petitioner, so it's different than you see 1n most
cases. You don't see that many people who actually earn a living
from theft or crime. Usually people have other employment, they,
you know, live their life generally supporting themselves lawfglly
but then have a sideline perhaps of criminal activity, but Petitioner
in fact, is a career criminal and that's how he has made a living
for years while not incarcerated. :

And under all the evidence that I see here, I do in fact, find
that Petitioner is a habituwal criminal. In fact, you are the poster
child for habitual eriminality in that every time you're released
from custody, it seems like you're out making a full-time living
stealing. So there really isn't any doubt in my mind that the
statutory scheme for habitual criminality applied to you, Petitioner. .

And with that, I will sentence you as a habitual criminal, I
think society needs to be protected from this level of theft where
you're actually making a full good living from stealing. And also
our law enforcement authorities need to devote themselves to other
people than to constantly monitor you as you pursue this scheme of
theft to make a living.

It appears that the district court made a finding of habitualh
criminal status based upon all of the evidence presented. However,
the District Court abused its discretion when finding nine counts
satisfied the habitual criminal statute and ran two of tﬁem con-
secutively; with the remaining seven running concurrent to them.
When considering Petitioner's untreated mental health problems apd

the fact that the prior convictions were not violent, the districp
court abused its discretion.

11/ ’
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GROUND SEVEN

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO PROTECT PETITIONER
FROM THE SENTENCING COURT IMPOSING EXCESSIVE RESTITUTION NOT
SUPPORTED BY TRIAL FACTS AND/OR TRIAL EVIDENCE; THEREBY VIOLATING
PETITIONER'S RIGHTS OF -DUE PROCESS, FAJR TRIAL, AND EQUAL PRO-
TRCTION, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIXTH, ARD FOURTEENTH AMERD-
MENTS TC THE UNITED STATES CORSTITUTIOH.

At the sentencing hearing held in this action on April 1, 2004,
this Court imposed restitution of ten-thousand three-hundred thirty-
nine dollars and si;teen cents ($10,339.16), where no factual basis
existed for the imposition of such an inflated amount.

The prosecution's theory of this case was that Patitioner pur-
chased sore items at a reduced price. The Reno Police Department
{("RPD") officers testified that they located a storage unit contain-
ing. items purperted to belong to various Reno area retail establish-
ments., The officers claim to have returned the aforementioned mer-
chandise to its original owners. (See Exhibitfﬁ*ﬁ; Inventory List
of Returned Items).

Restitution is a sentencing option, and as such, under Apprendi

vs., New Jersey and Blakely.vs. Washington, (530 US 466, 130 SCt 2348

{2000); and, 542 US , 124 SCt 2531 (2004), respectively}, it was
this Court's abuse of discretion to sanction Petitioner with resti-

tution beyond that which the indictment specifically cited in the

burglary counts, as well as what the trial jury adjudicated of same
in their deliberation. Under Victim and Witness Protection Act,
the court may not authorize restitution for losses from crimes for
which Defendant is not convicted, even if those other crimes are

significantly related to crimes of conviction. 18 U.S.C.A. §
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U.S. v. Young, 953 P2d 1288. Hence, Defendant’s sentence
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with respect to restitution had to be limited to amounts in counts

3663(a);

on which' the particular Defendant was found guilty. U.S. v. Cronan,

990 F2d 663 (1st Cir. 1993). Additionally, "a Defendant cannot be

ordered to pay restitution for criminal activities for which the
Defendant did not admit responsibility, was not specifically charged

and convicted, or did not agree to pay restitution." State v. Wallace,

100 P33 273, 274, Moreover, .... district court erred in ordering

restitution amounts greater than that alleged in indictment. 18

U.S.C.A. § 3651, U,S. v. Black, 767 F2d 3651, and restitution order
was illegal to the extent it covered losses which were not specifi-

cally related to offense counts of conviction. U.S5. V. Savely, 814

PSupp 1519. (See Exhibit(s) !f%} Items Specifically Noted in Indict-
ment & adjudicated as such). |

Aside from the foregoing issue, and if the State's theory is to
be taken as true, then the various retail items were not only paid
for in pért, but RPD subsequently returned the items to the retail
establisﬁments as new, in unopened‘boxes, and in original condition.
Thus, the retail stores retained a profit; as oppésed to incurring
a loss a; a victim, Restitution amounts must be ascertained and:
delineatéd with accurate computation, It cannot exceed actual loss
incurred;and must be clearly set out with specific findings. U.S.

v. Boyle, 10 F3d 485 (9th Cir. 1993).

Therefore, it 'is patently clear from the record that this Court
imposed #estitution upon’the Petitiocener; wherein there is no evi-
dence_of:actual loss to any victim. Restitution is to be based on

an actual pecuniary loss to the victims, U.S. v. Harper, 32 F3d 1387,
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(9th Cir. 1994).

Additionally, Petitioner is indigent as proven by this Court's
Order To Proceed In Forma Pauperis, on file herein. Petitioner was
indigent, at the time of trial and sentencing, as this Court appointed
counsel to represent Petitioner. This Court did not take into con-
sideration Petitioner's ability to pay restitution, as the record is
silent as to the Court's basis or reasoning for the imposition of
restitution,.

The. district court may order an indigent defendant to pay res-
titution provided that there is sufficient evidence in the record
demonstrating that he will have a future ability to make restititution,

U.5. v. Sarno, 73 F3d 1470, 1503 (9th Cir. 1995); U.S5. V. Ramillo,

986 F2d 333, 336, n.5 (9th Cir, 1993). Due to the length of sentences

imposed by this Court, the Court cannot justify the Petitioner will
eventually be able to pay restitution while incarcerated for the rest
of his natural life, with no viable income or employment resources
Wwhile incarcerated.

‘This issue is properly before this Court, as the Nevada Sﬁpreme

Court has held in Martinez v. State, 974 P24 133 (Wev. 1339), as

follows:
Petitioner is entitled to challenge restitution by the State and may
obtain and present evidence to support that challenge.

Trial counsel's failure to object or otherwise protect Petitioner
from the excessive restitution imposed by this Court was ineffective

under the guarantees of theSixth Amendment and Strickland v. Washing-

ton, supra.. Petitioner has clearly been prejudiced as a result of

counsel's failures.
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GRODND EIGHT

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR ALLOWING PETITIONER TO BE
SUBJECTED TO AN INDICTMENT/COMPLAINT CONTAINING MULTIPLICITOUS
AND DUPLICITOUS CHARGES, THUS DENYING PETITIONER HIS DUE PROCESS,
EQUAL PROTECTION, AND FAIR TRIAL RIGHTS AS GUARANTEED BY THE
FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES
CONSTITUTION.

The ban against duplicitous indictments derives from four (4)
concerns: (1) prejudicial evidenciary rulings at trial; (2) the
lack of adequate notice of the nature of the charges against.a
defendant; (3) prejudice in obtaining appellate review and pre-
vention of double jeopardy; and, (4) risk of a jury's non-unanimous

verdict, US v. Cooper, 966 F2d 936, 939, n.3 (5th Cir. 1992).

puplicitous indictments may prevent jurors from acquitting on a
particular charge by allowing them to convict on another charge
that is improperly lumped together with another offense on a

single count. A duplicitous indictment precludes assurance of jury
unanimity, and may prejudice a subsequent double jeopardy defense.

US v. Morse, 785 F2d 771, 774 (9th cir. 1986) (citing, US v. UCO

0il Co., 546 F2d 833, 835 (9th Cir. 1976)).

It shall be noted that the duplicitous and multiplicitous
charges in this case arise due to the fact that the charges relate
to acts alleged to have occurred between August 30, 2001, and
October 17, 2001; wherein, trial testimony of retail investigators
and RPD officers indicate there was no crime committed on the

aforementioned dates by Petitioner, as is evidenced by the following

quotes from the Trial Transcripts ("TT") in this matter:
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T 11/12/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective
Della, {Petitioner surveilled at Aussie Storage Unit on
September 26, 2001; Page 129, Lines 4 - 20:

4 Q: And that's when you saw him taking something
5 from the van into the storage unit?

6 A: Yes

7 Q: It's not a crime to put something in a

B storage unit, is it?

9
10

MS. RIGGS: Objection, it calls for a legal
conclusion.
L THE COQURT: The objection is overruled,

12 THE WITNESS: Just to put something in a

13 storage unit, no,

14 BY MR. VAN RY: th

15 Q: Let's go to October 17—. And I believe you
. 16 testified that you saw my client pick up Mr. Bowman

17 around Third Street; 1s that correct? ’

18 Az Yes

19 Q: And then you testified that he went down to

20 Wal-Mart; is that correct?

TT 11/12/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective
Della, as to Count IX, (Petitioner surveilled at Wal-Mart
‘on October 17, 2001); Page 133, Lines 3 - 63

3 Q:  and you certainly didn't observe )
4 Mr, Volpicelli put a UPC label on this bicycle tag, did

5 you?
6 A: I did not observe him in the store, sir.
. TT 11/12/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Retail inves-

tigator Rllis, as to Count VI, (Petitioner surveilled at Lowes'):
on October 5, 2001); Page 152, Lines 2 - 93

As you sit here you have no personal _
knowledge as to who actually placed this other UPC label
over the existing label, do you?

Az No, Sir.
Q: So you can't say for certain that it was my
client that did that?
A No, Sir.
MR. VAN RY: Thank You.

W]k B

TT 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective
Armitage, as to Count VITI, (Petitioner surveilled at Shopko
on August 30, 2001); Page 39, Lines 13 - 19:
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13 Q: Did you see Volpicelli take a Colorvision gueen

14 size comforter out and remove it from -~

15 A: No, I 4id not.

16 Q: Let me ask a better gquestion. Did you see

17 Mr. Volpicelll remove a comforter from it's manufacturer’'s
18 package and put it into another?

19 B 1 did not,

TT 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective
Armitage, as to Cout II, {(Petitioner surveilled at Wal—MaFt
on September 4, 2001); Page 39, Lines 20.- 25; Page 40, Lines
1 - 25; Page 41, Lines 1 - 13

20 Q: And let's finally get to the beginning of your
21 testimony where you testified about Northtowne
22 wWal-Mart. And what did you observe him in the
23 Northtown Wal-Martgh
24 s September 4—.
25 Q: That September 4th, you observed Mr. Volpicelli
P.40

1 go to the sporting goods section of the store, is that

2 correct?

3 Az Yes

4 Qs And you followed him 20 to 30 feet behind?

5 Az Yes, Sir.

6 Q: As you walked into the store and the defendant
7 was in the store, you testified that he stopped and
8 1looked at golf clubs and accessories, correct?

9 aA: Correct
10 Q: And it appeared from your advantage point thgt
11 he was observing the label and the pricing information,
12 1is that correct?

13 A: Yes.

14 Q: Observing pricing information isn't necessarily
15 a chargeable offense, is it?

16 M8. RIGGS: Objection. Calls for a legal
17 conclusion,

18 THE COURT: As I ruled yesterday, I will

19 overrule that objection. I'm not going to prevent _

20 somebody from testifying as to a legal conclusion if it's
21 within their sphere of knowledge. &and I would find that
22 this witness would know of these kinds of things.

23 THE WITNESS: Observing, no.

24 BY MR. VAN RY:

25 Q:  How about writing down pricing information?
P. 41

1 A: Potentially, probably a c¢rime.

2 Q: So you're saying if I walk in a Raley's, and I

3 write down price information for the milk and yogurt, and
4 I walk out of the store, that would be a chargeable
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offense?

A Not necessarily the pricing information, maybe
the bar code information.

Qs But you would need additional information?

Az Correct.

Q: But just by itself?

a: Correct.

MR. VAN RY: No further questions, Your Honor.

Thank you.

T 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective

Armitage, as to Count X, (Petitioner surveilled at Wa17Mart
on October 17, 2001, in the presence of file with receipts,
labels, and transposition list); Page 34, Lines 7 - 13:

7
8

Q: Do you know if there's been any DNA samples or
any way to identify who's possessed this in their
fingers?

Az No

Q: So you can't conclusively say that this has
been in my client's possession?

Az Correct.

T 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective

Armitage, as to Count IX, (Petitioner surveilled at Wal-Mart
on October 17, 2001); Page 36, Lines 4 - 20:

Q: Did you actually see him, Volpicelli, place a
different UPC label on the tag of that bike?

At I did not,

Q: So it's possible that between the time
Mr, Volpicelli left that area and Mr, Bowman came in and
approached that bike that Mr. Bowman placed that label on
there? .

MS. RIGGS: Objection., Calls for speculation.
THE COURT; well, we are limited to what this
witnesses knows. I sustain the objection.
BY MR, VAN RY:

Q: Let me ask you in a better way. Since you did
not see Mr. Volpicelli place a label, another or
different lable on that tag, is it possible for someone
else to have done it?

M5. RIGGS: Objection. Calls for speculation,
THE COURT: The objection is overruled.
THE WITNESS: Yes.

TT 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective

Lodge, as to Count III, (Petitioner surveilled at Home Depot
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on

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

- -
® ®

September 11 and September 19, 2001); Page 50, Lines 14 - 20:

Q:  Officer Lodge, sounds to me like you survelilled
my client and watched him walk into a store and walk out
without doing anything that would have been criminal, is
that correct?

A: At the time, sir, it didn't appear to be
¢riminal, no.

Q: Okay.

™ 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective Browm,

as to Count I, (Petitioner surveilled at Wal-Mart om September
28, 2001); Page 57, Lines 7 - 25; Page 58, Lines 1 - 12:

N . ]

17

[ .
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Q: When you saw him inside the store, did you
observe him do anything that you would consider _
inconsistent with someone who was a regular customer
inside of the store?

Az Looking at things on the shelves and writing
down whatever he was writing down was not something that
I considered normal,

Q: So you would say someone who went in to
comparison shop to write down prices would be
inconsistent with a regular customer?

A It's not something I usually see people do.

Q: Little bit different guestion, same thing.
Based on your observations, was there enough to charge

) him with a crime?

Az No

Q: And during the time of this surveillance you
didn't see him purchase anything, did you?

A:* Not that I can recall.

Q: Okay. And I know that was repeated, kind of my
58
fault there. A guestion you already answered.

You did not see my client adhere of affix any
any UPC labels to any labels on merchandise in that store,
aid you?

Az In the store on Kietzke? _

Q0: The store you were just testifying about, the
Home Depot?

Az No

H Okay. and you did not observe my client

actually carrying the UPC label maker with him when he
went into the Wal-Mart, did you?

A: No

TT 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross—examines Retall Inves-

tigator Danielson, as to Counts II, V, VIiI, and IX, (Petitioner
surveilled at Wal-Mart during September/October, 2001); Page
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71, Lines 2 - 10:

Q: Is it against Wal-Mart's policy to allow
customers to come in and do price checking on the
information that is listed on the price of the items?

Az No

Q: So I ask that in a positive better question, I
kind of muddled through that. .

So it is allowable for customers to come into
Wal-Mart to check pricing information?
Al Yes, sir.

QWO B WK

—

TT 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Retail
Investigator Mowry, as to Count VIII, (Petitioner surveilled
at Shopko on August 30, 2001 and October 17, 2001; Page 79,
Lines-15 - 22:

15 Q: Mr. Mowery, as you observed that Sonicare .

16 toothbrush in the packaging and the label that's affixed
17 over the box UPC label, isn't it true that you have no
18 personal knowledge of how it got there?

19 A: How it was affixed to the box, that's correct,
20 No, I have no idea.
21 Q: And you have no idea who may have done that?

22 Az No.

TT 11/13/03; wherein Van Ry cross-examines Detective
Thomas (Case Agent), as to Counts I through X, (Petitionerx
surveilled at sundry retailers from August 30, 2001, through
October 17, 2001); Page 133, Lines 13 - 23; Page 142, Lines
14 - 22:

13 Q: During the multiple days, and I believe you

14 said it was eight days that you followed my client, is
15 that correct?

16 As That's correct,

17 Q: Did you ever see Mr., Volpicelli use Exhibit 9,

18 that label maker?

19 A: I 4did not.

20 Q: At any time during your surveillance did you .

21 see Mr. Volpicelli affix a UPC label to merchandise in a
22 store?

23 A: I personally did not.

P, 142

14 Q: Just one question. It wasn't a crime on those

15 days when Mr. Volpicelli walked into those stores without
16 Mr, Bowman, was it?

17 Az It wasn't a crime to walk into the stores --
18 Q: Correct

19 A: -- without Mr, Bowman.

20 Q: And then to walk out? ,

21 A: That in itself does not show anything that's a

22 crime.
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In addition, there was a lack of specificity, which precluded
Petitloner's ability to defend the charges. Petitioner was pre-
vented from’being able to bring in witnesses to explain where
he was, and why he was not with his co-defendant, BOWMAN. Hepce:
Petitioner was left with no ability to defend these charges.

It is patently clear from the testimony of Brett Bowman,
that he did not meet Petitioner until June, 2001. There was not
an overall agreement to achieve the objectives of one conspiracy.
The dates charged by the prosecution demonstrate that quman acted
alone on several of the alleged crimimal activities. Therefore,
there 1s insufficient evidence to support the conspiracy charge,

In this case, it was impossible for Petitioner to be indicted
and/or convicted of a separate count for each activity, exclusive
of one another, and/or separate from the conspiracy count. The
counts are simply multiplicitous, Furthermore, the prosecution's
theory of the case should be controlling. .The prosecution charged
Petitioner with a general conspiracy count. After that, the prose-
cution pieced each and every activity into a separate charge.
Separate convictions for each activity are redundant and violate
Petitioner's rights to be free from ﬁouble Jeopardy, and should
be set aside by thls Court.

Trial counsel was ineffective for allowing Petitioner to
be subjected to the numerous multiplicitous and duplicitous charges
as alleged by the prosecution. Petitioner has definitely been
prejudiced as a result, as the subsequent multiple convigtions
prove. (See, Exhibit [**4] 2 letters to Jack Alian, Esq., dated
2/23/02 & 5/27/03, which were also sent to Van Ry, Esd., clearly
emphasizing Petitioner's conviction of multipli?itous/duplicitouﬂI
charges).
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GROND NINE

mmmmmmmmmmmmwam
mlmmmmmmmmmm(m
NO LESSER-INCLUDED INSTRUCTION TO THE JURY), THEREEY DENYING THE PETTTICNER -
HIS RIGHTS TO BQUAL FROTECTION, A FAIR TRIAL, AND DUE PROCESS, AS GUARANTEED

BY THE FI¥TH, SIXTH, mmmwmmﬂmmm.

Petitioner was charged with a Comspiracy to Commit Crimes Against Property,
(NRS 199.48{), 205,060, 205.0832, 205.090, 205.110, 205.220, 205,240, 205,380, &
205.965), and multiple counts of Burglary (NRS 205.060), as well as a single
count of Unlawful Possession, Making, Forgery, or Counterfeiting of Inventory
Pricing Labels {NRS 205.965(2)(3}).

The above-noted charges are lesser-included offenses of each other, in
particular, the Burglary charges are lesser-included offenses of each other
and the Conspiracy charge.

To identify lesser-inciuded offenses, federal courts follow the "elements
test., Under that test, an offense is not " eggar-included,” unless: (1) the
elements of the lesser offense are a subset of the elements of the charged of-
fense; and, (2) it is impossible to commit the greater offense without first
having coamitted the lesser. Scimuck v. United States, 489 US 705, 716, 108

sSct (1989). To be canvicted of charges which are lesser-included offenses

violated Double Jeopardy. Blockberger v, United States, 284 US 299, 52 SCt

180 (1932).
The elements test set forth in Scimmck requires a "textual comparison”

of criminal statutes, an approach that we explained lends itself to certain
and predictable outcome. Carter v. United States, 530 US 255, 120 sct 2159

-{2000) .

It is at this precise juncture that Petitioner has been subjected to
mmerous convictions of Burglary which are a subset of the Conspiracy to Comnit
Burglary offense. Especially when taken into consideration that the alleged
co-defendant, Brett Bowman, was never charged with Conspiracy, zjlndfor rany of
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Petitioner could not have committed the elements of the Conspiracy Offense

the alleged Burglaries.

without committing the elements of the Burglary Offenses. If the prosecution’s
theory.is to be taken as true, the testimonial evidence submitted at trial indi-
cates that Petitioner was seen entering various retail establishments, "writing
something down," - not a crime in itself., It was the Co-defendant, Brett Bowman,
who testified that he entered the retail establishments and purchased the indi-
vidual items, therefére committing the Burglaries and continved the Conspiracy.
It is clear from the record, and Brett Bowman's statements to RPD personnel,

that Petitioner is not guilty of the numerous Burglary offenses, as his partici-
pation was nominal, at best, if Brett Bowman's testimony is to be believed.

Lastly, where the Court recognized in Keeble v. United States, 412 US 205,

212-213,. 93 SCt 1997-1998, that where the jury may suspect that the Defendant

is plainly guilty of some offense, but one of the elements of the charged offense
remaing in doubt, in the absence of a lesser~offénse instruction, the jq{y will
likely fail to give full effect to the reasonable-doubt standard; resolving its
doubt in favor of conviction. Had counsel at least proffered the availability
of a lesser-included-offense instruction, the Petitioner would have been poten-

tially protected’from any improper conviction, Schmuck, supra., &t 1451.

Trial counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate into the facts
surrounding the instant offense, and therefore, ineffective in allowing Petitioner

to be subjected to such numerous and various offenses which are lesser-included
of each other, Counsel was further ineffective for not, at the very least,
proffefing a lesser-included-offense instruction to the jury, in an effort to
minimize the multiplicitous/duplicitous charging practice of the-prosecutor,
and to attempt to protect Petitioner from the same. As a result, Petitioner
was prejudiced with multiple counts, multiple life sentences, and consecutive

sentences.

V9.708



® o
GROUND TEN

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO PROTECT PETITIONER
FROM SELECTIVE AND VINDICTIVE FROSECUTION, IN VIOLATION OF THE
PETITIONER'S RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION, AND A FAIR
TRIAL, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIPTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMEND-
MENTS TO THE UNITED. STATES CONSTITUTION. :

r

During the entire judicial process in this case,'the Prosecution
sought to impose harsher and multiple penalties against the Petitionmer
for the fact that Petitioner insisted on his innocencé, right to
remain silent, and invoked his right to a preliminary. hearing and
a jury trial, as gquaranteed by the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth
Amen@ments to the United States Constitution.

The Co-Defendant in this case, Brett Bowman, received a drasti-
cally reduced sentence under fewer imposed charges, in consideration
for his testimony against Petitioner. Brett Bowman received one
(1) felony conviction, serving 16 to 48 months of incarceration,
versus Petitioner's multiple life senténces.

Central to this ground, the Petitionex notes that the Prose-
cution made the following statements:

Reno Police Departmerit transcripts (hereafter "RPDL'})
of 12/6/01; {Recorded testimonial, following Miranda,
between Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas);

Page 18, Lines 8 - 17: Exhibit [**7} . o
8 THOMAS: ... But the District Attorney's opinion is.right now

9 that if he wants to play hard ball and heiwants to

take this to a jury, then every time he

10 gets bound over on one of these cases, and I've got
about six (6) or seven (7) of em

i right now, with about twenty {(20) felonies facing
‘him, she's gonna be asking for the

12 twenty five (25) to life "bitch" every time. So.
That's what he's looking at. So we'll

13 see how much he really wants to play, if he wants
to risk that, as opposed to what :

14 we're offering him. So, like.I say, me talking to
you is really contingent upon him at

15 this point. If he wants to keep playing tough guy
and being an asshole, then I'll keep

16 charging him. But I may have to keep coming back
and talking to you and ah, piecing

17 together some more things.
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RPDt 1/2/02, (Recorded testimonial, following Miranda,
between Petitioner Volpicelli and Detective Thomas);
Page 16, Lines 8 - 12, Lines 17 - 20, Lines 24 - 26, .
Lines 37 - 38, and Line 43; Page 17, Line 1: Exhibit [*+8]
8 THOMAS: So her feeling right now is, fuck you.

‘ You know? You want to play hard o

9 ball? Flne, we'll play hard ball. Okay?
So, she's told me, "We're goona start

10 filing the Intent to file the "big bitch,"
every time we bind him over on another

1" case. Every case that he gets bound over
on I'm gonna file the “big bitch" on

12 each one.”

17 THOMAS: ...You go to prelim, you get

18 bound over on those charges. Okay? Which
. means now you got a trial date.
. 19 Right. After that prelim she's gonna file
) her intent to file the "big bitch"
20 against you, which is basically ten (10) to

twenty five (25) years. Okay?
24 THOMAS: And then we go to the next prelim and the
next case and you get bound over on

25 that one. Here it comes again, "I'm filing
the big bitch, ten (10) to twenty five
{25) years.,”

LI

37 VOLPICELLI: I know you've had discussions. What does
it look like that she's looking at?
38 *  What recommendation is she gonna make?

43 THOMAS: ...she said, "Fine. Fuck him,

P.17
. 1 Wwe'll start filing the big bitch.”

RPDt 1/3/02, (Recorded testimonial, following Miranda,
between Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomads);
Page 7, Lines 40 - 43: Exhibit [**9]
40 THOMAS: .»» Cause I told him,

3

41 if he starts screwing with us and he wants
. to keep dragging this thing out and doing
42 things like that, then we're just gonna start
filing the habitual criminal on him and he
43 can start looking at ten {10) to twenty five

{25), So that's his choice. You know?

RPDt 2/19/02, (Recorded testimonial, following Miranda,
between Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas), Page 28,
Lines 13 - 1t4: Exhibit [**10]

13 THOMAS: Oh yeah, if he wants to play we 're go?na rlay.
And he's gonna go away for a lot ;

14 longer than that. So, you know.

39 '
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The above-lisg taped discussion evincesgvestigational
and prosecutorial Conspiracy to violate .the Petitioner's Constitu-
tional Rights with Ad-Books_(additional charges) and sentencing
enhancements (i.e., the habitual criminal enhancement), solely
due to Petitioner exercising his rights to preliminary hearing
(binding-over), and a jury trial. .

The Ninth Circuit Court.of Appeals held in US v. Van Dorem,

182 F3d 1077 (9th Cir, -1999):

Vindictive prosecution occurs when a prqaecutor
brings additional charges solely to punish a
defendant for exercising a constitutional or .

. statutory right, such as a criminal defendant's
right to a preliminary hearing or jury trial,
(i.e., Due Process).

Clearly, the pfoaecution was prejudicial and vindictive in
their acts and prosecution of Petitioner; as there existed a Co-
Defendant who admitted to more culpability in the instant offenses.
In addition, Co-Defendant Bowman had an equal number or more, of
prior felony convictions, thereby qualifying him as a more suitable

candidate for sentencing under NRS 207.010 (Habitusl Criminal Statute).

. The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals has held in US_v. Noushfar,

78 F3d 1442, 1446 (9th Cir, 1996}, that:

A prosecutor violates due process when he brings
additional charges solely to punish the defenqant
for exercising a constituional or. statutory right.
To establish a claim of vindictiveness, the defen-
dant must make an initial showing that the chearges
of increased severity were filed because the accused
exercised a statutory, procedural, or constitutrional
right, in circuwstances that give rise to an appear-
ance of vindictiveness.

As the statements of the prosecution are a clear indicatien

of vindictiveness against Petitioner for invoking a constitutional

right, Petitioner has met his burden, as outlined in US v. Noushfar,

supra., and Peritioner's comviction should be vacated.
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® GROUND ELEVEN @

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO PROTECT PETITIONER FROM
THE ADMISSION OF IRRELEVANT TESTIMONY AND PERJURED TESTINONY AT TRIAL,
THUS DENYING PETITIONER DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION, AND A FAIR
TRIAL, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS
TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION,

Trial counsel was ineffective under the guarantees of the Sixth
Amendment to protect Petitioner from a plethora of irrelevant and
perjured testimony at trial. It appears from the record, that counsel
was: (1) 1neffective in failing to utilize prior testimony of Brett
Bowman; or, (2) cousel. failed to investigate and secure transcript§
of Brett Bowman's prior statements to police; or, (3) the prosecution
may have faileé in providing exculpatory evidence to counsel, prior
to trial, in the form of traﬂscripts of Brett Bowman's police inter-
rogation.

The following excerpts are from Trial Transcripts (tt) and Reno
Police Department Transcripts (RPDt), post-Miranda, and are examples
of perjured and/or .inconsistent testimony from the onset of the arrest,
at the indictment, and later, at trial:

tt 11/12/03, District Attorney probes Co-Defendant Bowmanj
Page 217, Lines 10 - 12:

10 Q: Were you threatened or promised anything in -

11 exchange for your plea or your testimony here today?

12 Az No.

and

RPDt 12/3/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas;
Page 1, Lines 5 - 22: Exhibit [**6]

5 BOWMAN: And I was promised (Inauaible) never find
that out, till we got to court. . '

6 N

7 THOMAS: Who were you promised that by?

8 N

9 BOWMAN: The detective.

10 - )

11 THOMAS: Okay. I watched that interview tape and
never once heard that mentioned. OQkay? I

12 ‘never. once heard that mentioned.

13

14 BOWMAN: It was said out in the corridor.

15 |

16 THOMAS: Well

17
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12

14
15

BOWMAN: ‘.at Ferrill would never. fil.out (Inaudible).

-THOMAS: Well, that's water under the bridge now.

BOWMAN: Yeah

and

RPDt 12/6/01, Co-~Defendant Bowman and Detective -Thomas;

Page 10, Lines 9 - 17:

THOMAS: I have an obligation. Okay? It's not that

" you know, if you tell me that stuff is stolen

that you and Volpicelli went out and did that
stuff, we have a deal in place. I can't
charge you with anything else. Okay? The
District Attorney has told me, "He's
cooperating. Don't charge, don't file any more
cases on him. If he tells you that he
did this and he did that, we can't charge him
at this point." Okay? The only way we ,
can start charging you again if you suddenly
get uncooperative and the district attorney
says, "Yourknow what? He's being an asshole
again and all bets are off." GQOkay? So
that's kind of where we're at. So I'm telling
you, if I find anything in your apartment
that's stolen or that I think you bought with
Volpicelli, I can't charge you with it.

‘ and
RPDt 1/3/02, Co-Defendant Bowman_and Detective Thomas;
Page 11, Lines 15 - 16: ‘ .
BOWMAN: They offered us a deal right, and, cause I was
gonna, I was probably gonna be faced

with twenty five (25) to life over this.
* * * * *

tt 11/12/03, wherein VYan Ry, Esq. cross-examines Co-Defendant
Bowman; Page 226, Lines 1 - 11: .

BY MR, VAN RY:

Q: Let's go back to your plea agreement. During

the course of the negotiations of your plea agreement,
which means that where you were to enter a plea in return
for some agreement by the State, was there a discussion
of the habitual criminal statute? :

A For me?

Q: um-hum.

A: no,

Q: That didn't come up?
As No.

and
RPDt 12/3/02, Co-Defendant Bowman and _Detective THomas;
Page 64, Lines 11 - 15:
THOMAS: I know you are, I know you are. How many
felony convictions do you have?

BOWMAN: Probably five (5) now.

THOMAS: Five (5)7
42
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and ,
BRPDt 1/3‘. Co-Defendant Bowman and Perective Thomes;
Page 11, Lines 1 ~ 18: .
BOWMAN: That's the way it'll look, you know. I'm being
hit with a burglary and I told her, "I'm .
being hit with a burglary.” And she goes, 'I
don't believe it, (Inaudible) changing
. price tags."

THOMAS: Um hom,
BOWMAN: And you know?

THOMAS: Okay. Well as long as you were, you know,
honest with her, what you told her.

BOWMAN: I told her (Inaudible).

THOMAS: I'11 tell her the same thing, it won't be
any difference.

BOWMAN: They offered us & deal, right, and, cause. I
I was gonna, I was probably gonna be feced
with twenty five {(25) to life over this,

THOMAS: Yeah.
* ¥ * * ¥

tt 11/12/03, wherein the District Attorney probes Co-
Defendant Brett Bowman; Page 180, Lines 5 - 6, 15 -
21

Q: Did you ever go to the storage unit?

At No, I did not.-

Q: So is it feir to say, Mr. Bowman, that the
defendant wouldn't allow you to go tc the storage shed
with him?

A: Yes,

Q: You weren't allowed to see where all the

stuff was kept?

A: No

and '
RPDt 12/3/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas;
Page 51, Lines 38 - 4l: -
THOMAS: Would it be your opinion that everything in
the storage unit came from merchandise .
like this that was probably bought fictitiously
or fraudulently?

BOWMAN: Ah, probably a good ninety percent (90%) of it.

and
AFFIDAVIT OF TRAVIS ALEXANDER VOLPICELLI, Page 1, Lines
10 - 12: 1
...That on one occasion in particular, I cbserved
Bowman accessing the Aussie
storage unit belopging to my sister—in which my father
was not present and Bowman was
accompanied by another gentleman in & pick-up.

i:i
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tt 11/12/03, wherein Van Ry, Esq. cross-examines Co-
Defendant Bowman; page 224, Lines 8 -~ 12:
Q: During this time in the summer to the fall of
excuse me, of 2001, did you have accegs to 2

October,
computer?
A: No,
Q: You

See Exhibits: (**11) Ridge House Letter, datedl/7/04 _ _  _

AFFIDAVIT OF TRAVIS A VOLPICELLI,

I did not.
did not?

and

and

7 - 10: Exhibit:[**12]
That thereafter, I sporadically observed email communi-
cation between my father and Bowmaen
on my computer.

That I.distinctly recell Bowman's unique domain name as
being listed at Yahoo and included 'his
vear of birth.

tt 11/12/03,

%* * X * *

Bowman; Page 198, Lines 13 - 17:
you said that Mr. Yolpicelli did place

Q: Sir,

the UPC tage on this bike.

specifically?
Az It was located specifically on the bar that
holds the seat to the bike.

RPDt 10/1
Page 13,
BROWN:

BOWMAN

BROWN:
BOWMAN:
BROWN:
BOWMAN :
BROWN:

and

Where was that located

dated 4/21/04, Lines

wherein District Attorney probes Co-Defendant

7/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Brown;

Lines 17 - 35¢ Exhibit [**5]

Okay? Now remember what 1 just told you again,
Just go back and describe the tranmsaction.
with this bicycle, at the counter with the clerk,

Okay. The transaction went, I walked up, I tore

off the bar code that was onrn the .bike.
She scanned

Right? I handed it to her. Right?
it., I paid for it. We talked about,

she

asked me would the Security need to come up and

ah, clear this bike and she asked to
(Inaudible) right and I said no.

Okay.

As long as I had the receipt I didn't (Inandible).

Go back to where did you get the bar code from.

I tore it off the, it was already on the bike. .

Where was it on the bike?

i&
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35  BOWMAN: . the step of the bike, ri' front step.

and

RPDt 12/3/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas;
Page 29, Lines 12 - 25:

12 BOWMAN:
13

14
15 THOMAS:
16
17 BOWMAN :

18

19
20
21 THOMAS:
22
23 BOWMAN:

That's why I was getting so highly upset, cause
of (Inaudible) he's supposed to go in

and set it up, right, I was just supposed to go
in and buy it.

Okay.

After that, I was getting ready to 'say something
to him that night. When we was

getting ready to leave ah, right ther, as we was
leaving Walmart with the bike, right,

he wouldn't even set that up.

Um hmm.

Right? i was gonna tell him, "Look buddy, you
know, (Inaudible) you're supposed to
set it up, right?" I was gonna tell him right
flat out that I was gonna, I was done

running ithe bar code.
* % % * *

tt 11/24/03, wherein District Attorney probes Bowman;
Page 158, Lines 18 - 20, and, Page 160, Lines|16 ~ 19:

24
25
18 Q;
19 A:

What generally did he ask you to do?
To buy the merchandise after he placed a

20 fraudulent bar code on the merchandise.

...P.1860
16 A:

The original agreement was that he'd go in

17 the store, place the UPC bar code on an item ard I'd come
i8 in the store afterwards or a day later and purchase the

19 item,

and

RPDt 12/3/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas;

Count VIT at Wal~Mart; Page 17, Lines 11 - 15, and

25 - 35; also, Page 19, Lines 15 - 17, and Page 20, Lines

In re:
37 - 43:
veP.17

11 BOWMAN :

12
13 THOMAS:
la
15 BOWMAN:

25 THOMAS:

26
27 BOWMAN :
28
29 THOMAS:

That was all me. That was when I went in. I
put the label on it and ah...

Which store?
Walmart,

What was the name of the home entertainment
center, do you know, the brand name?

Panasonic. Cause we specifically asked for one.

Okay.

So did he go inside and do the bar code
switch? ;

45
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30 .

31 BOWMAN : 0.

32
33 THOMAS: Huh? You did?
34
35 BOWMAN: 1 did.
P10
15 THOMAS: So you had the bar code when you went into the
store? ‘
16
17 BOWMAN: Ah huh (affirmative).
.0P020

37  THOMAS: Okay., Well at the Lowe's, did he have the bar
code, or did you? '

38

39  BOWMAN: The one where I bought the rug?
40

41 THOMAS: Yeah,

42

43 BOWMAN: Where I actually bought the rug, right? WMo,

I had the bar code.
% ¥ # i E

tt 11/12/03, wherein Van Ry, Esg. cross—examines Co-Defendart
Bowman; Page 224, Lines 5 — 7:

5 Q; Have you ever purchased a Brother label maker
6 at a Staples in California?
7 A: No, I have not.
’ and _
RPDt 12/3/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas;
Page 066, Llnes 3-=- 9: Exhibit [14]
3 BOWMAN: And I bought the one we were using.
&
S  THOMAS: You bought, he had you buy the one he was using?
Was that a frauvdulent buy?
6 .
7 BOWMAN: No. It was kind of legal. It was an actual buy.
8 .
9 THOMAS: It was a good, legitimate, okay. Where did you

buy it?
% 3 * % %

tt 11/12/03, wherein Van Ry, Esq. cross—examines Co-Defendant
Bowman; Page 222, Lines 9 - 19:

9 Q: Did the deteCtlves in this case ever assist

10 you in obtaining a paycheck from the Sands?

11 A: No

12 Q: S0 yYour testimony 1s you never rec91ved

13 assistance from the detectives in this matter to receive

14 your paycheck from the Sands?

15 A: To receive my paycheck?
16 Q: Right.
i7 4 That's correct.
18 Q: So that would be & no, it didn't happen?
19 A It didrn't happen.
f 1
and
46
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RPDt 1/3 , Co-Defendant Bowman andfytective Thomas;

Page 14, nes 8 ~ 9; and, P

age 13, nes ‘4 -~ 63 Exhibit G
e) I've got two (2) paychecks

arrange to (Inaudible) get

puty and find out exactly if
o about doing that.

ocss-examines Detective Thomas,
roperty; Page 135, Lines 17 =

an} of the items in his
found in the accordian

only one would have been

trike me as a new system
at all to even attempt to

t Attorney probes Detective
25, and, Page 141, Lines 1 - 5:
tified that you found

it was new. I didn't

ou described a home .theater

ah, surround sound and YCR,

8 BOWMAN: If you do (Inaudibl
from the Sands sitting in my
9 property, They're gonna be expired.
+e.Pal5
4 THOMAS: ...So I'lLl have to
em endorsed., But
5 let me talk to a de
that's the way to g
6 And I'll see what we can do.
* * * * *
tt 11/13/03, Van Ry, Esq. cr
in re: Bowman's apartment p
19, and, Page 136, Lines 14 - 23:
17 Q: .Was there a search done of Mr. Bowman's
18 apartment?
19 Al Yes,
«..P,136
14 Q: Did you try to compare
15 apartment with receipts you
16 folder?
17 Az I.did not. Again, the
18 the stereo system.
19 Q: Why did you not follow up on that stereo
20 Systen?
21, A: Again, it just didn't s
22 - or didn't pique my interest
23 compare it. i wasnt concerned about it,
and
tt 11/13/03, .wherein Distric
Thomas; Page 140, Lineg2d -
20 Q: Detective, you just tes
21 cne item of electronic equipment in Brett Bowman's
22 apartment, is that true?
23 As That's correct.
24 Q: It didn't raise your suspicion, it didn't seem
25 to be a super high-end item?
...P. 141
1 A: I wasn't even convinced
2 know how o0ld it wasa.
3 Q: And you basically weren't interested in it,
4 correct? -
5 A Correct.
and
RPDt 12/6/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas;
Page 6, Lines 23 - 27 and 42; Page 7, Lines 32 - 33jand
Page 9, Lines 31 - 36:
23 THOMAS: In you phone call ¥y
system that was fairly new. Was that
24 one of the home theatré systems that you guys
went out and bought?
25
26 BOWMAN: No, it's my TV, my
or not VCR, ah, VCR and ah, CD
27 {Inaudible),.
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Tab42 s THOMAS : ‘(ay. You said it was all .nd new is all.

e PL7
32 THOMAS: Okay. Well you also indicated in your phone call
that ah, you know, you didn't want
33 to talk about anything on the phone, that you'd
explain everything in a letter.
L] -P.g )
31 THOMAS: ...I'm ,
32 interested in the stuff that you described on the
phone to your sister, the home theater
33 system and the way you explain it, which sounds
very similar to what you guys were
34 out buying. Okay? ‘
5
36 BOWMAN: 0Oh that was what we were out buying, yeah.
and
RPDt 12/6/01, Co-Defendant Bowman and Detective Thomas;
Page 7, Lines 1 - 9:
1 BOWMAN: it was brand new, yeah. I bought it over a
period of time.
2
3 THOMAS: Okay.
4 .
5 BOWMAN: While I was at the Ridge House.
6
7 THOMAS: Where did you buy it?
8
9 BOWMAN: I got it at Shopko and ah, I got the CD player
at ah, Walmart.
and
tt 11/12/03, wherein Van Ry cross-examines Co-Defendant
Bowman; Page 223, Lines 21 ~ 22, and, Page 224, Lines
2 - 4;
21 Qs Isn't it true that you kept a CD player?
22 A Not tc my knowledge.
+...P.224
2 Q: Is it also true that you kept one of those home
3 theater systems we talked about?
4 As No, it is not.
% * * * *

Brett Bowman's trial testimony is clearly false, as his state-

ments to detectives, cleoser in time to the actual occurrence of

the alleged offenses, are considered more trustworthy, i.e., the

police interviews at WCSO on 10/17/01, 12/3/01, 12/6/01, and 1/3/02.

A conviction based on perjured testimony is fundamentally

unfair.

Piyle v. Kansas, 317 US 213, 63 SCt 177, The conviction

must be set aside if there is any likelihood that 'the false testimony

could have affected the judgment of the jury. Giglio v, United
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States, 405 US lSQ.?. S$Ct 763. In this case,'.e exce}'tps show
subsequent changes in Bowmen's testimony, once a deal was made,
and on material issues relevant to the Petitioner's involvement
with the alleged activities.

It s unclear from the record, whether trial counsel had posses-
sion of Brett Bowman's plice interview tramnscripts, or whether
the prosecution failed to provide the transcripts pursuant to Brady

v. Maryland, 373 US 83, 83 SCt 1194,

Therefére, Petitioner presents the instant ground for rel;ef
as ineffective assistance of counaél and as prosecutorial miscon-
duct for failing to provide aforementioned transcripts and knowingly
allowing Bowman to enter the perjured testimony. "The Fifth Amend-
ment guarantee of Due Process protects the Defendant from consider-

ation of improper or inaccurate information."  United States v,

Tucker, 404 US 443, 92 SCt 589, 591 (1972).
Counsel has a duty to investigate or to make a reasonable
decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary, Correll

v, Stewart, 137 F3d 1404 (9th Cir, 1998).

_ An evidentiary hearing is necessary in regard to this iasue
to ascertain counsel's reasoning for failing to investigate, failing
to properly cross-examine Brett Bowman utilizing the trapscripts
of his prior inconsistent statements, and/or the prosecution's
reasoning for failing to provide the Brady meterial.
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: GROUND TWELYE ..

PETITIONER WAS DENIED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, DUE PROCESS,
EQUAL PROTECTION, AND A FAIR TRIAL, WHEN KOT OBJECTING TO THE PRO-
SECUTOR'S VOUCHING FOR THE CO-DEFENDANT'S KNOWN-TO-BE PERJURED TESTI-
MONY, IN VIOLATION OF PETITIONER'S RIGHTS, AS GUARANTEED BY THE '
FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTI-
TUTION.

In addition to trial counsel failing to protect Petitioner
from being subjected to known-to-be perjured testimony, aptly outlined
in Ground Eleven, the Prosecutor was at all times.throughout the
proceedings, in possession of same (specifically the RPD transcripts
dated 10/17/01 throﬁgh 2/9/02, and the accompanying video/audio cax
ssettes, involving contradictory testimonies between investigators
and Co~Défendant Bowman, as compared to later Indictment and.Trial

testimony). United States v. Aichele, 941 F2d 761, 766 (9th Cir,

1991). To this, it is a prosecutor's duty to 'refrain from knowingly
failing to disclose that the testimony used to comvict defendant
was false.' .

In view of the testimonial statements by Co-Defendant Bow-
man and investigators, contrasted with subsequent amended versions,
almost two (2) years later at the indictment and trial, it is patently

clear that the State knew, or should have known, that Co-Defendant

Bowman's testimony, as well as Detective Thomas' testimony, were
false on numerous materially relevant issues which were central in
relation to Petitioner's involvement in the alleged crimees. This

rule rests upon the public policy(-ies) against corruption of the

truth-seeking function of the trial process. Giglio v. United States,

405 US 150, 92 SCt 763 (1972); and, NAPUE v,ILLINQIS,US 264, 79 SCt

1173 (1959).

Deliberate deception of a court and jurors by the pfesentation

of known false evidence .is. incompatible with "rudimentary demands

of justice.' @Giglio v. United States, supra.; citing, Mooney v.
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Huluhan, 294 US 103.550t 340 (1935).

During closing arguments at Petitioner's jury trial, the pro-
secutor vouched for the prosecution's witness, Brett Bowman, the
Co-Defendant in this action. _

It is patently obvious that, had. the jury been aware of the
Co-Defendant's perjured testimony, the results of the trial would
have been different, Central to this, Brett Bowman made -numerous
statements prior to trial, and at trial, which were inconsistent.
Defense counsel successfully brought gsome out, The inconsistencies
in Brett Bowmarn's testimony were not all brought out to the jury,
however. Many more would have been brought out if Defense counsel
had thoroughly reviewed discovery. Brett Bowman's credibility was
a key prosecution element of the trial, as Bowman attempted. to place’
all blame for all of the charged offenses upon Petiti&ner in exchange
for a very minimal sentence, which Bowman eventually received. There-
fore, Brett Bowman had a clear motive to lie to the prosecution and
the Court, and defense counsel had a duty to bring forth all the
false testimony.

As observed in Austin v. State, 87 Nev 578, 589, 491 P2d 714,

728 (1971), "Courts have long recognized not only that the uncorrobo-
rated testimony of an accomplice has doubtful.worth. but that his
incrimination of another is not corroborated simply because he accur=<

ately describes the circumstances thereof.” The federal courts have

held similarly in United States v. Laing, 889 F2d 281 (DC Ciry, 1989),

wherein, the Court noted that a person could be considered an accom-
plice to all charged offenses due to his testimony.

As for further prosecutorial miséonduct, the District Attorney
vouched for the truthfulness of Brett Bowman's testimony by offering
excuses for his inconsistent statements, as follows:

51
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MS. RIGGS.He's working, Even when IQS incarcerated,
he's working. And you saw how tired he was
c¢h the stand, .
(Trial Transcripts, Friday, Novemberz] 14, 2003,afternoon
session, Page 214, Lines 2 - 3).

#® % * * *

M3. RIGGS: Perhaps he didn't remember that he did or
that Detective Thomas had gotten that for him.
(Id., at Lines 12 - 14),

* * * * *
Tﬁe Prosecutor attempted to provide excuses for Brett Bowman's
testimony, by saying he was "tired” or "had forgotten" facts.
A prosecutor may not express his opinion of the Defendant's

guilt or his belief in the credibility of government witnesses.

(Emphasis added). United States v..Molina, 934 F2d 1440 (9th Cir,

1991). Vouching is especially problematic in cases where the credi-.
bility of the witness is crucial, and in cases applying the more
lenient "harmless error" standard of review, Courts have held that

such prosecutorial vouching requires reversal. Molina, at 1445.

Petitioner's rights to a fair trial, due process, and equal
protection of the laws, were violated by the aforementicned prose-
cutorial vouching, Petitioner received ineffective assistance of
counsel, as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment when trial counsel
failed to object or request a jury instruction concerning the Co-
Defendant's testimony.

/17
/17
/11
/1/
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/17
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‘ GROUND THIRTEEN

COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO INVESTIGATE AND ARGUE THAT
WITNESSES ACTED AS POLICE AGENTS,WITH CONDUCT IN DISREGARD FOR THE
PETITIONER'S FOURTH AMENDMENT RIGHT TO PRIVACY, IN VIOLATION OF
PETITIONER'S RIGATS TO DUE PROCESS, EQUITABLE JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS,
AND EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAW, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIITH,
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

If the Prosecution provided all relevant discovery, in accordance
with the District Court's July, 2003 Order for full discovery recipro=s
city, specifically with respect to their investigations through the
employees/owners of Aussie Storage; or, had counsel subpoenaed Aussie
Storages records for unit B-114, the Defense would have possessed
documentation wherein counsel could have argued effectively the fact
that Ausale storage representatives acted as agents for the police.

On no less than two (2) occasions, and with no disclosure to
the Defense, investigations, in concert with employees of Aussie
Storage, breached not only the terms of the lease agreement for ren~
tal of unit B-114, but the Petitioner's Fourth Amendment right to
privacy, created and sustained by said lease agreement.

dovernment investigators, under color of law, elicited unauthor-
ized entry to the premises of Aussie Storage facility, and/or extracted
privy information concerning the Petitioner and his family, absent
not limited to: - (1) a handwritten memorandum, wherein Detective
Dells engages Aussie personnel;-and, (2) a typed Aussie Storage
memorsndum, wherein it is noted that Parole and Probation entered
the premises,

Ssid Lease Agreement expressly states, at numbered paragraph
nine (9), in regard to the "RIGHT TO ENTER," that, ""the occupant
grants the owner or its agents... including police and fire officials,

access to the premises upon three (3) days NOTICE to occupant.
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On September 2‘2001, and again on Dctober", 2001, Detective
Della and an unidentified probation officer entered the premises,

with no prior notification given to occupant, absent any exigency

or valid search warrant, at the respective times noted in the accom-
panying Exhibits, illicitly obtaining Occupants'/Petitionerds privy
information, and/or to park a government vehicle so as to block the
Petitioner's storage unit (B-114). S$uch entering the premises without
notificatioﬁ to occupant by thé owners, at the request of the peolice,
not only breaches the owner's contract with tﬂe Petitioner and.his
co-renters, but also puts the owners in league with police agents
. by virtue of this violation/breach, and thus makes the owners of

Aussie Storage unit (and its representatives) agents of the police
in breaching said contract. In working as agents of the police,
Aussie storage representatives cannot, in the interests of Petitioner's
Congtitutional Rights, give consent to search the éremises, or release/
relinquish any information in regard to, or beloaging ‘to, the Petitioner
Fithout a valid sesrch warrant.

As there was no valid search warrant at the point in time when

. law enforcement persomnel first engaged Aussie Storage representatives,

any information obtained from these-representatives, or from officer
presence on the premises, is therefore fruit of a poisonous tree,’
for evidentiary purposes. Additionally, this information could nmot
then be used as probable cause to obtain a search warrant, either.

Thus, any and all informatiom and/or items obtained from the Aussie

Storage facility, whether from Aussie Storage repreaentativés, office
staff, or from the storage unit' {B=114) itself, and the premises-
thereabouts, should rightfully have been dismissed and not uded in
trial, as it was obtained illegally and in violation of Petitioner's

Constitutional Rights.
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If the aforeme’oned documentation had -be‘available to the
Defense, or sought by counsel, the Defense would have been in a posi-
tion to file a pleading for suppression of the entire contents of
Unit B-114 at the Aussie Storage facility. Hence, either through
the Prosecution's convenient cover-up of such exculpatory evidence,
or counsel's failure to investigate or argue the same, the Petitioner
was adversely prejudiced. Such conduct on the part of the Prosecution,
with total disregard for-the Petitioner's civil rights, was a viola-

tion thereof. Jiminez v. State, 775 P2d 694 (1989, Nev); and,

Holyfield v. State, 711 P24 834 (1985, Nev).

In Dnited States v. Stevens, 601 F2d 1077 (5th Cir), the Court

ruled that under certain circumstances, private acters may be.trans-
formed intc government .agents by virtue of their involvement in the

prevention of crime. See, Estelle v, Smith, 451 US 454 (1981).

With the search and seizure of the Aussie Storage Uait's Unit
B-114 contents, (In excess of 90% of the evidence in support of
Probable Cause for the Indictment, and-subsequent.Fonvicbion'bn €ounts
I through X), the suppression of the same was paramount to a viable
defense.

Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment, “issues concerning exigent
circumstances, consent, and whether an-individual is acting as 8n
agent for the police, all present mixed questions of law and fact.™

State v. Millex, 877 P2d 1047 (1994, Nev).

Counsel's ineffectiveness in not thoroughly investigating allowed
for the Prosecution's .cover-up of exculpatory evidence, which adversely
prejudiced Petitioner and violated Due Proress, thereby mandating

this Court's reversal of the conviction.
/7f
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. . ' GROUND FQURTREN

COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE IN NOT TBOROUGHLY INVESTIGATING DISCOVERY
AND ITS DEFICIENCIES PRIOR TO TRIAL, THEREBY NOT PROTECTING THE
PETITIONER FROM INVESTIGATIONAL AND PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT, IN
VIOLATION OF THE PETITIONER'S RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS, A FEER TRIAL,
AND .EQUAL PROTECTION, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOUR-
TEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

! : _
Prior to trial, counsel did not sufficiently review the Discovery

in its entirety, nor did he investigate Discovery issues related
!
to Prosecutoriel transgressions, so as to unveil the State's purpose-

f"1{withh°ldiﬂg of exculpable evidence. In lieu, .counsel relied solely

on the Prosecution's file and representations by the District Attorney,
o
- with utter disregard for the .Petitioner's concerns for Discovery

;defﬁciencies.
i To this, Petitioner sought to brimg this dilemma to the Court's
attention, not only by advising counsel in writing, but again at

the November 10, 2003, hearing to Confirm Trial, as.evidenced by

the following excerpts from the hearing transcripts.
t

: At Page 3, Lines 19 - 24: ’

19 THE DEFENDANT: Well, I don't think we're
| 20 prepared to go to trial because I have some issues here
<21 with respect to - =~
.22 THE COURT: I can resolve that very quickly,
<23 then,
24, Mr. Van Ry, are you prepared to go to trial?

s % *

At Page 4, Lines 1 -~ 21:

MR VAN RY: By Wednesday, I will be prepared

to go to trial, Your Horor, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, that takes care of

that issue. Your attorney is prepared for trial, so is
there anything else you want?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, we're deficient

discovery, and I've been waiting for two years for it,
and I don't understand why between now and Wednesday
that's going to change any. I'll be glad to address the
Court - -

THE COQURT: Apparently the discovery is not .
deficient or your counsel wouldn't be saying that he's

<13 prepared for trial,

14 THE DEFENDANT: So when I get on the stand

15 and testify and I have -— and it comes out in Court that
16 I.can't substantiate that claim because certain

" 17 documentation was not provided:pursuant to the discovery,
18 then where are we left at?

i19 THE COURT: I guess, youSgnow, that's a

[l
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problem further actior, 1 guess. hould you wind up
being coMMcted, you can raise these Tssues posttrial.

At Page 7, Lines 3 - 24;

THE COURT: Mr. Volpicelli, do you want to

represent yourself in this case? ,

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, I never made eny

reference to that effect. I think -Mr. Riggs .is referring
to a unilateral decision on the .part. of my counsel to not
pursue any -- what I feel are critical pretrial motions,
and 1t just represents, I think, a8 conflict .of interest,

‘and with regards to the discovery, I was assureq, by .
virtue of the fact that the two of them were going to get

together, that the discovery would be in place, and then .

when it finally did -- I did receive it, I reviewed it,

and it's still deficient, and I've been cslling
Mr. Van Ry's office, apprising his office of.that, and it
was just left at the hearing today, if I wanted to bring
it to your attention,
THE COURT: Well, as long as your counsel is
prepared for trial and he has the discovery that he finds
is complete and sufficient to proceed to trial, - I'm not
going to go further into that issue, and if you don't ,
want to represent yourself, there may be nothing else for
us to discuss here. :

Mr. Van Ry, do you -~

At Page 8, Lines 1 - 12 .

MR VAN RY: I do have a real concern in that

regard because we are at such loggerheads in terms of
what my client perceives is discovery and what is
deficient and what I perceive is not deficient and
further inculpatory evidence that I didn't want to have
anywhere near this case. I1'm concernmed about that., I
think it might be best of Mr. Volpicelli representeq
himself in that light because of the -- I mean, we Just
view this case in two. entirely different lights, your
Honor, and as you can tell, Mr, Volpicelll has his
opinion, and I have mine, and I'm not convinced that it
would be in his best interest for us to remain as a --

At Page 9, Lines 2 - 6:

THE DEFENDANT: Your Bonor, this &4 November,

2003 letter that I sent to my attorney was in regards to
a ‘letter that he sent me the prior day, on November 3rd,
and in that letter, if you could read the contests,
there's no indication of any viable defense strategy.

At Page 9, Lines 13 - 20:

THE COURT: I can't possibly imaginme it's in

your best interest to be.discussing, you know, your trial
strategy-in front of the prosecutor.

THE DEFENDANT: I.understand that, you

Honor, but the fact is the letter was just clearly '
inidcative of a conflict of interest and juat doesn't
leave much to be desired and give me much confidence
geing into a trial. .
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As a result, .:ulpatory evidence relev,an.o.the Discovery
was '‘not available. for trial,. In addition, and at two (2) days before
trial, counsel had not reviewed the case video and audio tapes, or
subpoenaed critical documents and witnesses for effective cross-
exaﬁination.

' CASE AND POINT.
i If the Prosecution had not withheld exculpatory evidence in

the way of property records relevant to the search and seizure of
Bow#an's property at the time of arrest; or had counsel investigated
theésame. via subpoena, the Court-would have been made aware at trial
of the blatant néxus of property seized from the Aussie Storage Unit
and [Bowman's Courtyard Center Apartment. -This was a controverted
metter at trial, in which such evidence was critical for the.défense;
Groqnd Eleven elaborates on this matter with reference to the incon-,
31stent/per3ured testimony of both Bowman and Detective Thomas.

If the Prosecution had not withheld exculpatory ev1dence, in
the way of Wal-Mart's video surveillance.of the "Bicycle Section”
on October 17, 2001, and/or‘any and all surveillance videos of the
ret;il parking lots, 6r within the sto;e's respect;ve sections on
the:days in which ﬁowman clains Petitioner accompanied him to Wal-
Hartb Home Depot, as well as, Bed, Batﬁ, & Beyond; or, had counsel
subppenaed same, it would have been clear to the Court thg Petltioner
was ﬁot 6bsefved within the stores or their respective parking lots,
either with or without Buwma;, or, ever involved with activity-incon-
sistént with that of a regular customer.,
'II the Prosecution had not withhéld exculpatory evidence, in
the ;BY of Reno Police Department's Daily Surveillance Log of Peti- |
tionér. for October 17, 2001, .or had coumsel pressed the Reno Police,

Depa%tment for the same,the Court would have been made aware that

the ?urveillance of Petitioner, on said day, was net continuoous.

| 58
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In fact, as relevar.to Count VIII, at Shopko, .e'lack of continuous
survgillance prevented a valid chainm of custody on one’ (1) or more
comforters allegedly purchased at a reduced price and then seizeﬂ

later that same evening. This was critical to the Petitioner's defense
in hgving possession ;f the different comforters in his vehicle.

In egsence, the lack of continuous surveillance by R,0.P. does not -
conc}usively negate the Petitioner's exchange of said camf9r£ers

at his mother;in—law's during that same day.

If, at the ascheduled discovery meeting between counsel and the
DrOSecufion, thelDistrict Attorney had not withheld the written tran-
scripts, transcribed from the Audio/Video tapes relegant to the Reno
Puli#é Deéartment'é post-Miranda interrogations.of both Bowman and
the Petitiomner, or, had counsel thorouéhly reviewed the audio/videol
tape; in their entirety, the Court would have been made avare of
the blatant inconsistépt/perjured.testimony(ies). as to facts speci-
fically material to the Petitioner's alleged <involvement in the Counts.

|

ij the Prosecution had not withheld:exculpatory evidénqe, via
ﬁg& ;eturning.gll the receipts seized in the'ihvestiga£iona, and
not ;ergly releasing those the Prosecution selectively deeméd appro-
priate-for their case, or, had counsel subpoenaed rétail transactions
substant1at1ng the Petitioner’'s familybs legitimate purchases of
1tems seized under the search warrant(s), counsel would have been
in possession of 1ndip1a to support a contention that Petitioner's
family rightfully owned the property items, oyer and above those
cited in the indictment, all of which was returned tostores, absent
a Court Order of Forfeiture. ' ' .

:Attempts by Petitioner to procure the replacement of s?id receipts
whilé in custody, and after retailers'puréed their annﬁal receipt

databases, was no small undertaking. However, Petitioner gleaned
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ene (1) such recei.. See, Exhibit ["*141 wher., full price was
paid for a KDS monitor seized'from Petitioner's family's storage
unit and which was returned, erroneously, to Wal-Mart.

To withhold exculpable evidence is a violation of Due Process,

and;motive for doing .so is immaterial. Brady v. Maryland, 373 US

83,83 SCt 494.

‘ ' .
' The Prosecution must disclose .all evidence favorable to the
|
accﬁsed when evidence is material to either guilt or punishment..
Evidence i& material, for purposes of the Prosecution’s duty ‘to dis-
i .

close exculpatory.evidence, if there is.reasonable-probability that

the jresult of the trial would have been different. Uniteq States

v.Augurs, 427 US 97, 112, 96 SCT 2392, 2401-02 (1976).

Evidence that would enable effective cross—examination and impeach-
J .

ment! may be material, and the Ptosecution's non-disclosure of such

evidence may deprive the accused of a fair trial. - Passana Y. Sta?eL

103 Nev 212; 213; 735 P2d. 321, 322 (1989). Suppression of favorable.
L ‘ )
and material evidence includes situations in which the state, although

. | |
not soliciting false evidence, allows evidence to go uncorrected

whenjit appears. Auson v, McKaskie, 724 F24 1153 (1984).

* * %
l -

'Had counsel investigated.the Discovery in its entirety, and

not }ely exclusively -upon the Prosecution's file, evidence in support
of the following issues would be a part of the. Court ;ecord and likely
woulé have affected the Jury's decision.

;if counsel had investigated, via suhpoené; a transaction involving
the acquisition of the fabeier by Bowman at a Staple's Store, either
custémer service decumentation and/or storé security surveillance

tapes could have confirmed perjured testimony on the part of Bowman,

and ﬂroven that he did, in fact, transact the labeler via.an exchange

~ indirect contradiction to his testimony at trial,
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shows the transact.: for the purchase of the ‘eler.

If counsel had investigated, via subpoena, the records of the
Ridge House,.the Courtyard Center Apartments, as well as, Online
Search Engine/Portal “YAHOO", the Court would have been made aware
that Bowman prevaricated in not only having access to computers,
but was sufficiently proficient on the internet and that he attended
computer literacy classes. See, Exhibits Ridge House Letter,

and Travis Volpicelli's

;FFIDAVIT in support of the foregoing.

If counsel had investigated the whereabouts of, and compelled
the appearance of, defense witness Travis Volpicelli, material fact
inconsistencies relevant to Bowman's statements concerning access
to the storage unit, Bowman's use of computers to communicate with
Petitioner, as well as, Bowman's expressed need and desire to acquire
a bicycle for transportation, would have been clarified for the Court's
record. See, 7 AFFIDAVIT of Trevis Volpicelli, post-trial,
4/04.

In Thomas v. Lockhart, 738 F2d 304, 308 (8th Cir), the Court
concluded that an attormey's performance was deficient where counsel
relied solely on the Prosecutor's file, and where counsel refused
to prepare a defense based on information, questions for witnesses,
and so on, as requested by Petitioner in support of his innocence.

Kirksey v. State, 923 P24 1102, 1111,

Lastly, and most significantly, since INTENT is .the key element
in terms of the Petitioner's complicity with Bowman in the Burglary
counts, if counsel had thoroughly investigated/reviewed the Reno
Police Department incident reports, and effectively cross-examined
Officers Brown an? Teasley, the Court record would show, that relative
to Count IX on October 17, 2001, (the Wal-Mart bicycle acquisition),

Officer Brown purported:
61
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"I returned ¢ y vehicle and continued tc.onitor the
activity of V icelli. He drives his vehicle toward

the front of the store and let Bowman out of his vehicle.
Bowman went into the store and was followed by other
detectives."

See, Exhibit jjffl RPD Incident Report, 10/25/01, Page 2 of
3, Officer Brown, at Paragraph &. ‘

* * * * &

"And when Bowman was buying the bike, Volpicelli drove

his vehicle through the lot and then out onto Vriginia
Street, where he drove North, eventually re-entered the
‘parking lot and parked in s different space."

RPD Incident Report, 10/18/01, Page & of

7, at Paragraph 5.

%X * %* * *

. Counsel was ineffective at cross-examination to not proffer
the scenario on October 17, 2001, wherein, petitioner's conduct dis-
played an attempt to extricate himself from Bowman's intentions FO
commit Burglary; Petitioner's overt conduct to leave Bowman and
to head home to Reno, and only circle back because Patitioner'bEéﬂme
aware of his vehicle being followed by RPD, is indicative of Petitioner
not sharing the sawme 'intent’ as Bowman:

1} Since an aider and abettor to a 'specific intent'

crime must share the 'specific intent of the
. perpetrator; -See, People v. Beeman, ‘674 P2d 1318;
and,

2) That a Burglary cannot be committed unless...

- 'specific intent' exists at the time of entry,
and,..the jury should have been so instructed;
People v, Hill, 429 P24 586; and,

3) &n aider and abettor to a Burglary must therefore
have a 'specific intent' to assist the perpetrator
in gaining unconsented entry for the perpetrator to
commit the erime. People v. Montoya, 874 P2d 903.

Petitioner's lack of shared intént is further substantiated
by Bpwman, himself, on December 3, 2001, {(closer in time‘to.the actual
Incident, and prior to having motive to fabricate and amend his state-
ments), whereas Bowman stated:

", ..a8 we was leaving Wal-Mart with the bike, right, he
(Volpicelli) wouldn't even set that up."

See, RPDt 12/3/01, Investigator Lodge and Bowman, Page 29,
Lines 18 - 19, :
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Clearly, the f.ego;ng statement by Bowman..ludes to Petitioner's

conduct evincing a lack of cooperation of involvement, or wlthdraw-l

from the alleged Conspiracy, specifically a lack of shared:;ntent:

Again, the. intent is the key element to alleged aiding and abetting
thé commission of Burglary.

To this, there is ample case law, wherein_'merelpresenée’and
knowledge of (Bowman's) intentions are -insufficient to convict aiding

and abetting culpability. Tarnef v. State, 512 P2d 923, 924.. That

if evidence of any conduct (by Petitiomer) is at least consistent
with ianCence,‘as with guilt, it is insufficient to sustain a guilty

. verdict. United States v. Berger, 224 F3d 107, 108. That no subse--

quent conviction with possession of property allegedly stolen as v
‘a result of Burglary can make one guiltx'ﬁf Burglary who was not
connected, conclusively, with the original .intent to commit upon

entfy. See, Hensel v. State, 604 P2d 222, 239. at_n.69.

That Petitioner's acts of abandonment or d15assoc1at1on {(in
not tﬂsslng the bike and leaving Bowman, as well as the parkzng lot,
in'the direction of home) came before Bowman's act was =put in ‘pro-.
. greas of final execution (entering the threshhold with intent).

| Said conduct thereby displayed overt .renunciation of any criminal
intent (on Petitioner's part). That to avoid jury instruction violation
with respect to the intent element of Burglary, the cqrrect'instruc~
tién ip this case was advisement by counsel to focus on the (Petiticner's
tioner's) intent more than the nature of écts committed by Bowman.

Haight v. State, 654 P2d 1232, 1242; and, People v. Beenén. 674 P2d

1318, 1326.

¥

That, according to NRS 205.165, the jury instructien is to in=-
clude 'a requirement that the Defendant only provide some evidence
to dispute the presumed element of criminal intent.’ [Redford v.

State, 572 P2d 219, 222.
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That a withdr 1l of criminal activity ca.e demonstrated by
one's conduct of taking definite, decisive, and positive steps to
show (Petitioner's) attempt to separate or extricate himself .from

the crime. United States v. Lothian, 976 F2d 1?5?, 1261 -(9th Cir, -

1992).

But for coumsel's failure to investigate the foregoing issues,
and to proffer. the same at trial, Petitioamer's rights to effective’ .
assistance of counsel, a fair trial, and due process of law, were
breached irreparablyir .
/11
117/
/11
/17
/77
/1!
/17
e
/17
v
/77
/11 A
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. GROUND FIFTEEXN

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE IN FAILING TO APPEAL THE DISTRICT
COURT'S DECISION TO NOT QUASH THE. INDICTMENT, AS WELL AS FOR FAILING
TO INVESTIGATE AND PROFFER OTHER INDICTMENT DEFICIENCIES, IN VIOLA-.
TION OF THE PRTITIONER'S RIGHT TO . DUE PROCESS, EQUITABLE GRAND JURY
PROCEEDINGS, AND EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAW, AS GUARANTEED BY THE
FIETg, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTI~
TUTION. ' : .

On November 7,:2003, Judge Hardesty rendered a decision with
the pleadings rélevaﬁt to the Prosecutibn'élintfoduction pf Improper a
evidence to the Granh Jury. S#id decision, in part, aqknowledged
the prejudicial taint of the improper. eviderce, with a suppression
of the same, Howvevér, that consideraticn was moot, as the Grand
Jurors had already been unduly ihflu;nced in their decision in June,
2003. '

Apparently, Judge Hardesty's decision to mmt quash the indic-
ment, despite the proéecutorial transgression, was based upon the
sentiment that the probative value of all the evidence cutweighed
the préjudice stemming from the vioclative conduct of the Proéecutioﬁ.

Haﬂ counsel fﬁrther 1nvestig;ted the indictwment for deficien—
cies, the Court'leecision;may likelf ﬁa{e been different.

Case and Point: The Prosecution also misled the Grand Jurors

.when the District Attorney, at the onset of the Jupe 11, 2003, hearing,

specifically instructed the Grand Jurors that Bowman was not & target

.of the indictment, (nor referred to as a Defendant), and in fact,
3 )

a witness.
Grand Jury Indictment Transcripts ("GJIt"), June 11,
2003, Page 7, Lines 14 - 16:
14 Q: Do you understand that. you.are not & target of this
15 Grand Jury but are. simply called here as a witness today?
16 Al I do. . ' - ‘
Yet, with respect to Count VI in said Indictment, further pre-
judice to the Petitioner ensued when esrroneous testimony, either

inadvertently or by design, reached the jurors wlen Lowes' investi-

gator, Mr, Ellis, stated specifically that the Defendant is identified
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and observed in the .re‘s. surveillance video, .nsacting the

|
alleged fraudulently acquired rug.

GJIt June 11, 2003; Page 112, Lines 1 - 8:

Q: Were you able to see in a security video tape this
purchase hbeing made?

A: Absolutely, yes, ma'am.

Q: Can you describe the person who was making the

purchase of the video tape, male or female? . ’
Az Certainly. It was a male subject. I had previously

not had the opportunity to ever see this person before. He was
identified by detective Thomas as the defendant.

D~ W

At that point, it was only logical to presume that the Grand
Jurors believed it was the Petitioner - and not witness Bowman.
After all, only minutes prior to that statement, the Prosecution

made it clear that Bowman was not the Defendant. Hence, prejudice

was obvioué with no admonition by the Court. And that, im front of the
trial jurors several months later, Bowman testified that it was him who
entered the Lowes in the video, with the UPC tag, and tramsacted the
purchase.

‘This transgression by the Prosecution went unchecked by counsel
and culminated. in a violation of NRS 51.035(2)(b), wherein, said statute
was designed to rebut charges, claims or fabrication of improper influ-

encing after a prior (in)consistent statement was made. To this, the.

Court has held in Napue that the Prosecution's use of known false testi-
mony at an indictment is grounds for a reversal of conviction. Napue

v. I1linois, 79 SCt 1173,

Another indictment insufficiency occurred at said hearing when
the Prosecution specifically instructed the Grand Jurors that the pre-.-
sence of the Labeler within the Peritioner's vehicle was a Burglary

tool - of sorts - under NRS 205,080, and that the charge of the same

constituted the "inrent element" of all the Burglary-related counts.

GJIt, June 11, 2003; Page 5, Lines 13 - 135:
13 Also at the beginning of your packet you have NRS
14 205,080 which defines the crime of possession of instruments
15 with burglary as the intent,
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If so, then lo. dictates an ins;ufficiency.ithin*the indictment,
insofar as, instructions for the intent element of Burglary, when the
Jurors posed a clarification inquiry and eventually issued a NO TRUE
BILL for Count XI - NRS 205.0B0 -~ Possessgion of Burglary-Tools.

GJIT, June 11, 2003; Page 145, Lines 21 - 23:
21 THE FOREMAN: We have one question we would like

22 explained, that is the definition of implements and adapting of
23 tools for use of burglary and crimes.

* % *

GJIt, June 11, 2003; Page 146, Lines 15 - 21:

15 (Whereupon the Grand Jury deliberated.)

16 (Whereupon the Deputy District Attormey amnd the Court

17 Reporter re-entered the Grand Jury room.)

18 THE FOREMAN: We have returned a true bill on
. 19 Counts I through ¥ and a2 no True Bill on Count XI.:

20 MS. HIER-JOHNSON: In light of the Grand Jury's

21 findings, Y will strike Count XI from the Indictment.
* * * * #

Needless to say, a Beeman violation had occurred in this matter,
wherein, ‘'errors in instructing on "intent"element necessary to convict
of Aiding 8nd Abetting the Commission of a Crime in an Indictment of
at Trial were no harmless error when inadequately instructed jurors

required clarification to Court indicating confusion on point.' People

v. Beeman, 674 P2d 1318,

The next insufficiency clouding the Indictment involves either
a variance or constructive amendment issue.

From the onset of the judicial proceedings, initialléases 02-
0145 & 02-0146 (later supplanted with 03-1263 at Indictment) alleged

similar crimes of Bowman and Petitioner, and specificglly cited NRS

195.020. Yet, at the re-indictment, wherein 02-0145 and 02-0146 were
stayed, NRS 195.020, which is critical to the Prosecution's theory

of Petitioner's complicity with Bowman, is not specifically cited in

the Indictment, Counts I through %, nor in the closing statements of
the District Attorney within the Grand Jury Transcripts. Central to
this deficiency, NRS 173.075 is clear in the requirement that the
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Indictment or Inforn‘on mustcstate, for each c’lt, the official

>

or customary citation of the statute, rule, regulation,. or other pro-

vision of the law, which the Defendant is alleged therein to have vio-

_ lated.

Then, to have effectively averted a v;riancé or-constrﬁctive
amendment issue between the lndié¢tment and'wﬂenithe Prosecution asked
for 'a conviction of Petitioner under NRS 195.020, Aiding snd Abetting,
said statﬁte'should have been present within the Indictment. Qtherwise,

If the Grand Jurors entered a True Bill absent NRS 195.020 for each

Count, and specific only to NRS 199.480, NRS 205.060,.NRS 205.0832,

NRS 205.090, NRS 205.110, NRS 205.220; NRS 205.240, NRS 205.380! and

NRS 20?.965; then accordingly, the District Aftorney's'reqqut of trial
juroré'to convict, {%P her closing argument at trial, relating Fetitioner
with culpability under NRS 195.020 relevant to all ﬁurglary.counts

I through K),.conséituted é variapcé‘ér constructive amendment to that

of the Indictment.  As such, Petitioner's subgthntial rights are affected

“since it shows 'prejudice to his ability-to defend himgelf at trial,

and to the general fairness of the proceedings or to the Indictment's

-

sufficiency to bar subsequent prosecutions.' United States v. Hathaway,

789 F24 902, 910 (1986).

In view of the foregoing additional .deficiencies with the indict-
ment, it is clear that the prosecution overreached the Grand Jury,

even if unintentioanl, causing 1l1licit influence with improper and

multiple instances of such. The cumulative effect of this is patently

prejudicial, and d;nied the Petitioner his Constitutional right to
a fair Grand Jury proceeding, which is an integral part Qf.the judicial
mechanism.

The test with respect to inappropriate comments (or impropef
evidence) by the Prosecutor, is whether the comments so infected the

Jurors with unfairness as to make the resulting Indictment a denial
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of Due Process. Ben v. State, 111 Nev 1099,@_1’2(! 676 (1995).

In addition, higher Courts have ruled that even
Court ruled there was a sufficient amount of evidence

the Grand Jury to sustain the Indictment, if there is

misconduct issues which together, clearly destroy the

an independent and properly informed Grand Jury, then

if the District

presented .to

.evidence dof other

existence of
€.

the irreparable

impairment of fairness compels a reversal of conviction. .Yasquez v.

Hillery, 106 SCt 617, 623, Furthermore, even if a Grand Jury's deter-

mination of probable cause is confirmed in. hindsight by a conviction

of the indicted offenses, that confirmation, ir no way, suggests that

the prejudicial taint of improper evidence, indictment deficiencies,

and prosecutorial misconduct did not infect the framing-of the proceedsr

ings to come. Id., at 623,

-Hencé, the District Court's denial to quash the

Indictment was-

an improper and disc;etionarily abused uze of its supervisory power

to which, counsel should have immediately filed an appeéi. 1P61ﬁﬂive

of the aforementioned issues. Counsel's failure to do so was a viola-:

tion of Petitioner's right to Due Process guaranteed by.the State of

Nevada's Constitution, as well as -that of the United States of America.

/117
/11
/11
117
/17
iy
/11
/11
117
/17
/17
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. CROUND SIXTEEN @

{

PETITIONER WAS DENIED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, DUE PROCESS,
EQUAL PROTECTION, AND A FAIR TRIAL, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIXTH,
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITEP STATES CONSTITUTION, WHERE AN
ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST EXISTED BETWEEN PETITIONER AND TRIAL
COUNSEL. - .

Prior to.Novéhber 10, 2003, priofﬂto trial, Petitioner notified
the Trial Court of a confliet of interest with ‘appointed connsel, .
Bradley O. Van Ry, Esq., to which counsel concurred, Petitioner
informed the Court that counsel refused to discuss potential trial.
issues with'Petitioner and refused to seek Discovery and/or inyesiigate
into evidence to be produced st trial in support of Petitioperfé |
»innocence., {See Ground Fourteea ).

. At said hearing, held on November 10, 2003, counsel informed
the Court, "We are at such loggerheads.” {Transcripts of Proceedings,
November. 10, 2003, Page 8, Limes 1 - 3). Counsel continues, "I think
it ﬁight Se best if Mr, Volpicelli represented himgelf..." Id., at
Lines 6-8.

The Court erred in denying Petitioner's request for.coanECF-
free counsel, and further, giving Petitioner the choice of'keepins|
ineffective counsel, or representing himself - wﬁich would have been.
equally as ineffective, The Court spplied the improper standard,
and delineated as follows:

I'm not interested in Mr. ?ulpicelli's views
and decisions regarding trial tactics.

{1Id, at iinea 16 - 18).

Apparently, the Court was unaware of the United 3tates Supreme

Court holding in United States v. Teague, 953 F2d 1525 (1lth Cir,

1992, wherein the Court held that a "Jefendant is the master of his

own defanse.” By the Court's statement, it is clear that the Court

did not take into consideration the drastic differences between

counsel's and Petitioner's tactics and theories on how to defend
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Petitioner at trial .

In Halloway v. Arkansas, 435 US 475 (1978), the United States

Supremé Court held that counsel is in the best position to determine
if an actual conflict of interests exists. In the instant action,
as quoted above, counsel informed the Court that it would be best
if Petitioner represented himself, that they were at "loggerheads."
Thus, the Court erred in refusing to accept couﬁsel*s perception
of his relationship with Fetiticner.

Petitioner has the right to conflict-free counsel. See,

Cuyler v, Sullivan, 446 US 335, 344 (1980); and, United States v.

. Cronic, 466 US 648, 662, n.3l (1984), wherein Petitioner need not

show actual prejudice to require reversal of a conviction based on
counsel being in conflict with his client's best interests.

This Court failed to make the proper inquiry into Petitioner's
claim of conflict of interest, and failed to heed counsel's inter-
pretation of his attorney-client relationship, in violation of

Petitioner's rights to Due Process. Seée, Mickens v. Taylor, 535

Us (2002).

. Further, this Court failed to -consider that, 't;he client is the
master of his own defense, evenm though the counsel serves as an ad-
vocate for his client.' And, By exercising the constitutional right

to assistance of counsel, a Defendant does not relinquish his right

to set the parameters of that representation. ABA Rules of Profe-

ssional Copduct, Rule 1.2; and, United States v. Teague, 953 F2d

1525 911th Circuit, 1992). The Teague Court alsc reminds us that,

Defense counsel bears the primary responsibility for advising ;hei
Defendant of his rights, the strategic implications of retaining ,
or waiving those rights and the choices relating to each, and-tha;
.it is ultimately for the Defendant to make the final decisions.

See also, United States Coustitutional Amendments 5, 6, & 14.
7l
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In the instan‘case, the Petitioner at't.em'd to notify .the
Court of his conflicts with counsel, and the hopes that the Court
would aid iﬁ rectifying these conflicts, which incidently rose to.
violations of Petitioner's 5th, 6th, and l4th Amendment Rights.
However, rather than.the Court apbointing conflict-free counsel to
the Petitioner, the Court forced Petitioner into a catch-22 situation
in asking him to eifher proceed with conflict-laiden counsel (in
violation of said rights), or waiving his right to counsel under

duress, & judicial practice specifically denounced in Jackson v,

Jomes, 839 F2d 1513, 1516 (llth Cir, 1998).

As_such, Petitioner was. forced to proceed to trial with an

ineffective counsel, laiden with conflict issues, in violation of
Petitioner's rights} as guaranteed by the Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth
Amendments to the United States Constitution.
Petitioner's subsequent conviction is thus? constitutionally
infirm, AND MUST BE VACATED, |
11/
111/
11/
7
11/
11/
/11
11/
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11/
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" PETITIONER RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AT THE SENTEN-

CING HEARING, WHEN TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO INVESTIGATE AND PRESERT

A HOST OF MITIGATING INFORMATION, THUS DEPRIVING PETITIONER OF HIS
RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION, AND A FAIR TRIAL, IN VIOLA-
TION OF THE GUARANTEES OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS
TO THE UNITED STATE CONSTITUTION.

At Petitioner's Sentencing Hearing, held on April 1, 2004, counsel
failed to present available mitigating evidence in support of-a lesser
available sentence. Counsel failed to investigate the facts surﬁound—
ing thelinstant offénses, and to present those facts as mitigating
evidence at sentencing. Coungel failed to interview éetitioner's |
family, friends, etc., as well as present their testimony at sentencing.

Petitioner desired to have the following persons provide testi-

monial evidence to the|Sentencing Court:

NAME: RELATIONSHIP:
Kevin Sigstad Employer While on Parole in 2001,
. Travis VYolpicelli Eldest Son
Ashley Shilling Step-Daughter
Chanel Volpicelli Daughter
James Brookey .Esq, Family Attorney
F.J. Volpicelli, M,D. Father
Robert Fahrendorf Family Friend
Sandra Ruggiero Former Manager/Employee
Stacy Ballard Neighbor
Karen Volpicelld Sister
‘.~ Carl Jorgensen Fellow Associate in Real Estate
Mark Volpicelli Brother . y
Commissioner Morrow Nevada Parole and Probation
- Lori Inman (AXA Lori
Volpicelli) Former Spouse until 1997 ‘
* s * % % '

The above-named persons were willing to provide the Sentencing -
Court with testimony of Petitiomers5s social, ethical, and moral .’
background, in an attempt to humapize Petitioner before the Court.

In Lockett v. Ohio, 438 US 586, 98 SCt 2954 (1978), the United

States Supreme Court held that:

Possession of the fullest information possible
concerning the Defendant's life and characteristics,..
"is highly relevant, if not essential, to the selection
of an appropriate sentence. '

73
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The Nevada Sup.ae Court has held éimilarl.‘n Browe v. State,

110 Nev. 846 (1994), where "defense counsel neither presented any

witnesses to testify on Brown's behalf, nor did he 'present any evi-

"

dence of mitigating circumstances in an effective manner.' Id.,

at 851, The Court went on to indicate, "When a judge has sentencing

digcretion, as in the instant case, possession of the fullest infor-
mation possible regarding the Defendant's life and characteristics

is essential to the selection of a proper sentence.” Id., at 851.

Additionally, in Brown, supra., the Court further held that the Dis-

trict Court erred in denying Brown's Petition for Post-Conviction
Relief based on his counsel's failure to call any witnesses on his
client's behalf or to properly request that Brown's sentences be
run concurrently,

The United States Supreme Court, in Commonwealth of Pennsylvamia

v. Ashe, 302 US 51, 58 SCt 59 (1937), held:

In the determination of sentences, justice requires
consideration of more than particualr acts by which.
the crime was committed, and that there. be.taken into
account the circumstances of the offense, together
with the character and propensities of the offender,
and his past may be taken to suggest the period of
restraint. and the kind of discipline that ought to

be imposed.

Furthermore, the United States District Court of Nevada agrees
with the principles laid out by the State of Nevada, by stating that,
"counsel's complete failure to present any argument or evidence that
might have persuaded the Judge to temper the severity of his senténce.
is sufficient to undermine our confidence in the outcome.” Butler

v. Sumner, 783 FSupp 519, 522 (D.Nev, 1991).

The above-named witnesses would have provided testimony as to
the morals, character, and social/work ethics, etc., of Petitioner,
at the Sentencing Hearing. Counsel's failure to call the witnesses
or to present their testimony in any manner, toO the Court, prejudiced

14

V9.745



Petitioner and resu.d in ineffective assistan, ag outlined in

Strickland v. Washingtom, supra..

The primary purpose of the penalty phase is to ensure that the

- sentence is individualized, by focusing-on the particularized charac-

teristics of the Defendant. Browalee v. Hale, 306 F3d 1043, 1074

11th Cir, 2002); cf., Siripongs v. Calderon, 35 F3d 1308, 1316

(9th Cir, 1994), (Finding counsel is ineffective during the penalty

phase when he fails to conduct more than a cursory investigation
of a Defendant's background and makes no attempt to humanize him

before a jury.).

Compoiindingscounsel’s failure to investigate and develop @ POSitiVEb

mitigating case, counsel allowed the prosecution to admit unfounded
statements and speculation without objection or attempts o prevent
the ad@ission of the,prejudicial testimony.

The prosecution estered a photograph at the sentencing hearing
that was not, and could not, have been produced by the Petitioner.
In summation, the prosecution alluded that Petitionef haa.;;ieﬂ the
photograph of himself while incarcerated in federal prison and commented
that the time was "worth it." |

The prosecutién also offered the testimony of Derective Reed
Thomas at sentencing., Detective Thomas made numerous statements

of falsity which were based on pure speculation. Detective Thomas

testified that Petitioner reaped monetary rewards of $49,140.00 to

$93,000.00 annually, based on criminal activity. (Sentencing Tran~-
seripts, April 4, 2004, Pages 24 and 25), The prosecution also
presented numerous instances of charged and uncharged offenses that
went uncontested by counsel, such as the prosecution implying that
Petitioner was making a living from criminal activity, and being

unemployed. Petitioner can prove that the above-noted inferences
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are false, .

The record indicates that Pétitioner had been under continuous
ipprisonment from 1997 until the present day, wherein he was initﬁ—
ally sentenced to itgx perjury in the federal court, followed. by con-
secutive sanctions with the state.

Exhibit [**17] provides letters of support in regard to the charac-
ter of Petitionmer as a person in general, a citizen, a neighbor,
an employer of & sole-proprietorship, sibling, son, and father -
all of which tell a varied story than that of the Prosecutiony How~
ever, said letters were amongst Petitiomer's legal files, seizedI
from the Aussie storage unit, and purposefully not released by the
Prosecution until subsequent to the Petitioner's sentencing hearing.
Again, exculpatory evidence was withheld by the Prosecution, despite
Petitiomer's protestations to counsel and to the Court, Paotential
witness and former employer, Kevi; Sigstad, would have testified
to Petitioner's employment while he was on parcle in 2001?,Petitihner
having been employed as a Market Specialist from therﬁset of his
release ‘from custody, until the date of his arrest, October 17, 2001,
He further would havé,ff-é?i‘fi*ed‘:that Probation Officers personally.
verified Petitioner's continuous employment and that they PrOCErré&
monthly documentation from.Sigstad in support thereof.

Potential witness, Travis Volpicelli, as eldest son of the Pevi-
tioner, would have personally testified, in lieu of the accompanying
Affidavit - after the fact, to the contradictions in Bowman's testi-’
mony, relevant to Petitioner's contact with Bowman, as well as to
Bowman's access to the Aussie Storage Unit.

Potential witness, Ashley Schilling (Petitioner's step-daughter),
and Chanel Volpicelli, would have substantiated as to their procure-
ment and needs for renting a storage umit and bank safery deposit.

i6
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@ | @
box with their res;.tnre returns from college .-ing the summer
of 2001, and with no undue influence by Petitioner.

Potential witness, Commissioner Morrow, as part of the tribumal
for the State, inm regard to parole revocations, would have téstified
that, ﬁfter considering the presentations by probation officers an&
nearly a dozen law enforcement officers from the.Reno Police Depart-
ment, he concluded that the Petitioner was, at all times on parole,
cooperative with probation and not in violation of associating with
Bowman. But, most significantly, the taped hearing of October 16,
2002, specifically purports the Commissioners' findings that the’
Petitioner was guilty of "Laws and Conduct™ violations felevant to
case number CR02-0147, and that in regard to the instant case, (for-
merly 02-01254 and 02-0146), the Commissioner-states the case 'lacks
foundation,' Had counsel subpoenaed the tapes of the Revocation
Hearing, the foregoing would also be a.part of .this Court's record.

Lastly, and with respect to the controverted 'photo' of Petitioner
proffered at trial by the prosecution, %otential witness, ﬂnd former
spouse, Lori Inman, would ha}e testified that she did not sena the
photo to the Reno Police Départment, thereby contradicting Detective
Hopkins' testimony. She would also have testified that, in fact,
gsaid photo was taken at a visit when former employee, Ann Stanfill,
visited Petitioner during his custody at Safford FCI in Arizoné,
Furthermore, that, unbeknownst to Petitioner, Stamfill was feépOﬂSislf
for typing the statement "I'm too sexy for this placé, just missing
stores," and sending same to law enforcement, in retsliation to the
Petitioner's filing of complaints against Stamfill and her mother
with law enforcement agencies in Nevada and California, regarding
the identity theft and fragd perpetrated by the foregoing indffiduéls
during Petitioner's incarcefation.

Clearly, the aforementioned scenarios paint the Petitioner in
, ' |
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a different light, .1 but for counsel's errors he outcome of the
sentencing hearing would have been different. The law in vhis con-
text does not require certsinty and prejudice is shown where there

is a .vreasonable pr'ubability of a different result. Mayfield.y. Wood-

ford, 270 F3d 915, 936 (9th Cir, 2001). Petitioner has proved that

evidence would have been presented, but for counsel's errors, that
vould probably have rendered a substantially different r;asult at
the sentencing hearing.
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. GROUND EICGHTEEN ' .

TRYAL. AND APPELLATE COUNSEL WERE INEFFECTIVE IN ALLOWING PETITIONER
TO. BE SUBJECTED TO. SENTENCING UNDER NEVADA'S HABITUAL CRIMINAL
STATUTE, AS SET FORTH BELOW, IN VIOLATION OF PETITIONER'S RIGHTS TO
DUE .PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION, A FAIR TRIAL, AND EFFECTIVE ASSISTANGE
OF COUNSEL, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH. SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AHFHD#
MENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION,

A, TRE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY ADJUDICATE
PETITIONER AS A HABITUAL CRIMINAL AND/OR DID
NOT APPLY- THE PROPER STANDARDS. .
Petitioner was sentenced to numerous life sentences under ghe
provisions of NRS 207,010, The Prosecution must provide proof qf
prior felony convictions to the sentencing court to properly impose
NRS 207.010.. The Prosecution offered: (1) A comviction for "gidins
and abetting in the commission of ap attempt to obtain money under
false pretenses," (2/11/04), (2) A coaviction for Burglary (19%3),
and (3) A United States District Court conviction for Tax Perjqﬁy
(1997), Nonme of the aforementioned offenses, or the instant ofﬁense,

are viclent crimes..

Pursuant to the Ninth Circuit holding in Walker v. Deeds, 50

F3d 670, 673 (9th Cir, 1995):

Moreover, if the trial Court. had weighed Walker's
prior convictions, under Nevada law, a prior
conviction record for non-violent property crimes,
"though reprehensible, simply doesn't warrant the
harsh sanction available under the habitual crimi-
nality statute." Sessions v. State, 106 Nev ‘186,

789 P2d 1242, 1245 (1990) (per curiam). The Nevada
Supreme Court has determined that it may be an abuse
of discretion to adjudge a defendant a habitual
criminal if his prior felentes:are minor property
crimes and remote in time, as such a.ruling "serves
neither the purposes of the statute not the interests
of justice." See, also, Clark v, State, 831 P2d

at 428. ’

The Nevada Legislature and the Courts did not intend for non-
violent property crimes to be sentenced under the habitual criminal
statutes. Trial and Appellate counsel were ineffective for ggg;

presenting or preserving this issue and protecting Petiticoner from
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such an unjust impl.ation of a harsh sentencin cheme, in vio—:

lation of his rights, secured under the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth

' Amendments to the United States Constitution.

B, THE PRIOR CONVICTION OF FEBRUARY 11, 2004, WAS
HOT "FINAL" FOR PURPOSES OF ENHANCEMENT, AND DID
NOT PRECEDE THE PRIMARY OFFENSE.

The prior conviction used by the Court to determine the 1mp§si—
tion of the Habitual Sentences in this case was not "final,” The
Judgment of Conviction considered and incorporated was entered on
February 11, 2004 {Case # CR020148), and was eventually appealled
to the Nevada Supreme Court.{Docket # 42971). On:4/}/04, the Nevada
Supreme Court had not ruled on the merits of the appeal. 'Final
Judgment is a decision by the Districﬁ Court that ends the litigation

on the merits!'! Williamson. v. UNOM Life Ins. Co, of America, 160

F3d 1247 (9th Cir, 1998). The conviction must be deemed final after

the end of the appellate procedure on the doubt phase of the tridl.

Brady v. Maryland, 83 SCt 1194; and, Gretzler v, Stewart, 112 F3d

992, 1004. Since a Judgment of Conviction is final only upon issuance

of a Remittitur, (See, NRS 34,726), said alleged prior comviction

is not final for enhancement purposes,

In addition, Nevada's habitual criminal statute, NRS 207.010,

allows for the imposition of an enhancement penalty only upon the

proof of prior convictions. The Judgment of Conviction utilized

by the Prosecution, entered on February 11, 2004, was not prior

to Petitioner's criminal arrest in October, 2001 for the primary'
offenses. Hence, it is being applied in an ex-past-facto manner,
ﬁil prior convictions used to enhance a Qentence must have preceeded

the primary offense. Brown v. State, 624 P2d 1005; and, Carr v.

State, 620 P2d 869 (Nev, 1980).

B0 :
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Due to the fac.tliat the evidence presented DY the Pr.osecution, :
purported to be a velid Judgment of Conviction,. not, in actuality,
being a valid Judgment of Conviction (final), and not I?reing a "prior"
felony conviction, Pet:‘gtioner's multiple life sentences must be '
vacated, and a new -sentlencing‘ hearing held.
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.’ ". GROUND NINETEEN .

COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE IN NOT PROTECTING PETITIONER FROM THE VIO-
LATION OF HIS RIGHTH AMENDMENT RIGHT TO BE FREE FROM CRUEL & UNUSUAL
PUNISHMENT WITH SUCH HARSH SENTENCES, IN VIOLATION OF PETITIONER'S
RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAW, AS WELL AS

4 FAIR SENTENCING HEARING, AS GUARANTEED BY THE SIXTH, FIFTH, EIGHTRH,
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

On April 1, 2004, Petitioner was sanctioned in this case to

nine (9) LIFE sentences, consecutive to his other sentences, which

he was already serving out through expiration. In view of this,
and over four (4) years subsequent to the beginning of the judicial
proceedinga in this case, Petitioner has not even commenced with
serving any of his LIFE sentences; meanwhile, accomplice Bowman
has expired his sizteen to forty-eight (16 - 48) moath sanction,
much of which has been served at a restitution ceater, wherein he
toiled as a baker at Baldini's Casino,

Yet, the Petitioner endures.a MAXIMUM-custody environment,
in custedy at the likes of state prisons such as the Nevada State
Prison (NSP) and High Desert State Prison (HDSP). 0ddly enough,
it was accomplice Bowman who admitted t; more culpable’conduct,
coupled with possessing an equally-storied criminal history.

This apparent disparity attests to the Petitioner's claim of
prejudicially harsh sentencing, to which counsel was ineffective
at protecting the Petiticner from such CRUEL & UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT.

In support of this, Petitioner now proffers numerous cases,
wherein the disproportionate sentencing clearly "shocks the conscience
of reasonable people.”

Firstly, and as previously addréssed in the Ground relevant
to the Habitual Criminal Statute, NRS 207.010 creates a unigue possi~-
bility that a Defendant will receive one (1) or more LIFE sentences

which are not proportionate to.the crime(s) the Defendaat 1is convicted

gf, and disproportionate to that of his accomplice. Alvarez v. People,
B2
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797 P24 37 at 40. () k. - .

L

This disparity in sentencing occurred because the .Habitual,
Offender Statute is highly punitive, coupled with'an ambiguity con-
‘cerning the ambit of criminal statutes, wherein tpe-LegislaturE's
intent for said sentencing enhancement is not followed.

On March 28, 1995, Governor Bob-Miller, of Nevada, festifiqd
before the Nevada Assembly's Justicde Committee on Comprehensive Crimi-
nal Code Reform regarding AB 317, which contained the provisions
for NRS 207.010. Specifically, Governor Miller addressed the Bill's

criminal statutory scheme, including the genesis-of the-Habdtual

Criminal Statute and the need "to attack the problem of violent:
crime." See Exhibit |18 |

-The testimony.in said Exhibit contains no less than six (6)
references to-the fact that AB 317 is DESIGNED TO ADDRESS VIOLE#T
CRIME AND VIOLENT CRIMINALS, In'the 1995 and 1997 Legislative ﬁes-
sions, which addressed the language of violent crimes of offenders
in the statute, no discussion could be found régarding the Legisla=
ture's intent to include the likes of miner property crimeg, oT -
in the Petitioner's case, specifically wi;h regard to Count II and
Count V, entering a retailer to document pricing information. ﬁere,
it is'respectfully argued that the Nevada Legislature did not intend
for the Petitioner's alleged crimes to be sentenced under the Hébitual
Criminal statutory sentencing scheme.

To this, the United States%Supréme Court has noted that thé
punishment in a state prison fol mhltiple LIFE terms might be so.

disproportionate to the offense as to constitute CRUEL AND UNUSUAL

PUNISHMENT, and shock the conscience of the people. _Solem v. Helm ,

103 SCt 3004. . '

!
That, in fact, a sentencing proportionality analysis should:

be guided by objective criteria, including the gravity of the ofFense,
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and the harshness .the penalty, the sentence.mposed on other

criminals in the ssme jurisdiction, and the same sentences imposed

for the same crime in other jurisdictions, as held in United States

v. Wilson, 787 F2d 375, CA 8; State v. .Perkins, 699 P2d 364, Ari;

and, State v. Childs, 466 S52d 1363, App 3 Cir, La.

It is patently obvious, in the Petitioner's case, that the
harshness of the punishment imposed is out of sync with the gravity
of the offense, disproportionate to Accomplice Bowman's sixteen
to forty-eight {16 - 48) months for Burglary, and other similar
criminal matters in Norvthern Nevada, as well as other jurisdictions.
See, Exzhibit _E:Eﬂ This is not to mention. the basis of which is
a re;ult of vindictiveness and abuse. of discretion by the prosecu-
tiohland the Court for Petitioner exercising his Due Process Rights.

See,;Ground Ten .

' As noted in United States v. Driscoll, 761 F2d 589, CA 10,

Eglé, the punishment should fit not only the crime, but the offender
as well, In.determining whether a sentence is excessive, each case

must; be considered on its own facts, State v. Humphrey, 445 S24

1155, La; Schultz v. State, 715 P2d 485, Okla Cxim, and considering

all the facts and circumstamces. As further noted in the previous
groﬁnds. it is clear from the record that the Court did not consider
oth%r mitigating factors@%ﬁthe ineffective assistance of counsel,

as well as the prosecutorial misconduct issues. Petitioner has

also presented é clear case that, not only did the District Court
abuée its discretion in! sentencing him as an hahitual offender,
b“t'thé process used by the District Court violated, his rights to
Due Process and Equal Protection of Law, by failing teo weigh all
theicircumstances, the non-violent nature of the prior felonies,

the ‘absence of conformance to standards for use 6f prior convictions,

84

V9.755



as well as by inve‘.gating similarly situated.ses in the same
1 1
‘and other jurisdictions before making an adjudication of punishment.

Furthermore, and as mentioned herein, the United States Spprepe

'Court _has held that " as a matter of. principle, all criminal senten-
|

! .
ices must be proportionate to the crime for which the Defendant has

lbeen. convicted. Solem v. Helm, 463 US 277, 290 (1983). In that

icasef the Higher Court affirmed the District Court’s finding that
EHelm;s sentence was grossly disproportionate to his crime. The
ICourt, further, stated it may be ugeful to compare the sentences
!impoéed with the sentéﬁces imposed'fof other crimes; if more Serious
icrimes merit the same or similar sentences, the sentence may be :
@;cessive. ‘

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that there are three (3)
basic tenets for determining whether a sentence comstitutes CRUEL
E& UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT: In view of all.the circumstances, (i)l is
'the punishment of such character as to'éhock the conscience of
ireaspnable people and to viclate the principles of fundamental fair-

ness? (2) Is the punishment clearly disproportionate to the offense
| .

'(or the sanction of his accomplice)? and, (3) Does the.punishment

! .
go beyond what is necessary .to achieve the aim of the public interest

‘as expressed by the Legislature? Workman v. Commonwealth, 429 S5W2d

374, 378 (Ky Ct App, 1968), as cited in Nauvanath v. State, 779

P2d 944 (1989),

! Whereas our Habitual Criminality Statute exists to enable the

criminal justice system to deal determinably with career criminals

who pose a serious threat to public safety. Odoms v. Staté, 714

P2d 568, 571-72 (1986, Nev).

That, as seen in Gaines v. State, 998 P2d 166 (ZOOO,THEV),

¢ .
the Court stated, "It is a well recognized tenet of statwytery con-—
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struction that mu].ple Legislative provisioaa‘ construed as a
whole, and where possible, a statute should be read to give plain
meaning to all its parts."” The statutes should be read in peri
materia, and a construction should be adopted which operates in
favor of life and liberty.

Lastly, and most significantly, as held in Speer v. State,

5 P3d 1063, Nev, and, Pelligrini v. State, 34 P3d 519 (2001, Nev),

"Courts are not at liberty to go fishing in the Legislative mind
where the statute is clear and unambiguous."
With that said, and in view of the Nevada Legislature's intentions

of directing the Habitual Criminal statutory Sentencing Scheme at

violent criminals who are a threat to public safety, it is abuandantly
clear that the Petitioner's harsh sentences are grossly disproportion-
ate to the crimes; and, not in the best interest of the system or
society, and constituting CRUEL & UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT for the Peti-
tioner. This is a clear violation under the Eighth Amendment to

the US Constitution, to which counsel failed to protect the Peti-
tioner from incurring.
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i . GROUND TWENTY

.COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR NOT PROTECTING PETITIONER FROM PROSE-
iCUTION OF COUNTS II|AND V, WHEREAS PETITIONER'S FIRST AMENDMENT
'RIGHTS WERE BREACHED, IN VIOLATION OF PETITIONER'S RIGHTS TO DUE
IPROCESS, FAIR TRIAL| AND EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE LAW, AS GUARANTEED
\BY THE FIRST, FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMERTS TO THE UNITED
STATES CONSTITUTION,

i ‘Due to trial Counsel's failure to object at the Indictment,

and at trial, to the Prosecution of Counts IT and ¥; Petitioner

incurred multiple/LIFE sentences, wherein NO crime was committed,

‘and in violation of Petitioner's Civil Rights.

Testimonials throughout the Court proceedings established that
&hé Petitioner was surveilled on September 4, 2001, and September
28, 2001, by Detectives Armitage and Brown, respectively.

! Petitioner was observed, innocently gleaning information from

|

retail items and shelves in Wak-Mart's Golf Club Accessories and

Auto Alarms/Stereo sections on the above dates.

! * * *
1 GJt, Detective Armitage, Page 102, Lines 9 - 12;
E 9 Aj I watched him walk to the back of the store ?here car

10 stereos and car alarms are sold. And he waa.writ1ng down
i 11 numbers while he was leoking at some of the items that were on
12 the shelves.

* * * * *

GJt, Detective Brown, Page 55, Lines 4 ~ 5, 8 - 10:

4 Q: And the laebels corresponding to which items?

5 A:' It looked like the golf accessories.
| 8 At At one point, I was less than ten feet from him.
. g Q% What were you doing?
! 10 Az

I was feigning interest in an extremely small bicycle...
' * * *

! -

| Retail investigators testified that the conduct of the Petitiloner
?as not inconsistent with customers welcome and having lawful privi-
leged entry,.

1 E * x*

Tt, November 13, 2003, Van Ry cross—examines Detective
Danielson, Page 71, Lines 2 - 10:

Q: Is it against Wal-Mart's policy to allow
customers to come in and de price shecking on the
information that is listed on the price of the items?
A, No )

Q: So I ask that in a positive better question, I
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[ RV BN R FC L]

V9.758



| 7 kind of ¢@Mdled through that. ‘

i 8 So It is allowable for customers Lo come into
: 9 Wal-Mart to check pricing information?

| 10 A: Yes, Sir.

I * * *
i

i

Detective Thomas, the Lead investigator, further testified that

it was not illegal to enter the stores, absent Bowman.

* * *
Tt, November 13, 2003, Van Ry cross—examines Detective
Brown, Page 142, Lines 14 - 23: '
14 Q: Just one question. It wasn't a crime on those
15 days when Mr. Volpicelli walked into those stores without
la Mr. Bowman, was it?

17 A It wasn't a crime to walk into the stores =--
Q: Correct. ‘
19 As -— without Mr. Bowman?
20 Q: And then to walk out.
21 A That in itself does not show anything that's a
22 crime?
23 MR. VAN RY: Nothing furtﬁfr.
% %

i
f
|
|
|
I
|
i ‘18
|
|
|

| But, most significantly, counsel failed to inform the_Court

| .
that, despite Law Enforcement's perceived criminal thoughts of the

Petitioner on the'above-listed two {2) days, there was not anyzoexus
i
between the items specifically cited in the Indictment, seized under

the Search Warrant, nor any transactions purported by Bowman or the
| .

Tnvestigators, relevant to golf ¢lub accessories or auto alarms/
: .

stereos.

Yet, despite the compelling evidence in favor of acquittal on-

?aid Counts, the Petitioner was found guilty. This finding 1s in-

consistent with the facts of the case and the law. To this, the

Nevada Supreme 'Court has ruled "committing a non-criminal act, with
|

(or without) intent, is not a crime." Further, "that (perceived)

thoughts slone do not constitute & crime." Childs v. State, 864
|

P2d 277.
[

In addition: provisions of 42 USC 2000(a)-1, guarantee that

all persons are entitled to be free at-any establishment or place
|

from discrimination of any kind, on the ground of religion - INCLD-
SIVE of Freedom of Thought, which is protected by the First Amend-

| 88 .
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ment. . . .

I Based on the convictions on Counts II and V, it appears dis-
criminatory that, any time the Petitioner enters a retail establish-
?ent, regardless of the innocence of his éonduct, he is in violation
Ff NRS.205.060. This is unconstitutional, wherein a State's Law
?nforcement can arbitrarily enforce a statute on the desireability
?f controlling a person's perceived ﬁrivate thoughts. Stanley v.
Georgia, 89 SCt 1243, 1248, 1In said case, the United States Supreme

| .
Court declared that ... "the assertions that the State or its repre-

| ‘ t
sentatives have the right to control the moral context of a person's

l
perceived thoughts - is wholly inconsistent with the philosophy of

the First Amendment."
|

If intent is a state of mind, then it ‘has the same protection
as "Freedom of Religion," and the protection of the First Amendment

is available, regardiess of motivation or intent. LeBlanc-Streburg

! _
v. Pletcher, 781 FSupp 261, 266 (1991); and, Sustre ¥. Rockefeller,

312 FSupp 863, 865 (1970).

1

In which case, the Petitioner's conviction on Counts II and

.V were a breach of Petitioner's Civil Rights, and Counsel's decision
]

to not protect Petitioner from such, constituted violations: of Due

érocess and the right to Effective Assistance of Counsel.
11
7,
111
111
4//
11/
111
o

11
| 89 ’
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i . GROUND TWENTY-ONE ’

COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE IN ALLOWING PETITIONER TO BE SUBJECTED TC
PROSECUTION OF NRS 205.060 AND 205.965, WHICH ARE UNCONSTITUTIONALLY
VAGUE UNDER THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE, IN VIOLATIOR OF PETITIONER'S
RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS, A FAIR TRIAL, AND EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE
LAW, AS GUARANTEED BY THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS

OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES.

' Pqtitioner's canvictions under NRS 205.060 and 205.965 are uncon-

stitutional, Said statutes are unconstitutionally vague and over-

bréoad, under both NOTICE and an ARBITRARY ENFORCEMENT ANALYSIS.

Grayned ¥. City of Rockford, 408 US 104, 108 - 109.
f . .
[ As referenced in GROUND TWENTY, wherein Petitioner's convictions

| .

For Counts II and V violated his First AMENDMENT rights, the above
statutes fail to give fair NOTICE of the conduct proscribed orf fail
o provide explicit standards for those who enforce it, thereby

llowing discriminatory enforcement,

CABE AND POINT,

ce e —emm — e ——

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that, without defining the

?rimennﬁ}underétanding the proscribed conduct to persons of ordinary
l. ' .
intelligence, there is no prosecutable offense, Childs v. State,

Lupra., guoting Lyons, 105 Nev at 320, 773 P2d at 221,

{
| CASE AND POINT.
§
1

At trial, counsel cross-examined Detective Armitage, and it

i A 1
Pecomea clear that said Detective discriminastely assumes Petitioner's
every entry into a retail establishment to "comparison shop" consti-

?utes the .intent to commit Larceny or a felony.
|
* * B
Tt, November 13, 2003, Van Ry cross-~examines DeFective
Armitage, Page 40, Lines 1 - 25, and Page 41, Lines 1 - 13:

Q: As-you walkedrinto the store and the defendant
‘wae in the store, you testified that he stopped and
looked at galf clubs and accessories, correct?

1 go to the sporting goods gection of the store, is that
2 correct?
3 A: Yes.
l 4 Q: And you followed him 20 to 30 feet behind?
3 A Yes, sir.
6
7
8
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9 A: Cor&t

10 Q: And appeared from your advantage point that

11 he was observing the label and the pricing information,
12 is that correct?

13 A Yes. .

14 Q: Observing pricing information isn't necessarily

15 a chargeable offense, is it?

16 '‘MS. RIGGS: Objection, Calls for & legal
17 conclusion, .
18 THE COURT: As I ruled yesterday, I will

19 overrule that objection. I'm not going to prevent ,
20 somebody from testifying as to a legal conclusion if it's
21 within their sphere of knowledge, And 1 would find that
22 witness would know of these kinds of things.
23 THE WITNESS: Observing, no.
24 BY MR, YAN RY: ‘
25 Q: How about writing down pricing information? .
-—- P.41
1 A: Potentially, probably a crime.
2 Q: So you're saying if I walk in a Raley's, and I
3 write down price information for milk and yogurt, and
4 I walk out of the store, that would be a chargeable
S offenge? .
6 A Not necessarily the pricing informatiom, maybe
7 the bar codé information.
8 Q: But you would need additicnal information?
9

As Correct.
10 Q: But just by itself?
11 A: Correct. :
12 MR, VAN RY: No further gquestions, Your Honor.

13 Thank you.
* %* *

Such arbitrary and discriminatory enforcement, as well as proser
cution, under these two {(2) Nevada statutes are uncenstitutional.

To be prosecuted for NRS 205.060 and 205.965, upon the basis
of an arbitrarily-ascribed intent by law enforcement, when an indi~
vidual merely enters establishments or places open te the public,
within the scope of 42 USC 2000(a) and 2600(3}—1. is repugnant to
the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution. Said
Amendment prohibits the State of Nevada from making or enforcing
any law which abridges the privileges or immunities of citizens of
this country.

Lastly, the arbitrary enforcement and prosecution of such exceeds
the limit fixed by the Legislature, with regard to the extensions

of the common-law scope of the Statute, as expressed in the file
91
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of the enactment t'reof. See, Laws of Nevadﬂ"ifty—51!th Seasion,
Chapter 547, Page 1161.
But for Counsel’s failure to protect Petitioner's rights in
‘this action, said ineffectiveness in representation falls below the
objective standards of reasonableness.
/17
/17
717
/1]
/17
117
/17
/17
r1/
i
/17
11/
/17
11/
11/
iy
11/
11/
11/
/17
11
/11
/17
11
/11
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. GROUND TWENTY-TWO .'

PETITIONER WAS DENIED HIS FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMERT
RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION, EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF
COUNSEL, AND A FAIR TRIBUNAL, DUE TO THE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ERRORS
COMMITTED BY COUNSELS, THE PROSECUTION, AND THE COURT, RESULTING

IN PETITIONER BEING CONVICTED OF MULTIPLE LIFE SENTENCES.

Petitioner's convictions and sentences are invalid under the
Federal and State Constitutional guarantees of Due Process, Equal
Protection, Effective Assistance of Counsel, and a Fair Tribunal,
due to the cumulative effect of errors, as presented herein, such
as in the admission of evidence, gross misconduct of the Prosecutor,
and the systematic deprivation of the Petitiomer's right to Effective )
Assistance of Counsel. The Government's case against the Petitioner
is wesk; the only substantial evidence submitted to convict Petitioner
at trial was the highly-tainted, perjured testimony of a more culpable
Co-Defendant Brett Bowman,

The Court, Counsel, and the Prosecution, committed numerous:-
errors throughout Petitioner's trial, sentencing hearing, and direct
appeal, which include, but are not limited to, the following areas:

1. Ineffective assistance of appellate counsel

for failing to present issues to the Nevada
Supreme Court in a proper, Federalized fashion.

2. The Nevada Supreme Court failed to conduct a.
proper appellate review.

3. The Grand Jury Indictment is flawed due to the
Prosecution proffering a prior Burglary convic-
tion thereof, '

4, Petitioner's mental competency was im question
at the time of the alleged crimes.

5.%::.Petitioner's sentences and convictions are in-
valid, due to insufficient evidence.
6. Petitioner's sentence and convictions are uncon-~

stitutionalldue to the imposition of the Habitual
Criminal Enhancement.

7. Trial Counsel was ineffective for allowing Peti-
tioner to be subjected to excessive resgtitution.
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10 ..

11,

12.

13,

14,

15.

l6,

17.

18.

19,

20.

21,

Trial co el was ineffective for al ing
Petition to be subjected to multiplicitous
and duplicative counts,

Trial Counsel was ineffective for allowing
Petitioner to be subjected to lesser-included
offenses.

Trial Counsel was ineffective for allowing
Petitioner to be subjected to vindictive prose-
cution and/or selective prosecution.

Trial Counsel was ineffective for allowing
Petitioner to be subjected to irrelevant and
perjured testimony.

Prial Counsel was ineffective for allowing
Petitioner's jury to be subjected to known-to=-
be perjured testimony end vouching by the

Trial Counsel!was ineffective for not investi-
gating and arguing that witnesses acted as po-
lice agents with violative conduct.

“Trial Counsel was ineffective for not thoroughly

investigating Discovery, thereby allowing Petitioner
to be subjected to Prosecutoérial Misconduct.

Trial Counsel was ineffective for not_appealing the
Court's decision to not quash the Indictment and
proffer other Indictment defdiciencies.

Trial counsel was ineffective due to an actual
conflict of interest.

Trial Counsel was ineffective at Petiticner's
Sentencing Hearing for not investigating and
proffering a host of mitigating evidence.

Petitioner's Habitual Criminal sentences are
unconstitutional due to priors not being violent
and compliant with standards for enhancement.

Counsel was ineffective in not protecting Petitioner
from prosecution, whereas Petitioner's Eighth Amend-
ment rights were breached. :

Counsel was ineffective in not prote?ting Petitioner
from prosecution, whereas Petitioner's First Amendment
rights were breached.

Counsel was ineffective in allowing Petitioner to be

subjected to prosecution of NRS 205.060 and 205,965,

which are unconstitutionally vague under the Due Pro-
cess Clause,

In United States v. Frederick, 78 F3d 1370, 1381, (9th Cir,

1996), the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals opined that:

24
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In some es, although no single tr error
examined ¥ isolation is sufficiently prejudi-
ced to warrant reversal, the cumulative effect

of multiple errors may still prejudice a defen-
dant, Where, as here, there are a number of
errors at trial, a balkanized, issue-by-issue
harmless error review is far less effective than
analyzing the overall effect of all the errors in
the context of the evidence introduced at trial
against the defendant, In those cases where the
government's case is weak, a defendant is more
likely to be prejudiced by the effect of cumulative
errors. .

Although individual errors looked at separately may not rise
to the level of reversible error, the cumulative effect may never-

théless be so prejudiced as to require reversal. United States ¥v.

Necoechea, 986 F2d 1273 (9th Cir, 1993)..

‘Petitioner's substantive rights were violated as demonstrated
by the issues presented herein, let alone, the deprivation of his
constitutional rights to a fair trial, due to cumulative errors,
Unless an aggregate harmlessness determination can be made,
corrective error will mandate reversal, just as surely as will {indi-

vidual error that cannot be considered harmléss. United States v,

Rivera, 900 F2d 1467, at 1470 (10th Cir, 1990). "

Due to the cumulative effect of errors, Petitioner's convictien
requires reversal.
/11
/17
/11
/17
/17
/11
11/
/117
11/
117
/17 -
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. TRIAL CDUNSEL WAS INEFFECTI?E UNDER THE GUARANTEEB
- OF THE SIXTH AMENDMENT IN FAILING TO PROTECT PETITIONER
FROM THE ERRONEOUS, IMPLICATION OF THE' HABITUAL - CRIMINAL
STATUTE - NRS 207 010 - WHICH DENIED PETITIONER HIS RIGHTS
TO DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION -AND A FAIR TRIAL AS GUARANTEED
BY THE FIFTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDHENT§ TQ THE Q,S, CONSTITUTIOHw‘

On October 9, 2003 ‘the prosecution filed a HOTICE OF

IHTENT 70 SEEK BABITUAL CRIMINAL STATUS agaiﬂst Petitioner 1n

the 1nstant action.

~

Hevade -3 Habitual Criminal Statute, NRS 207 010 reads

as. followa- ‘ L o o - f‘
uns‘;~zov 010 Habitual Criminals: Def:l.n:l.t.ten:‘ runi'shuegt;..

1. Dnlessa the person is’ prosecuted pursuant to NRS
207.012 or 207,014, a pereon convicted in, this State of:

(al ‘Any crime.of which frnud or intent to- ‘défraud 18 an
element, or of petit larceny, or of any.felony, who has
previously been two times convicted, whether in this
State' or elsewhere, of any crime which under the laws:of
the situs of the crime or of this: stte would amount.to
a feleny, or who has previously been three times con-.
victed, whether in this state or’ elsewhere, of petit
larceny, or of afy misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor of
which frand or 1ntent to defraud is-'an element, is a
habitual criminal and shall be punished for.a category
B felony by imprisonment in the. State prison. for a.
minimum term of not less than 5 years and a maximum
term of not more than 20 years,

e -
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(b} Any felon, who has previously been three times
convicted, whether in this state or elsewhere, of any
¢rime which under the alws of the situs of the crime
or of this state would amount to a felony, or who has
previously been five times convicted, whether in this
state or elsewhere, of petit larceny, or of any misde-
meanor or gross misdemeanor - of which fraud or the intent
to defraud is an element, is a habitual criminal and
shall be punished for a Category A felony by imprisonment
* in the state prison:

1. For life without the possibility of parole;

2. For life with the possibility of parole, with
eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 10
years has been served.

3. For a definite term of 25 years, with eligibility
for parole beginning when a minimum of 10 years has
been served,

2. It is within the discretion of the prosecuting
attorney whether to include a count under this section
if any information or file a Notice of habitual
criminality if an indictment is found, The trial

judge may, at his discretion, dismiss a count under
this section which is included in any indictment or
information.

Nevada Revised Statute 207.016 sets forth the procedure
a court must follow in imposition of NRS 207.010.
MRS 207.016 states, in relevant part:

3. If a defendant charged pursuant to NRS 207,010, 207.012
or 207.014 pleads guilty to or is found guilty of the
primary offense but denieg any previous conviction

charged, the court shall determine the issue of the
previous conviction after hearing all relevant evidence
presented on the issue by the prosecution and the defendant,
At such a hearing, the defendant may not challenge the
validity of a previous convictiom. The court shall impose
sentence:

(2) Pursuant to NRS 207,010 upon finding that the defendant
has suffered previous convictions sufficient to support an
adjudication of habitual criminality;

A hearing was held, apparently pursuant to the provisions

of NRS 207.016(3), in this Honorable Court on April 1, 2004,
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At the hearing, the prosecution admitted evidence of
Petitioner's three (3) prior convictions, one of which is
a conviction frpm February 11, 2004. {Sentencing Transcripts
"sT", Page 4, lines 16 - 17),

Petitioner asserts the Febrﬁary 11, 2004 conviction is
not a valid or final conviction, and therefore, the court
should not have relied on the conviction for enhancement
purposes under 207.010, Counsel falled to ensure the conviction
was valid@ and/or final. Counsel failed to object or otherwise
subject the conviction to scrutiny, thus prejudicing Petitioner.
Therefore, reversable error has occurred in that this court
relied on a conviction that was not valid and/or final, as
it was currently under review by the:Nevada Supreme Court.

Additionally, in support of seeking habituval criminal
status against Petitioner, the prosecution brought forth
testimonial evidence of Detective Scott A. Hopkins at the
hearing held April 1, 2004. This testimonial evidence was
presented to the court, outside the presence of the jury, -and
related to allegations by the state concerning Petitioner's
prior bad acts, both charged and uncharged, which were never
brought forth in the State's case in chief against petitidner
duriné the jury trial.

Detective Scott A. Bopkins' testimony, in relevant part,

is as follows:

A. . . . During that contact he made the comment to
me that 22 months was worth a -million.

2]
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What that meand to me is in reference to the federal
case that they had done, that he had made a milliom
dollars through is various fraud scams.

(ST, Page 9, lines 14 - 16, lines 24 -25, Page 10, lines
1 - 49,
Q. Sir, at some point 3id somebody forward a

photograph of this defendant to you, a photograph
of himself in the federal penitentiary?

A, Yes,
(ST, Page 10, lines 5 - 13, where the State entered the
photograph as evidence, Exhibit 4}

Detective Scott A. Hopkins then proceeds to testify

as to an apparent conversation he had between himself and
- - Y

Péﬁltionér's ex-spouse, Lorl Volpicelli. This amounts to
hearsay testimony without Petitioner being able to confront
or cross-examine Lori Volpicelli, (ST, Page 12, lines 18 - 22)

The Prosecution then produces Detective Reed Thémas, and
the court allows his testimony at the sentencing hearing.
Mr, Thomas is allowed to proffer hearsay testimony concerning
conversations with Brett Bowman, the alleged co-conspirator
in this action.

Mr. Thomas states that "the defendant invited Bowman
to join his conspiracy.ﬁ {ST, Page 16, lines 22 - 23)
Mr, Thomas continues to testify about alleged prior criminal
activity concerning Petitioner, regarding a conviction currently
under appellate review. (ST, Pages 17 & 18)

Mr. Thomas continues to admit testimony concerning an
alleged prior bad act regarding credit cards. (ST, Pages 13 &
20, lines 1 - 5).
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Continuing, Mr. Thomas and the prosecution enter evidence
at sentencing that was not admitted as evidence at Petitioner's
jury trial,

Q. Were there many items that were not admitted as
evidence?

A, Oh, ves,

Q. And how many stores do you estimate were involved?
or let me rephrase the questio. How many sFores were
you able to match products that you dound in that
storage shed to?

A. There were probably ten to 12 stores that were
listed in the grand jury indictment that we suspected.

(ST, Page 21, lines 16 - 25)
The prosecution also admits evidene of a prior conviction
through hearsay evidence of Mr., Thomas:

Q. And he was eventually convicted of both of those
charges, lewdness and indecent exposure, correct?

A. That is correct.
(ST, Page 22, lines 20 - 22)
Once again, the prosecution admits evidence of prior
bad acts, uncharged, and not proven to the jury, as followé:
A, It's a prediction is what this report is.

9. . . . what do you estimate -- what damage amount do
you put on his criminal acts . . .

A. . . . $49,140 in tax free income per year, That's
the low end. And that's assuming that he was engaging
in this scheme once a week five times a day for one
calendar year,
(ST, Pages 23 and 24),
After the plethora of evidence admitted by the prosecution

at the sentencing hearing, the court enters its' recommendation,

ico
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And under all the evidence that I see here’, I do

in fact find that Mr. Volpicelli is a habitual criminal.

In fact, you are the poster: child for habitual criminality

And with that, I will sentence you as a habitual _

criminal. I think society needs to be protected from this

level of theft where you're actually making a full

good living from stealing.

(ST, page 58, lines 7 - 21)

The court,~as stated above, maked its' determination
based on "all the evidence." 1Id. Therefore, the court did
not only use the fact of Petitioner's prior convictions, one
of which was. not a valid or final conviction, but utilized

the evidence proffered by the prosecution, all of which was

not proffered as evidence at Petitioner's jury trial.

|

Fhe United States Supreme Court has held in Apprendi v,
Nﬂ_-lisgw, 530 U,S. 466, 120 S,Ct, 2348 (2000), that "Other
than Fhe fact of a prior conviction, any fact that increases
the penalty for a crime beyond the prescribed statutory maximuam
must be submitted to a jury, and proved beyond a reasonable
doubt,"

In Blakely v, Washjington, 542 u.s. ___ , 124 s.Ct. 2531
(2004}, the United States Supreme Court continued to address
the issue of enhanced sentenes, stating:

Our precedents make clear, however, that the statutory

maximum for Apprendi purposes is the maximum sentence

a judge may impose solely on the basis of the facts

reflected in the jury verdict or admitted by the

defendant.

In the instant action, the court succinctly states it

considered "all the evidence" introduced at the sentencing

hearing.

i 14
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The evidence the court relied on in imposing the habitual
criminal statute against petitioner, was not introduced or
proven beyond a reasonable doubt to the jury. Therefore,
the court violated Petitioner's Sixth Amendment right to a
fair trial and Fifth and Fourteenth Amendment rights to due
process of law by relying on unproven evidence. See Blakely v,
Washington, Supra.

The Nevada Supreme Court, in Sessions v, Stats, 789 P.2d
1242 (Nev., 1990), stated that "when the prior offenses are stale
or trivial, or in other circumstances where an adjudication
of habitual criminality would not serve the purposes of the
statute or the interests of justice,” the court abuses its'
discretion.

Petitioner asserts in the instant action the court abused
its' discretion in considering irrelevant evidence to support
its' findings and ultimately imposing multiple life sentences
against petitioner in accord with NRS 207,010,

Additionally, the Nevada Supreme Courts' ruling in

Sessions v, State, Supra, indicates that the imposition of

NRS 207.010 is not mandated and/or automatic based on
prior convictions, hence, it is the extrinsic evidence admitted
at the sentencing hearing, and relied upon by the court, that
is utilized to impose NRS 207.010's sentencing scheme against
defendants in similar situations as Petitioner.

In Walker v, Deeds, 50 P.3d 670 (9th Cir. 1995} the Ninth

Circuit Court of Appeals found that Nevada's habitual criminal

192

V9.773



énhancement is .not warranted simply on finding that a
defendant has committed three felonies, (NRS 207.010).

Recently, in the case of Kaua v. Frank, Published
Opinion Filed January 11, 2006, No, 05-15059, {opinion by
Judge Thomas G, Nelson), the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals
addressed Hawaii's enhancement statutes, similar to Nevada's
NRS 207.010 and 207.016, wherein a two-step process is
utilized to find a defendant an habitual criminal. The
court found that the court may not exempt the court from
adherein to the mandates of Apprendi v, New Jersev, Supra,
and continued to hold that a court may not rely on evidence
from a hearing, outside the presence of a jury, in determining
to impose an enhanced sentence against a convicted defendant.

Eaua v, Frank is directly on point with the instant
action. The sentencing court in this case stated "I think
society needs to be protected from this level of theft . ."
(ST, Page 5B, lines 7 - 21)., In Kaua v, Frank, Supra, the
court held, "Because the effect of the public protection
finding was to increase Kaua's sentence above that authorized
by the jury's guilty verdict, the Sixth:Amendment '.feguired
a jury to make the finding. Therefore, the district court’s
grant of Kaua's petition for a writ of habeas corpus is
Affirmed."
B. EQUAL PROTECTION VIOLATION

Petitioner asserts that Nevada does not impose the
provisions of NRS 207.010 against all similarly situated

individuals as Petitioner, thus making it a violation of

103
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' .

fetitioner's rights under the Equal Protection clause to
be sentenced under the scheme cresated by Nﬁs 207.010,

NRS 207.01Q contains mandatory language, in that it states,
"is a habitual criminal and shall be punishéd for a Category A
felony . . ."

While the statute contains mandatory language, the various
courts and / or prosecutors throughout Nevada do not impose this
harsh sentencing scheme to all persons similarly situated as
Petitioner.

' It is rather apparent that the prosecutor has used
discretion in applyiﬁguﬂns 207.010 against Petitioner, and
thereby imposed an indeterminate prison sentence,

The test of a statute is by the Constitution regardless of

Supreme Court decisions. R,C., Tway Coal Co, Vv, Glenn, 12 F.Supp.

570 (1935)Y.
The equal protection clause is essentially a direction that
all persons.similarly situated should be treated the same. city

of Cleburne Texas v, Cleburme Living Center, 105 S.Ct. 3249

(1985); plyler y, Doe, 457 U.S. 202, 102 S.Ct, 2382.(1982); and

United States v. Harding, 971 F.2d 410 (9th Cir, 1992).

Sentencing rationale considers the agdravating and mit-
igating circumstances relevant in each instance. Ostensibly,
the greater, the aggravating circumstances warrant and compel
the imposition of the harsher sentence. However, it is precisely
at this juncture that equal protection is fouled in this case.
Petitioner received a substantially more severe punishment
than other persons convicted of the same crime, especially if
this court is to look at the minor sentence. Petitioner's alleged

co-congpirator recleved,
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Thie disparity in sentences is nothing less than absurd,
unjust and in violation of the Constitution as it guarantees
equal protection,

A statute that is not imposed egually to all similarly
situated persons is unconstitutional, In Guillory v, County of
Orange, 731 F,2d 1379, 1383 (9th Cir. 1984), the Ninth Ciréuit
Court of Appeals has held that:

A law that is administered so as to unjustly discriminate

between persons similarly situated may deny equal

protection,

Also see Mackenzi V. City of Rockledge, 920 F.2d 1554 {11th
Cir. 1991).

A statute that allows the prosecutor to impose sentencing

on an individual for no reason other than on a whimsical

unjust by this court.

It is well settled that statutes are not to be construed
to produce absurd, illogical, or unjust or capricious results,
Bechtel Construction v. United Brotherhood of Carpenters, 812
F.2d4 1220 (9th Cir. 1987). Nor can it be reasonably argued’
against that when the defendant with more culpability receives
far less sentence than the defendant with less culpability, that
statutory construction.and application is at a minimum absurd
i1llogical and unjust. Due process means fundamental fairness.
Hampton v. United States, 96 S.Ct, 1646, 1652, note 6 (1976).

The equal protection standard cannot be held when NRS
207 010 is applied to select group of defendants, as is the

case in the instant action, The Unitegd States Constitution

1Qs

' selection on the part of the prosecutor shall be considered
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This disparity in sentences is nothing less than absurd,
unjust and in violatien of the Constituti;n as it guarantees
equal protection.

A statute that is not imposed equally to all similarly
situated persons is unconstitutional. In Guillory v, County of
Orange, 731 F.2d 1379, 1383 (9th Cir. 1984), the Ninth Circuit
Court of Appeals has held that:

A law that is administered so as to unjustly discriminate

between persons similarly situated may deny equal

protection.

Also see Mackenzi v, City of Rockledge, 920 F.2d 1554 {11th
Cir, 1991},

A statute that allows the prosecutor to impose sentencing
on an individual for no reason other than on a whimsical . |
selection on the part of the prosecutor shall be considered
unjust by this court. |

It is well se£t1ed that statutes are not to be construed
to produce absurd, illogical, or unjust or capricious results.
Bechtel Constructjon v, United Brotherhood of Carpenters, 812
F.2d 1220 (9th Cir. 1987). Nor can it be reasonably argued’
against that when the defendant with more culpabllity receives
far less sentence than the defendant with less culpability, that
statutory construction.and application is at a mintmum absurd,
illogical and unjust. Due process means fundamental fairness.
Hampton v. United States, 96 5.Ct. 1646, 1652, note 6 (1976).

The egual protection stgndard cannoﬁ be held when NRS,

207.010 is applied to select group of defendants, as is the

case in the instant action. The United States Constitution

les h
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requires that penal statutes be structured so as.to prevent

penalty from being administered in arbitrary and unpredictable
fashion. California v, Brown, 107 S.Ct. 837 (1987).

Applying NRS 20;:.010 to Petitioner clearly and absolutely
preséribes drastically differing degrees of punishment for the
same offense, committed under similar circumsatances, by peréons
in like éituatians, ;specifically increasing the punishﬁent for
the defendant with less culpability. )

Counsel's failure to cbject or otherwise protect Petitioner
from the application of RS 207.010 fell below an objective
standard of reasonableness as required by §;;;gglggg_gL_ﬁgghlggggn,
$upra, and resulted in the depravation of Petitloner's right to
equal protection as guaranteed hy the Fifth and Pourteenth
Amendments to the United States COnstitution.

Additionally, by the Nevada legislature enacting this stﬁtute
that allows a prosecutor to selectively impose this statute
arbitrarily as he wishes, clearly violates the Constitutional
guar;ntee of egual protection and a’fair sentencing hearing.

CONCLOSION

WHEREFORE, for the facts and arguments as set forth herein
above, Petitioner respectfully requests this Honorable Court
grant the instant WRIT. .

\ . .

parep taIs (| Ipay orvkphp; 2003
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I, Ferrill J. Volpicelli, do hereby certify that on this
date I did serve a true and correct copy of the foregoing
SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT
OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION), by
placing same in the United States Postal Service, postage

being fully prepald, and addressed as follows:

RICHARD GAMMICK
WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
POST OFFICE BOX 30083
RENO, NEVADA 89520-3083

{ ]
paTep ta1s (M 'Day oF W [ 23 |

/1717

/11

11

/81
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LCCLLFORM 26.010

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding A‘E/«N\W\)"\ ey

Q:x.ﬁs AgY ,&mm& A e Setsant e Sakners

(Title of Document)

filed in District Court Case No. ___ C _{sd3— P1263

& Does NOT contain the social security number of any person.
Contains the social security number of a person as required by:

A. A specific state or federal law, to-wit:

(State specific law)
-or—

B. For the administration of a public program or for an application for a
federal or state grant.

Dated this __{{ _ day of jbg{){.{L, , 2013

™

S L\ licacet ¥ L95Ly

Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road

Loé:/i(, Nevada 89419
LOSYEIN_  InProSe
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Ferrill J. Yolpicelli

Pro Se Litiaant
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

i

INDEHZX

STATE'S WITNESSES

SCOTT HOPKINS

".

REDR RECR VD

REED THOMAS 34
STATE'S EXHIBITS IDENTIFICATION
1 - 2004 Prior conviction 4
2 - 1998 Prior conviction 4
3 - 1997 Prior conviction 4
4 - Photograph 10
5 - Report prepared 5y
Detective Thomas 15
DEFENSE EXHIBITS
€ - Letters of completion 45
7 - Certificates of
achievement 45

EVIDENCE
43
43
43

14

36

45

45
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EXHIBIT 2
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- ITEM - . EVID. NO.

One (1) Radius 15” Liquid Crystal

Monitor* AS87919
One (1) Compag Model 5000 NIB

Computer System* AB7920
One (1) HP V-40 Fax-Copier* AB7921
Ome (1) HP V-40 Fax-Copier AB7922
One (1) Panasonic SC-HT70 Dyna

Movie* AB7923
One (1) Panasonic SC-HT7( Dyna

Movie* - AB7924

One (1) Hoover Wind Tunnel Vacuum* A87925

One (1) Fountain Blue Wool

Handcrafied Rug* AB7926
One (1) Panasonic Cordless

Answering System Box — empty AB7927
One (1) Computer Keyboard AB7927
One (1) Computer Mouse A87927
Twa (2) Power Strips AB7927

One (1) Phantom Wildcat Vacuum*  A87928

One (1) Memorex $” Miniview
Travel Television*® A87929

One (1) V-3 Racing Wheel NIB Game* A87930

One (1) Playstation Open Force

Driving Game* Tt AB7931
One (1) Deflect-O Bath N° Spa

Exhaust Kit* AB87932
One (1) Simplicity Serge Pro Sewing

Machine* AB879313
One (1) Kodak Slide Projector* Agd7934

One (1) Krups Espresso Machine* AB7935

OWNER .

WalMart

WalMart
WalMart

WalMart
Target

Tarpet

WalMart
Lowe's

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

KMart

Target

KMart
KMart
Home Depot

WalMart
Office Max

Bed, Bath & Beyond

STATUS

Remyrned

Returned
Returned

Returned
Returned

Returned

Retumed
Returned

In Evidence
In Evidence
In Evidence
In Evidence

Retomned

Retumed

Returned
Return Pending
Retuned

Returned
Retum Pending

Return Pending
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RPD CASE NO, 01-216321

INVENTORY OF PROPERTY

ITEM EVID.NO. OWNER
One (1) Emerson EWC19D1

Television* AB7909 ‘WalMart
One (1) Emerson EWC19D]

Television* AB7910 WalMart
One (1) Emerson EWC19D] Television

& DVD Combo Set* AB7911 WalMart
One (1) Panasonic SC-DK10 DVD

Stereo Sysiem* A87912 WalMart
One {1) Kohler Rosario Low Flow

Toilet* AB7913 Home Depot
One (1) Computer A87914 F. Volpicelli
Various colored empty plastic

bags from several local

merchants AB7915 F. Volpicelli
One (1) Art Explosion Label

Factory Deluxe AB7915 F. Volpiceili
One (1) Panasonic 2.4 GHz

Cordless Answering System AB7915 F. Volpicelli
One (1) Nokia Phone Box —~ Empty A87915 F. Volpicell
One (1) Samsonite Charger AB7915 F. Volpicelli
Twea (2) Avery #8165 Labels ABT915 F. Volpicelli
One (1) Multi-Tool AB7915 F. Volpicelli
One (1) Téxas Instrument’ ‘

Cannectivity Value Kit A87915 F. Volpicelli
One (1) Texas Instrument TI-89

Calculator AB7915 F. Volpicelli
One (1) Hoover Steam Vacoum® AB87916 Shopko
One (1) Brother Fax Machine* ARTI17 Custom Office
Omne (1) KDS-RADS Monitor* AB7918 WalMart

STATUS ___

Returned

Returned

Returned

Returned

Returned

In Evidence

In Evidence

In Evidence

In Evidence

In Evidence
In Evidence
In Evidence

In Evidence

In Evidence

In Evidence

Return Pending

Return Pending

Returned
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l . ITEM ' EVID.NO. OWNER __ STATU -
Ome (1) Closetmaid Closet A87936 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
l Two (2) Aero Minute Air Beds* A87937 WalMart Returned
l One (1) Ozark Queen Size Air Bed*  A87938 WalMart Returned
One (1) Optima Amplified TV _
l Antenna | AB7939 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
One (1) V-Tech 2.4 ghz Digjtal
Telephone Multi Handset Combo®  A87940 Target Returned
l . One (1} V-Tech 2.4ghz Digital
Telephone & Answering System®  A87941 Target Returned
l . Four (4) Brother Correctable Film .
Ribbons : AR7942 F. Volpicelli In Bvidence
l Five (5) Gelikan Lift Tabs A87942 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
One (1) Plastic Knob AB87942 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
l One (1) Avery Clear Ink Jet Labels .
Package AB7942 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
l Two (2) Audiovox Handi Talkies, , L
with Chargers AB87942 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
l . One (1) Norelco Shaver A87942 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
Omne (1) Braun Syncro Shaver . )
l System A87942 F. Volpicelli In Evidence
Three (3) Red & one (1) black
l plastic folder containing o
miscellanecus papers AR7942 F. Volpicelli Returned
- +One (1) NIB Electronic Brother Brand .
l Labeling System Contro]* AB7943 Office Depot Retumed
Three (3) Kodak Digital Cameras AB7944 F. Volpicelli’ In Evidence
l One (1) Stereo A87945 F. Volpicelli . In Evidence
l Two (2) Stereo Speakers AB7945 F. Voipicelli In Evidence
One (1) Lego Movie Maker Toy* AR7946 Toys RUS Return Pending
l 3
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ITEM

One (1) Sharp TV/VCR
One (1) Jean Computer Monitor
One (1) Sonya TV Box — empty

One (1) Brother Typewriter - no
case

One (1) Steel Horse Wireless
Headphones box — empty

One (1) Moen Extensa Faucet*

Severa! unopened packages of
~ Filler paper — 200 count each

One (1) empty box Playstation 2 Gran
Turismo

One (1) grey folder containing

miscellaneous paperwork
Five (5) receipts
Three (3) ShopKo receipts

One (1) envelope w/fictitious UPC
tags

Transposition Sheet
Miscellaneous Paperwork
One (1) accordion folder conlaining

receipts from numerous retail
stores

" Miscellaneous merchandise & gift

cards

Great Basin checkbook & duplicate
DL paperwork

Two (2) Key Rings w/Keys

One (1) Separate Key Safe Deposit
Box

EVID, NOQ.

"A87947

A87948

A87949

A87950

AB795]

AB7952

A87933

ABT934

AB7955
AB7974

AB7988

A88171

AB8172

A88172

AB8173

A88174

A88174

AB8174

ARE174

OWNER :

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli

Home Depot
F. Voipicelli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicclli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli

F. Voipicelli

F. Volpicelli

Wells Fargo

STATUS .
In Evidence
In Evidence

In Evidence
In Evidence

In Evidence

Retumed
lu Evidence
In Bvidence

Returned

Couirt
Returned

Returned

In Evidence

Return Pending
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TIEM

One (1) Brother Label Meker in black

canvas case containing several
fictitious UPC labels

One (1) Cigarette Lighter Jurnper
Omne (1) Sport Nylon Jacket
One (1) box of miscellaneous files

One (1) Panasonic KP-150
Electric Penci! Sharpener

One (1) Orbita] Wallarm VCR/
DVD Mount

Two (2) Andio Tapes of Interview
Two (2) Audio Tapes of Interview
One (1) Video Tapclof Interview
One (1) Video Tape of Interview

One {1) brown Perry Ellis wallet
containing miscellaneous cards

One (1) Capital One Mastercard
One (1) Video Tape

One (1) Gateway Laptop Computer
in case

$886.00 U.S. Currency
Miscellancous Paperwork
One (1) Loose Diamond

One (1) Black & Decker Variable
Speed Ihill

Computer Disks
Laminating Sheets

Credit Cards

EVID. NO.

AB8175
AB8176
ABB176

ABB177

AB8178

A88179
ABB277
AB8278
A38279

A88280

AB8281
ABBG63

ABB663

AB664
ABB700
A90208

A90208

A90208
AS0208
A90208

A90208

QWNER -

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli
RPD
RPD
RPD
RPD

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

RPD

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpiceli
Chanel Volpicelli

Chanel Volpicelli

F: Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

¥. Volpicelli

"F. Volpicelhi

STATUS .

Court
_ln Ewvidence
In Evidence

Returned
In Evidence

In Evidence
In Evidence
In Evidence
In Evidence

In Evidence

Returned
Returned

In Evidence

In Evidence
LR.S, lien
Return Pending

Return Pending

In Evidence
In Evidence
In Bvidence

In Evidence
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" ITEM

e T

CD-ROM

One (1) blue piastic zipper file folder

YID. NO.

A90208

A90208

containing miscellaneous paperwork A90208

One (1) Gottschalks Card
Miscellaneous Paperwork

One (1) blue zippered pockel
organizer

Ome (1) Cross pen in box
One (1) set Koss earphones
One (1) telephone cord

One (1) bottle sticker & decal
remover

$2,300.00 U.S. Currency

One (1) Floppy Disk

One (1) Floppy Disk with photos
One (1) voided WalMart receipt
Video & Audio Tapes

Video & Audio Tapes

Video of Search from Wells
Fargo

One (1) Bulldog Security Remote
Starter*

One (1) Casio Cassiopeia Automatic
PC*

Sonicare Plus Electric Toothbrush

Two (2) Mabis Smart Read Plus
Digital Blood Pressure Monitors*

AS0208

AS0208

A90208
AS0208
A90208

AS02038

AS0208
A90683
A91662
A91662
A92683
A94257

AD4258

BOi442

#6 on log

#8 on log

OWNER ...

F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli

- l-T ;;"’dl-;—)'icclli

F. Volpicelli
E. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli

F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli
F. Volpicelli
RPD
F. Volpicelli
RPD

RPD
RPD
ShopKo

ShopKo

ShopKo

KMart

STATUS

" In Evidence

In Evidence

Returned
Returned

Retumed

In Evidence )
In Evidence
In Evidence

In Evidence

In Evidence
LR.S. lien
In Evidence
In Evidence
Court

In Evidence

In Evidence
In Evidence
Return Pending

Retum Pending

Count

Returned
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One (1) Quicken Business Lawyer
2001 Deluxe*

One (1) Book BXI checks

* Restitution items

. EV[D. NO#

b — ——— T aor — ————— 2 e

OWNER

Office Depot

F. Volpicelli

STATUS ..

Returned

It Evidence
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ma 4 3140235 ~ - .~ FILED
RPD RP01-216321/RP01-216452/RPO1- 219145/RP01-3§Q§3W/52¥08‘52‘§}?41
RONALD.A. LONGTIN. JR.,

CODE 1795 rd
Richard A. Gammi ck . _Y. 6. Vel
#001510 DEPUTY

?.0. Box 30083

Reno, NV B89520-3083
(775) 328-3200
Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF .WASHCE.

®* K &
9 THE STATE QF NEVADZA,
10 Plaintiff, - - |
— % e Gase Wo CRO 1B
12} FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, l ' Dept. No. 9
13 Defendant.
14 /
‘I' i5 INDICTMENT
16 The defendant, FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, is accused by
17] the Grand Jury of Washoe Counﬁy, State of Nevada, of the
18] following: |
19 COUNT I. CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT CRIMES AGAINST PROPERTY,
20 vioclation of NRS 199.480, NRS 205.060, NRS 205.0832,.NR§ 205.090,
213 NWRS 205.119, NRS 205,220, NRS 205.240, “NRs 205.380 and NRS
22| 205.965, a gross misdemeanor, commit;ed_as follows:
23¢ that the said defendant on or between the 21st déy of i
24} June A.D. 2001, and the 17th day of October A.D. 2001, or |
25| thereabout, at the County of Washoe, Stafe of Nevada, did
willfully, unlawfully, and with the intent to permanently’

26
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deprive, cheat or defraud conspire with BRETT BOWMAN with the

1
2! intent then and there to commit Burglary, Theft, Forgery,
3| Uttering a Forged Instrument, Larceny, Obtaining Property by
4{ Palse Pretenses, and/or Unlawful Possession, Making, Forgery or
5| Counterfeiting of Inventory Pricing Labels, through a scheme
6| where propeftyland/or money was obtained from several stores in
7| Washoe County, to wit: WALMART, K-MART, SHOPKQ, TARGET, LOWE's,
8 HOME DEPOT, OFFICE MAX, OFFICE TjEPOT, }BED BATH and BEYOND, BEST
5| BUY, COMP USA, TOYS-R-US, and/or PETSMART by 1) entering said
10| stores for the purpose of obtaining universal pricing label
11| Information to create Lalse and forged universal pricing labels;
12| 2) by affixing false, forged or counterfeit universal pricing
13} labels to merchandise at said stores to purchase said merchandise
14} for less than the posted retail price; 3) by purchasing said
15| merchandise under the false pretense that the forged or
16| counterfeit pricing label is a true and valid'document; and/or 4)
17 by removing the false and forged inventory pricing labels and
18} subsequently retﬁrning some of the fraudulently’discounted
19} merchandise for the original valid retail price, thereby making a
20| preofit.
21 COUNT II. BURGLARY, a viclation of NRS 205.060, a
22} felony, committed as follows:
23§ that the said defendant on the 4th day of September
-24 A.D, 2001,'or thereabout, at the County of Washoe, State of
251 Nevada, did willfully and unlawfully enter a certain WALMART
26

located at 2863 Northtowne Lane, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada,
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10

with the intent then and there to commit Theft, Forgery, Uttering
a Forged Instrument, Larceny, and/or Obtaining Property

by False Pretenses therein, by enterlng to obtain UPC label

and/or other4-r1c1n1T1nformatlon;lafter hav1ng been previously
convicted of Burglary in 1998

COUNT III., BURGLARY, a violation of NRS 205.060, a

felony, committed as follows:
That the said defendant on or between the 1lth day of

September A.D. 2001, and the 29th day of September A.D. 2001, or

thereabout, at the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, on one or

P

- TE . R - @ BN & & &G D G &G G & G h B =

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

more occasions did W1iIfﬁi1y and unlawfully enter a certain HOME
DEPOT located at 5125 Summit Ridge Court and/or 2955 Northtowne
Lane, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with the intent then and there
to commit Theft, Forgery, Uttering a Forged Instrument, Larceny,
and/or Obtaining Property by False Pretenses therein by entering

to acout mlscellaneous UPC label and/or other pricing information

and/o *obtaln a t011eti and/or said defendant did aid and abet
BRETT Boﬁﬁiﬁ 1n”théﬁéomm1531on of said burglary by providing him
a fictitious UPC bar code label to affix to said merchandise, by
providing him with U.S. currency to.fraudulently purchase said
merchandise, by driving him to and/ﬁr from the scene, by acting
as & lock-out, by counseling, encouraging, inducing, or otherwise
_Procuring him to enter said store and fraudulently obtaln said

merchandise with said fictitious UPC bar code label, after having

been previously convicted of Burglary in 1998.

/1
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1 COUNT IV. BURGLARY, a viclation of NRS 205.060, a
2| felony, committed as follows: |
k! That the said defendant on the 21st day of September
4| A.D. 2001, or thereabout, at the County of Washoe, State of
5] Nevada, did willfully and unlawfully enter a certain BED BATH and
6§ BEYOND located at 4983 South Virginia Stfeet; Reno, Washoe
. 7| County, Nevada, with the intent then and there to commit Theft,
8 | Forgery, Uttering a Forged Instrument, Larceny, and/or Cbtaining
9| Property by False Pretenses therein by entering with the intent
101 to fraudulently obtain %ﬁéfég?ﬁQQé“eeéféel§o£é fnd/of scout
— I1 pric1ng information reléée& to ééiﬁwﬁé;éﬁggé;ée; and/or did aid
12| and abet BRETT BOWMAN in the commigsion of said burglary by
13| providing him a fictitious UPC bar code label to affix to said
14 | merchandise, by éroviding him with U.§. currency to fraudulently
. 15| purchase said merchandise, by driving him to and/or from the
16| scene, by acting:as a look-out, by counseling, encouraging,
17| inducing, or otherwise procuring him to enter said store and
18 fraudulently obtain said merchandise with said fictitious UPC bar
19) code label, after having been pfeviously convicted of Burglary in
207 1998,
21 COUNT V. BURGLARY, a violation of NRS 205.06Q, a
22 felony, committed as follows':
23._ That the said defendant on the 28th day of September
241 A.D. 2001,m0r thereabout, at the County of Washoe, State of
25| Nevada, did willfully and unlawfully enter a certain WALMART
26 .1ocated at 4855 Kietzke Lane, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with
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the intent then and there to commit Theft,. Forgery, Uttering a
Forged Instrument, Larceny, and/or Obtaining Property by False

Pretenses therein by entering to obtain UPC label and/or other

_j,fiding inf&fﬁaﬁﬂa~-to be used for an unlawful purpose, after

having been previously convicted of Burglary in 1998.

COUNT VI. BURGLARY, a violation of NRS 205.060, a

felony, committed as follows:
That the said defendant on the 5th day of October A.D.
2001, or thereabout, at the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, on

one or more occasions did willfully and unlawfully enter a

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

certain TOWE'S HOME IMPROVEMENT STORE ilocated at 5075 Kietzke
Lane, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with the intent then and there
to commit Theft, Forgery, Uttering a Forged Instrument, Larceny,
and/or Obtaining Property by False Pretenses, and/or Unlawful
Possession, Making, Forgery or Counterfeiting of Inventory
Pricing Labels therein, by entering with thé intent to

nd/or scout pricing

fraudulently obtain‘éﬁé:éﬁ:ﬁéféﬁQQOi“fﬁéé¥=
information related ;é said rugs,maﬂdféé said defendant did aid
and abet BRETT BOWMAN in the commission of said burglary by
providing him a fictitious UPC bar code label to affix to said
merchandise, by providing him with U.S. currency to fraudulently

purchase said merchandise, by driving him to and/or from the

gcene, by acting as a look-out, by counseling, encouraging,

inducing, or otherwise procuring him to enter said store and
11/
/17
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1] fraudulently obtain said merchandise with said fictitious UPC bar-
. 2| code label, after having been previously convicted of Burglary in
3] 1998. ‘
4 COUNT VII. BURGLARY, a violation of NRS 205.0860, a
5( felony, committed as follows:
) 8 That the said defendant on or between the 30th day of
. 7§ August A.D. 2001, and the 13th day of October A.D. 20.01, or g
8§ thereabout, at the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, on one or
9{ more occasians did willfully and unlawfully enter 2 certain
10) WALMART located ;t 2863 Northrtowne Lane and/or 155 Damonte Ranch
— 11| Parkway, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with the intent then and
12} there to commit Theft, Forgery, Uttering a Forged Instrument,
13| Larceny, and/or Obtaining Propertylby Falgse Pretenses, and/or
) 14| Unlawful Possession, Making, Forgery or Counterfeiting of
. 15 Inventory Pricing Labels, therein by enter:l.n w:.th \Ehe intent to
A b SIN ATED _ONE Riamdl -
16 fraudulently obta1n‘5 ”_“ fome I "merson'19“
18 'afHéGletthackard”prlnlei-and/or scout pricing information
18 rélatedufo séld méréhandlse, and/or said defendant did a2id and
20| abet BRETT BOWMAN in the commission of said burglary or
21| burglaries by providing him a fictitious UPC‘bar code label to
22 affix to said merchandise, by providing him with U.S. currency to
23] fraudulently purchase said merchandise, by driving him to and/or
241 from the s;ene, by acting as a look-out, by counseling, -
25) encouraging, inducing, ¢r otherwise procuring him to enter said
261 ///
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1| store and fraudulently obtain said merchandise with said
2 fictitious UfC bar code label, after having been previously
3| convicted of Burglary in 1998.
4 | COﬁNT VITI. BURGLARY, a violation of NRS 205.060, a
5] felony, committed as follows:
) That the said defendant on or between the 30th day of
. 7§ August A.D. 2001, and the 17th day of October A.D. 2001, or
g thereabout, at the‘County of Washoe, State of Nevada, on one or
9| more occasions did willfully and unlawfully enter a certain
10| SROPKO located at 5150 MaehAnne Avenue and/or 6139 South Virginia
— 11| Street, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, with the intent then and
12| there to commit Theft, Forgery, Uttering a Forged Instrument,
13} Larceny, and/or Obtaining Property by False Pretenses, and/orxr
14 [ Unlawful Poseession, Making, Forgery or Counterfeiting of
' 15| Inventory Pricing Labels, therein, by rith the intent to
" 16| fraudulently obtain a or@
17 ﬁp?éhﬁ;}i;Qm35§r56ﬁﬁ6é£é;;;ﬂ;fﬁef having been previously
18 convicted-éfﬁﬁﬁfgigfi‘1571998.
19 COUNT IX. BURGLARY, a violation of NRS 205.060, a
20] felony, committed as follows:
21 That the said defendant on the 17th day of October A.D.
22| 2001, or thereabout, at the County of Washoe, Stgte of Nevada,
23 did'willfylly and unlawfully enter a certain WALMART located at ]
24} 155 Damonte Ranch Parkway, Reno, Washoe€ County, Nevada, with the
25| intent then and there to commit Theft, Forgery, Uttering a FOISEdA
26| Instrument, Larceny, and/or Cbtaining Property by False

V9.799
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Pretenses, and/or Unlawful Poasession, Making, Forgery or

@

16
ll7
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

1
2} Counterfeiting of Inventory' Pricing Labels, therei?iw?¥lentering
3| with the intent to fraudﬁlently obtaiﬁfé'Mbﬁéééééhp%gy¢}§  nd/or
4| scout pricing information related to said'bicycle; and/or gaid
5| defendant did aid and abet BRETT BQWMAN in the commisgion of said
6! burglary by affixing a fictitious GPC par code label to said
. 7Y% merchandise, by providing BOWMAN with U.S. currency to
8] fraudulently purchase sald merchandise, by driving him to and/or
9] from the scene, by acting as a loock-out, by counseling,
10 éncouragihg, inducing, or otherwise procuring him to enter said
—IT| Store and fraudiulently obtain said merchandise with said
12| fictitious UPC barx code label, after having been previously
13| convicted of Burglary in 1998.
14 COUNT X. UNLAWFUL POSSESSION, MAKING, FORGERY OR

COUNTERFEITING OF INVENTORY PRICING LABELS, a violation of NRS

205.965(2) and (3), a felony, committed as follows:
That the said defendant on the 17th day of October A.D.

2001, or thereabout, at the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,
did willfully, unlawfully, and with Fhe intent to cheat or
defraud a retailer, possess, make, forge or counterfeit fifteen
e
/1

L/// N
/17
/17
[/

Vv9.800




10

or more inventory pricing labels, commeonly known as "UPC bar ccde
labels," in a motor vehicle located at the 9400 block of South

Virginia Street, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada.

Dated this ZZZZI day of June, 2003,

RICHARD A. GAMMICK
District Attorney

5021

-Beputy—Bistriet—Attorney

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

.19

20
21
22
23
24
25

26

PCN 82444285
B 81788297 \
81625263
B2444206
82444252

08105145
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The following are the names of witnesses examined
before the Grand Jury:

REED THOMAS

.

3
4 MICHAEL BROWN
5 SCOTT ARMITAGE
6 LARRY LODGE
. 7 BRETT BOWMAN
8 mm&eu
9 DAVID DELLA
10 JENNIFER (POWELL
TI JOAN DF ELLIS
©12
13
14 _
. 15| "A TRUE BILL"
16 a;%&- o B o B
FOR >
17 .
18 "NO TRUE BILL"
19 '
20 FOREMAN
21
22
23
24 i
25
26
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July 23, 2002

Fernill Volpicelll
#60076 2 NSP

Box 607

Carson City, NV 89702

Jack Alian, Esg.
160 W. Liberty
Reno, NV 89509

RE: PRE-TRIAL PREPARATION
Dear Jack,

| am writing you fo confirm the issues discussed in our 7/17/02 telephone.
conversation.

Firstly, please forward to me a copy of the District Attoney’s April letter regarding
the plea bargain offered in my case. As | indicated in our last conversation, that

offer is unacceptable.

| believe the referenced plea bargain offer reflects bad faith and misconduct by
the prosecution. The offer to dismiss the charge against my son, Travis, in
exchange for my guilty plea, clearly demonstrates that the charges should not
have been filed in the first place. In addition, the pending threat to bring charges
against my daughter, unless 1 accept the plea bargain offer, further demonstrates
the prosecution’s bad faith and misconduct.

Similarly, this same manipulative tactic was leveraged against Bowman, the
codefendant, in exchange for his testimony against me. To alter Bowman’s plea,
the prosecution threatened him with the filing of the habituaf criminal
enhancement in the event that he did not cooperate with them, Further
embellishment on the part of Bowman ensued when ROP’s detective Thomas
offered consideration to Bowman by accommodating the transfer of Bowman’s
paycheck to an account in County Jail. In addition, the detective promised the
seizure, safekeeping and retumn of all Bowran's apartment property, knowing full
well that all of items were the fruits of Bowman'’s lllegal activities.

Moreover, | will not be a party to such coercion and manipulation. Please
investigate and conduct appropriate legai research on these matters. Such
behavior by public servarits should not be lolerated or legally acceptabie.

As far as my daughter, Ashiey, is concemed, she is not guilty of possessing any
stolen property. She merely rented a storage unit for her family. Other than her
visit to the facility's office to open the account, she never visited the unit itself
until after 17 October 2001. Furthermore, she had no knowledge of the contents
of the unit. Any attempt to prove otherwise will be futile.

~ g
¢ -
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| am also concerned with the timely filing of the motions referenced in my 6-18-02
lettar to you. In our 7/17/02 conversation, you specifically indicated that we could
file those motions one at a time. You also stated that a continuance of the
projected trial date is likely, and that we are not in jeopardy for not filing all those
motions immediately and concomitantly.

Please confirm these matters to me in writing, since | am very concerned with

the filing of these motions wel! before the scheduled trial date.

When you file the motion for a bail reduction, and as | requested in my 6/18/02
lstter, | insist that you file a motion to remand my cases back to the Justice Court
for a preliminary hearing. Despite your sentiments that such a motion would be
denied, | bélieve it is imperative that the attempt be made. Again, please review
my 6/18/02 letter pertaining to this motion. In the event that the motion is denied,
we can then file an appropriate motion in the Distrct Court to dismiss, or cause

election, on the multiplicitous and duplicitous charges..

According to my information, on 4/23/02, an agreement for reciprocal discovery
was filed. To date, | have not received any additional discovery, except the
deficient material provided to me at the February Preliminary Hearing. As |
previously indicated to you in my 2/1/012, 2/21/02, 3/21/02/ 6/02/02 and 6/18/01
istters, | want a copy of ALL discoverable materials provided to me.

Please advise me when you intend to provide me with the discovery materials
clearly outlined in those letters. Additionally, please advise me of when you are
going to review the prosecution’s file for discoverable materials. | believe you
have been less than diligent in this matter and | respectfully request you give
“discovery” in my cases your immediate attention.

Again, please raspond to the above referenced matters In writing as soon

. as possible.

Thank you very much for your prompt attention to these matters.
Sincerely,
Ferrill Volpicelli

Cc: file
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RENO POLICE DEPARTMENT
TRANSCRIPT
CASE #01-216321
PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: Brent BOWMAN
SEX/RACE/DOB: ------ 1958
AGE: 43 Years
RESIDENCE ADDRESS: 695 W. 37 St., Apt. #332, Reno, Nevada
HOME PHONE: 284-2280
EMPLOYMENT: Sand’s Hotel - Cabana Deli - Lead Supervisor
TAKEN BY: Detective Mike BROWN - Sparks P.D. and
Detective Larry LODGE - W.C. Sheriff’s Office
ON: 10-17-01 FROM: T0:
LOCATION OF INTERVIEW:
N THE PRESENCE OF:

This is NOT a certified transcript. gl*though every effort has been made 10 ensure accuracy, you need
to refer to the original or a copy of the source audio/video tape.

LODGE.
BOWMAN.
LODGE.
BOWMAN.,
LODGE.
BOWMAN.
LODGE.
BOWMAN.,
LODGE,

BOWMAN.

Okay. Up until, who's your P.O.?

Myers.

Myers?

Um hmm (affirmative)

And Auéust two thousand two (2002)?

Um hmm (affirmative) |
How much a tail you got hanging ovet you?
That’s, what do you mean by tail?

If you get violated?

Ah, that’s my expiration date.

Mary Kessler -

Transcriber 1
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| Transcript (Con’t)

@

i Sy d }Qa

CASE # 0]1-216321

BOWMAN.

No conversation, just ah, “Howdy. How’s the night going?” Things like that Basic
patron/clerk conversation. Nothing special or specific.

BROWN. Okay. You remember what we were talking of before we started the interview here,
about us already knowing the answers to seme questions? O
O AR T
BOWMAN. Hm umm (affirmative) 4
A  Bovwd S
BROWN.  Okay, keep that in mind as you're talking to us. Okay?
~ TESTWeIHT T
BOWMAN. Um hmm (affirmative) X R\CS
BROWN.  Or asking you questions, e IQQQ(T@\.}
BOWMAN. Alright, TR RO
BROWN,  Okay? Now remember what I just told you again. Just go back and describe the
transaction with this bicycle, at the counter with the clerk.
'BOWMAN. Okay. The transaction went, I walked up, I tore off the bar code that was on the bike.
Right? Thanded it to her. Right? She scanned it. I paid forit We talked about, she
asked me would the Security need to come up and ah, clear this bike and she asked to
(Inaudible) Fight and I said no.
BROWN. Okay.
BOWMAN. As long a5 | had the receipt I didn’t (Inaudible)
BROWN.  Go back to where did you get the bar code from.
BOWMAN. TItore it off the, it was already on the bike.
BROWN.  Where wasiton the bike? = °,
BOWMAN. On the step of the bike, right front step. K
BROWN. Whiy did yonu tear it off?
BOWMAN. To hand her the receipt, to hand to the clerk to scan it.
BROWN.  Is that something you normally do on all those things you buy?
BOWMAN. No.
Mary Kessler - Transcriber 13

V9.809



LBOAL gx3
S4961 Ajunon aoysey
Wd {5 [0 EL0Z/EZ/P0 140Gy JaT14ys1Q
safed 8 I113A%I470A © 1114334 150d
€Z0-0205r00066-24Q €91 JEOYHD

NI

Vv9.810



O 00 =l N LA B LR =

. s

RENO POLICE DEPARTMENT
_ TRANSCRIPT _
CASE # 01-216321
" PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: Brett BOWMAN
SEX/RACE/DOB:
RESIDENCE ADDRESS:
EMPLOYMENT:
TAKEN BY: Detective Reed THOMAS
ON: 12-03-01 FROM: TO:
LOCATION OF INTERVIEW:

IN THE PRESENCE OF:

This is NOT a certified trai_;ript. Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, you need
to refer to the original or a copy of the source andio/video tape.

BOWMAN. ..he asked him.

'THOMAS.  Okay.

BOWMAN. AndI was promised (Inaudible) never find that out, till we got to court.
THOMAS.  Who were you promised that by?
BOWMAN. The detective. L=

THOMAS.  Okay. I watched that interview tape and never once heard that mentioned. Okay? I
never once heard that mentioned.

BOWMAN. It was said out in the corridor.

THOMAS,  Well..

BOWMAN. That Ferrill would never find out (Inaudible)
THOMAS.  Weli, that’s water under the bridge now.

BOWMAN. Yeah.

Mary Kessler - Transcriber 1
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Transcript (Con't)

() 2-3-0)

CASE # 01-216321

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS,

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS. .

BOWMAN@ -«

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

bought ;.omethiug? I mean I know, based on the receipts and what not, that we found
in this vehicle and the merchandise we found in the storage unit, I mean [ know he was
buying. But rather than spoon feed you, I'd rather align your memory to see if you can
recali specifically what items you bought or returned, that you'd know were
fraudulent, what kind of iterns?

(l‘naﬁdible) There was (Inaudible)

Um hmm.

That was all me. -Thalt was when ] went in I put the label on it and ah....

Which store?

Ah, Walmart.

Which one?

The one ah, up by here (Inaudible)

(Inaudible) line?

Yeah, For a camcorder, I believe that's what we got.

What was the name of the home entertainment center, do you know, the brand name?
Panasonic. Cause we specifically asked for one.
Ckay. So did he go inside and do the bar code switch? W
e d C.ﬁt'id& o™
Huh? You did? v

1 did.

What did he do?

He just made, designed the label and said, “This is what I want and go in and get it
I'm gonna go get gas for the vehicle.”

s he handed you the label and what was this label like? Was it sticky on the back or
something, so you could stick it onto the box?

e S

Mary Kessler - Transcriber _ 17
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Transcript (Con’t)

T3

- CASE #01-216321

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

‘BOWMAN.

THOMAS,

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.
THOMAS. |

BOWMAN,

Yeah. (lnaudible)

Yeah. Okay. Do you recall any other, what other merchandise?

Ah.. A rug,ahose ah...

And that's what you've already been booked for.

Umn hiom (affirmative)

What happened there?

He told me whatever he wanted, right? 1 went and got it. T put this bar tode to it.

So you had the bar code when you went into the store?
VI L
a

Ah huh (affirmative)

And he 1old you which one he wanted, so (Inaudible)
He said (Inaudible)

And the bin?

When he went in the store he told me what bin it was it. 1 went amd got it out of the
bin, on the way up to the deal I put the bar code over the old, the original bar code,
right? And paid for it.

Were you guys ever inside the store at the same time?
v, “ .
- & y
N
And W
For several times.

Why was that?

There'd be times when be’d have the bar code himself.

Okay.

He’d set it up, leave it in the basket or on floor for me to pick up and I'd buy it.

Mary Kessler - Transcriber 19
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CASE # 01-216321

Transeript {Con’t)
THOMAS.  Okay. Did he ever say why he wasn't doing it himself?
BOWMAN. No.
THOMAS. 1 mean it's obvious to me why he's not doing it himself. He doesn’t want to get

caught. So he’s willing to pay you to do it, right? Is that the feeling you got?
BOWMAN. That’s the feeling I got.
THOMAS.  Okay.
BOWMAN. That’s why ] was getting so highly upset, cause of (Inaudible) he’s supposed to go in

and set it up, right, I was just supposed to go in and buy it. k” ? 4,‘

ol ,385'
b&)

THOMAS.  Okay. . ‘,y A J.QJ
BOWMAN. After that, I was getting ready to say something to him that night. When we was

geiting ready to leave ah, right there, asr we was Jeaving Walmart with the blke nght.,

he wouldn't even set that

pﬁﬁsﬂﬁf %\@ J‘j ?‘3{"\:5 M

THOMAS.  Um bmm, "‘“/( {\pﬁ
BOWMAN. Right? Iwas gonna tell him, “Look buddy, you know, (]naud:ble) you're SUPPOSGd to

set it up, right?" 1 was gonna tell him right flat out that [ was gonna, [ was done

running the bar code.
THOMAS. Um hmm.
BOWMAN. [fhe wanted any more, right, then he had to set up his own bar code. r(

Y

THOMAS. Okay, How many other stops you planning on making that night before you were §~ ]

arrested? Because you only made the one (1) right? v

Yoo #tﬁ‘ @,‘)’ &

BOWMAN. Three (3) He gave me three (3) stops. RS W gs§ g\;{; A 8 “,(vf’
THOMAS.  You were gonna do three (3)? Do you know where the othcr two (2) were gonna bf’7
BOWMAN. [have noidea.
THOMAS.  So he hadn’t told you yet?
BOWMAN. No.
Meary Kessler - Transcriber . ' 29
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Transcript (Con't)

[ - 3~

CASE # 01-216321

THOMAS. Do you know what he’s in for?
BOWMAN. Uttering,
THOMAS.  Uttering?
BOWMAN. Uhhmm (affirmative)
THOMAS. Do you ever talk to him about what you did?
BOWMAN. A lirtle bit. - As little as possible I talk to him.
THOMAS. What's h:: say? Hmm?
BOWMAN. Asiitle as possible. 1 try to talk to hirn about th?s case as little a3 PDSSible-.
THOMAS.  Did you ever buy a slide projector (Inaudible)
BOWMAN. Yes Idid
THOMAS.  Where did you buy it?
BOWMAN. At one of the office supply stores.
THOMAS.  Was it a legitimate purchase or was it fictitions?
BOWMAN. It was fictitious.
THOMAS. How much did you pay for it?
BOWMAN. I reaily don’t remember. It was one of the first things I bought for him,
THOMAS. Do you know how much it was worth, how much it originally sold for?
BOWMAN. No.
THOMAS.  Would it be your opinion that everything in the storage unit came from merchandise
like this that was probably bought fictitiously or fraudulently? o }S:‘J{ .
BOWMAN.. Ah, ptobably a good ninety percent (90%) of it ,5{\35‘4 NS 6“
_ } NCLg = "~ &>
THOMAS.  What did you say, a good... -é@"" <
‘73 <
Mary Kessler - Transcriber ‘ 31
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30
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39

40
41
42
43
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72-3-9
Transcript {Con’t) CASE # 01-216321
BOWMAN. A hundred, I think it was a hundred and seventy five (175), I think.
THOMAS.  Okay. 2
BOWMAN. I'm not exactly sure. . o \!‘33 w&%
THOMAS.  Okay. -Ohlet’s see here. Q)O‘U—S \ E;( J) ,,;;.5 { 1
- e e kU
BOWMAN. I'm doing the best 1 can t;or you. - - "““\ . Pg_,‘ ‘f‘(’ -
THOMAS. Tknow you are p | Kfiow 'you are. How many felony convictions do you have? ‘(' 2 NYSal
BOWMAN. Pmbably‘ﬁve (5) now. £ v ¢< \\r"*e)t '-.:\i}“) :
THOMAS. Ué(ﬁ)? K N)*L ¢
BOWMAN. s dropped two (2) felony holds against (Inaudible) three (3) there, probably
(Inhudible) —
THOMAS. W
BOWMN. Ah, one (1) is a Criminal Mischief. A guy stole five hundred (500) bucks from me. I
couldn’t find him but I found his car.
THOMAS. Okay.
BOWMAN. And I trashed his car.
THOMAS.  Okay.
BOWMAN. Ah, Forgery and Burglary.
THOMAS.  Were those in Utah you said?
BOWMAN. Yeah.
. THOMAS.  How much prison time did you do there?
BOWMAN. None, I was on probation (Inaudible) probation. And then they said the last two (2)
convictions, right, I ah, I guess they dropped em ah, and run efn concurrent with the
time I was doing here in Nevada,
THOMAS.  Okay.
Mary Kessler - 'i'ranscﬁbcr 64
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Transcrigt sCon’ta e CASE # 01-216321
ol pp ity 1O e
THOMAS.  Um bmm. punei s & o

(W
G
X 4 LIRUMAIER Ty
CAPAGES LS SO
THOMAS.  You bought, he had you buy the one he was using? Was that 8 fraudulent buy? F‘M-m

BOWMAN. And] bought the one we were using.

- <
BOWMAN. No. It was kind of legal, It was an actual buy. LS

St .
S ND 00 =1 O\ LA B LD B e

THOMAS. It was a good, legitimate, okay, Where did you buy it? SM‘-""S
g

[
[

BOWMAN. Either Office Max or Office Depot, one of the two. I can never keep those two
straight. I mean they’re both the same to me actually.

—t b
5w B

THOMAS.  Okay,

p—
(=AW

BOWMAN. When we were doing five (5) to ten (10) stores, each night we were out, right? They
all kind of run together,

—
h = - - |

THOMAS. OhI'm sure,

38

BOWMAN. And to try to separate each one is tough.

THOMAS. Um hmm. Yeah I'm sure.

Lo
-

BOWMAN. But kike I said, from what he was telling me right, that you guys basically got, you
guys cleaned him out. (Inaudible) storage unit, right. He told me you guys pretty

[ )
R B

27 much cleaned him out.
28
29 THOMAS. Um hmm.
30
31 BOWMAN. A, ail the (Inaudible) done, right, he said was in that storage unit.
32
33 THOMAS.  Okay. And you said all those purchases were all fraudulent?
34
35 BOWMAN. Ah huh (affirmative)
36
37 THOMAS.  That you were involved in.
33
39  BOWMAN. That | was involved in, right, all the ones 1 had bought, right, were fraudulent. N L
40 tjg\‘;fr—"o{ A W
e, o ™. B
41 THOMAS. Okay, o LR
42 WL J"af 5?‘“9 L\Lu
43 BOWMAN. There were several times, right, I went with the bar code myself. He’d make the bar
Mary Kessler - Transcriber N 66
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RENO POLICE DEPARTMENT

—— ___ TRANSCRIPT S
CASE #01-216321

PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: Brett BOWMAN

SEX/RACE/DOB:

RESIDENCE ADDRESS:

EMPLOYMENT:

TAKEN BY: Detective Reed THOMAS

ON: 12-06-01 FROM: TO:

LOCATION OF INTERVIEW:

IN THE PRESENCE OF:

This is NOT a certified transcript. Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, you need
to refer to the original or a copy of the source audio/video tape.

THOMAS.  Did you ask him not to?
BOWMAN. Itain’t done 2 damn bit of good .

THOMAS. I don’t know if they can. It may be policy. Maybe you can do it out in corridor
{Inaudible) C-3,

THOMAS.  Is that right?

L

BOWMAN.  Yeah, out of sight and put of mind.

THOMAS.  Yeah? Well hopefully this is the last time I got to come see you. I know every time
you got to get yanked out people are wondering.

BOWMAN. Yeah.

THOMAS.  So it goes without saying, Alright. I'm up here for & couple of reasons. We were
talking about.... the last time I spoke to you, (Inaudible) and (Inaudible) there and also
about g car video.

BOWMAN. Yeah,

Mary Kessler - Transcriber ) l
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Transcript (Con’t) CASE #01-216321
lease.
THOMAS,  Okay. WellI spoke to the apartment manager yesterday and she said nothing’s been
done.
BOWMAN. Nothing's been done?
THOMAS.  Nothing’s been done. She said, “As a matter of fact the eviction notice was supposed
to come out this moming.” Okay? And she said she, by law, has to keep your stuff for
45 days from today.
BOWMAN. Okay.
THOMAS. Okay? So that’s apparently what’s happened. So she said nobody’s been to your
apartment to collect anything.
BOWMAN. Okay.
THOMAS. Okay? So your stuff should ali still be there.
BOWMAN. Alright
THOMAS. In your phone call you described a home theater system that was fairly new. Was that
one of the home theater systems that you guys went out and bought?
BOWMAN. No, it’s my TV, my ah, surround sound and VCR, ot not VCR, aﬁ, VCR and ah, CD
(Inaudible)
THOMAS.  So this is stuff that you bought on your own some time in the past? It wasn’t from
Volpicelli? X
A i I S
BOWMAN. No. o 5 ST % ¥ g ,gé—*
Q}\ < idj\\ “ 'v *- “xr,- &.\/ q-:"k
) Y% o .
THO . ? .(' £ Ly, g
MAS.  Are you sure? éf& /y\)ﬂ;’ ’e‘r"? £ o “;{fm .
BOWMAN. Yeah. o RN g
- e <&
THOMAS.  Okay. Because you seem to be very particular about that. @‘:;F‘“
&
BOWMAN, Well that’s the only thing 1 had in my life, that's the only thing I owned. @‘5\
.J
\
THOMAS. ~-Okay. You said it was all brand new is all, Q#C,Q = ;.,n 17‘@
N e et e 7 e TS e et .
vN‘“ X
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Transcript (Con’t) . CASE # 01-216321
BOWMAN. It was brand new, yeah. 1 bought it over & period of time.
THOMAS.  Okay.
BOWMAN, Whilel was at the Ridge House.
THOMAS.  Where did you buy it?
BOWMAN. I got it at Shopko and ah, lvgot the CD player at ah, Walmart. 6\“ cjef \Lﬂr
THOMAS.  Okay, you have the boxes and everything for em.? /<o_ __A&L 3!\@5‘”{
BOWMAN. No, I threw em all out. \J\‘(’\i}z e
THOMAS.  Okay.
BOWMAN. Ah, all it is, is it’s a little studio apartment js what it is.
THOMAS. Um hmm.
BOWMAN. g\nd Idon’t have a whole lot of toom there, Idon’t h.av;re any storage 1o keep boxes.
0.
THOMAS.  Okay. Boutented - L&
-
BOWMAN. (Inaudible) my bed and my clothes. < w ' Al '
THOMAS. Umhmm. ﬁLS- saodS W %\S
BOWMAN. You know, it’s everything I own in my life. KR MWQVJ(
THOMAS.  Okay. Well you also indicated in your phone call that ah, you know, you didn’t Want
to talk about anything on the phone, that you'd explain everything in a letter.
BOWMAN. Yeah.
THOMAS.  Okay?
BOWMAN. | just (Inaudible) The reason | didn’t want 1o explain everything over the phone was
‘ because of what was going on.
THOMAS.  Okay. -
Mary Kessler - Transcriber 7
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Transcript (Con’t) CASE # 01-216321
BOWMAN. (Inaudible)
THOMAS. Okay. Okay. Alrighty. Well, I guess that’s it for now. Ihope [ won’t have to come

up and talk to you again. Abh, it’s all really contingent on how far he wants to take this.

Ah, 11 tell you right now that if he wants, he’s got another preliminary hearing

coming up next week. Ah, I don’t know if you do as well. [ think they'll probably drag

you down there as well and I’ll try and make sure that they don’t bring you guys in the

same vehicie and keep you separated, (But the district attomey’s opinion is right now é‘.
that if he wants to play hard ball and he wants 10 take this to a jury, then every time he

gets bound over on one of these cases, and I've got about six (6) or seven (7) of em

right now, with about twenty (20) felonies facing him, she's gonna be asking for the

twenty five (25) to life “bitch” every time. So. That’s what he’s looking at. So we’ll

see how much he really wants to play, if he wants to risk that, as opposed to what

we're offering him, So, like [ say, me talking to you is really contingent upon him at

this point. If he wants to keep playing tough guy and being an asshole, t.h RN
charging him. But [ may have to keep coming back and talking to you angh, piecin A
together some more lhings) ) "‘fg’*—;

BOWMAN. (Inaudible)

THOMAS.  Okay?

BOWMAN. (Inaudible)

THOMAS. [lunderstand. And you know what’s ah, and like I say, it’s 2l really contingent on
him. I mean he’s the one that’s (Inaudible) gonna make this thing go away or he's the
one that can drag it out. So. Alright?

BOWMAN. Right.

THOMAS.  Okay.

BOWMAN, (Inaudible) talking about those coffee pots?

THOMAS.  The coffee pots? Yeah.

BOWMAN. You'll (Inaudible) Volpicelli. Like 1told you, I told you the other day (Tnaildible)

THOMAS. Okay. Was that one bought legitimately or was it (Inaudible)

BOWMAN. No. You got the receipt for it.

THOMAS. Dol?

Mary Kessler - Transcriber 18
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PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: Fersill VOLPICELLI
SEX/RACE/DOB:
RESIDENCE ADDRESS: .
-EMPLOYMENT:
TAKEN BY: Detective Reed THOMAS - #4042
ON: 01-02- " FROM: T

INTERVIEW:

IN THE PRESENCE OF:

s S = T —
This is NOT a certified transcript. Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, you need
to refer to the original or a copy of the source audio/video tape.

VOLPICELLI ..for your protection?

THOMAS. Ah, you asked to speak with me. Yeah I don’t want there to be any dispute
down the road about what we talked about.

VOLPICELLL Qkay. Alright.

THOMAS. So if there’s a problem at all and you got an issue with anything that was talked
about here today, it’s on tape. So it protects you, it protects me. Okay?

VOLPICELLL T guess that understandable,

THOMAS. Okay? T got this ah, “kite.”

VOLPICELLL Did I see you, did I see you at the police station?

THOMAS. We’ve never met,

VOLPICELLI. Never met. But you're the one that’s been on the charge of my case?

THOMAS; ) I'm the detective in charge of your case, yes.
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VOLPICELLI.

THOMAS.

VOLPICELLL

THOMAS.

VOLPICELLI.

THOMAS.

VOLPICELLL

THOMAS.

VOLPICELLIL

THOMAS.

VOLPICELLIL

THOMAS.

down there and she’s a very accomplished attorney and very capable. She’s the
chief of her division for a reason. She’s not gonna have anybody, you know,
come in and snow her, as far as, you know, taking twenty (20) felonies and
you know, reducing em down to one or two or whatever it 1s.

T understand.

So her feeling right now is, fuck you. You know? You want to play hard .ot
ball? Fine, we'll play hard ball. Okay? So she’s told me, “We’re gonna start
filing the Intent to file the “big bitch,” every titne we bind him over on another
case. Bvery case that he gets bound over on I'm gonna file the “big bitch” on
each one.”

So you get a “big bitch” on top of it?

You, what you get is, you know, say case number one, the Walmart case down
there we arrested you on, the very first case. Okay?{ You go to prelim, you get
bound over on those charges. Okay? Which meanshow you got & trial date,
Right. After that prelim she’s gonna file her intent to file the “big bitch”
against you, which is basically ten (10) to twenty five (25) years. Okay?

Okay.

And then we go to the next prelim and the next case and you get bound over on
that one. Here it comes again, “I'm filing the big bitch, ten (10) to tweaty five
(25) years,”

So I have what, five (5), six (6) cases? How many cases do 1 bave?

Yeah, you've got about six (6) cases.

’m gonna be doing life then basically, is that what...

No, what I'm saying is, is the odds of you doing life are no. You’re not gonna
do life. Okay? You’re not gonna do life.

1 know you’ve had discussions. What does it look like that she’s looking at?
What recommendation is she gonna make?

But that's where this comes back on you. That’s what 'm trying to explainto -
you. She, you know she offered you a fair deal. Your attorney even told us, “I
think that’s a fair deal and I think you should take it.” Okay? Youdidn’t

You came back and you basically insulted her and(She said, “Fine. Fuck him.

‘Mary Kessler - Transcriber . 16
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RENO POLICE DEPARTMENT
TRANSCRIPT -
CASE #01-216321
PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: Brett BOWMAN ’
SEX/RACE/DOB:
RESIDENCE ADDRESS:
EMPLOYMENT:
TAKEN BY: Detective Reed THOMAS
ON: 010302 FROM: TO:
LOCATION OF INTERVIEW:
IN THE PRESENCE OF:

This is NOT z centified transcript. Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, you need
1o refer to the original or a copy of the source audio/video tape.

BOWMAN. Cause he has court date on Monday.
THOMAS.  On one of his prelims. Do you have any, are you scheduled io go there at all?
BOWMAN. (Inaudible)

THOMAS.  Okay. Idon’t think you are. 1know there’s been a problem with transporting you
guys again.

BOWMAN. Like when ] have (Inaudible) or {Inaudible)

THOMAS. Do they?

BOWMAN. My court last time we were both transferred together.
THOMAS.  Ahhuh.

BOWMAN. And when we were sitting down there, right ah, (Inaudible)
THOMAS.  Okay.

BOWMAN. (Inaudible) I told him I'm gonna testify.

Mary Kessler - Transcriber !
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BOWMAN. And (sighs) (Inaudible) bad memory man.

THOMAS.  Yeah. Yeah. Okay.

BOWMAN. Imean I threw away a career, a (Inaudible) career. You know?

THOMAS.  Yeah.

BOWMAN. [mean I wasmoving up tﬁe ladder.

THOMAS.  Yeah.

BOWMAN. Hindsight was 20/20. You know?

THOMAS. Yeah. Yeah. Ah, do you have any questions (Inaudible) Anything for me (Inaudible)

BOWMAN. And you know, any idea (Inaudible) moved for? Ay idea at all?

You know what, at this point I’m so tired of seeing the postponements.

THOMAS. At this point it’s contingent upon him. It really is. And I'm hoping that ujhen ltalk to
him here in a few minutes I'm gonna be talking to him next. Because basically the
way our meeting ended last night was he wanted me to take this deal to the _D’.A. that,
the deal that he wants and 1 told him straight up, the D.A.’s not gonna takq it. ’| '
“Maybe she won’t but would you please just take it to her anyway?” | §ald, “T'll '
think about it™ So, I’ve spoken to the D.A. and there’s no way that she is gonna give
him the deal that he’s asking for.

BOWMAN. What is he asking for? He told me ah, “Two (2) “birds” and ah, run the lewd to
(Inaudible) “

THOMAS.  He wants to whittle this down to one (1) “bird” basically. He's willing to plead to

three (3) “birds™ as long as we are willing to suspend two (2) of em, so that basicaily
he’ll only serve a sentence for one (1) “bird™ and run the lewd concurrent. 5o
basically he’s Jooking to do time for one (1) “bird.” And Tkeepelling mm, “Fcrr?ll
you got six (6) cases, twenty five (25) charges here, you're not getting Zene (1) “bird”
but he just, he wouldn’t listen to me. So he knows the district attorney is the one that
makes the decision. And I said, “Fine, I'll take it to her and we'll see what she bas to

. “Say.” Well she gave me the answer that I knew she would and I could have told him

\

that yesterday but he didn’t want to listen to me, so he’s gonna get the news today and
it’s gonma be up to him at this point to decide what he wants to do. fCause I told him,
if he starts screwing with us and he wants 10 keep dragging this thing ¢if and doing
thirigs fike that, ‘then we're just gonna start filing the habitual criminal on _hi_n: and'he
canistarf 16oking &t ten (10) o twenty five (25). So that’s his choice. You know?
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THOMAS.  Yeah.
BOWMAN. And my sister in Oregon, (Inaudible) right, but not really. I'mnot (Tnaudible) this
time. '
THOMAS. Okay. Alright. Well I'll call her and (Inaudible)
BOWMAN. If you do (Inaudible) I've got two (2) paychecks from the Sand's sitting in my
. properly. They’re gonna be expired.
THOMAS.  In your property?
BOWMAN. Um hmm.
THOMAS. Here?
BOWMAN. Um hmm (affirmative) [ need somebody to get em cashed befure they explre A QDQ- ‘\‘\-
S 8‘ o Jl
THOMAS. How do you do that? > &
4 o ﬂ“»@ R
BOWMAN. Idon’thaveaclue. I've written letters, I’ ve asked peqple to help get em cashed.
That’s the only help 1 really need. ‘«(\%
THOMAS.  You got to endorse em. % Qg’sb
BOWMAN. I know, all they need to do is just let me cndorse em. I (Inaudible) deposit em and
the money put back on my books or whatever. :
THOMAS.  So did you put a “kite” in to say, “Hey ] wan to endorse these checks and have the
County cash ern and put em on my books.”
BOWMAN. Yeah and ah, they said ah, the jail doesn’t get a service for paychecks. They’ll do it
for, if it was 2 money order but they wouldn’t do it, not for paychecks.
THOMAS.  What about this guy that went and cleaned up your apartment?
BOWMAN. [wrote him a lettet, right, and all things got mixed up.
THOMAS. When do the checks expire?
BOWMAN. The biggest one expires the thirteenth (13") of this month and the smaller one

" naudible) One’s for two hundred eighty five (285) and one’s for seventy seven -

dollars (§77.00). The two eighty five (285) one expites the thirteenth (13") of this

Mary lzessier - Transcriber 14
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THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.
THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS,

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

THOMAS.

BOWMAN.

e m— T P ey ol
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Okay. Well at the very least you're gonna have to get em ah you know, you're
gonna have to endorse em.| So I'll have to arrange to (Inaudible) get em endorsed But

month. The smaller one expires the following week.

let me talk to a deputy and find out exactly if that’s the way to go about doing that.

And I'il see what we can do. - : N LJU.,LL&
Cause it’s everything I own down there. \ N‘fg\n—\f')ﬂ- .
Yeah. : O 0

And that's everything I go. (Inaudible) buy the TV with it and get my appliances :a"“J::!
while I'm in prison. < Kd': &

Okay. Alright. Let me talk to a county deputy that I know and we'llsecif weeantry < f‘d

to work on that and figure something out. 5{’0"‘\
I appreciate it. ¢h-°°
6\:
Yeah, 'l give it a shot. T«;b
«

Thank you man. ) 0@:\‘{\9
e

Okay?

(Inaudible) this has really {Inaudible), just to get em to send it to me.

Yeah.

I've been fighting with the jail, right, some way to get it dealt with before it expired.
Um hmm. |

But it's like butting my head against a stone wall.

Yeah. Okay. Do you have a bank account or anything anywhere?

No.

No? Okay. T'li talk to a deputy and see if there’s something we can do. 1don’t know

if there is ot not but we’ll give 1t @ shol.

—— -

Okay.
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TRANSCRIPT ___ _
CASE #01-216321
PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: Brett BOWMAN
SEX/RACE/DOB:
RESIDENCE ADDRESS:
EMPLOYMENT: ‘
TAKEN BY: Detective Reed THOMAS
ON: 02-19-02 FROM: 1425 s, TOwmre
LOCATION OF INTERVIEW:
IN THE PRESENCE OF:

This is NOT a certified transcript. Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, you need
to refer to the original or a copy of the source avdio/video tape.

—
——

THOMAS.  February nineteenth, two thousand two (02-19-02), at fourteen twenty ﬁ\fe (1425)
hours, Detective Thomas, Reno P.D., speaking with Brett Bowman, an inmate at the
Washoe County Jail. Okay. We're good to go.

BOWMAN.  Ah, where do you want to start? J mean I can give you his working alias, which is
Joseph Vim.

THOMAS.  Well he’s got lots of aliases.
BOWMAN. This was his main alias.
THOMAS.  Yeah.

BOWMAN. Main working alias is Joseph Vim.

THOMAS.  Yeah, that stands for Volpicelli Investment Management, something like that. Sohe
uses that to get cards and order merchandise. L '

BOWMAN. And his P.O, Box is undemeath that name, right, it’s on Califorsia Avenue.

THOMAS. Right. Got that.
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THOMAS. Um hmm,
BOWMAN. Isaid, “Well you're a fool not to take it.”
THOMAS.  Yeah.
BOWMAN. Otherwise they will “bitch™ you.
. THOMAS,  Yeah.
BOWMAN. (Inaudible)
THOMAS.  Oh yeah, if he wants to play we're gonna play. And he's gonna go away for a lot
longer than that. So, you know. Y
BOWMAN. He has abused me, taken advantage of me.
THOMAS.  Yeah. '59
. . <
BOWMAN. Youknow? Our original agreement, right, was that he’d go in, right, setitup, all L , ¥
had to do was the buys. ‘ v
J€
THOMAS.  Umhmm. ((M‘)(’«b @é&g
. ©
BOWMAN, And then it came down to where he had me doing evervibing. o @gﬁ o S
THOMAS.  Um hmm. A
BOWMAN. Youknow? So the more I thought about it, yeah, he lefi me, I told him, “You left me
twisted Poe. Cause | only did this thing to get by.” .
THOMAS.  Yeah.
BOWMAN. You know?
THOMAS.  Okay. Alright. Well let me get you back downstairs and I'm gonna go back down and
call the prison and '}l follow up with them on that. And l will get ahold %:ur P.O.
also and find out what the deal js with Warm Springs Institute. LU THE,
, (V.(® BN % )
BOWMAN. And you’ll get ahold of my sister too? ' ? S' e L SE A ! \‘)l\)
THOMAS.  Yeah. AndIwill try and call her again to let her know about the picture. I'll try and
find this David guy and see if he's got this picture. I'm guessing that even if 1 find it
Mary Kessler - Transcriber ' 28
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1080 275 Hill Street, Suite 281 ¢ Reno, Nevada 89501-1840
Phone: 775-322-8941 » Fax: 322-1544 o ridgehouse@sbcglobal.net

Gloria DePratti-Romero, M.A,

January 7, 2004 Second Letter

Mr. Femill Volpicelli - #79565
NNCC '

P.0. Box 7000

Carson City, NV 89702

Dear Mr. Volpicelii.

This lstter Is in response to your coespondence dated, Dacember 6, 2003,
As | stated via telephone, due to Federal Confidentiality, 42 CFR, part2, and
45 CFR parts 160-165, Ridge House can not confirm or deny whether
individuals reside at our facility.

However, ! can give you general information about the program. From 1998
to mid 2002, Ridge Mouse expanded the career enhancement component by
adding desktop computers at each facility. Clients had access to JobLink

and attended computer class once per week. Basic cuTTicutum was taught,
along® 3 Tntemet and how to setup an'email account.
The computer facilitator was responsible for maintenance and upkeep of the

equipment at each facility.

in July of 2002, the computer classes and client access to computers at each
of the facilities was dropped. it became to costly for the upkeep of the
equipment.

As far as questions a, ¢, d and e, as indicated in your letter, please refer to
the first paragraph of this letter. Hopefully, this letter has been of some help
to you, Ridge House wishes you success in your future endeavors.
Sincerely, _

Dani Doehring, %

Program Administrator
The Ridge House, Inc.

Serving the criminal fustice populat{pn'rbmugb prevention, intervention and .
rebabilitation eatment, thereby assisting thy Zommunity in our ficht avainst crime

V9.837



N
=
=
s
<
(1]

LS0AL <LX3
S561 AjUunon soysep
Wd LS 10 €LGZ/E2/v0 14P00 15T0)817
seBed £ 1773014704 TII8¥34  Lsad
6Z@-0z@sSO0066-04 £9Z1dEOYHD

AT

V9.838



1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
11)
12)
13)
14)
i5)
16}

17)

18)
19)
20)
r1Y]
22)
23)
24)
25)
26)
27)
28)

Affidavit and Claim

1, Travis Volpicelli, hereby aver the following: that regrettably, and due to my transience during
the summer of 2003, my father, Ferrill Volpicelli, was unable to contact me so that F could appear
as a witness at his trial (#03-1263).

That as far as Brett Bowman is concerned, he initially and mysteriously appeared one morning in
an elevator at the Comstock Apartments during the summer of 2001 when my father was es route
to driving my brother, Logas, and I to summer school.

That thereafter, I sporadically observed e-mail communication between my father and Bowman
on my cosnputer.

That I distinctly recall Bowman's unique domain name as being listed at Yahoo and included his
year of birth. That on one occasion in particular, 1 observed Bowman accessing the Aussie
storage unit betonging to my sister- in which my father was not present and Bowman was
accompanied by another gentleman in a pick-up.

That 1 also overheard telephone conversations between Bowman and my father whereby
Bowman was requesting my father to transport him to work, RPD and P and P. Thatin
exchange for such, I know Bowman was providing my father with prescriptions for Zanax, That
on the night of the carjacking incident involving my ex-girifriend and the 1997 expiorer, I
accessed some of the Zanax to self-medicate my anxiety. That outside of the initial introduction
to Bowman in the elevator sometime in July of 2001, my brother and I were never together with
my father and Bowman. Nor were we ever involved in any suspicious or illegal activities,

That on only one occasion did I ever see my father in possession of a labeler and it was
expressly for making printed {abeis for organizing my father’s files. That I was also aware that
Bowman was storing his property at my sister’s storage unit so that his probation officer would
not see ali of his property.

That my brother and | were compelled to store our property at my sister’s storage unit due to
space constraints in the studio apartment where my father, brother and I resided.

That during the summer of 2001, my father specifically reserved Saturdays, both day and
evening, for quality time for Logan and L.

That Saturday evenings involved skating, bowling, movies or Reno’s special events.

y o . - o V9,839



29) That in October of 2001, I specifically recall hearing a conversation on the telephone between
30) Bowman and my father- whereby my father insisted Bowman to remove his belongings from
31) my sister’s storage unit and, instead of gambling away his pay checks, to save for a motorcycle.

33) Where to fore, I hereby request a prompt release of my property from our residence and my
34} sister’s storage unit.

QZAAM

37) Travis Volpicelli

V9.840
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' ,-_-=======‘:|=-_-======'====‘========='.=====================;‘=‘E‘$=’=%=‘=;-.-.'==uﬁ===============
AUSSIE SELF STORAGE : B - '
30 E. VICTORIAN AVENUE
l SPARKS, NEVADA B89431-5167
Tenant Notes
' Site: AS Date: 10/17/01 Page: 1
' SPACE : B114 Size  : 10X20 Entry :  08/06/01
Deposit: 50.00 Insurance: $0.00
Rent : £100.00 Premium : $0.00
' ASHLEY SCHILLING
1060 VASSAR STREET Balance: $0.00 Paid-To : 11/01/01
RENO, NV 89502 Remarka: BXI ACOUNT
l | ) NOTES I
____________ f_."-—---"--——----n-_-—__-_....___._..-.-———_--——----.—--—-------—----.--—-———--.

1 09/06/01 TENANT PAYED BXI 100.00 ON THE 31ST OF AUGUST IP GAVE CREDIT
' AND WAVED LATE FEE IP

2 10/17/01 PARCLE&PROBATION OFFICER CAME AT 6:38PM ON THUR. EVE., FOR
VOLPICELLI'S. ASHLEY SCHILLING HAS A UNIT WHERE THEY ARE
l AUTHCORIZED FOR ACCESS. OFFICER ASKED TC PARK CAR NEAR UNIT,
GETTING A WARRANT.
KB AUTHORIZED

e e e A rr e R R T Lk e e e A e e wR ML Em R MR dh e e W VR M e e W M W T MR T T m e e e oo S
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DECLARATION
I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the following statements are true to the best of
my knowledge and belief.
. 1. I am one of the principal owners of Aussie Self Storage, LLC,

2. That on the 11" day of September, 2205, I reccived a Subpoena Duces Tecum
demanding the production of the all records related to the rental of storage unit B-114
to Ferill J. Volpicelli,

3. That I have examined the original of the records referred to in the Subpoena Duces

" Tecum, and have made a true and exact copy of them.

4. That the true and complete copy of the records subpoenaed is attached.

=" Thle FRE vosT

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me

this 23" day of September 2005. . SUSAN G. DAVIS
) mmpuuw-smwgmm
mﬂ"mmll
v ¥

NOTARY PUBLIC

V9.844



AUSSIE SELF STORAGE, LLC QCGUPANT INFORMATION SHEET
30 E VICTORIAN AVE SPARKS, NV 89431 (Occupant to fill out — PLEASE PRINT)
Name:&ﬁhgg% T3 T LY s Space No, (22, \ \\
Address: YOle O \Dp=Saux &-\ . Contract No. _27 g 7
| City: Peine . State: A YD) Zip 8OOSR,
Home ph.: (%) 2 - 2T Cel. Pager No. ( )
Dri;rers License No: /4 &2 @5 S § 0 S A Social Security No.: =~ =~ o
Drivers License expiration date: 5 /a3 Birth Date: =\ V21| %
EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION
mployers Name; Workph: 332\ B30
Address: L Je
City: o State: Zlp:

EMERGENCY CON‘-}‘KCT - ALTERNATE (Fricnd or relative at different address)
Name: C phlk ¥

Address: (Ol * \/Kssm- ST City: Tawd
State: \,\Ll _ Zipr 0L Home Ph. _32193F%  Workph.___——

PERSONS AUTHORIZEP FOR ACCESS: YES NO
e ) — ) '
.ame t'&m-\\ \lOchk ‘/Dkktiu\ Name C _.\"[ﬁ\(‘ib \/QL?‘-U:W
Name TW&& U&x.ﬂum Name

‘Bl.tttﬁktitlﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ*kﬁﬁtl*lﬁl*lllllttllﬁiilﬁﬁlﬁﬁtllﬁt**lii**l!lt.ﬂt*ﬂti.#tlkﬁitﬁliﬁl*l*tﬁl

I understand it is MY SOLE RESPONSIBILITY to keep all the above information current
with Aussie Self Storage, LLC. I understand any changes with the above information are
to be submitted in writing within (15) fifteen days, signed by the Occupant.

%@4‘ glalon
OCCUPANERIGNATURE ) DATE

HOW DID YOU HERE ABOUT AUSSIE SELF STORAGE:
1. Drive by / Saw sign 2. Live in neighborhood

3. Yellow pages 4. Newspaper Ad

5 Word of Mouth G ™~ _ 6. Referral-Company or business 7. Other:

V9.845



. SELF STORAGE LL.C.
T _RENTALAGREEMENT .

& INDIVIDUAL

-H'.&q

-

This an;per,mt is executed on this - y - ' (“Commenccmcm Eala“) by and between Aussie
Self Stoge, hgmpm ca!led “Owaer’anid "Oeoupant™, for the purpose'a'!ming or rmﬁagspau as specified above and with the express understanding that no

bailrent or deposit of goods for safekeeping iz intended or created hereunder. GCCUPANT whose name is:

|
|

SPACE NOJ APPROX. SIZE:

MONTHLY RENT:

BUSINESS NAME B

\ oo \asooe sy NEXT RENT DUE/AME:

smmwnm ) /-—-——"“"" .- r-..lv-
$) . . ﬁaagrfofaL

JLING ADDRESS e DL. NOJLD. ND. ~'SOCIAL SECURITY NO,

' en o Mg RAS 229 2389 B2 €374

iy ~.STATE . ZIPCODE RESIDENCE PHONE . BUSINESS PHONE

l NG DATE OF BIRTH 5 ’C} 76[

PARTIALMONTH . = - ;:é-' g,.ﬂ/ - ~vmwaa(s days past due) $10.00
MONTHLY RENT ‘. s & é.ﬂé 7 . PRE-LIEN.FEE (min, 14 days past due) $18:00 -
ADMINISTRATIVEFEE = § _[S .0 0 RETURN CHECK CHARGE $25.00
SECURITY DEPOSIT $ j LIEN FEE (min. 28 days past due} $25:00

l'-.’AID RENT $ @’

LIEN SALE FEE (min. 45 days + any auction fees}  $25.00

INSURANCE (% $ Q NOT LEAVING UNIT BROOM CLEAN sso.u‘o
OTHER (SPECIFY) s 2 Lacxcu-rm T 3100
SALES TAX $ /ﬁ | (MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO: Aussmsnwsmmn;
TOTAL DUE sLQ_LéJ__ Mothods Cashi .o+ ChesieB0YTLe. CroditCard

Receipt of the first monthly rent is hereby acknowledged Each. succeeding month's. rent is.due a.nd payablc or the 18T dayof each
succeeding month until terminated by either OWNER or OCCU'PANT in writing,. n e

M.—l. PREMISES: Owner hereby rents to Occupant, and Occupant rents from Gwnes, on the terms and conditions herein sex Fonth, the self storage. pace deseribed above, hereln calfed the “Promises”
The Premises shall bs vaed solely for the purpose of starage pursuant io the tems and copditions of this Rental Agmeppent ang | noeﬂmmm whptsoover, -

£7T ]
0" 2. TERM: The term of this tenancy shall commence &< of the Commencement Date and contines until Qtf i 0 Q-] Intheeven
that Occupant holds over the Premises beyund md termn, such holdgver shafl be deémed 8 mosth-to manth tenanoy subjelt io all the terms aidd conditions of this Rental Agreement,

(k5. RENT: Occupan agress 1 pay to Ownar at 30 Victopan puprus, Sperks, RV 95431

Mmmmdgmagq or billing staternpt . he way of moncy set forth in the.Rent

deuhcbnwpetmth&gmmgoaﬂ: day of Z gnmmmmgmm st day of cachrend every month
thereafies until this Rexvta! A‘ﬁwﬂnmmnm 1f e terms omnnmlwmmn umnoamaﬁmufmmm. Ocgupant stval] ows 4 pecrak partlon of the At monh's
rent. Occupant shall pay, in advance, at leist one fult maniis rent. With cespect io any month-ic-month tenancy, the mothly ret mey be edjusted by Owner effective the month Following Qwmer’s

. thisty (30) day written notice to Octupant specifying such adiusiment. Upan vecating \he premmises, Occupant agress 1o give Aussie S¢if Storage (T) seven days Taties préor Lo actued vacats date and
leave the premises clean wllbout wmeordumgc. NO nEFUNDs! Guener aleo reserves the riﬁbt 1o give Desupamt (7) scven days notlee o yacate upon fon-compisncé-andior: breacit-af any
provisian of the Rextal Agreeatient or Rules ndReguhﬁdew:baangpwm oimn{ﬂenﬂi&-.ﬂ’&wmhmﬁmly)

Y. 4 LATE FEES, SERVICE CHARGES, DEPOSITS:-NO BILLINGS NOTICES ARE SENT!
& Concamently with the execution of this Rental Agreament, Occupast shall pay to Qwinte & fee au-speoifiod in Reat Sthedule sbove 38 L son-refundable new W '8‘}4‘6&"‘“ e,
b. Allrent shall be paid in ulvlnoeom.he first day of cach r3onth and in the eveat Dcoypans thatfall o pay ieseatisythe Sth day of the month, Occupank shall pay, in addition to &Y of the asmounts



e by Qwmer, which inaurancedacs nol caver goods stored
e 00verEi TorTheLyl value of Qccupink's property siared

mpr vermin, Owner and
i i ! from any
ilityfw,anyhs,ﬂnbﬂily,m‘ petn priper i n i ngip SR T an;“.Lﬁiﬁrﬁingﬂm
1he uctive pr passive sebs, oiission apnegliganct ol Bmer o& D) LA A mence. nforation in Ovcupant,
Oceupant understands that Owacr snd Divners Agitls e gy arf ingiaadh coitidry abitiimt i ‘ecupib by makipy evy claim wnder
any insurance pdiw.mvmﬁslmdmhwug’mﬁé&ﬁhxﬁm-@m“dm SADAnH & .
My 7. NEVADA SELF STORAGE PACILITY LIEN LAW: In the evcat rent and other charges haflssmili-d sabigitis oz period of fosnéon (14 consbestive:deys, Occopant's right ta
posseasion may be ieiminated by Owner wpon wrtten notice eed Occupant's personal property th or on the Pramisis may hoxubist to a claifivoldien s ikg xyen-be sgid ke eatisfy fs lien if the
rent and cahat cherges due remdin unpaid for fourtesn (§4) conseewtive days after date of mailing notices ’

3} 8 RELEASE OF OWNER'S LIABILFTY, INDEMNIFICATION: Ower s Owner's agerts sbald it be fiuble 1o Occapant for any Gamage to, e Jots of, ty personal property while ot the
rented Premises arising from any cause whetsvever, including, It ol fimited m, burglary, fire, water damags, mydterious diseppoarance, vajaits, Acts of Cod, or the active or passive acte of

l omissions or neghgence of Owner or Owner's agents, Owner, Owner's agents, and employses shall gol be liable 1o Occupant for injury of deallas & riult of Ooouginy's use of (his stymge Spacs or
the Premrses, even if such injury s caused (in whole of in par() by the active or passive acts, omissions, or neglipence of Owner, Owner's agonts: nr-emplt'me}._&:cupnm will indemnify, hold

harmlcss, and defend Owner from aR claims, demands, action of causcs of stion (imcluding attoraeys fees-and costs) thee are hereinafter broaght by. jtbarzarising out of the Gccupanls use of the

Premisos, including {without limitaton) cleims for Qwner's active negligence, Occupant agrees that Owmer's and Gwner's Agents' totsl rupo}lhflﬁlﬁ'ﬁr anyLags from gny whatso-

ever will not exceed p total of $5,000.00.
9, RIGHT TO ENTER: Occupast grants Chrcr, Owner's agents, or feprescrtatives of my goverment authorty including police and fire officials, acoess to the Premises upon THREE (3) days
PTIOF WrILeh notrce (o Oczupant. In the event ol an emergenay, Owner Owner's agents, or represeniztves of any governmental authority shall furve the. 1l Ao remove Qecupand's Jock and enter the
Premises, without notice to Occupant, and take such action s may be necessary of appropriate 1o preserve the Premises, 1o comply with applicable law, or seforee.eny of Qwner's rights, If any
' efaakt shall be made in any of the covenants heremn contsined or IF Gocupent shall abundon the Premises, Qwner may enter the Premises and remorvs ufl- pioperty tharedyom, in wiich event this
‘ﬂlﬂ Agreement shall terminate withow prejudice ko Owner's right 1 recover rent due and unpaid through the daic of such entry, damages in respect of aniy, Bafavlt under this Renrs) Agreemont,
d such other armounds 85 may be recoverabie pursuant to law i the event of » hreach of tus Renal Agreament ot ahandonmeat of s Premises by Cocupget pcior i the expuration of the Renlal
Agrecment, Owner may, al 14 option, determine nat 10 terminate thys Fental Agreement in which event the Rema Agreement shall continoe m cffieer and Owner may enforce all of its rights and

l remedigs undor this Rental Agresment. H

10. INSPECTION AND SECURITY: Oucupm bas been afforded an opporturty m inspees the Prenises and the project property, and ackrowledges and agreas that the Premises and the commion
areas, including the safety and securicy thereof, are satisfactory 1o Occupant's intended uses of the Premises or the common arcas of the project. Al storage unit sizes are approximite. Occupant shall

l be entitled 1o access to the Premiscs and the common areas of the project only duning such hours and on such days 25 ere regulay posted at the project. Owned shall pot be deemed to, either
expressly ot unplicitly, provede any wecurity or protection 1o Ovcupant’s property. Any gecunty deviees which Owner may maintain arc for the protection of Owner's ivestment, ineluding but ot
limited to burlding and equipment, Owner my discontrnire that use at any time without noiies

11. WASTE, QUIET CONDULT, EMMWNCE: Occupant shall Iake good care of the Premises and repair any darmags or waste, whether to the intenor andiar exterror of the Premises,
necessitated or accasioned by the act or neglect of Occupant or eny agent of Oceupant or other person for whuae acts Oeclpant is esponsible,

12. LOCKS: Octupant shall 1ot put miore than one lock ou his unét e any tine, Occupant shll provide, at Occupant's own cxpense, a Jock for the Premises which Oceupant, i Qecupand's sole
discreston, desms suffigicnt 1o secie the Premises. Ovwncr may, but is not maired to bock she space f 115 found open, Comes has the nghl, as 1 detms pecessary 10 emove sl lock by cuting

l o other mean, to gaw entry 16 the Premises under Paregreph 9 above Owrer shall not be held liablc for replacement of any lock that 15 daraged by forced entry by the Cuner under provisions of
Paragraph 9 ahove.

3Q=_ 13 ENFORCEABILITY: If any part of this Rencal A greement 18 held to be unenforceable foc any peason, all remaining parts of this Renal Agreement will nevertheless be valid and anforceable

qﬂ carcummances and Occupant hereby expressly agress.

ACCEPTANCE OF PAYMENT OF RENT: Tn the cvent of o default by Occupant, Occupant agrees that {a) the tender of the rental by Occupan! and the acceptance thereol by Owner, If not
the full amount due, or (b) the allowing of Qecupant to remave his personal poperty from the Premises, after the delivery of a preliminary lien nalice of during the pendency of an uniawlul detainer

l action, stul] a0t constitute 3 warver of the prehiminary lien notice, the natice of temination por shall it reinslate the terma and provisions of this Rental Agreement

15. WAIVER: The waiver by esther party of any breach of any term, covenant of conditon heretn comained shall not be deemed to be a wadver of such term cavenant or condition upon any
sulrsequent breach of the same term, covenant or condition, Ay sobsequent acccprance of performasce shall not be deemed 1o be a warver of any preceding breach of any term, covenent or
condition of this Rental Agreement, other than the Falure o perform the particutar duties subsequently sccepted. regardless of knowledpe of such preceding breath % 1he time of scceptance of such

I performanee.

++— 16 ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS: In the event any seticn be institurted, ar other proczedungs taken 1o cnforce any covenant herein contained or o necover any rent due or to recover possession
of the Premises far any default or breech of tis Nonta! Agreement, the prevailing party shall be cntitled o recover from the other party yeasonable atiomeys' fees, costs and expenses at frial or on

l appeal
.3 17, RULES: Owner shall bave the right 1o establish or change hours of cperation and acoess or to promulgate rules and amendmeats, or additional rules end regulations for the safety, carc and
cleanliness of the Premises, or the preservation of good order of the facthity, Occupant agrees 1 follow sil of Qwner's rulea aow in effect, of thal may be put inso effect from time g time, A current
hist of all rules and regulstions will be posted i the facility office, Rukes and regulatsons are made a pant of this Rental Agrocment and Cecupant shall comply at aft times with such rules and
regulauons. Copies of the izt an avaiable 10 all Occupants,

Y- 18 NOTICES:! All notices required by law, or by this Renla! Agreement may be sent to Occupsant at any of the addresses given by Occupant above, by first class mail, postage prepaid and shall be

deemed grven when depasited in e 1.8, M), Occupant agroes that any sech natice in conclusively presamed to have been received by Occupent FIVE {5) days afler mabiling, unleas retamad to

l Owner by the Postal Service. Any of the terms of this Rental Agresment may be changed by Owner by giving writien notice by mail, es provided in this paragraph, FIVE {5) days pdor w the
expration of sny month of this tenarcy

?,t: 19, NO ORAL RENTAL AGREEMENTS: This Rental Agreement conming the entire Rental Agreement betwezn Cwner aad Occupant and no orel Rental Agemm shalt be of any ﬂﬁe'fl
whatsoever Osoupant agrees that he iz not relying, snd will ot rely, upon any oral representaiiens made by Crwmer, of by awy of Owner's agenis or efaployses ?“11’5"““8 to medify or add 1o this
Rental Agreement in any way whatsocver Qecupant agrees that thie Rental Agreement may be modified only in wrlting, by Crwaer, th ordes for such aadification to have sy offect whatsbever,

}b 20, CHANGE OF OCCUPANT'S ADDRESS: Gocupant ls responsible for notifying Owper in writing of the cbange of any of the addresses glvenby MpMI‘WMI nat be presumed to

have received notice of any chinge of address unless given in writing by Occupant, and scnt to Owner st Qwnor’s ,ad,m given above, firt cless mail, postage p:?;@.]ﬂ the event Oceupant shall

' change Occupant's place of residence or businass or alternaic name and address as sel forth 1 this Rental Agreameint, Oecupant shall give Owner writicn natice of anty such-change within ten (10)
days of tha change, specifying Occupants current residence end altomaie nume, address and ciephone number: V9 . 84 7 .



}-"_ is. WATVER: The waiver by either pany of any breac ¥ term, caveRant or condiion herein cantained shall not be dec.n be g waver of such kerm cavenant or condition upon any
subscquent breach of the same serm, covenant or conditich Ay subscquent acceptance of performance shali nol be deemed o be & waiver of any preceding breach of any lerm, covenant or
candition of this Rental Agreement, other than the faslure to perform the particular duties ubsequently sccepted. repardtess of knowledge of such preceding breach at the ume of sccepiance of such
performance,

21— 16, ATTORNEYS FEESAND CUSTS: In the event any action be Jnsututed, or other proceedings taken 1 caforce any covenant herei conkained or 1o recver my fent duearto muwlm
of the Premnises for any defaolt or bieach of this Renial Agroement, the prevaihing party shall be catited to recorver from the other pasty reasonable attonteys” (ces, costs and expenses & trigl or on
appeal,

D0 17. RULES: Ouner shall have the nght s0 estabish or change hours of operation and uccess o to promlgale rules and amendments, of additronal rules and regulaiions for the sifety, care and
cleanliness of the Premscs, o the preservation of good order of Lhe facalily. Occupant agrees io follow afl of Ower's ruics now in cifect, or that may be put inlo ¢ffect from fime o ome A current
list of all rules and regulations will be pasted in the facthly office. Ruler and regulations are made a pant of this Rental Agrecment and Qccupant shall comply a1 all times with such rvies and
regulations. Copies of the Hat an available to all Oceupants '

3;_1— 18. NOTICES: All notsces reqalred by taw, or by this Renta] Agreement may be sent to Occupant at any of the ardresses grven by Occupant above, by firt ¢l mail, pusiage prepaid snd shall be
deemed given when depositcd in the U S Mail Octupant agrees that any such nouce Is cunclusavely presumed 1o have been received by Occupant FIVE (3) days #fler maihing, ualess relumed 1o
Qwner by (he Postal Service Any of the Larmms of this Rental Agreement may he changed by Owner by giving writton actice by marl, as pravided in this paragreph, FIVE {5) days prior to the
expurtion of any month of thit wnaney

M 19, NO DRAL RENTAL AGREEMENTS: This Rental Agreement cuntans the enlire Kental Agreement betwesn Owner and Ocupant and no oral Rental Agrecments shall be of any effect
whatsoever Qccupant sgrees that he is nol relyag, and nll not rely, upon any oral representations made by Gwner, of by apy of Owosr's agents or emplu?lm purporing, to madify of add w this
Rentel Agreement in any way whalsocver, Ovcupant agrezs that this Renta! Agreemeat may be mockfied only m wniting, by Ower, i order for such modification fo have uny effert whatsocver

' w_\ 20, CHANGE OF QCCUPANTS A DDRESS: Occupam 12 reapomsible {or notifying Cwner in wnng of the change of any of the addresses piven by Oceupans Ovmes shall rot be presaimed 1o
e recerved notioe of any change of address unless given in wiiling by Oceupunt, and sent to Owncr at Owner's address given above, fitst clase mul, postage propaid. In the event Qocupait shat)
g¢ Occupant's place of residence ur business or altemate name and address o sel forth in tus Rental Agreement, Occupant shall grve Owner wiitten notice of any such change within e (10)

# of the change, specdfying Ceoupants cumrent ressdence and allernale narne, address and telephone aumber.

4
' Hz—il. ASSIGNMENT: Occupant shall pot assign or sublease the Preraises or any portion thereof. Crwner bas the nght to assign this contract

& 22. WARRANTIES: Owner hereby duclaims any imphed or express watranties, gusraniess or represeatations of the natmre, condition, aafety. rr secunity of the Premses, The Premises are not
protecied by cold weather or by hear

)&’13 HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT, 0% tPait Tereev b o an authon s pergon Jor agcess borows or uses my cquipmenl such s dollies, carts or hand trucks or keys far clevator(s),
he holds harmess Aussie Self Sinrage. its Owner's and dgents reaponsible for any injury or damage caused by such use .5{1)« "E,Eh ﬂipmpwﬁg‘ﬂw propenty of Aussic Self Storage and may
anly be used with permission Aussie Seif-Siorage-and a deposit my be fequirad uposTequest for use oPRED eqUEFment j

. INCORPORATION OF PROVISIONS. Cocopant acknowledges that he hes read. 15 flamibiar with and agrees to all ¢f the provisions of this Rental Agreement, all pages and numbered iicms.
and Owner and Occupant agree that al( ssch provisions conslitute a matenal pan of thas Rendul Agrecment and ane hereby incomaorated by 1eference Occupan! agrees that he has secerved a copy of
thus Rental Agreement and the Rules and Regulstions

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the partics hereto hase executsd this Renial Agreement the day 2ad year fint ahove wrlten

Da
END OF RENTAL AGREEMENT (pp 2 of 2

= ___ —— e
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7% 2828 OPE 00000813 TEE 26 TRE 01778

NDKIA CHARGR 0043108404515 .91
COUNTER CARD 0410290020758 I
15 HONITOR 0769940303005  3%4.44 | &
SUBTOTRL 804,37
SALES TAX 1 29.4
TOTAL 435,85
CASH TEND  435.00
CHANGE DUE 0.13
TCH 0000 2853 Shéé 9412 9341 ¢
19408 101 13103:401
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ﬂ&ﬂlﬂE 007400063950 99.96
REFRIGERATR Q68805710122  169.84

( 776 ) 359 - 8200
ST8 2106 0P 00002821 TES 66 TR® 07826

LUGS CART 003905231895  9.88J |  FREEZER - OGRBOSTIIONE - 166.83
SUBTOTAL 9.8 ! D ETUSUBTOTAL 42663

TRX 1 7.280 % 0.72 J CLIPS  004SISAII99  2.47

10.€0 SKIN CARE  OIBISTO03478 -~ A.T7

20,00 - SUBTOTAL | 433.87 -

9.40 TR{! TBOX 3146

TOTR. 465,33
KCARD TEND 465,33

ACCOUNT 27541-09/03
APPROVAL 3045166
TRANS ID -
. _ unumugﬂ;m \
RESATE ; PAYMENT -
09/01/01 m:ss 54 . CHANGE DUE 0.00

# ITEHS SOLD 5

=Tk % A g
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WAL*MART

ALWAYS LOWY PRICES. ALWAYS WAL-MART. P . T

srmm. | WALAMART

GERALD LAL ALWAYS LOW PRICES. ALWAYS WAL-MART.
( 714 ) 491 - 0744 -

ST 2242 ops 00002941 TEZ 04 TRi 06236 | :
,.._..9 HOWINDVAC gg” 202233: : g j . w
f; SO0OMHZ PHONE 073507809116 H.91J o .
TAX 1§ 7%3070'{& 52:'; 24 :' o
. N WE SELL FOR LESS
TOTAL 628.44 ' MANRGER MATTHI
KCARD TEND 625,44 ? STE 2106 ¢ TS 00 3595! gg;m
' aPs ¢ 02911 TER 03 TRY 09685
ACCOUNT §541-09/03 HENS SDCKS 201309618061 3033 J
APPROVAL 2025104 SO0MHZ PHONE OT3I507R09116 H.97 4
TRANS ID ~ SUBTOTAL 33.95
VALIDATION: - TAX1 T.250 % 2.46
PAYHENT SERVICE - N TOTAL 35,41
CHANGE DUE 6.00 CASH TEND 40.00
# ITENS SOLD 3 oo

BAITRART™ i (i e

08720/01 13:24:1 i
mln'l fm CEBlTE
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@ round 1700 hrs,, VOLPICELLI picked up Defendant BOWMAN near the intersectionof

ie store and was 10liowed by othier Detectives.™ ———— = -~

- some things at area stores. BOWMAN stated that VOLPICEL LI would pay him

Incident Report O "o
RENO. POLICE DEPARTVENT 071-216321 Jocoz
'OFFICER 1: ;BROWN, MIKE

TF;—?‘T_— I IFE:“.;WN. HMIKE

'Narrative

DETAILS:

, : {e‘!’/

-On Wednesday, October 17, 2001, { was assisting other Detectives in the Repeat Offender X
Program with a surveillance involving Defendant Ferrll VOLPICELLI. He was followedto the 9
Wai-Mart Store at 155 Damonte Ranch Parkway in Reno, ! followed him inside thf storeand > = D

g

itnessed crimes acourring there. ) © - N
witnessed courring there.gC___ Wh e o e ‘&50&5@1 N v*"f::q 0‘3‘6 “’jov“‘; %

A
Washington and Third St. in Reno. They then drove to the area of Vassar and Kietzka where \"Qvfi‘,
BOWMAN wentto the office of Adult Parole and Probation. S
I
They then drove to Damonte Ranch Parkway and entered the parking lot of Wal-Mart. :2'-"’? $
VOLPICELLIthen got out of his vehicle and went into the store near the east side of the building ~~_ 5
{grocery store entrance). Det. ARMITAGE and | followed him into the store. VOLPICELLIwent -
to the bicycle dispiay rack and appeared to be tampering with one of the bicycles. He then went
to the electronics section of the store where he selected &\cordiess telephone and placed into
the cart he had obtained when he entered the store. I thenost sight of him when Det. ,
ARMITAGE vl_\:as following hti)m. ARMITAGE then told me thit he had gone out of the store whli:J
. \ * LY
leaving.the phone and cart behind. ety N%T J\??Lﬁfi_ wi %1
I then returned to my vehicle and continued fo monitor the activity of VOLPICELL!. He drove his
vehicle toward the front of the store and let BOWIMAN out of the vehicle. BOWMAN went into

OWMAN and VOLPICELLIwere arrested a short time later by RPD Officers KULL and YAWN.
They were transported to the Reno Police Departmentand placed into interview rooms.

At 6:30 pm, Det. LODGE and | began an interview with Def. BOWMAN, LODGE gave
BOWMAN his Miranda Rights and asked BOWMAN if he understood his rights. BOWMAN
stated that he understood and signed a waiver of his rights and agreed to give a statement
regarding the incident at Wat-Mart. '

BOWMAN stated that VOLPICELL! and he have been acquaintances since they met while both
were incarcerated at the Warm Springs Comectional Center. BOWMAN said that this was in
Novemberof 2000. BOWMAN said he has been in regular contact with VOLPICELL! since he
was released in June of 2001,

BOWMAN said VOLPICELLIhad called him via cell phone and said they were g%‘g:ogggﬂ 4
0

night for buying things with cash that VOLPICELLI would provide, BOWMAN said that

"VOLPICELLiwould ask him to buy specific items at certain stores. BOWMAN recalled buying a

home theater system at Wal-Mart, a rug at Lowe's, and a garbage disposal at Home Depat. {
asked about the bicycle that he had purchased at Wal-Mart. BOWMAN said that VOLPICELLI
had gone into the store to put a fraudulent bar code sticker on the bicycle. BOWMAN said he
;PR By Prfted AL

R1937/ARMITAGE, SCOTT 1 10/25/2001 10:53:49 |Page 2 of 3
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Tricident Réport- — |
RENO POLICE DEPARTMENT 7~ —01- s

. At 1610 hours, VOLPICEL LI drove his vehicle to 3rd ghd Washington, where he picked up
defendant Brett BOWMAN. They drove around town! and at 1640 hours, they arrived at the
Super Wal-Mart at 155 Damonte Ranch Parkway in Reno, Nevada. They parked the vehicle

l and VOLPICELLIwatked towards the entrance of Wal-Mart. (See Detective ARMITAGE'S
follow-up reference the vehicie.) While BOWMAN stood at the vehicte smoking a cigarette,
VOLPICELLtwent inside Wal-Mart through the east entrance. Detectives ARMITAGE and
BROWN followed VOLPICELLIin and monitored his activities. Ko ¥ {‘:{ ¢ X ot & L

VOLPICELLIgot a shopping cart and watked around the stope” He went over 1o the toy
department and looked at the bicycles that were on the display rack. VOLPICELL lie
l a bike and began tampering with the tags on the bike~The detectives co
what he was doing. Once he finished, VOLPIGELLIwent to the electroni e S
temoved a cordless phone from a display. He put the phone in the cart and walked overto the 3%* o&
l front of the store. He left the cart with the phone in it and went into the bathroom. Whenhe
came out of the bathroom, he did not return to the shopping cart and left the store; returning to v
his vehicle. & 3‘?&@

") 4
Two minutes after VOLPIGELLIlaft the store, BOWMAN went inside through the east entrance & o
at 1700 hours. Detective Sergeant DELLA and Federal P&P Officer HUNT went inside the store
through the west entrance to monitor BOWMAN'S activities. Once Inside the store, they found
I BOWMAN at the bike display. BOWMAN was having an employee remove the same bike from
the display that VOLPICELLI had been tampering with earlier. BOWMAN took the bike to
register #31, where store cashier Jufla VOLLOR was working. She asked BOWMAN to put the
l bike closer to her so she could scan the bar code. BOWMAN said, "I've already done that for
you. | took the tag off for you to make it easier.” VOLLOR scanned the bar code and the cost of
the bike with tax, came to a total of $74.36. BOWMAN gave her a $100 bill and she tendered
the change, BOWMAN got his receipt and exited the store.

l . DELLA and HUNT approached VOLLOR and asked how much BOWMAN had paid for the bike.
She told them it was $74.36. DELLA had looked at the price of the bike at the display, and it
showed to be $249.66. (SEE EVIDENCE.)

Qutside, while BOWMAN was buying the bike, VOLPICELLI drove his vehicle through the lot
and then gut onlo Virginia St., where he horth, re-entered the parking [of, and parked the

vehicle in a different space. »
: N’:}o‘;‘;{’qbﬂ

BOWMAN walked the bike outside to the vehicle, put it in the back and they drove off, We
asked dispatch for marked units, to stop the defendants. Officers YAWN and KULL responded
and stopped the vehicle in the 9400 block of S. Virginia. The defendants were subsequently
arrested for parole violations and transported to the Reno Police Departmentfor interviews.
Detectives LODGE and BROWN interviewed BOWMAN post-Miranda. (SEE THEIR
FOLLOW-UPS FOR DETAILS.)

During the interview, BOWMAN admitted that VOLPICELLI had changed the barcode on the
bike and then asked BOWMAN to go in the store and buy the bike for the fraudulent price. He
said that VOLPICELLI was going to pay BOWMAN $100 to help VOLPICELLI commit several of
these crimes during the day. At the conclusion of the interviews, both defendants were booked
into the Washoe County Jail by P&P Officers DIEK and ADRIAN for parole violations.

: V9.854
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35
|§“cb through the electronics section, then exited to the rear main aisle running east and west, He 1'1\“5

x
Y

[Incident Report § :
RENO POLICE DEPARTMENT 01-2 16321 10001

On Wednesday, October 17 2001, | was assistin%other Detectives in the RepeatOffender
Program with a surveillance involving Defendant Ferrill VOLPICELLL This involved keeping him
and/or his vehicle under surveillance throughout the day, which included crimes committed at
the Shopko Store, 5150 Mae Anne Ave, Reno, at about 1425 hours. (Please see case number
01-216452) | followed him inside the store at that time and witnessed crimes occutring there.

Later in the day, near 1700 hours, Detective Mike BROWN and | followed him into the Super

Wal-Mart at 155 Damonte Ranch Parkway. By that time he had picked up Defendant ]

BOWMAN. VOLPICELLI entered the store alone, and Detective M. BROWN and | went inside

as well. VOLPICELLIentered on the grocery side of the store, refrieved a basket, and walked

west through the store at the front along the Tegisters. He went through the toy alsles;, then
ntinued west to the bicycles.

Once at the bicycles, he stopped and perused that section for a while. He specifically spenta

few minutes at the rack holding bicycles, near the north comer on the east side. He aggﬁared to
reading the label, or price tag posted on the rack for the bicycleS When he was linis mQ
area, he then wa no rough the store info the electronics section. He walked

had put a cordless telephonein the basket, and it was the onlyitem in it. He tumed southin an k’l

) %
aisle that feeds into the registers, and stopped partway and looked at some items in ot
housewares. He then pushed the basket to the registers, and left the basket near one‘of them K Mw
with the phone still in the basket, He walked through one of the lines and into the men's $

minutes, then came out and exited the store atthe ¢ o< Xt
k inside, but Defendant BOWMAN did.

At about 1725 hours we had Patrol Officers
VOLPICELL! and BOWMAN left the store, and th

restroom. He was in the restroom
merchandise doors.. He did not go

N and KULL conducted a traffic stop as &
top occurred in the parking lot at 94380 S. ALK

' &rginia St. | was present for the stop, and conductetthe inventory of the items in the vehicle. «U@_\&

ease see the items listed on the Vehicle Report, and .the Property folder of this report.

For further detail, please refer to Detective TEASLEY's repo:

R1937/ARMITAGE, SCOTT 10/25/2001 10:53:08 [Page 8 of 8
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Unbeatable Every Day

2061 Lake Tahoe Blvd.
South Lake Tahoe, CA 98150
(530) 544-9817

EXCHANGE 553885 6 0UB 43282

1148 09/21/01 10:28

QTY SKU OUR PRICE

Fexepxrissx CTART RETURN #4 %ekekdtd 4%
RETURNED WITHOUT RECEIPT
1 EPSON LASER TONER
401331 -172.38
RETURN REASON CODE 2
Herediierkkt END RETURN *## ks ekt
1 BROTHER PT-2400 LA

012502525912 159.95
SUBTOTAL -12.43

7.0000%  Standard Tax -0.87
TOTAL $-13.30
Cash Card Issued -13.30

Account No. **xsxs#44x17000060 <S5

Card Balance: 13.30

FEORASTAPLES WILL NOT BE UNDERSOLD!#sxxsx

TOTAL ITEMS 2

R STARLES WILL NOT BE UNDERSOLD! #x+xt

THANK YOU FOR SHOFPING Al STAPLES '

Unbeatable Every Day
14350 Ocean Gate Ave.
Hawthorne, CA 90250

(310) 219-2572

SALE 541519 15 002 1347
0101 08/18/07 G4,

Q0 SKU OUR PRI

1 CENTURY BP MuL Imp

] 073228007274 20.95
1 3 PIECE LUGGAGE SE

752717503948 49,98
SUBTOTAL 70.96 -

RO ) T 5.66
T07AL $76.64
Cazn 10G.00
Candt clang 23.36

#0STAPLES WILL NOT BE UNDERSOLD ! sk

rora: ITEMS. 2

#4+0eSTAPLES WILL NOT BE UNDERSQLD! s#4s

THANK YOU FOR SHOPPING AT STAPLES 11

V9.857
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James R. Brooke Accorney ot Law

3392 Lakeside Cousrr * Rero. Nevada 89509
o (T02) 826-910 » Loy (7028 626-913 » C-Qai: Jb’.dulgcu@s\of.cum

Qctober 8, 1998

Judyge Margarct Springgate
P.0. Box 11130
Reno, NV 89520

RE:  State of Nevada vs. Ferrill J. Volpicelli
Dear Judge Springgate:

Having been Ferrill Volpicelti's family law attorey for the past year and a half, |
tepresented him throughout a rather complex, and, at times, bit\cr_dworce. What -
inpressed nic most has slways been Ferrill's genuine love, affection and concern for his
three children. Having met his children personally, [ can easily see haw strongly they
care for hint and are in aced of his care and attention, Since his incarcemt.ion. we !myc
talked at least once a weck and his primary concern has always been for his children’s
welfare. Accordingly, he has made financial arrangements, some through my ofice, for
their support and well-being. :

Although f don't represent him in this recent criminal matier, I belicve he is '
sincere in his contrition for past errors. The acts before yon now were despc.mc, but ifi-
conceived attempis by a father frantic to help his family. I firmly believe he is an
excelient candidate for probation, especially after he finishes his current federal sentence.
His children peed his support, paternal guidance and physical presence. He has iea::ncd
his lesson and is anxious to start from the bottom to put his life in order and be a caring
father for his children. It is my opinion that any further incarceration after compiction of
his present federal sentence would be counter-productive insofar as the children arc
concerined,

Thank you fur your consideration.

Very truly yours,
g

, Jyt{cs R. Brooke
JRD:bb )
Exhibit
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James R. Brooke Attorney at Law
4790 Caughlin Pkwy #408 ¢ Reno, Nevada 89509 ¢ Phone: 775-825-1123
e-Mail: JBLawyet@aol.com Fax: 775-826-9110

Nevada State Bar No. 21 _
November 28, 2000

Nevada Parole Board
1445 Hot Springs Road, Ste 108B
Carson City, NV 89706

Re: Ferrill Volpicelli #60076 @WSCC/Parole Hearing
Dear Sirs:

I represent Ferrill Volpicelli, inmate #60076. His parole hearing is scheduled for
late January, 2001, .

1 have been Mr. Volpicelli’s family law attorney for the past several years. I have
been in close touck with Mr. Volpicell, on a weekly basis, both telephonically and
through the mail, since his incarceration. He has kept me aware of his rehabilitation and I
am of the firm opinion he has full realization of the consequences of his criminal activity.
He is very aware of what poor choices led to his imprisonment.

While in prison, he remained a supporting parent to his children and his child
support obligation is presently cwrrent. 1 personally know of his continuing love,
affection and concern for his children. I am sure his visitation record is available to you.
He would like to retum to Reno and continue to support his children. He has held
licenses, in good standing, in the real estate and insurance brokerage businesses. He
anticipates employment with Sigstad & Company in Reno to reactivate his insurance
license and ultimately affiiate with a mortgage broker. In both employments, he is
subject to state regulations.

Needless to say, his incarceration has been an eye-opening experience. He has a
sound parole plan and has the support of his family and friends. He has been diligent in
working towards his objectives. Please pive Mr. Volpicelli the utmost consideration
regarding parole eligibility for May, 2001.

Very truly yours,

s R. Brooke

JRB:bhb

V9.861
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LAW OFFICES OF

ROBERT P. FAHRENDORY

838 CALIFORNIA AVENUE
P.0. BOX 3677
RENO, NV 805056

(702) 948.7775
PAX (703) 838-0840

Mareh 27, 1997

400 8, Virginia Strast
Renc, WV B89SD9S

RE: FRRRILL VOLPICELLE
Honorable Judge McKibben:

r" "7 7" "Honorable Howard D. McKibben
s . i i ho 1
' I am writing you in regard to Ferrill Volpicelli, w
have know for approximately eight years. During that time, I ha:g
mmsroies - - -- had the opportunity to e FPerrill-interact with the _cmmmn.;tvla 0 e
his family, specifically, his wife Lori and their children Ashley,
Chanel, Travis and Logan.

I have seen Perrill donate time to the community, helping .
out with Little League baseball and youth_basketball. He his
always been generous with his cime in helping the youth of this
community. In addition, 1 have been to his homa and know the love
. he has for his wife and children.

Ferrill has wmade a migtake and has acknowladged that :xg
wag wrong in his actions. He hag expresped IewoOrse to me a
realizes that he must be punished.

I am hopeful that this letter will help describe Ferrill
&s the man Chac'Iphave known, He is a good man who is not_m§¥+?9
excuses for his offenses. Ianstead, he is accepting reapanl.fw 1nY
and apologizing. I believe that there is hope for suc alt;abé
Therefore, any consideration in regard to his sentencing wou
appreciated by his family and those who know him.

' If you have any dquestions Or would like any further

information, please feel free to contact me at your convenience.

RPF:rlg

V9.862
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INTERNAL MEDICINE TORRANCE. CA 90504

INo-5a-121)

October 10, 1998

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

I write this letter on behalf of my son, Ferxrill, who is presently
incarceratad. I sincerely hope that consideration will_be given to
him for all of the changes that have come about since his incarceration.

I have noticed a remarkable change overall in his disposition, attitude
and introspection. I believe for the first time that he now realizes
the terrible price he is paying for his misdeeds, and how it has
affected him, and even more so his family and children.

Fortunately, Ferrill was intelligent enough to realize hs needed help,
not just incarceration. I would say that he has learned much from the
seminars and lectures he attended, and he is novw examlining himself
deeply, and is coming to face the stark reality of the proble@ end mess
that he created. his time in the facility is nothing by compdrison

to what he must face when he returns home. He will have to surmount
great obstacles, because wherever he applies for employment his past
will be noted, and this fact alone will make it unduly difficult to
cope with. He seems to be thinking of all these factors even now,

and is seeking legitimate ideas to build a new future for himself,

and he mentions frequently to be with his children again, and to
share his life with them,

Ferrill is a very intelligent person and véey capable, and now, this
time.he will build a more secure foundation and join and engage in
society the way he should have in the first place.

There is absolutely no doubt that he regrets his past, but it ls not
too late for him to plan a new and more secure future when he again
is allowed to'return to soclety.

It is my sincere hope that due consideration will be accorded hi®
and trust him for a final chance for a new and better future. He
needs that chance, and he needs the trust of the officials where he
is presently incarcerated. '

To A6 otherwise is to basically condemn him to hopelessness, and that
will accomplish little or nothing.

The family acknowledges what he has done (all too well), but we all
still feel that he is a good person basically, and can make good in

. society if only given the chance, and the respect that he needs to

finish bringing him back to the fold. s

¥. J. Volpicelli

Exhibit



March 25, 1997

To Whom it May Concern:

I have worked for Ferrill Volpicelli since October 1994, when he purchased
an espresso cart business called C.C. & Co. 1 performed the bookkeeping
duties from October 1994 through April 1996, I became the manager and
continued my bookkeeping from April 1996 to the present.

I have had only a business relationship with Ferrill. But | have: worked very
. closely with him and believe I can speak about his character with some
degree of knowledge.

I have found Ferrill to be very compassionate when his first manager was
having personal problems both financially and emotionally Ferrill was there
- to lend a helping hand. He give him money to assist in his legal battle as
well as a truck to get around town. He paid him excessively for the duties
he performed but felt that it was the least he could do given the problems
this man seemed to have. Unfortunately, this manager took advantage of
Ferrill by mismanaging his business and losing money each month. EiFher
because of thief- or just poor management it really doesn’t mattcr,.Femll
. looked the other way for a long time, but finally had to remove this man

from managing. I could never really understand why he would be so
generous with someone who was taking advantage of him, but he often
tried to explain and as best as I can understand he felt badly for him. He‘
seemed to believe that this man had it so bad and that was what was causing
the mismanagement. How could he possibly put this man out of a job
when he had a child to support.

This is how Ferrill treated all the people who worked for him. Regardless
of the problem they could come to him and he’d always extend a helping
financial hand. More than once the money advanced was never returned.
But I never heard him complain. He believed that their problems must be
the cause of their behavior. At Christmas time even when his business was
doing very poorly he bought gift certificates for the employees. He. 1s
always there to pick someone up during a snow storm or when their car
was broke down,

V9.864



It appeared to me that he treated his family with this same attitude.
Regardless of what problems they might be having he always was there to
take care of them. They seemed to have a good relationship, traveling
together often, eating out and just doing farily things. I have never
socialized with them, but often they would stop in at my yogurt shop and
visit. All seem quite well and they looked like a happy family.

Approximately three weeks ago everything changed. There seems to bea
major family disjunction. This disjunction has hampered the operation at
the espresso cart and caused many stressful moments for the employees as
well as myself. Do to these problems it has been requested that I give my
opinion of Ferrill.

Therefore, to summarize I can only say that it has been a pleasure working
for Ferrill. He is extremely kind and generous. I can only speak from my

L T o
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March 24, 1997

Stacy Ballard
2655 Camelot Way
Reno, Nv. 89509
323-7668

To whom it may concern,

I am writing this letter on the behalf of Ferrill Volpicelli. We have been next door ne:}'ghbom
for over three years. We have had a very friendly relationship with Ferrill and his entire
family, Ferrill has always proven himself to be a great neighbor and father, he is constantly
doing things for his children as well as other neighborhood kids. He often drives them to

various places, special kids events, and movies. Last week he took our six year old and hisson

- - o
..... - . .

t0 the kids falr af the Convention Center for the afiernoon. Ferrill can always be trusted o
take care of the children without any worries.

It is difficult to know what to tell you about Ferritl and the eypeoffam:?ymr: ke is. He has
many fine characteristics as a neighbor and o family friend. Our whole famz}‘y is deeply
saddened by this situation, since it not only affects Ferrill, but four young children and his
wife.

We sincerely hope this letter will in some manner make a difference to the court, and that the
court will look favorably on Ferrill and his family.

V9.866
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| Realty

652 Forest St., Reno, NV 89509 TELEPHONE (702) 668-4800

\_ﬂf

March 16, 1997

Re: Ferrill Volpicelli

To Whom It May Concern,

approximately the past 2 years. We met by going to the same gym, thg Reno Athletic
Club. As far as ] am concemned Ferrill has always been a fine upstanding member of our
community.

In the past six months, [ have become some what aware of his current problems with the
IRS. He has employed Keystone Realty Better Homes & Gardens services in orfler to
make sure that the financial institutions, that he has his obligations with, get paid the '
money they are owed. In the spirit of good will, Ferrill is doing the responsible thing with
no monetary gain.

1 look forward to continuing both a personal and working relationship with the
. Volpicelli’s for a long time to come, :

Sincerely,

R v—
e
Car] Jorge:

Keystone Realty
Better Homes & gardens

i
i
i
i
i
i
i
} " Ihave been an acquaintance of Ferrill for approximately the past 5 years and a friend for
i
i
i
i
i
i
i

“Each Firm Independently Owned and Operated” Q.ér m@
V9.870
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October 10, [998

To Whom It May Concem,

This letter is wrtten on behalf of my brother, Ferill J Volpicelli, and of equal importance
for ls four young children who reside in Reno, Nevads. As you may already know,
Fortill haa been incarcerated a1 the Federal Corrections Institute in Safford , Arizona since
Jamuary, 1998,

What you might not reafize, however, is the tutal destruction and devastation his
intemment has caused on hiy young children His eldest son, Travis, has had recurrent
problems with school truancy, whule his sixteen yeur old duughter, Chanel, stays out wntil
aj! howrs of the night. Hjs two other children sre so confused and depressed tmt they
won't interact with their peers and have lost all interest in any type of social iteraction.

Ferrill has availed himself of meny of the caurses and "self-help” classes offersd during
his confinement. He is very proud and excited abour the new parenting and living »xills he
has learned during his incarceration 1 can defimtely see and heve a changs for the positive
duning my telephone calls and personal correspondence with Ferill; however, he too is
worried and anguished over his children’s fusure.

Although Ferrill’s siblings and parents have tried to be give emotionsl and financial
rupport 20 their meces, nephews and grandchildren, his kids have been reluctant md
withdrawn and wuly need Fernll st home or neatby to help with their day to day living
sonditions.

Ferrill has been repentant and remorsefui for hus il deeds and should be given any
potential leniency snd/or easly probation options thet are aveilable. T would like to make a
fina) umble appeal on Perrill’s bebalf and for the fisture sake of my nophews and nioces,
Please do not hesitato to contact me for any additional inforroation | may provide to
expodite Ferrill’s timely return to society.

Respeotfully,

Mark Volpicelli, M.D

Exhibit -
Dasnit [ Brres, VD MaRY VLHAKL, M3 HENAY b LEVASTZ MO

v SaaE -1
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TESTIMONY OF GOY, BOB MILLER TO ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY
COMMITTEE ON COMPREHENSIVE CRIMINAL CODE REFORM. AB 317
MARCI 23, 1995

Chairman Andersan, Chairman Humke, and members of the Commitice. Thank you for
thiz opponunity to address one of the most imporant issues of the scssion.

1 want 10 begin this moming by recognizing the diligent and responsible cfforts that have
been put forth by so many members of the Nevada Legislature in (he quest for comprehensive
reform of our criminal codes, .

Members of the Judiclary Commitiees of both houses have boen hard at work grappling with
eriminal reform since iSc firmt days of the session, I belleve the numerous and lengthy hearings
that have been held to date were highly productive. Many quesiions have been raised, and many
questicns have been answered as you have tebored 1o develop the conceptual framework upon
which 10 build concrote Jegislation, This effor is most laudabls, all the more
because it ropresents a sincere bi-partisan effon to serve the nreds of out constitucnls.

1 have tooked forward o this day, when hearings would begin on the comprehensive
tegislation | have proposed (o atiack the problem of viokent crime. | have been involved in
dialogue with all of you on this lssus, And going back for well over a year, T have gathered the
strong opinions of peopls from throughout our communilies...law enforcment
professionals. ..victims of crime... civic leaders. .. and the genesal public.

The time has come lo take aciion. As I've emphasized so ofien, we must take action to be
bath Enugh--and smart--on crime. AB 317 ks the cnd product of thai philosophy. 1commend you
for giving this proposad legisaltion a full and in-dpeth hearing, beginning today.

First, 1et me talk about *tough.® Before the 1995 session adjoums, 1 want to sigh 2 bill that
sends the strongest message we can (o violent criminais. | want them off our streets, ...locked
away [or longer lerms,..in many cases, life without parole--¢ver--is y/hat justice Aemands.

That's why AB 317 beefs up Nevada's habitiual criminal statule in a very tough way. My
proposal--and I'm 100 peroert commitied 1o it--fequires prosecwions 1o invoke the habitual
criminal staiute whenever an offender Is tried for a third violent crime. That means the
proscuction must sect alife senience, I it's with parole, a conviction means at least 20 years
inprison, My proposal eliminates plea bargaining for repeat viclent of fenders.

It means, for example, that a third armed robbery, ot a third assavll, means a life sentence.
Nsiurally, & violen! offender can get & life sentence for a first offense for many crimes, but this
reform climinates the revolving door for all types of violent offenders,

This is getilng tough on crime,

/ EXHIBIT
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Electronically Filed
Sep 05 2013 04:58 p.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman

THE STATE OF NEVADA, sup. ct. Ca 18 gaugyeme Court

Plaintiff, Case No. CR03-1263
VSs. Dept. 9
FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLLI,

Defendant.

/
RECORD ON APPEAL
VOLUME 9 OF 13
POST DOCUMENTS

APPELLANT RESPONDENT
Ferrill J. Volpicelli #79565 Washoe County District Attorney’s
P O BOX 359 Office
Lovelock, Nevada 89419 Terrance McCarthy, Esq.

P O Box 11130
Reno, Nevada 89502-3083

Docket 63554 Document 2013-26286
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Case No. CR03-1263

STATE OF NEVADA vs FERRILL J VOLPICELLI

SEPTEMBER 5, 2013

PLEADING DATE | VOL. | PAGE NO.
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION TO PROCEED IN | 10/11/07 8 378-379
FORMA PAUPERIS
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF REQUEST TO PROCEED IN 05/11/04 3 465-467
FORMA PAUPERIS
AFFIDAVIT OF KAREN S. FRALEY 10/11/07 8 372-375
AMENDED JUDGMENT 06/18/13 6| 1180-1182
ANSWER TO PETITION AND SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION 02/05/07 8 335-337
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 01/16/04 3 375-376
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 08/20/07 8 364-366
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 12/12/03 3 360
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 08/09/07 8 363
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 11/05/07 8 386-387
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 01/28/08 9 524
APPLICATION TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS 12/06/11 6 | 1069-1072
APPLICATION TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS 10/11/07 8 376-377
BENCH WARRANT 06/11/03 2 3-5
BENCH WARRANT 06/17/03 2 16-18
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 04/22/04 3 453-454
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 06/22/12 6| 1113-1114
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 07/09/13 6 | 1404-1405
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 05/12/08 9 548-549
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 04/22/04 3 455
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 05/12/08 9 547
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — NOTICE OF | 06/22/12 6 1115
APPEAL
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — NOTICE OF | 07/09/13 6 1406
APPEAL
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — RECORD 08/30/12 6 1121
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CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL 05/12/08 9 546
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ERRATA TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR ORDER TO 09/13/05 6| 1031-1035
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REGARDING STATE BAIL

EX PARTE PETITION FOR CLARIFICATION ON ISSUES 08/01/03 2| 197207
REGARDING STATE BAIL

EXHIBIT LIST 04/01/04 04/01/04 11 1
EXHIBIT LIST 09/20/07 09/20/07 12 1
EXHIBIT LIST 11/10/03 11/12/03 10 1-3
EXHIBITS OF 04/01/04 04/01/04 11 2-99
EXHIBITS OF 09/20/07 09/20/07 12 2-189
EXHIBITS OF 11/12/03 11/12/03 10 4-59
EX-PARTE MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL 11/09/05 71 199-203
EXPARTE MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE 07/14/04 13 11-16
APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF AND JOINT APPENDIX

EXPARTE ORDER FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE 07/22/04 13 17-22
PREPARATION AND COMPLETION OF THE APPELLANT’S
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FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 04/14/08 9| 528532
JUDGMENT

FORMER COUNSEL'S RESPONSE IN ACCORDANCE WITH | 01/10/06 6 | 1044-1052
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LETTER FROM DEFENDANT 11/17/03 3 340-343
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN 07/01/13 6 | 1192-1403
SUPPORT OF NOTICE OF APPEAL
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IMPOSITION OF SENTENCE
MINUTES — 09/20/07 PETITION FOR POST 09/20/07 8 370
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CONVICTION/EVIDENTIARY HEARING
MINUTES — 09/24/03 MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL 09/24/03 3 245
MINUTES — 11/10/03 HEARING RE: CONFLICT OF 11/10/03 3 267
COUNSEL
MINUTES - 11/12/03 JURY TRIAL 11/12/03 3 268-274
MINUTES — ARRAIGNMENT 06/18/03 2 19
MOTION FOR CONTINUANCE OR STAY OF PROCEEDINGS | 07/01/13 6| 1188-1191
WITH PENDING SUCCESSIVE WRIT
MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED FEES WITH AFFIDAVIT 12/21/07 13 31-35
IN SUPPORT
MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED FEES WITH AFFIDAVIT 07/07/08 13 40-42

IN SUPPORT
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MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED FEES WITH AFFIDAVIT 10/27/09 13 45-49
IN SUPPORT
MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED FEES WITH AFFIDAVIT 04/2/10 13 54-58
IN SUPPORT
MOTION FOR LEAVE TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS 05/11/04 3 464
MOTION FOR ORDER TO COMPEL 09/12/05 6 | 1010-1023
MOTION FOR ORDER TO COMPEL 01/31/06 7 204-206
MOTION FOR PARTIAL DISMISSAL OF PETITION AND 02/05/07 8 338-346
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)
MOTION FOR RETURN OF PROPERTY AND REQUEST FOR | 08/03/04 5 965-970
HEARING REGARDING RESTITUTION AMOUNT
MOTION TO CORRECT ILLEGAL SENTENCE/MODIFY 06/03/13 6 1161
SENTENCE
MOTION TO CORRECT JUDGMENT TO REMOVE DOUBLE 05/14/13 6| 1139-11583
JEOPARDY AND ILLEGAL CHARGES
MOTION TO QUASH SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM 05/17/04 3 468-476
MOTION TO STRIKE FUGITIVE DOCUMENT 08/18/04 6 974-983
NOTICE OF ADDRESS CHANGE 06/01/04 3 480
NOTICE OF ADDRESS CHANGE 05/28//04 3 481
NOTICE OF APPEAL 04/22/04 3 451-452
NOTICE OF APPEAL 06/22/12 6| 1111-1112
NOTICE OF APPEAL 07/01/13 6| 1184-1185
NOTICE OF APPEAL 05/08/08 9 544-545
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF RESPONSIBLE ATTORNEY 02/10/12 6 | 1077-1079
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 06/10/08 9 554-559
NOTICE OF INTENT TO SEEK HABITUAL CRIMINAL 10/09/03 3 250-251
STATUS
NOTICE OF WAIVER OF APPEARANCE 12/21/07 9 522-523
NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF ATTORNEY 04/19/04 3 449-450
NOTICE OF WITNESSES PURSUANT TO NRS 174.234 11/07/03 3 257-260
OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR ORDER TO COMPEL 09/12/05 6 | 1024-1030
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OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR ORDER TO COMPEL AND 02/17/06 7 211-221
MOTION TO QUASH SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM
OPPOSITION TO PARTIAL MOTION TO DISMISS/REPLY 02/20/07 8 347-352
OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS 09/04/03 2 229-234
CORPUS
ORDER 08/13/03 2 223-225
ORDER 11/07/03 3 263-266
ORDER 06/01/04 3 484
ORDER 10/14/07 8 380-382
ORDER 12/05/07 13 30
ORDER 05/15/08 13 38
ORDER 05/15/08 13 39
ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL 06/01/04 3 482-483
ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL 08/10/06 8 319-321
ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL 06/09/08 9 552-553
ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF 05/24/12 6| 1107-1109
PROHIBITION
ORDER DENYING MOTION TO PROCEED IN FORMA 12/27/11 6 | 1073-1075
PAUPERIS
ORDER DENYING MOTION TO RECALL REMITTITUR AND 01/28/10 9 584
DENYING PERMISSION FOR A LATE PETITION FOR
REHEARING
ORDER DENYING REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT OF 04/27/04 3 459-460
COUNSEL
ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED 01/30/07 13 29
FEES
ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED 01/08/08 13 37
FEES
ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED 07/17/08 13 44
FEES
ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO CORRECT JUDGMENT OF | 06/04/13 6| 1176-1178
CONVICTION
ORDER PATYAILLY DISMISSING PETITION FOR WRIT OF 08/02/07 8 355-362

HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION) AND ORDER TO
SET HEARING
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ORDER QUASHING SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM AND 08/10/06 8 322-324
DENYING MOITON TO COMPEL
ORDER TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS 05/27/04 3 477-479
ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISINER 08/20/07 8 367-369
ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 01/22/04 3 377-378
ORDER TO RESPOND 12/12/05 6 | 1041-1043
ORDER TO RESPOND 12/18/06 8 332-334
ORDER TO STRIKE FUGITIVE DOCUMENTS 09/23/04 6 986-988
ORDER TRANSFERRING CASE 11/07/03 3 261-262
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS 08/08/13 2 208-211
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST 11/09/05 7 1-9
CONVICTION)
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST- 04/23/13 9 586-671
CONVICTION)
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF PETITION 08/08/13 2 212-222
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT 12/19/03 13 1-10
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12/27/11 6 1076
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02/10/12 6 1083
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 05/24/12 6 1110
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06/22/12 6 1116
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06/28/12 6 1118
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07/26/12 6 1120
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 08/30/12 6 1122
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 09/06/12 6 1125
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 09/06/12 6 1126
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03/18/13 6 1129
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 03/22/13 6 1132
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 04/29/13 6 1138
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PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 05/17/13 6 1158
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06/04/13 6 1179
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06/18/13 6 1183
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07/09/13 6 1407
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07/12/13 6 1409
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 08/09/13 6 1411
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12/04/09 9 571
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 12/30/09 9 583
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 01/28/10 9 585
RECIPROCAL DISCOVERY AGREEMENT 07/07/03 2 1-2
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF 11/06/09 13 51-53
ATTORNEY’S FEES AND EXPENSES
RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF 05/06/10 13 60-62
INTERIM ATTORNEY'S FEES
REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS 09/17/03 2 242-244
CORPUS
REPLY TO RESPONSE TO DEFENDANTS WRIT OF 03/02/12 6 | 1084-1104
PROHIBITION
REPLY TO STATES OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR ORDER | 09/27/05 6 | 1036-1039
TO COMPEL AND TO VAN RY’S ERRATA TO OPPOSITION
TO MOTION FOR ORDER TO COMPEL
REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL 04/22/04 3 457-458
REQUEST FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE REGARDING 06/21/04 3 487-491
CONTEMPT OF COURT- AND ORDER TO COMPEL
REQUEST FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE REGARDING 07/06/04 957-964
CONTEMPT OF COURT- AND ORDER TO COMPEL
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 06/14/04 3 486
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 08/03/04 S 971
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 08/03/04 S 972
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 08/03/04 5 973
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 08/26/04 6 984
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 08/26/04 6 985
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REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 09/30/05 6 1040
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 01/31/06 7 207
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 02/09/06 7 210
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 03/21/06 7 226
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 03/05/07 8 353-354
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 10/25/07 8 383-385
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 12/05/07 9 519-521
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 01/26/07 13 23-28
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 12/21/07 13 36
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 07/07/08 13 43
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 10/27/09 13 50
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 04/22/10 13 59
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION 04/10/12 6 | 1105-1106
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION 05/28/13 6| 1159-1160
REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPTS 05/07/04 3 462
REQUEST, AGREEMENT AND ORDER FOR PRE-TRIAL 07/09/03 2 191-192
RECIPROCAL DISCOVERY DEFENDANT'S REQUEST FOR
DISCOVERY
RESPONSE TO “DEFENDANT’S WRIT OF PROHIBITION” 02/10/12 6 | 1080-1082
RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO CORRECT 05/17/13 6 | 1154-1157
JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
RESPONSE TO PETITIONER'S “LETTER BRIEF” FILED IN 03/21/06 7/8 227-303
REPLY TO THE CITY OF RENO’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION
FOR ORDER TO COMPEL AND MOTION TO QUASH
SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM
RETURN 08/18/03 2 226-228
SECOND REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 01/31/06 7 208-209
SECOND REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 03/22/06 8 318
STIPULATION FOR CHANGE OF TRIAL DATE 10/07/03 3 246-248
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STIPULATION FOR CONTINUANCE 01/30/08 9 525-526
STIPULATION TO EXTEND TIME TO FILE SUPPLEMENT TO | 09/15/06 8 325
PETITION
SUBSTITUTION OF COUNSEL FOR THE STATE 03/22/13 6| 1130-1131
SUPPLEMENT TO PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS 11/21/06 8 326-331
CORPUS POST-CONVICTION
SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND 03/22/06 8 304-317
AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)
SUPREME COURT CLERK’S CERTIFICATE AND 04/29/13 6 1134
JUDGMENT
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 04/29/13 6| 1135-1137
SUPREME COURT - RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 06/28/12 6 1117
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 04/29/13 6 1133
SUPREME COURT CLERK'S CERTIFICATE AND 12/30/09 9 573
JUDGMENT
SUPREME COURT ORDER DENYING PETITION 11/12/08 9 560-561
SUPREME COURT ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF | 08/09/13 6 1410
RECORD
SUPREME COURT - ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION 07/26/12 6 1119
OF RECORD
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 12/04/09 9 564-570
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 12/30/09 9 574-582
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF LIMITED REMAND FOR 06/04/08 9 551
DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL
SUPREME COURT ORDER TO FILE SUPPLEMENTAL 09/10/09 9 562-563
APPENDIX
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 09/06/12 6 1123
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 09/06/12 6 1124
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 05/19/08 9 550
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 12/30/09 9 572
SUPREME COURT CLERK'S CERTIFICATE AND 08/01/05 6 999
JUDGMENT
SUPREME COURT NOTICE TO APPOINTED COUNSEL 06/14/04 3 485
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SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 06/30/05 6 989-997
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 08/01/05 6 | 1000-1009
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 03/18/13 6| 1127-1128
SUPREME COURT ORDER OF LIMITED REMAND FOR 05/11/04 3 463
APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 04/29/04 3 461
SUPREME COURT RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 07/12/13 6 1408
SUPREME COURT REMITTITUR 08/01/05 6 998
TRANSCRIPT — 02/14/08 PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION | 04/24/08 9 533-543
TRANSCRIPT — 04/01/04 SENTENCING 04/13/04 3 386-448
TRANSCRIPT - 06/11/03 06/20/03 2 20-168
TRANSCRIPT — 09/20/07 PETITION FOR POST CONVICITON | 11/08/07 8/9 452-515
TRANSCRIPT — 09/20/07 PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION | 11/08/07 8 388-451
TRANSCRIPT - 09/24/03 MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL 10/13/03 3 252-256
TRANSCRIPT — 10/24/03 MOTION TO CONFIRM TRIAL 11/26/03 3 344-352
TRANSCRIPT — 10/29/03 STATUS HEARING 12/02/03 3 353-359
TRANSCRIPT - 11/10/03 HEARING 12/15/03 3 361-374
TRANSCRIPT - 11/12/03 TRIAL 07/02/04 5 717-956
TRANSCRIPT - 11/13/03 — 11/14/03 JURY TRIAL 07/02/04 4 492-716
TRANSCRIPTS - 06/18/03 ARRAIGNMENT ON INDICTMENT | 06/23/03 2 170-190
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 320
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 321
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 322
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 323
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 324
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 325
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 326
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UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 327
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 328
UNUSED VERDICT FORM 11/14/03 3 329
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 330
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 331
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 332
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 333
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 334
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 335
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 336
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 337
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 338
VERDICT 11/14/03 3 339
WAIVER OF APPEARANCE 12/05/07 9 516-518
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But in any event, I don't object to the Court considering the

transcripts of the Bowman interviews with the policemen, and we

can get them for you, but I don't have them right this minute.

THE COURT: OQkay. I will be happy to consider them
even though they are outside the record I have.

MR. McCARTHY: I think that is the purpose of the
hearing is to expand the record.

THE COURT: QCkay.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Thank you, Your Honor. Thank you.
If the Court is willing to do that, I believe that will
satisfactoril? illuminate the issues that you have agreed to
hear today on Grounds 11, 12 and 14.

I should let Mr. Van Ry off the stand. I have
finished with him. Let me think about that real quick.
BY MS. ARMSTRONG:

Q I do have one last group of gquestions I would like t(g

ask you, Mr. Van Ry. As far as the prior convictions that wereg

used as the idea for the Judge to consider in the habitual
gsentencing, did you have an opportunity to review those before

you came into court that day?

A You mean the actual documentation of the convictions,
themselves?

Q Whatever was provided to Judge Elliott?

A I had an opportunity to review the pre-sentence

p

Y
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report which included reference to the prior cbnvictions, but 1
did not see--I never put my fingers on each separate convictiorn
of record, formal written conviction of record.

Q So you don't know if they were--if they met the
constitutional standard require for the Judge to consider themj

A Again, I didn't put my fingers on every conviction
that was listed, no.

Q I am particularly talking about the three that the
Judge considered for the enhancement?

yay I believe Ms. Riggs did bring those to the
sentencing. So I guess, to elabdrate, I believe at the
sentencing I did see the three prior to her admitting them for|

purposes of habitual criminal.

Q Did you review them for authenticity and other
requirements?
A I would say yes, but I don't remember. I am sure shsg

and I had a little discussion akout it before. Again, I don't
remember.

MS. ARMSTRONG: That is all I have for this witness,
Your Honor.

THE CCOURT: Mr. McCarthy, do you have any questions
of Mr. Van Ry?

MR. McCARTHY: I do, yeah.

/77
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CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. McCARTHY:

Q You were asked a few minutes ago if Mr. Volpicelli
actually used transcripts of Bowman's interviews with police tdg
help you frame questions. Does that refresh your recollection
at all on the question whether you had been provided with thosg
transcripts before the trial?

A If he was referring to them during trial, I would
presume that we had them.

Q Did it help you recall whether or nct ycou had them?

A I still don't really récall to be honest. During
trial he pointed to a lot of different things on a lct of
different occasions during the trial. In fact I kept asking

him to quit giving me sc¢ much information.

Q The prosecutor in this case was Tammy Riggs; is that
right?

A Yes.

Q Have you dealt with her before?

A Yes.

Q Did she have an open file?

A Yes,

Q She would make--Whatever she had would be available

to you for your inspection and copying; ie that correct?

A I would agree with that, ves.

31 V9.483
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Q Now, on cases where you do not employ an
investigator, you are free to do your own investigation, aren't
you?

A Sure.

Q When as a general rule if you are at sentencing with
a client and you are trying to persuade the Judge to impose a
relatively lenient prison sentence, do you find it wise to

dispute the amount of restitution?

A My answer would be it depends on the Judge.

Q Do you recall what judge imposed sentence in this
case?

A Judge Elliott.

Q How do you think about doing that with Judge Elliott

yiy That's kind of a lcaded guestion.

Q Are there judges, in your experience, who would see

such an argument about restitution being inconsistent with the
notion of one who is taking responsibility, is amenable to
rehabilitation, all those good things?

A Yes.

@) I won't ask you about Judge Elliott at this point.
Prior to sentencing, did your client seem to be more interested
in the length of the prison term or in the amount of
restitution?

A Clearly, the length, potential length of the criminal
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Ssentence.
Q Do you recall at the time of trial whether or not

Mr. Bowman had already been sentenced?

A Again, two questions. I don't recall, but I believe
he had been.
0 Assuming he had already been sentenced by the time of

trial, can you think of how he might be perceived of as still
owing some allegiance to the prosecutor?

A It is a speculative question at best.

O As a trial attorney?

A Yeah. I think that would be a hard sell.

Q Okay. Do you know or do you believe whether or not

Bowman negotiated directly with the District Attorney?

A I have actually neo idea how that negotiatioﬁ went .

Q It woﬁld be unusual for that to happen, wouldn't it?

A Well, it would be unusual for me to find out about
it.

Q When vour client is on trial, who generally does the

negotiating, you or the defendant?
A Usually the lawyer.
MR. McCARTHY: That is all I have. Thank you.
THE COURT: Msg. Armstrong, any other questions?
MS. ARMSTRONG: Just a couple, Your Honor. Thank

you.
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BY M3, ARMSTRONG:

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Q Is it your testimony this afterncon, Mr. Van Ry, you

chose not to contest the restitution amcunt as a sentencing

tactic or a trial tactic at sentencing?

A I really don't remember. Perhaps. I honestly don't

remember.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Thank vou.

THE COURT:

Anything else?

ME. McCARTHY: Neo.

THE COURT:

THE WITNESS:

THE COURT:

THE WITNESS:

Then, Mr. Van Ry, you are excused.
Thank you, Judge.
Sorry about the small chair.

It is this thing. My knees are two

inches above it. Should I leave Exhibit 5 and A here, Judge?

THE COURT:

THE WITNESS:

Ms. Armstrong, you may take them.

2m I free to go or do I need to stay?

MS. ARMSTRONG: You are free to go as far as I am

concerned.

MR. McCARTHY: So am I.

THE WITNESS:

Thank you, Your Honor.

(Witness excused.)

MS. ARMSTRONG: I don't have any further witnesses,

but as I stand here thinking about this Exhibit A that has not
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been admitted or authenticated, I believe that I should have
had a witness here to do that, and I wonder if the Court would
allow me to come back at a later time to have this
authenticated and admitted in support of our restitution
argument.

THE COURT: Well, I am kind of hopeful to get this
case taken care of today. I think there is another witness out
there that might know something about it anyway.

MS., ARMSTRCNG: If I could authenticate it through
that witness, if Mr. McCarthy is planning to call her.

MR. McCARTHY: I am p;énning to call her. ‘I don't
know. I don't have the entire trial file here. I have no
police reports, things like that. So Ms. Riggs might know. I
don't know where that document came from. She might.

MS. ARMSTRONG: I'd be willing to ask her.

THE COURT: Does the State want to call a witness?

MR. McCARTHY: Sure. Scon as she is deone, I will
call Tammy Riggs if the Petitioner is domne.

THE CCURT: Please have a seat in the witness chair.

/17
/77
/17
/17
11/

33 V9.487



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

TAMMY RIGGS
called as a witness, having been first duly sworn,

took the witness stand and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. McCARTHY:
Q Do you want to intrcduce yourself, please?
A Yes. My name is Tammy Riggs, T-A-M-M-Y. R-I-G-G-S.
I am a Deputy District Attorney with the Washce County District

Attorney's COffice.

Q Were you involved in the prosecution of Ferrill
Volpicelli?

A Yeg, I was. I was the prosecutor.

Q I am geing to show you what is tagged as Exhibit A.

Do you know what that ig?
A Yeg. This is the inventory of the precperty that was

stolen by Ferrill Veolpicelli.

Q Do you know whe prepared that document?

A This was prepared by Reid Thomas of the Reno Police
Department.

Q When you prcsecuted this case, did you have that

document in your file?
A If it isg Exhibit A, I believe I did.

Q The thing that is labeled as Exhibit A, did you have
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that in your file?

A You know, Mr. McCarthy, I don't recall this specific
exhibit, but I do recognize the list of items as those items
that were stolen by him.

Q- Did you take a look at your files lately?

A Yes, I have.

Q Today?

A Yeg.

Q What were you looking for?

¥\ Specifically, I was loocking for what was alleged in
the Writ of Habeas Corpus as far as what was discovefed and
what may not have been discovered in this case.

Q Can you tell the Court what dces a red star on a
document in your file mean to you?

A A red star indicates that this file has been
presented to our Discovery Division, and that the Discovery
Division has made a copy of that item. That they have
forwarded that to be released to the defense for their use, andg
then they apply the red star to the item that has been
discovered to indicate to us that that has been released to the
defense.

Q Did you check for red stars on transcripts of
interviews by one Mr. Bowman and various police officers?

A Yes, I did.
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Q Were there red stars on those documents?
A On every single transcript in the file.
Q From those, do you conclude those transcripts had

been provided to Bradley Van Ry?
A Yes, I do.
MR. McCARTHY: That ig all I have.
THE CQOURT: All right. Ms. Armstrong, you may ask
questions of the witness.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. ARMSTRONG:

Q Ms. Riggs, your testimony is that it is a practice in
your office to put a star on something once it has been |
discovered or sent to the defense attorney?

A Yes.

Q Do you know in this particular case if those stars
reflected that the materialé had been sent to Jack Alian rather]
than Mr. van Ry?

A I know that they had been gpecifically released to
whoever was Ferrill Volpicelli's attorney at the time they werg
produced, because I went into the D.A.'s business system and it
indicated discovery was requested by defendant Volpicelli and

was released to him.
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Q So that tells you what, it was released to his

attorney at that time?

A Whoever was representing Ferrill Volpicelli.

Q Do you know who that was?

A No.

Q So ig it possible that those documents were provided

to Mr. Alian and not directly to Mr. Van Ry?

A They were provided to Ferrill Volpicelli.
9] How could he get them?
A Mr. Volpicelli repeated over and over again during

the course of this trial that he wanted copies of his

documents, so he was provided all of his documents, to my

knowledge.
Q By vour office?
A These were released to Ferrill Volpicelli. Whoever

his agent wag at that time received thoge documents.

Q So what your system-- What your review of your
system tells you today is that Mr. Volpicelli wag represented
by an attorney. The documents were provided to Mr. Volpicelli,

to hig attorney?

A They were released to Ferrill Volpicelli.

Q Did he come and pick them up?

A I don't work in Discovery, so I don't know.

Q Do you know he was in custody so he couldn't come
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pick them up?
A I can't speculate.
Q He would have to rely on his attorney to provide the

discovery, wouldn't he?

A Again, I can't speculate.

Q You don't provide two sets do you?

Y.\ Sometimes we do.

Q Is that in the event there has been a change in
attorney?

A Sometimes we provide two sets of discovery. In fact,

in this case, I noticed there were some items that were double

discovered. It just happens.

Q Not every item was double discovered was 1t?
A No, but every item was discovered.

Q You were able to confirm that this morning?

A Yes, I did.

Q So let me ask you specifically, and I suppose

Mr. McCarthy already did, I was trying to listen to
Mr. Volpicelli, did you specifically say that you had
discovered each and every interview of Brent Bowman with the

Reno Police Department?

A Yes.
Q That is a total of five or sgix interviews?
A Yesg.
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Q And you are able to confirm those have been provided
toc someone?

A Yes,

Q You can't tell us as you sit here today exactly who
received the document, can you?

A I don't work in discovery, so I don't know who came
and picked them up.

Q Do you recall that several months before this case
went to trial, I think it was in June or so, that you were in
court with a group of attorneys. Mr. Volpicelli was
represented by several attorneys at one time?

A I was in court on many, many days with
Mr. Volpicelli. You would have to be more specific as to what
you are talking about.

Q This particular day I believe you appeared in front
of Judge Hardesty. Judge Hardesty ordered within a week you
and Mr. Van Ry sign a reciprocal discovery agreement.

A I don't recall that specific inquiry or that
requirement by Judge Hardesty or that conversation.

Q If I told you it was part of the record, you wouldn't
dispute it, would you?

A No.

Q Do you recall that Mr. Volpicelli was originally

represented by Mr. Alian in this case?
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A I recall that Mr. Volpicelli had a lot of arguments
with Mr, Alian, and Mr. Alian at some point conflicted off the
case and Mr. Van Ry became his attorney. I believe that
Mr. Volpicelli went through several attorneys on this case.” I

am not sure. Well, he had four caszesg, g0 he had several

attorneys.

Q But Mr. Alian had this particular case before Mr. Van
Ry had it?

A Again, he had four cases. I don't specifically

recall which Mr. Alian was on and which he was not.

Q Do you have any recollection of Mr. Volpicélli
specifically requesting that these interview documents be
provided to Mr. Van Ry?

Py I know they were provided to Mr. Volpicelli, but I

can't gpeculate as to what he wanted or didn't want.

Q You have worked in Washoe County for several years?

A Yes.

Q And you have had experience with Mr. Alian over the
yearsg?

A Yes.

Q Iz he the kind of guy that makes a set of copies of

discovery and provides it to the client?
A I have no idea.

ME. McCARTHY: Your Honor, it sounds like this
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witness is being asked to testify either to Mr. Alian's
character or habkits and customg, and I don't think either one
is appropriate.

THE COURT: Well, the witness already said she
doesn't know. I guess that is to be expected, so I will
overrule the objection. We'll accept the witness' statement.
BY MS. ARMSTRONG:

Q Was it at your request that detective Thomas prepare
what was admitted as Exhibit 5 at sentencing? If you can't
remember that, I can show you Exhibit 57

A I don't remember.

MS. ARMSTRONG: May 1 apprcoach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Thanks.

BY MS. ARMSTRCNG:

Q Now, that you have seen Exhibit 5, do you recall thid

exhibit?
A Not specifically, but I recall all the items on it

that were stolen by Ferrill Volpicelli.

Q You don't know if you had this prepared to aid you at
sentencing?
A I don't recall whether I had that or I specifically

requested detective Thomas to prepare that or whether he did

that through somebody's else request. I just don't remember.
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am sorry.

Q As you sit here today, Ms. Riggs, do you recall the
two-day trial that involved all these Indictments regarding
this stolen property?

A Do I recall being in it? Yes.

Q Not much specifically, though?

A Well, you know, that is kind of a vague guestion.
guess you would have to ask me more specifically.

Q All right. There were occasions when
Mr. Volpicelli-- when Mr. Bowman testified. One instance he

testified that he had never been a person who could have
received the habitual criminal enhancement as a result of his

conviction in this case. Do you remember him saying that at

trial?
A I don't specifically remember him saying that.
Q If he did, it would have been false, wouldn't it?

A I don't know. I don't remember. Mr. Bowman was a
repeat offender target.
Q The criteria for the habitual criminal enhancement

isn't repeat offender program, is it?

A Oh, no.

Q It is the number of prior felony convictions?
A Yes.

Q Or misdemeanors?
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A Veg.

Q So do you recall Mr. Bowman had mere than three
felony convictions?

7\ I don't recall.

Q Sco you don't recall him testifying that he didn't

receive, as a favor in this case, no habitual criminal

enhancement ?
A That was not contemplated as far as I know as part of

his plea agreement.

o) Did you do his plea agreement?
A I did not, but I have had a chance to review it.
Q Well, any three-time convicted felon is potentially

subject to that; aren't they?

A No.
Q Is that right? Why not?
A Because it would be a waste of the system's resourcesg

if we tried to apply the habitual offender status to all people
who have three felonies in their background. That habitual
offender status is ieserved for the worst criminals.

Q So it is a policy not a law because the law, itself,
the statute, itself, simply requires three prior convictions?

A I don't understand your gquestion.

Q I didn't understand your answer. I believe you said

that the habitual criminal enhancement wouldn't have been
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available to the State to impose on Mr. Bowman?

A Are you saying--Are you asking me whether we would
have considered imposing that or asking the Court for that or
whether he is eligible for that under thé law?

Q Eligible first.

A As far as I know, he would have been eligible if he

had three felonies.

Q You know that he had three felonies?
A No, I don't.
Q Wouldn't that have been information you would have

had to provide Mr. Van Ry five years ago?

A Yes.

Q So what are you saying? If you knew that he had
three or more felony convictions in 2003, would you have let
Mr. Van Ry know that?

A I am confused by your question.

Q In the defense practice, it is common to impeach a
witness with prior convictiéns for felonies, particularly if
they are within the last ten years. So in your practice, if

you knew that the witness for the State had prior felony

convictions, wouldn't you give that information to the defense

attorney?
A I did.
Q How do you know that you did?
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A Because I reviewed my file on Brent Bowman that was
included in the Volpicelli file today, and there was a faxed
dccument that included the Guilty Plea Memcrandum as well as
the defendant's, Bowman's, c¢riminal history attached to it.

Q How is the criminal history attached?

A It was--The criminal history was separate underneath
the Guilty Plea Memo, and on top of that was the faxed document
containing Mr. Van Ry's address, et cetera.

Q Are you talking about the NCIC printout or is it
something typed up that says convictibn one, conviction two?

¥\ I am talking about the NCIC printout.

Q Okay. In my jurisdiction, thogse aren't commonly
given to defense attorneys. Here you allow them to have that?

A Well, this one I did for the defense. That is what
appears from my file.

Q Do you recall when you were working with detective
Thomas on thisg that he aided Mr. Bowman in obtaining his last
paycheck from the Sands Cagino?

A I have no idea.

Q Toc long ago?

A No knowledge about that.

Q Toc long ago?

A I don't have any knowledge about it.

Q Did you personally review the interviews between
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Brent Bowman and the Renc Police Department? I am talking
about five or six different ones beginning on the date of
arrest, 10-17-03, then there are a couple more in December I
think. We have some more at the beginning of the year of

2002. Did you review those before trial?

A Yes.

Q Each and every one?

. To my knowledge I did. They are all in my file.

Q So you would have read every word of every interview?
A Yeg, five years ago.

Q You, yourself, had a couple of interviews with

Mr. Bowman before coming into court?
A I recall one.
MS. ARMSTRONG: I think that is all the gquestions I
have, Your Honor. Thank vyou.

THE COURT: Any other gquestions Mr. McCarthy?

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. McCARTHY:
Q You wouldn't happen to have an extra unmarked up copy

of those police interview transcripts would you?

A Unmarked up?
Q Yeah?
A I don't believe that I do. All the transcripts I
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have have the red stars on them.
Q Other than the star?
A I don't recall. I know several of them are marked

up. I don't know how many are unmarked. I just don't know, I

am sorry.
Q That's all right.
MR. McCARTHY: That's all I have. We'll try to work
1t out.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Then, Ms. Riggs, you may be excused. Why
don't we take a recess? |

(Short recess taken.)

THE COURT: You may be seated. Ms. Armstrong, how
would you like to proceed?

MS. ARMSTRONG: Thank you, Your Honor. During the
recess, I telephoned the office where Mr. Volpicelli told me heg
got this document, and it was the City Attorney's Office, and
the City Attorney in particular that he had talked to is out of
town until next week. I am not sure she could have
authenticated it anyway. I think it will probably take the
policeman who actually prepared it. So I think what I would
like to ask the Court is to allow me to obtain an Affidavit to
supplement the record from the author of this report within thé

next ten days or so, if possible, just so you would know that
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this is true and accurate.

And other than that issue, I am prepared to argue.

THE COURT: As to that matter, Mr. McCarthy, do you
have any opinion?

MR. McCARTHY: I will have to go out of character andg
get hard nosed. Today igs the date of the hearing, Judge, and:
the evidence is completed. I ask it be submitted for
decision. I object to a ten-day recess to gather additional
evidence.

THE COURT: Well, I do feel every effort should be
made to provide a complete record. I mean this thing is coming
on years later. I think we can afford the time to allow
Ms. Armstrong to obtain an Affidavit if she can get it from
somebody to authenticate the document, you know, attempt to do
that. I am going to allow Ms. Armstrong to go forward to
attempt‘do that with regard to what we know as Exhibit A,
then.

MR. McCARTHY: All right. Okay. Fine, Your Honor.

THE COURT: But then I suppose as to the other issues
Numbers 11, 12 and 14, I think we can go forward with those to
determine those today. BAnd it would just be 7 that I guess is
somewhat in the air. What that really is is just a challenge
to the amount of restitution. It is not going to result in a

retrial or re-sentencing or anything like that. I think it is
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just a way to get around to the restitution at a later time.

All right, Ms. Armstrong, you may proceed then.

MS. ARMSTRCONG: Thank you, Your Honocr. As far as theg
other issues, not the restitution as youlhave just statéd,
Grounds 11, 12 and 14, those all, to me, involve trial
counsel's performance during the trial, and particularly in
terms of what he had reviewed prior to beginning the trial, and
then how effective he was in using that information to impeach
the State's, one of the State's witnesses, the original
co-defendant, Brent Bowman. And as I mentioned earlier, Your
Honor, in Mr. Volpicelli's Pro Per Petition that was-filed on
November 9, 2005, he has I think done a very good job of lining
out exactly what question was asked and then what could have
been used by way of cross-examination by Mr., Van Ry to impeach
the answer given by Mr. Bowman. And they mainly invelve the
issues of whether Mr. Bowman was given any reward in exchange
for his testimony or his plea. The issues also involved
whether Mr. Bowman ever went into the stores and put
these--changed the UPC codes on the items, himself. At trial
he continually denied doing so, yet in his statements to the
polide, he had told them that, yes, he had done that on several
occasions. Mr. Van Ry did not cross-examine based on the
previous inconsistent statement in that instance.

Another issue in which a previous inconsistent
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statement was not used for cross-examination was the statement
by Mr. Bowman that Mr. Volpicelli bought the label maker that
was used to change the UPC codes. In cne of the interviews,
Mr. Bowman admits that he bought that label maker.

The third topic would have been something I alluded
to earlier, because Mr. Bowman was in custody, he was unable tao
pick up his final paycheck from the Sands Casino where he was
working, so the police officers helped him get that. He denied
that that had happened at trial. And if Mr. Van Ry had, it is
our argument, if Mr. Van Ry had in black'and white something ta
impeach him with and that is the best kind of impeachment, he
should have done that.

Ancther issue was what proceeds Mr. Bowman gained
from this enterprise, and Mr. Bowman testified that he only
received I think a coffee pot and a toothbrush or something.
Again, in the interviews with the detectives, it is apparent he
also received a home sterec television system, a home theater
system. Pretty expensive iﬁem. Again, if Mr. Van Ry had
confronted Mr. Bowman with his previous statement during the
trial, the jury would have been able to discern that Mr. Bowman
was less than honest about many of the facts of this case. And
because he was such an important witness to the State, we think
that would have made a difference in the long run.

You know, the State has agreed to supply you with ths
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transcripts of those interviews with Mr. Bowman, so I am
arguing to you today only what has been recited by

Mr. Volpicelli in his Petition. I think that is all I have on
that issue, Your Honor.

But, generally, because there was impeachment
available from prior recorded statements that was not used over
and over and over, not just one time and not just, you know, a
trial attorney can't be 100 percent all the time, of course,
but we believe in this instance, because of the demonstrable
inaccuracies as impeachment, this rises to the level of
ineffective assistance.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. McCarthy.

MR. McCARTHY: Thank you, Your Honor. The claims ars
rhrased in a couple of ways. One is a failure to disclose
evidence by the prosecution. I think that has been pretty
disproved., Mr. Van Ry believed he had received everything, and
Ms. Riggs was adamant that everything had in fact been
delivered. So it converts to a claim of ineffective assistancd
standard, failure to properly utilize everything. I would
remind the Court that a claim of ineffective assistance of
counsel requires a demonstration that counsel's specific
decisions fell below an objective standard of reasonableness.
Subjective standard is not appropriate. Further, prejudice is

an element of the claim. They must show if the lawyer had
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acted differently, it is reasonably likely the result of the
litigation would have been different. All we are talking abouf
here, all this impeachment business ig about much ado about
nothing, for lack of a better phrase.

Furthermore, and finally before I get into the
‘specifics, I mentioned earlier, Your Honor, in a trial,
questions have no value. Answers are what the jury is to
consider. Without Mr. Bowman here to testify how he would havs
responded to any given question, we have half a case at best.
There is information available that could have led Mr. Van Ry
to ask a guestion, but we have zero evidence on how Eowman
would have responded. So I suggest there is nothing to
consider here.

Moving from that to the specifics, I notice one of
the claims concerns the label maker that was the instrument of
this great fraud. And the specific question posed to Bowman
wag asked: Did you buy that at a Staples store in Califormia?
The answer was no. The transcript will show, which you don't
yet have, will show the gquestion was did you buy it and the
answer wag yes. Thoge are completely different things. They
are different questions. 8o there is nothing to impéach here.
It is not inconsistent at all.

The question of Bowman that was asked at trial was

did detectives assist you in getting a paycheck from the Sands
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Hotel. Once again, the specific question. The answer was no,
it never happened. The prior statement that is the taped
interview with the police will reveal he said I picked up my
paychecks. They were on my person when i was arrested. They-
are now in my property. They are going to expire if I don't
get them negotiated. And the cop said, yes, I can help you
with that, get it out of the evidence wvault of personal
property, give it to you so you can do with it what you will.
There is no statement saying the police helped him obtain a
paycheck from the Sands Hotel. He already had it. BAgain,
there is nothing inconsistent. There is no impeachment there.
Even if that were significant in some way, which it isn't,
there is still no impeachment.

I notice that Mr. Bowman had already been sentenced,
page 155 of the transcript, in which he testified he had
already been sentenced by the time of the trial. So we want tg
impeach him with a perceived value of the plea bargain when
he's no longer under the thﬁmb of the prosecutor and the
prosecutor can't do anything with him. I don't know the value
of that. I suggest it would not have altered the outcome to
see that the plea bargain is really a very good plea bargain.

He was thoroughly cross-examined, and Bowman was
cross-examined on the subject, actually directly examined on

the subject of his plea bargain, and it was fully disclosed to
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if they had known it was a very, very, very, good plea

the jury. They knew he pleaded out to avoid, I think he said
81X separate felonies. I suppose maybe it is a gualitative

difference, you know. But I don't gee how it can get--how thay
can make the difference. You have got a.plea bargain. You got

a very good plea bargain. Well, the jury would have acquitted

bargain. That seems to suggest more likely than not the
outcome would have been changed.

I also suggest there is no evidence anywhere that
anyone discussed specifically the habituél criminal allegation
with Mr. Bowman. Now whatever his lawyer said to hiﬁ I have ngd
idea. You may notice that lawyer did not testify in this
hearing. I conclude from that, Your Honor, you also still
don't know what that lawyer said to him, what came up in
negotiation and what did not. Once again we have half a case.’

The proceeds, what Bowman kept, you know, I couldn't
figure out from the trial transcript precisely what question
and answer one might impeach. I know what inconsistent
statements are, but I don't know what is the consistent
statement. There has to be a specific time in which one
interposes or one raises the impeachment. I couldn't find
that. I don't know where it is. But assuming it is somehow
pertinent, and Van Ry could have agked some question about the

home sterec system, when Your Honor is provided with the
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complete transcripts not merely excerpts and the pleadings,
Your Honor will see Mr. Bowman claimed then to have bought,
purchased lawfully, the home entertainment system that was
found in his home. How that is inconsistent with anything at
trial I don't know. Can we ask Mr. Volpicelli to keep it down
a little bit here?

By the way, among other things, Petitioner bears the
burden of proving any decisions made by counsel were not
strategic or tactical decisions. ©On that subject, Mr. Van Ry
didn't recall a whole lot about the trial as one might expect.
But you may notice that page 236 or 237 of the trial
transcript, I am sorry, I don't remember which, today Mr. Van
Ry described he told the court then that his choice of the
scope of cross-examination was in fact a tactical strategic
decision. There being no evidence to the contrary, it hasn't
been proved it wasn't a tactical decision and, therefore, the
Petition ought to be denied at least on those other grounds.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Anything else on these
subjects, Ms. Armstrong?

MS. ARMSTRONG: I don't believe so, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well then from what I have heard, I mean
we know Bowman was given a deal, had already pled, was
sentenced at the time the trial came around. It was certainly

true he was no longer beholding to the Digstrict Attorney's
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Office to maintain some kind of a deal. So I think it would bsg
somewhat ineffective to push it too far that he has, you know,
gctten a deal. That was already known.

With regard to the issue of did Bowman change UPC
codes, frankly, I guess we don't really care. I mean I can't
see that it matters. It is certainly not falling below any
objective standard of reasonableness on the part of the defense
counsel not to pursue it any further than it was. In terms of
who bought the label maker, I will accept that there really
isn't any strong impeachment there based on what has been told
to me by Mr. McCarthy.

The issue of did the police actually get Bowman's
check from the Sands, again, I don't find any value to that if
all that happened. They helped him negotiate the check when he‘
had it in his personal property at the jail.

The issue of did he get an expensive TV or, you know,
what he personally got out of the deal in his relationship with
Mr. Volpicelli, again, I don't see any value to the
cross-examination. Should it have been fruitful to contend
that he obtained a TV, something more than he claimed that he
received on the stand, I don't imagine anybody would really
believe Mr. Bowman is, you know, the most up and up, you know,
outstanding citizen as he comes in to testify and that he

admits he's a participant in a criminal enterprise and he
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admits he's been convicted of prior felonies. We know that he
is not, you know, your typical Chamber of Commerce member. I
don't feel that any of these issues would fall below the
objective reasonableness on the part of defense counsel for
trying to raise some picky point that, you know, the answer
doesn't correspond with some prior response he may have given
to the police. And, certainly, the result would not have been
any different for Mr. Volpicelli, because, again, I don't think
anybody believes that, you know, Mr. Bowman is the most up and
up guy, but he's just a guy that has, yvou know, already pled
out. He admits to his participation and explains soﬁe of, you
know, his role with Mr. Volpicelli. But the case doesn't hings
just on that, just on his 100 percent credibility. So, you
know, there are many other things at issue in the case beyond
that.

Anyway, I do make those findings. With regard to the
exculpatory evidence, I believe, based on the testimony of
Ms. Riggs, there was no withholding of any exculpatory
evidence. All the information that the Court has benefit of ig
that, if anything, that the District Attorney's Office be found
they released it to Mr. Volpicelli's attorney. And we know
nothing else of this background is unfounded.

I would leave open the issue as to number 7, the

correct amount of restitution. I can understand in a case liks
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this where, you know, prison time is the overwhelming issue and
$10,000 really doesn't mean that much, and I suppose in the
reality, once Mr. Volpicelli received his sentence, there is a
very slim possibility that any restitution will ever be
collected from him, highly unlikely. It could happen, but I
don't really expect it. So it is not an issue in the case wher
you look at the much bigger picture of a life sentence hanging
in the balance here. So I think, still, Mr. Volpicelli is
entitled to his case here that you would like to contest the
amount of restitution, and maybe it wasn't in fact appropriate
and more could have been done. But that is not something that
is going to result, in essence, really, to a recpening of the
entire sentencing or a new trial or anything to that . extent.
It would just be a contest of some of the dollars.

With that, I do rule in favor of the State as to
Ttems 11, 12, 14. And number 7 I weculd like to receive
additional information on that.

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, you mentioned as you were
making your rulings that it was partly dependent whether I
accurately described the transcript interviews with the police,
and we haven't provided those to you. Does it make a
difference?

THE COURT: Well, do you feel, you know, I mean it

just sounds to me like these are not points that is going to
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turn anything around here.

MR. McCARTHY: I think Your Honor could legitimately
argue if the impeachment was available, Your Honor could
legitimately say it wouldn't have made ahy difference, then it
doesn't matter if I described it correctly or not. I would
still like to provide those to you. We have the ten-day
extension.

THE COURT: Are you saying as an officer of the court
you are representing thege things accurately?

MR. McCARTHY: That is a good éssumption. If you
can't trust old uncle Terry, who can you trust? I wéuld like
you to have them. Maybe when we come back after you see the
additional Affidavit, vyou can let us know if that has changed,
if your review of those transcripts has changed your holding.
How about that?

THE COURT: All right. That is fine. I am willing
to wait to give any final ruling on this, so I can confirm what
you are telling me is accurate.

MR. McCARTHY: I read them. I will make sure you get
them one way or the other.

THE CQURT: OQkay.

MR. McCAETHY: By stipulation.

THE COURT: We'll stand in recess.

{Short recess taken.)
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bench, Ms. Riggs gave me a copy of the transcript we have been

talking ab

policemen,

have an agreement Exhibit 1 is an authentic copy. I submit it

THE

ME.

out,

and it hag been marked as Exhibit 1. I believe we

to the Court.

Honor.

accommodat

be admitted for purposes of this proceeding.

THE
THE

MS.

MR.

ing

THE

MR,

THE

{Whe

COURT: You may be seated.

McCARTHY: Your Honor, just-after you left the

the interviews hetween Brent RBowman and various

COURT: All right.
COURT: Mg. Armgtrong, do you agree with that?

ARMSTRONG: Yes, that is so stipulated, Your

McCARTHY: Thank you, Your Honor, for
that,

COURT: Exhibit 1, the series of transcripts will

McCARTHY: Thank you, Your Honor.
{Exhibit 1 admitted in evidence.)

COURT: We shéll be in recess again.

reupoﬁ, the proceedings were conéluded.)

--000--
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STATE OF NEVADA, )
) ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE. )

I, Judith Ann Schonlau, Official Reporter of the
Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and
for the County of Washoe, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That as such reporter I was present in Department No.
10 of the akove-entitled court on Thursday, September 20, 2007,
at the hour of 8:30 o'clock a.m., of said day and that I then
and there took verbatim stenotype notes of the proceedings had
in the matter of THE STATE OF NEVADA vs. FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI,
Case Number CRO3P1263.

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages
numbered 1- &2 inclusive, is a full, true and correct
transcription of my said stenotypy notes, so taken as
aforesaid, and is a full, true and correct statement of the
proceedings had and testimony given upon the trial of the
above-entitled action to the best of my knowledge, skill and
ability.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada this 5th day of November, 2007.

/u/

) JUDITH ANN SCHONLAU CSR-H18
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Code No. 4270

Kay Ellen Armstrong

State Bar No. 0715

415 West Second Street
Carson City, Nevada 89703
775-883-3990

Attorney for Petitioner

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR COUNTY OF WASHOE

* k%
FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLT,

Petiticner,
Vs, CASE NO. CRO3P-1263

DEPT. NO. 9
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent..

/

WAIVER OF APPEARANCE

I, Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli, petitioner above-named,
hereby waive my appearance for my appeal hearing on January 23,
2008. T understand my atteorney, Kay Ellen Armstrong, will

appear and argue on my behalf.

DATED this ;2‘ day of Aﬁ)ﬁﬁ“ﬂax‘

007.

G

SIGNED UNDER PENALTY OF
PERJURY on this day

of November, 2007.
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TOC NRS239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
document does not contain the social security number of any
person,

>t
Dated this yjiﬂday of December, 2007.

Wt A [ 7}'/:‘?
Kay EizenlAEMét rorg L’7

Attorney at Law

V9.517




ARMSTRONG

-

KAY ELLEN

LY AT AW
TOND STRERT

—

ATTTORN
415 WEST Sk
CARSON CITY, NK

PIIONIG (775) 88:3-:39)

'

VADA 89703

10, AKX (775 882-

8854

New

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b) I certify that I am an employee of
Kay Ellen Armstrong, Attorney at Law, and that on this date I
deposited for delivery with Reno/Carson Messenger Service, a
trie copy of the attached supplement addressed to:
Terrence McCarthy, Deputy
Washoe County District Attorney
75 Court Street
Reno, NV 89520
And on this date I deposited for delivery with the United States
Postal Service a true copy of the attached supplement to:
Ferrill J. Volpicelli
$#79565
P. O. Box 359
Lovelock, NV 8%419%

December‘%ﬁ%/2007.

Cone. Dtvsens

Anne Bowern
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Code No. 3860

Kay Ellen Armstrong

State Bar Noe. 0715

415 West Second Street
Carscn City, Nevada 89703
775-883~3550

Attorney for Petitioner

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT COF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR COUNTY OF WASHOE
x k *
FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,

Petitioner,
vs. CASE NO. CRO3P-1263

DEPT. NO. 10
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

/

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION

COMES NQOW, petitioner, Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli, by and
through his attorney, Kay Ellen Armstrong, and hereby requests
that the Waiver of Appearance, filed on or about December 3,
2007, ke submitted to the court for decision.

PR
DATED this [ ——day of December, 2007. /,
A/ 7
£

KAY ELZEN “AR
State/Bar No. 0715

415 Nést Second Street
Carscon City, NV 89703
(775) 883-3990

Lttorney for Petitioner
Ferrill Joseph Velpicelli
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AFFIDAVIT PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm. that the preceding
document dces not contailn the social security number of any

perscn. é

Dated this E “day of Decembfi;éégg ////
\7

KAY ELLEN A“ﬁ'STROI\G

Statef Bar No. 0715

415 West Second Street
Carscon City, NV 89703
(775) 8B3-35%0

Attorney for Petitioner
Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(k) T certify that I am an employee of
Kay Ellen Armstrong, Attorney at Law, and that on this date I
deposited for delivery with Reno/Carson Messenger Service, a
true copy of the attached supplement addressed to:
Terrence McCarthy, Deputy
Washoe County District Attorney
75 Ceourt Street
Renc, NV 89520
And on this date I deposited for delivery with the United States
Fostal Service a true copy of the attached supplement to:
Ferrill J. Ve¢lpicelli
#79565

P. 0. Box 359
Lovelock, NV 89419

Decemberi##7/2007.
/}m,y ¢ %ﬂﬂ}-&t/
Anrie B
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DEC 2 1 2007
HOWAF >0 , CLERK
By PUTY CLE

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

X % %k
FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI,
Petitionér, | Case No.:  CRO3P1263
VS. | Dept. No.: 10

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.
/

NOTICE OF WAIVER OF APPEARANCE
On December 5, 2007, Petitioner filed a Waiver of Appearance pertaining to

his upcoming post-conviction habeas corpus hearing. Petitioner’s counsel, Kay Ellen
Armstrong, will appear and argue on his behalf. Also on December 5, 2007, Petitioner filed
a Request for Submission of the Waiver of Appeal. Although a Request for Submission is
unnecessary in this circumstance, the Court hereby takes notice of Petitioner’s Waiver of

Appearance.

DATED this 22 _day of December, 2M /%

STEVEN P. ELLIOTT
District Judge
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that I am én employee of the Second Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe; and on this date I deposited for mailing
a copy of the foregoing document addressed to:

Terry McCarthy

Deputy District Attorney
Appellate Division

P.0. Box 30083

Reno, NV 89520
(Interoffice Mail)

Kay Ellen Armstrong, Esq.
415 W. Second St.
Carson City, NV 89703

DATED this g'{' [ day of December, 20 m’\

HEIDI HOWDEN'
Judicial Assistant
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HOWA R
N

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

FERRILL VOLPICELLI

b: 25

CHYERS

Plaintiff,
VS, , Case No. CR0O3P1263
LENARD VARE, WARDEN , Dept. No. 10
Defendant.
/
APPLICATION FOR SETTING
TYPE OF ACTION: Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
MATTER TO BE HEARD: Post-Conviction Hearing B
Date of Application ; 1-28-08 ' Made by: Both Parties
Plaintiff or Defendant

COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF:; Kay Ellen Armstrong, Esq. -1
COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT: Deputy D.A. Terrence McCarthy

Instructions: Check the appropriate box. Indicate who id requesting the jury. Estimated No. Of Jurors:

DJury Demanded by (Name):

[ ]No Jury Demanded by {(Name);

Estimated Duration of Trial;

By Telephone o By Telephone

Attorney(s) for Plaintiff Attorney(s) for Defendant

130 14th February ‘ 08y
Maotion - No. Setting at on the day of 20
Trial - No. Seffing at an the day of 20

JUD 500 {Rev 3/03)
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i|State Bar No. 0715

Code 4045
Kay Ellen Armstrong

415 West Second Street
Carson City, NV 89703
775-883-3990

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
Petitioner, Case No. CROZP1Z63

vs. DEPT. NO. 10

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

/

STIPULATICN FOR CONTINUANCE

COMES NOW, petitioner, Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli, by
and through his attorney Kay Ellen Armstrong, and Terrance
McCarthy, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby stipulate to

continue the time set for an evidentiary hearing in this matter

from January 23, 2008 to Thursday, February 14, 2008 at 1:30

-

p.m.

Dated: 7 jiiy_;ﬁﬁ%ég7/

p
KAY ELTEN“A
Attorney for Petitione:

A

Terrance McCarthy (J
Deputy District Attorney
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'SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned doés hereby affirm that the preceding document,

T ' » - o' o ) - )
D pelatsm o ((nlinw rxoe

—

filed in case number::.

4

(Tiﬂe of Document)

Dof:pment does not contain the social schrify number of any per'sovn‘ :
-OR- '

Document conta[ns the social security number of a person as requ:red by:

D A Specﬁ' ic state or federal law, to wit;

(State specific stats or federal law) -
- -or-
D For the admmlstratlon of a pubhc program
o-or- _
D For an application for a feder_al or stat'e grant
© Or-

D Confidential Family Court Information Sheet
(NRS 125 130, NRS 125 230 and NRS 125B. 055)

pafer_an 36, Pec ”/‘ﬂ Leode \M |

2 L (Slgnature)

LV e e Me! s e
(Print Name) ST

(Attorney for)

V9.526
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Revised December 1'5 2008




FILED

Electronically
03-05-2008:10:19:53 AM
Howard W. Conyers

CASE NO. CRP3P1263 POST: FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 152335

DATE, JUDGE

OFFICERS OF

COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES-HEARING CONTINUED TO
02/14/08 HEARING RE: PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION

HONORABLE CONTINUATION OF WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS HEARING
STEVEN P. Deputy District Attorney Terry McCarthy represented Respondent,
ELLIOTT State of Nevada. Kay Armstrong, Esq. represented Petitioner, Ferrill
DEPT. NO. 10 Joseph Volpicelli who was not present.

C. Wynn COURT noted the issues that were denied during the last hearing;
(Clerk) further indicated the last remaining issue as to ground (7) seven

J. Schonlau regarding restitution.

(Reporter) Counsel Armstrong addressed the Court and reviewed exhibit 5;

further made statements regarding the list of property totaling over
$10,000.00 and the affidavit filed with the City Attorney; and further
presenting statement in support of the petition.

Counsel McCarthy addressed the Court reviewing the two prongs
and further presenting statement in opposition to the petition.
COURT presented its findings of fact and conclusions of law.
COURT ORDERED: Request for relief if hereby DENIED.

V9.527



—

2 135
g Béé IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
% é EE IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
= 522 % rR11L JoSEPH VOLPICELLL,

10 Petitioner,

11 V. Case No. CR0o3P1263

12 | LENARD VARE, WARDEN, Dept. No. 10

13 Respondent.

14 /

15 FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

AND JUDGMENT
16
17 This cause is before the court upon a petition for writ of habeas corpus (post-

18 || conviction). Petitioner Volpicelli was represented by counsel when he stood trial for several

19 || charges stemming from a scheme involving changing UPC price codes in retail stores. He was

20 || found guilty of several felonies and at sentencing the court sentenced him as a habitual

21 || criminal. He appealed, but the judgment was affirmed. He then filed a petition for writ of

22 || habeas corpus, asserting claims of ineffective assistance of counsel.

23

The State moved to dismiss some of the claims. On August 27, 2007 this court entered

24 || an order dismissing some of the claims and allowing a hearing on claims 7, 11, 12 and 14. The

25 || court incorporates that interim order into this final judgment.

26

The surviving claims were scheduled for a hearing on September 20, 2007. The court

1
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heard evidence from attorney Van Ry and from the prosecutor, Tammy Riggs. Petitioner
elected not to testify. Some of the claims concerned alleged prior inconsistent statements by a
witness at the trial. The alleged prior statements mostly arose during an interview between
that witness and police officers. The court was also able to review the transcripts of those
interviews. These findings are based on the evaluation of the record, the transcripts of the
police interviews and the evidence adduced at the habeas corpus hearing.

One of the claims involved restitution. The claim of ineffective assistance of counsel,
however, was based on a chart showing the disposition of stolen property. That chart was
prepared well after this litigation, by an Assistant City Attorney who was not involved in the
instant litigation. In argument, counsel for petitioner conceded that trial counsel could not be
ineffective in failing to utilize that which did not exist at the time. Accordingly, the claim that
counsel was ineffective in failing to challenge the amount of restitution is denied.

Another claim was that the prosecutor failed to produce exculpatory evidence, By the
end of the hearing the petitioner had not adduced any evidence that had not been provided to
the defense. Accordingly, the claim of withholding evidence remains unproven and is denied.

Another claim is that trial counsel was ineffective in failing to adduce additional
evidence to show the extent of the plea bargain that was accepted by Volpicelli’s confederate,
witness Brett Bowman. The record reveals that Bowman had already been sentenced by the
time of Volpicelli’s trial and the details of the agreement were fully disclosed in the trial.
Petitioner has not introduced any evidence of any other or additional terms to Bowman’s plea
agreement and so that claim, too, remains unproven.

Finally, the petition had a list of alleged prior statements by Bowman that coula have
been used to impeach Bowman’s testimony. The court has reviewed the trial transcripts and
the transcripts of Bpwman’s interviews with police and finds nothing significant. Certainly
there is nothing that would probably have altered the outcome of the trial. On that subject, the

court notes that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing and thus there is no

2
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evidence at all about how Bowman wouid have responded if he had been questioned further
about his prior statements.

Most of the alleged inconsistent statements were not inconsistent at all. For example, at
trial Bowman was asked if he has purchased a certain bit of equipment at a Staples store in
California. He answered “no.” The alleged inconsistent statement arises from interview
transcripts in which he admitted purchasing the device, but without any reference to the name
of the store or the state in which it was purchased. Thus, the prior statement is not
inconsistent at all. To the extent that the prior statement could have been used to start a
dialogue, the court notes again that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing and
there is therefore no evidence showing how he would have responded to additional questions
on the subject of purchasing the label making device.

Similarly, at trial he was asked specifically if police officers helped him get a paychéck_
from the Sands casino and he denied getting such help. The interview transcripts do not
contradict that testimony as they only indicate that he had indeed got his paychecks but that
they were in his personal property. The police offered only to help him negotiate the checks.
That is not inconsistent with his trial testimony and there is no evidence showing how further
discussions would have helped petitioner in any way.

At trial, Bowman minimized his share of the loot. Volpicelli contends that he could have
been impeached with evidence that Bowman also acquired some home electronics. The
interview transcripts, however, are not inconsistent as they do not show that the home
electronics were stolen in the scheme with Volpicelli. Instead, Bowman claimed to have
purchased those items. Volpicelli has adduced no evidence to the contrary and so the claim
that counsel was ineffective in failing to impeach remains unproven.

The court has reviewed the evidence presented, including the transcripts of police
interviews, and finds nothing that would have been likely to alter the outcome of this litigation.

One who would claim ineffective assistance of counsel bears the burden of showing, by a

3
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preponderance of the evidence, that the specific acts, omissions or decisions of counsel fell
below an objective standard of reasonableness and that but for the failings of counsel a
different result was reasonably probable. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct.
2052 (1984). This court has simply not been persuaded by the evidence that counsel acted
unreasonably or that the results would probably have been different if counsel had made
different decisions. Accordingly, the petition is denied.

DATED this_// _ day of April, 2008.

DISTRICT JUDGE
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe
County District Attorney's Office and that, on this date, I deposited for mailing through the
U.S. Mail Service at Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, postage prepaid, a true copy of the
foregoing document, addressed to:

Kay Ellen Armstrong, Esq.

415 W. Second Street

Carson City, NV 89703

Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli #79565

Lovelock Correctional Center

P.O. Box 359
Lovelock, NV 89419

DATED: PW"LLO / LF , 2008.
%&&%/’1‘ Mt S
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JUDITH ANN SCHONLAU
CCR #18
75 COURT STREET

RENO, NEVADA

IN THE SECOND JUDICTAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

BEFORE THE HONORABLE STEVEN P. ELLIOTT, DISTRICT JUDGE

-o00-

FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI,
Petitioner,

ve. CASE NO. CRO3P1263

DEPARTMENT NO. 10
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

F N I N

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 14, 2008
1:30 P.M.
Reno, Nevada
Reported By: JUDITH ANN SCHONLAU, CCR #18

NEVADA-CALIFORNIA CERTIFIED; REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL REPORTER
Computer-aided Transcription
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APPEARANCES

For the Petitioner: KAY ARMSTRONG, ESQ.
Attorney at Law

Carson City, Newvada

For the Respondent: OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY
BY: TERRENCE McCARTHY, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorney
1 S. Sierra Street

Reno, Nevada
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the Petitioner, Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli.

RENO, NEVADA; THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 14, 2008; 1:30 P.M.
-000-
THE COURT: Good afternoon. You may be seated.
The record will reflect that we are meeting here

concerning the Post Conviction Writ of Habeas Corpus filed by

We previously had a hearing on this, and I denied
several portions of the Petition. And, according, to my
recofd, Item 7 was not ruled on and regerved pending a review
of the transcript. And I have done the best I can, but I am
interested really in hearing from the lawyers to see if you can
pinpoint anything that is of help on this.

Ms. Armstrong, did you want to say anything?

MS. ARMSTRONG: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor, and
thank you for rescheduling this due to my illness. I apologize
for any inconvenience.

I also reviewed the record after our last hearing and
the place that I can point you I believe in the gentencing
transcript from April 1st, 2004 is at page 36, Petitioner's
trial counsel, Mr. Van Ry, aliowed Exhibit 5 to be admitted
without obijection.

THE COURT: Right.

MS. ARMSTRONG: And Exhibit 5 is the list that we

have seen of the property that totals slightly over $10,000.
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THE COURT: Thig ig rally the inventory that
detective Reld Thomas created; isn't it?

MS. ARMSTRONG: I believe so0. It is part of the
packet he prepared to aid the sentencing judge. After we were
in court, I was able to contact Karen Fraley, the Deputy City
Attorney, and we filed an Affidavit from her explaining that
what we had attached to the original Pro Per Habeas Petiticn as
Exhibit A was something that had been prepared by her. It
appears, from her Affidavit, that it was not. It didn't exist
at the time of sentencing. It was prepared sometime after
sentencing at the request of Mr. Volpicelli. So I think I am
unable to argue Mr. Van Ry had the benefit of this memo
prepared by Ms. Fraley. But I would still like to argue that.
simply the fact that detective Reid Thomas testified at
gsentencing that this property was all found in the storage shed
and would be returned to the proper owners should have flagged
defense counsel to say, well, then no restitution should be
paid for the things that were returned. So I think that is
what it comes down tc. It is as simple as that.

THE COURT: I don't happen tc have Ms. Fraley's
document handy, but what dces it say? What is the difference
between it and what detective Thomas came up with?

MR. McCARTHY: It lists what things were given back

to the owners. I don't think the sentencing record included
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that.

THE COURT: No, it did not.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Would you like me to approach? This
ig an unfiled stamped copy, but I believe it is exactly what
was filed.

THE COURT: Okay. I have had a chance to see this.
How does this affect--I actually went along I am pretty sure
with Exhibit 5 which amounted to restitution. At least I know
I issued an order for restitution in the amount of $10,339.16.
How does this affect that now?

MS. ARMSTRONG: As I said, Your Honor, it appears
from what Karen is telling me that she didn't prepare that
until sometime after the sentencing, so I don't think I can
argue that Mr. Van Ry should have been looking at that the way
I did because he didn't have it.

When I originally saw this, Your Honor, I thought it
had been prepared by Reid Thomas, but I was able to determine
that no, he didn't do it. Ms. Fraley did. The restitution
amount that you ordered did come from Exhibit 5 which was
admitted. Mr. Van Ry, if you recall, testified that he thought
the restitution was the least of the issues before you that day
and it was somewhat of a matter of trial strategy in his
opinion. And I am just always struck by a big $10,000 bill. I

think that is a big thing. And I believe that competent
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sentencing counsel, at the very least, would advance the
argument i1f those items were recovered, they shouldn't have to
be paid for again.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. What is the
State's position on this?

MR. McCARTHY: Geez, it is hard to have cone, Your
Honor. You know, I think if Mr. Volpicelli had ever paid a
dime of restitution or ever indicated an intent to pay a dime
of restitution, I could probably give this more attention. As
it is, I suggest when a defense lawyer is looking at multiple
life sentences, reasonable lawyers don't devote a moment's
attention to the question of restitution. The truth of the
matter is he probably could have got a lower ordered
restitution if he had devoted his attention to that instead of
trying to avoid the multiple life sentences. He probably would
have been succesgful, but that doesn't make counsel
reascnable.

There are, of course, two prongs for the claim of
ineffective assistance, prejudice and performance. I say the
performance was fine. TIf the performance was fine, we don't
have to look at prejudice. I think you ought to just deny the
Writ.

I was wondering, my notes don't make any sense here,

and they never do, but I thought the Court also wanted to check
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gome other things in the transcript just to see if I had
accurately represented the transcript to you. I assume the
Court has checked that.

THE COURT: Well, I read the sentencing transcript,
and I also read quite a bit of other matters. The Brent
Bowen- -

MR. McCARTHY: That was the guy their claims in the
Petition regarding his testimony, I suggested that the
transcript testimony reveals for instance that he did fully
disclose the plea bargain despite the claim in the Petition
that there were guotes in the Petition that were misleading by
omission, and I had suggested to Your Honor that the transcript
would repeal the allegation. When we were here last, the Court
ruled as though I were accurately representing the transcript,
but you hadn't actually read it, so I was asking, don't just -
take my word for it, if you would please read it. It sounds
like you have.

THE COURT: So the bottom line on this issue
concerning restitution is the State's position that the best
information that the Court had was the 510,339 at the time.of
sentencing, and there certainly was no incompetence, nothing
following below a reasonable standard of care on the part_of
defense counsel since that is all defense counsel had as well.

When you are looking at a guy who spent virtually a
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lifetime of thievery and did this for a living and he's stolen
a lot more than $10,000, so this isg, you know, really just a
drop in the bucket. It is just, you know, his current
inventory.

MR. McCARTHY: As the Court said in Strickland over
and over again, not every error is going to lead to relief, so
even 1f--Well, anyway, in thig case, there may indeed have beeJ
error, but it shouldn't lead to relief because counsel'sg
performance wag not unreasonable. I ask you deny the Petition.

THE COURT: All right. Then, Ms. Armstrong, anythiné
else?

MS. ARMSTRONG: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, I would certainly find that Brad
Van Ry acted, you know, appropriately. Certainly his conduct
did not fall below any objective standard of reasonableness in
presenting issues as to restitution, and I admitted Exhibit 5
prepared by detective Reid Thomas, and that is what we had at
the sentencing, basically, an inventory of the stuff found in
Mr. Volpicelli's warehouse that was gotten through ill means,
in essence was part of his scheme to defraud various retail
establishments.

Under those conditions, I don't think I have any -
grounds to grant a Petition for relief at this time. I would

8till accept Mr. McCarthy's representation as to anything that

8 V9.540



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Brent Bowen may have done, so I am going to deny the petition
and direct the State then to prepare appropriate findings and
conclugions.

MR. McCARTHY: I will, Your Honor. It won't be quick
because I don't remember this case, and I need to order the
transcript from the last hearing. But as soon as I have it, I
know what we are talking about, I will prepare an order and
send it to Ms. Armstrong.

MS. ARMSTRONG: That hearing was on September the
20th, 2007.

THE COURT: Yes. It is a distant memory.

MR. McCARTHY: It has nothing to do with me getting
older either.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I do appreciate your work on this, both
counsel, and appreciate you being here which helps me a bit in
determining what to do on this.

Do we want this Affidavit of Karen Fraley to be part
of this recordz

MR. McCARTHY: If it is not now, let's make it. I
don't object to it.

MS. ARMSTRONG: Yes.

THE COURT: I will staple it and cover it with this

cover sheet then.
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MS5. ARMSTRONG:

THE COURT:

{(Whereupon,

All

the

Thank you.
right.
proceedings were concluded.)

--o00--
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STATE OF NEVADA,
COUNTY OF WASHOE.

I, Judith Ann Schonlau, Official Reporter of the
Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and
for the County of Washoe, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That as such reporter 1 was present in Department No.
10 of the above-entitled court on Thursday February 14, 2008,,
at the hour of 1:30 o'clock p.m, of said day and that I then
and there took verbatim stenotype notes of the proceedings had
in the matter of FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI vs. THE STATE OF NEVADA;
Case Number CRO3P1263.

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages
numbered 1- 10 inclusive, is a full, true and correct
transcription of my said stenotypy notes, so taken as
aforesaid, and is a full, true and correct statement Qf the
proceedings had and testimony given upcon the trial of the
above-entitled action to the best of my knowledge, skill and
ability.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada this 3rd day of aApril, 2008.

< 7
al R e -

J'UDITH ANN éCHONLAU CCR ¥18
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE '

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
Appellant(s) Case No. CR03P1263

VS, Dept. No. 10
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent(s)

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL

| hereby certify that the enclosed the Notice of Appeal and other required documents
(certified copies) were delivered to the Second Judicial District Court mailroom sys_t.e.m_:for

transmittal to the Nevada Supreme Court.

by,

ottt
W

Dated: May 12, 2008
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
Appellant(s) Case No. CR0O3P1263
VS. , ‘ Dept. No. 10
THE STATE OF NEVADA, |
Respondent(s)

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK

| hereby certify that the enclosed documents are certified copies of the original pleadings

on file with the Second Judicial District Court, in accordance with the NRAP 3{e).

Dated: May 12, 2008 Howard W. Conyers, Clerk of the Court,
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-
:‘ A

Cathy Kepler,_A'ppeéls Clerk
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF Washoe County

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
Appellant(s) Case No. CRO3P1263
VS. Dept. No. 10
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent(s)
/
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

1. Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli is the Appellant.

2. The appeal is from a Judgment/Order on or about April 14, 2008 by,
the Honorable Steven Elliott.

3. The parties below in District Court consisted of: Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli
the Defendant, and The State of Nevada, the Plaintiff, in District Court.

4. The parties herein in the Nevada Supreme Court consist of. Ferrill

| Joseph VolpicellilAppellant, and The State of Nevada/Respondent.

5. Counsel on Appeal for Appellant, consists of: Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli
IPro Per Appellant #79565, Lovelock Correctional Center, P.O. Box
359, Lovelock, NV 89419.
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6. Counsel on appeal for Respondent is Gary Hatlestad, Deputy District
Attorney — Appellant Division, P.O. Box 30083, Reno, NV 89520+
3083. 7

7. In District Court Appellant was represented In Proper Person.

8. Appellant is represented in Proper Person in this appeal.

9. N/A in this case.
10. The Indictment was filed on June 11, 2003.

S

Dated: May 12, 2008 Howard W. Co\qyers,lgjerk of the Court,

. Cathy Kepler, "Appeals Clerk
1 (775) 3283114
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FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, Supreme Court No. 51622
Appelfant, L
Vs, District Court Case No. (CR031263

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respandent. Ofo aOW

1168
CXEPLER

RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS

Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli #79565

Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Howard W. Conyers , District Court Clerk +

You are hereby notified that the Clerk of the Supreme Court has received and/or filed the following:

05/14/08 Filing Fee Waived: Criminal.

05/14/08 Filed Certified Copy of proper person Notice of Appeal.

Appeal docketed in the Supreme Court this day.

DATE: May 14, 2008

Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of Court

By:

Deputy CIe'r?f\l o
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"IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVAD!

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI No. 51622
Appellant,

pe (%QF W23
THE STATE OF NEVADA, _
Respondent. E L E D

ORDER OF LIMITED REMAND
FOR DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL

This is a proper person appeal from an order of the district

court denying a post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus. We .

remand this appeal to the district court for the limited purpose of securing

counsel for appellant. The district court shall have 30 days from the date

of this order to appoint counsel for appellant. Within 5 days from the

appointment or appearance of counsel, the district court clerk shall

transmit to the clerk of this court a copy of the district court’s written or

minute order appointing appellate counsel.

It is so ORDERED.
9°
, Cd

Hon. Steven P. Elliott, District Judge

Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City.

Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe District Court Clerky” ~

CC.
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

* k¥
FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI,
Petitioner, Case No.:  CRO3P1263
VS. | Dept. No.: 10
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.

/

ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL

The Court has received the Nevada Supreme Court’s Order of Limited Remand for
Designation of Counsel, entered June 3; 2008. Petitioner has previously been found
indigent and has received leave to proceed in forma pauperis.
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Kay Ellen Armstrong, Esq. ig

appointed to represent Petitioner in his appeal.

DATED this é day of June, 2008.

STEVEN P. ELLIOTT®
District Judge
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that 1 am an employee of the Second Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe; and on this date I deposited for mailing
a copy of the foregoing document addressed to:

Terry McCarthy

Deputy District Attorney
Appellate Division

P.O. Box 30083

Reno, NV 89520
(Interoffice Mail)

Kay Elien Armstrong, Esq.
415 W. Second St.
Carson City, NV 89703

DATED this day of June, 2008.

HEIDI HOWDEN
Judicial Assistant
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

*dk

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,

Petitioner,
CASENQO: CRO3P1263
VS.
DEPT. NO.: 10
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent,
/

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on April 14, 2008 the Court entered a decision or
Order in this matter, a true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice.
You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of the Court.

If you wish to appeal, you must file a notice of appeal with the Clerk of this Court within thirty-

Three (33) days, after the date this notice is mailed to you. This notice was mailed on the 10 day of

June, 2008.

HOWARD W, GONYERS:

Deputy Cleik (4" -
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

* x5 %
'RRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
Petitioner,

V. Case No. CRo3P1263

LENARD VARE, WARDEN, Dept. No. 10
Respondent.
/
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
AND JUDGMENT

This cause is before the court upon a petition for writ of habeas corpus (post-

conviction). Petitioner Volpicelli was represented by counsel when he stood trial for several

_charges stemming from a scheme involving changing UPC price codes in retail stores. He was

found guilty of several felonies and at sentencing the court sentenced him as a habitual
criminal. He appealed, but the judgment was affirmed. He then filed a petition for writ of
haheas corpus, asserting claims of ineffective assistance of counsel.

The State moved to dismiss séme of the claims. On August 27, 2007 this court entered
an order dismissing some of the claims and allowing 2 hearing on claims 7, 11, 12 and 14. The
court incorporates that interim order into this final judgment.

The surviving elaims were scheduled for a hearing on September 20, 2007. The court

1
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heard evidence from attorney Van Ry and from the prosecutor, Tammy Riggs. Petitioner
elected not to testify. Sorne of the claims concerned alleged prior inconsistent statements by a
witness at the trial. The alleged prior statements mostly arose during an interview between
that witness and police officers. The court was also able to review the transeripts of those
interviews. These findings are based on the evaluation of the record, the transcripts of the
police interviews and the evidence adduced at the habeas corpus hearing.

One of the cléims involved restitution. The claim of ineffective assistance of counsel,
however, was based on a chart showing the disposition of stolen property. That chart was
prepared well after this litigation, by an Assistant City Attorney who was not involved in the -
instant litigation. In argument, counsel for petitioner conceded that trial counsel could not be
ineffective in failing to utilize that which did not exist at the time. Accordingly, the claim that
counsellwas ineffective in failing to challenge the amount of restitution is denied. _

Another claim was that the prosecutor failed to produce exculpatory evidence. By the -
end of the hearing the petitioner had not adduced any evidence that had not been provided to
the defense. Accordingly, the claim of withholding evidence remains unproven and is denied.

Another claim is that trial counsel was ineffective in failing to adduce additional
evidence to show the extent of the plea bargain that was aceepted by Volpicelli’s confederate,
witness Brett Bowmén. The record reveals that Bowman had already been sentencéd by the
time of Volpicelli’s trial and the details of the agreement were fully disclosed in the trial.
Petitioner has not introduced any evidence of any other or additional terms to Bowman’s plea
agreement and so that claim, too, remains unproven.

Finally, the petition had a list of alleged prior statements by Bowman that coul& have
been used to impeach Bowman's testimony. The court has reviewed the trial transcripts and
the trénscripts of Bowman's interviews with police and finds nothing significant. Certainly
there is nothing that would probably have altered the outcome of the trial. On that subject, the

court notes that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing and thus there is no

2
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evidence at all about how Bowman wouid have responded if he had been questioned further
about his prior statements.

* Most of the alleged inconsistent statements were not inconsistent at all. For example, at
trial Bowman was asked if he has purchased a certain bit of equipment at a Staples store in
California. He answered “no.” The alleged inconsistent statement arises from interview
transcripts in which he admitted pﬁrchasing the device, but without any referencg to the name
of the store or the state in which it was purchased. Thus, the prior statement is not -
inconsistent at all. - To the extent that the prior statement could have been used to start a
dialogue, the court notes again that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing and
there is therefore no evidence showing how he would have responded to additional questions
on the subject of purchasing the label making device.

Similarly, at trial he was asked specifically if police officers helped him get a paychéck_
from the Sands casino and he denied getting such help. The interview transcripts do not
contradict that testimony as they only indicate that he had indeed got his paychecks but that
they were in his personal property. The police offered only to help him negotiate the checks.
That is not inconsistent with his trial testimony and there is no evidence showing how further
discussions would have helped petitioner in any way.

‘At trial, Bowman minimized his share of the loot. Volpicelli contends that he could have
been impeached with evidence that Bowman also acquired some home electronics. The
intcrviéw transcripts, however, are not inconsistent as they do not show that the home
electronics were stolen in the scheme with Volpicelli. Instead, Bowman claimed to have
purchased those items. Volpicelli has adduced no evidence to the contrary and so the claim
that counsel was ineffective in failing to impeach remains unproven.

The court has reviewed the evidence presented, including the transcripts of police
interviews, and finds nothing that would have been likely to alter the outcome of this litigation.

One who would claim ineffective assistance of counsel bears the burden of showing, by a |
3
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preponderance of the evidence, that the specific acts, omissions or decisions of counsel fell
below an objective standard of reasonableness and that but for the failings of counsel a
different result was reasonably probable. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct.
2052 (1984). This court has simply not been ﬁersuaded by the evidence that counsel acted
unreasonably or that the results would probably have been different if counsel had made
different decisions. Accordingly, the petition is denied.

DATED this L day of April, 2008.

W//%

DISTRICT JUDGE
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, No. 52600
Petitioner, ) _
| | e (EVE:
THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT
- COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF :
WASHOE, AND THE HONORABLE
ROBERT H. PERRY, DISTRICT JUDGE, F E L E D
- Respondents,
and NOV 06 2008
THE STATE OF NEVADA, TRACIE K. LINDEMAN
) BLERK OF SUPREME COURT
Real Party in Interest. By S
CLEA

DC-9900004698-009

VOLPIGELLI 2 Pages
11/12/2008 01:20 PM

FERRILL J.

District Court
Washos GCounty

]

[
CRBIF1263
POST :

[nlalad

TR T

ORDER DENYING PETITION

This is a proper person petition for a writ of mandamus.
Petitioner seeks an order compelling the district court to reissue an
amended judgment of conviction, provide appellant with credit for time

served, and transmit the amended judgment of. conviction to the Nevada

to this court, and we conclude that this court’s intervention in this matter

is not warranted.! We are confident that the district court will comply

conviction to the Nevada Department of Corrections in an expeditious

manner. To the extent that petitioner seeks presentence credits in district

1See NRS 34.160; NRS 34.170.

SurREME COURT
OF
MNEvADA

() 19474

Department of Corrections. We have considered the documents submitted‘

with this court’s prior directive to transmit the amended judgment of -




court case number CR03-1263, a claim for additional presentence credits

must be raised in a timely post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas

corpus filed in the district court in the first instance.? Accordingly, we
ORDER the petition DENIED.

Clheor

cc:  Hon. Robert H. Perry, District Judge
Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe District Court Clerk "

2See NRS 34.724(2)(c); NRS 34.738(1); Griffin v. State, 122 Nev. 737,
137 P.3d 1165 (2006).
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FILED

Electronically
09-10-2009:12:23:18 PM
Howard W. Conyers
Clerk of the Court

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEREAG0N # 1031520

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, No. 51622 ('KO3F I&[gﬁl

Anpeiant FILED

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent. SEP -8 2009

_ ﬁl E K, LINDEMAN

K OF SUFPRELE

ORDER TO FILE SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX

This is an appeal from an order of the distriet court denying a
post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus. On appeal, appellant
argues that the district cowrt erred when it concluded that his trial
counsel was not ineffective for failing to argue that one of the judgments of
convictions was not permissible to be nsed to adjudicate appellant a
habitual criminal. The appendix filed by appellant’s counsel does not
contain the judgments of conviction that were used to prove that appellant
had at least three prior felony convictions. See NRS 207.010. The
judgments of conviction that were filed in the distriet court are necessary
for this court’s review of this appeal. See NRAP 10(h).

Accordingly, Kay Ellen Armstrong, as post-conviction counsel
for appellant, shall have 10 days from the date of this order to file a
supplemental appendix containing the judgments of conviction that were
used to adjudicate appellant a habitual eriminal.

It 15 so ORDERED.

/-LMM\ , CJ.

361302 ¢



ce:  Ferrill Joseph Volpicelii
Kay Ellen Armstrong
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe District Court Clerk
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Howard W. Conyers
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE O NEMAIh # 1189844

FERRILL JOSEFH VOLPICELLI, No. 51622
Appetlant, Cﬂwp/&éj

FILED
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Hespondent.

DEC D 3 2009
CLERR GF SUPRAHE BOURT
: BY — B ErUTY CLER
ORDER O AITIRMANCE

This is an appeal from an order of the district court denying a
post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus. Second Judicial
District Court, Washee County; Steven P. Elliott, Judge.

On April 1, 2004, the district court convicted appellant,
pursuant to a jury verdict, of one count of conspiracy to commit crimes
against property, eight counts of burglary, and one count of unlawful
possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory pricing lahels.
The distiict court adjudicated appellant a habitual eriminal and sentenced
appellant to terms totaling life in the Nevada State Prison with the
possibility of parole after 20 years. Appellant was also ordered to pay
$10,339.16 in restitution. On appeal, this court confirmed the judgment of
conviction and sentence. Volpicelli v. State, Docket No. 43203 {Order of
Affirmance, June 23, 2005). The remittitur issued on July 26, 2005.

On November 9, 2005, appellant filed a proper person post-
conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus in the district court. The
State opposed the petition. Counsel was appointed and filed a
supplement. On April 2, 2007, the district court entered an order

dismissing the majority of appellant’s claims and set an evidentiary

O?-Q}f/ 64
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hearing concerning the remaining claims. Following an evidentiary
hearing, the district court denied the remaining claims on April 14, 2008.
This appeal follows.

Appellant argues that the district court erred in denying four
of his ineffective assistance of trial counsel claims. To state a claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel sufficient to invalidate a judgment of
conviction, a petitioner must demonstrate that counsel’'s performance was
deficient in that it fell below an cbjective standard of reasonableness, and
prejudice such that counsel’s errors were so severe that they rendered the
jury's verdict unreliable. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S, 668, 687-88
(1984); Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432-33, 683 P.2d 504, 506 (1984)
(adopting the test in Strickland). The court need not address both

components of the inquiry if the petitioner makes an insufficient showing

on either one. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 637. To warrant an evidentiary
hearing, a petitioner must raise claims that are supported by specific
factual allegations that are not belied by the record and, if true, would
enfitle him to relief. Hargvove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502-03, 686 P.2d

222, 225 (1984). A petitioner must demonstraie the facts underlying a
claim of ineffective assistance of counsel by a preponderance of the
evidence, and the district court’s factual findings regarding a claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel are entitled to deference when reviewed
on appeal. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004);
Riley v. State, 110 Nev. 638, 647, 878 P.2d 272, 278 (1994),

First, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective

for failing to object to the use of a 2004 Nevada conviction for aiding and

abetting in the commission of attempting to obtain money by {false

2 V9.565
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pretenses for adjudication as a habitual criminal. Appellant fails to
demonstrate that he was prejudiced.

The criminal activity for the 2004 conviction for attempting to
obtain money by false pretenses occurred after appellant had been charged
and was awaiting trial for this case. However, appellant was convicted of
attempting to obiain money by false pretenses prior to his cenviction in
this case. After the trial for this case, the State sought adjudication of
appellant as a habitual cyiminal and filed the 2004 judgment of conviction
for obtaining money by false pretenses along with two other judgments of
conviction. The other judgments of conviction were a 1998 federal court
conviction of four counts of felony tax perjury and a 1298 Nevada
conviction for two counts of burglary. As the conviction for the attempt fo
obtain money by false pretenses was not entered before the unlawful
actions leading to the instant offense ocecurred, the eonviction for the
attempt to obtain money by false pretenses was not properly used as a
past conviction for purposes of adjudication as a habitual criminal in the
instant matter. Brown v. State, 97 Nev. 101, 102, 624 P.2d 1005, 1006

(1981). However, we conclude that any error was harmless because a

sufficient number of convictions was presented. See NRS 178.588 (stating
that “[alny error, defect, irregularity or variance which does not affect
substantial rights shall be disregarded”).

The two additional judgments of conviction list six additional
felonies which were properly considered when determining appellant's
adjudicatien as a habitual felon. Appellant makes no argument that any
of the six other felonies were improperly considered. A review of the
record reveals that, at the sentencing hearing, the State presented

evidence that the felony tax perjury convictions stemmed from a plan

3 V9.566
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running over at least four years, with numerous transactions, throngh
which appellant fraudulently gained at least $800,000. Accordingly, the
previous tax perjury convictions were not the result of the same act,
transaction, or occurrence and may be used as four separate convictions

for purposes of babitual eriminal adjudication. Rezin v. State, 95 Nev.

461, 462, 596 P.2d 226, 227 (1879). Thus, even excluding the conviction
for the attempt to obtain money by false pretenses, there were sufficient
past felony convictions for the district court to adjudicate appellant a
habitual criminal. NRS 207.010. Considering the district court’s
statement at the sentencing hearing to appellant that he was the “poster
child for habitual eriminality in that every time you're released from
custody it seems like you're out making a full-time living stealing,”
appellant fails to demonstrate a reasonable probability that the outcome of
the sentencing hearing would have been different had bis trial counsel
objected to the use of the 2004 Nevada conviction for attempt to obtain
money by false pretenses when adjudicating him as a habiftual criminal.
Therefore, the district court did not err in denying this claim.

Second, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to argue that the burglary offenses and the unlawful possession,
making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels offense
merged, and that convietion and sentence for both constitute a violation of
double jeopardy. Appellant fails to demonstraie that his trial counsel’s
performance was deficient or that he was prejudiced. To determine
whether multiple offenses violate double jeopardy principles “[t]he test is
whether the individual aets are prohibited, or the course of action which
they constitute. If the former, then each act is punishable separately. If
the latter, there can be but one penalty.” Blockburger v. United States,

4 V9.567
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284 U.8. 209, 302 (1932) {(quoting Wharton’s Criminal Law § 35 (11th
ed.}}; see also United States v. Dixon, 509 U.S, 688, 696 (1993). Burglary

occurs when a person enters a building with the intent to commit any
felony, or to obtain money or property by false pretenses. NRS 205.060(1).
The unlawful possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory
pricing labels occurs when a person possesses, makes, alters, forges, or
counterfeits any sales receipt or inventory pricing label with the intent to
cheat or defraud a retailer., NRS 205.965(1), Thevefore, the acts of
burglary and the unlawful possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of
inventory pricing labels offense are distinct individual acts with different
elements. Thus, conviction and sentencing for the offenses do not violate
double jeopardy principles. Appellant fails to demonstrate a reasonable
probability that the outcome of the proceedings would have been different
had his trial counsel argued the conviction and sentence for both crimes
violated double jeopardy. Therefore, the district court did not err in
denying this claim.

Third, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to argue for a lesser restitution amount. Appellant argues that
the items taken from the various businesses were returned after they were
recovered by the police, and therefore, the businesses did not lose the total
amount of the restitution that was imposed. Appellant fails to
demonstrate that he was prejudiced. Appellant fails to identify any way in
which to reasomably calculate the value lost by the businesses due to
appellant’s erimes. Havgrove v, State, 100 Nev. 498, 502-03, 686 P.2d 222,
225 (1984); see also NRS 2056.0831 (stating that the standard by which to
calculate the value of property obtained through theft is the fair market

value of the property at the time of the theft). The district court concluded

5 V9.568
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that trial counsel was not ineffective for failing to argue for a lower
restitution amount and substantial evidence supports that conclusion.
Therefore, the district court did not exrr in denying this claim.

IFourth, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to cross-examine Brett Bowman concerning his inconsistent
statements. Appellant fails to demonstrate that his trial counsel’s
performance was deficient or that he was prejudiced. Appellant compares
statements Bowman made prior to trial with those that Bowman made
during trial and argues they were inconsistent. The district court
determined that the statemenis appellant compares covered different
topics and that the questions were posed differently in each situation. The
district couri also determined that the questions posed to Bowman
necessarily elicited different answers. Those statements were, therefore,
consistent statementis that could not have been used for impeachment
purposes. See NRS 51.035(2)(a); Leonard v. State, 114 Nev. 639, 652-53,
958 P.2d 1220, 1230 (1998). The district court also determined that

appellant failed to demonstrate a reasonzble probability that the outcome
of the trial would have been different had counsel questioned Bowman
about these statements. Appellant fails to demonstrate that the district
court’'s determination was erroneous and we conclude that substantial
evidence supporis the district court’s determination. Therefore, the
district court did not err in denying this claim.

Next, appellant argues that the district court erred by
conducting an evidentiary hearing over only four of his claims and
dismissing the remainder. Other than the claim concerning the use of
past convictions for adjudicating appellant as a habitual criminal,

appellant makes no specific argument for why an evidentiary hearing

6 V9.569




should have been conducted concerning any other claims or why the
distriet court erred in dismissing any other claims. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at
502-03, 686 P.2d at 225. Because appellant’s claim was not supported by
specific argument, we conclude appellant failed to demonstrate the district

‘court erred. See Mazzan v. Warden, 116 Nev. 48, 75, 993 P.2d 25, 42

(2000).
Accordingly, having considered appellant’s contentions and
concluding that they are without merit, we

ORDER the judement of the district court AFFIRMED,

—fibhons

cc:  Hon. Steven P. Elliott, District Judge
Kay Ellen Armstrong
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe District Court Clerk”
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Nevada, do hereby certify thal the following is a full, frue and correct copy of the Judgment in this
malier.

JUDGMENT

The court being fully advised in the premises and the faw, it is now ordered, adjudged and decreed,
as follows: "ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.”

Judgment, as quoted above, entered this 3rd day of December, 2008,
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. Transaction # 1235675
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF N

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, No. 51622
Appellant, CED& P fa(ﬁ\a
vS.
THE STATE OF NEVADA, F I L E D
Respondent.
DEC 03 2009
TR S e
: By P UIY CLE
ORDER OF AFFIRMANCIE

This is an appeal from an order of the district court denying a
post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus. Second Judicial
Distﬁct Court, Washoe County; Steven P. Elliott, Judge.

On April 1, 2004, the district court convicted appellant,
pursuant to a jury verdict, of cne count of conspiracy to commit crimes
against property, eight counts of burglary, and one count of unlawful
possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels.
The district court adjudicated appetlant a hahitual eriminal and sentenced
appellant to terms totaling life in the Nevada State Prison with the
possibility of parole after 20 years. Appellant was alsc ordered to pay
310,339.16 in restitution. On appeal, this court confirmed the judgment of
conviction and sentence. 'Volgicé]li v. State, Docket No. 43203 (Oxder of
Affirmance, June 298, 2005). The remittitur issued on July 26, 2005.

On November 9, 2005, appellant filed a proper person post-
conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus in the district court. The
State opposed the petition. Counsel was appointed and filed a
supplement. On April 2, 2007, the district court entered an order

dismissing the majority of appeliant's claims and set an evidentiary
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hearing concerning the remaining claims. Following an evidentiary
hearing, the district court denied the remaining claims on April 14, 2008.
This appeal follows.

Appellant argues that the district court erred in denying four
of his ineffective assistance of trial counsel claims. To state a claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel sufficient to invalidate a judgment of
conviction, & petitioner must demonstrate that counsel's performance was
deficient in that it fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and
prejudice such that counsel’s errors were so severe that they rendered the
jury's verdict unreliable. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.5. 668, 687-88
(1984); Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432-33, 683 P.2d 504, 505 {18984)
(adopting the test in Strickland). The court need not address both

components of the inquiry if the petitioner makes an insufficient showing

on either one. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697. To warrant an evidentiary
hearing, & petitioner must raise claims that are supported by specific
factual allegations that are not belied by the record and, if true, would
entitle him to relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502-03, 686 P.2d
222, 225 (1984). A petitioner must demonstrate the facts underlying a
claim of ineffective assistance of counsel by a preponderance of the
evidence, and the district court’s factual findings regarding a claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel are entitled to deference when reviewed
on appeal. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004);
Riley v. State, 110 Nev. 638, 847, 878 P.2d 272, 278 (1994). |
First, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to object to the use of a 2004 Nevada conviction for aiding and

abetting in tbe commission of attempting to obtain money by false

Surerus CouRt
oF
NESADA 2




pretenses for adjudication as a habitual criminal. Appellant fails to
demonsirate that he was prejudiced.

The eriminal activity for the 2004 conviction for attempting to
obtain money by false pretenses occurred after appellant had heen charged
and was awaiting trial for this case. However, appellant was convicted of
attempting to obtain money by -fa_lse pretenses prior to his conviction in
this case. After the trial for this case, the State sought adjudication of
appellant as a habitual criminal and filed the 2004 judgment of conviction
for obtaining monéy by false pretenses along with two other judgments of
conviction. The other judgments of conviction were a 1898 federal court
conviction of four counts of felony tax perjury and a 1998 Nevada
conviction for two counts of burglary. As the conviction for the attempt to
obtain money by false pretenses was not entered before the unlawful
actions leading to the instant offense occurred, the conviction for the

-attempt to obtain money by false pretenses was not properly used as a
past conviction for purposes of adjudication as a habitua} criminal in the
instant matter. Brown v. State, 97 Nev. 101, 102, 624 P.2d 1005, 1006

(1881}, However, we conclude that any error was harmless because a

sufficient number of convictions was presented. See NRS 178.5698 (stating
tbat “[a]ny error, def‘ect, irregularity or variance which does not affect
substantial rights shall be disregarded”).

The two additional judgments of conviction list six additional
felonies which were properly considered when determining appellant’s
adjudication as a habitual felon. Appellant makes no argument that any
of tbe six other felonies were improperly considered. A review of the
record reveals that, at the sentencing hearing, the State presented

evidence that the felony tax perjury convictions stemmed from a plan
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running over at least four years, with numerous transactions, through
which appellant fraudulently gained at least $800,000. Accordingly, the
previous tax perjury convictions were not the result of the same act,

transaction, or occurrence and may he used as four separate convictions

for purposes of habitual criminal adjudication. Rezin v. State, 95 Nev.
461, 462, 596 P.2d 226, 227 (1979). Thus, even excluding the conviction
for the attempt to obtain money hy false pretenses, there were sufficient
past felony convictions for the district court to adjudicate appellant a
habitual eriminal. NRS 207.010, Considering the district court's
statement at the sentencing hearing to appellant that he was the “poster
child for habitual criminality in that every time you're released from
custody it seems like youre out making a full-time living stealing,”
appellant fails to demonstrate a reasonable probability that the outcome of
the sentencing hearing would have been different had his trial counsel
objected to the use of the 2004 Nevada conviction for attempt to abtain
money by false pretenses when adjudicating him as a hahitual eriminal.
Therefore, the district court did not err in denying this claim,

Second, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to argue that the hurglary offenses and the unlawful possession,
making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels offense
merged, and that conviction and sentence for both constitute a violation of
douhle jeopardy. Appellant fails to demonstrate that his trial counsel's
performance was deficient or that he was prejudiced. To determine
whether multiple offenses violate double jeopardy principles “[t]he test is
whether the individual acts are prohihited, or the course of action which

they constitute. If the former, then each act is punishable separately. If

the latter, there can he but one penalty.” Blockburger v. United States,




284 U.S. 299, 302 (1932) {(quoting Wharten’s Criminal Law § 35 {11th
ed.)); see also United States v. Dixon, 509 U.S. 688, 696 (1993). Burglary

occurs when a person enters a building with the intent to commit any

felony, or to obtain money or property by false pretenses. NRS 205.060(1).
The unlawful possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory
pricing labels occurs when a person possesses, makes, alters, forges, or
counterfeits any sales receipt or inventory pricing lahel with the intent to
cheat or defraud a retailer. NRS 205.966(1). Therefore, the acts of
burglary and the unlawful possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of
inventory pricing labels offense are distinct individual acts with different
elements. Thus, conviction and sentencing for the offenses do not violate
double jecpardy principles. Appellant fails te demonstrate a reasonable
probability that the cutcome of the proceedings would have been different
had his trial counsel argued the conviction and sentence for both crimes
violated double jeopardy. Therefore, the district court did not err in
denying this claim,

Third, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to argue for a lesser restitution amount. Appellant argues that
the items taken from the various businesses were 1'et-lurned after they were

‘recovered by the police, and therefore, the businesses did not lose the total
amount of the restitution that was imposed. Appellant fails to
demonstrate that he was prejudiced. Appellant fails to identily any way in
which to reasonably calculate the value lost hy the businesses due to
appellant’s crimes. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev, 498, 502-03, 686 P.2d 222,
225 (1984); see also NRS 205.0831 (stoting that the standard by which to
caleulate the value of property obtained through theft is the fair market

value of the property at the time of the theft). The district court concluded

b
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that trial counsel was not ineffective for failing to argue for a lower
restitution amount and substantial evidence supports that eonclusion.
Therefore, the district court did not err in denying this claim.

Fourth, appellant arﬁues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to cross-examine Brett Bowman concerning his inconsistent
statements. Appellani fails to demonstrate that his trial counsel's
performance was deficient or that he was prejudiced. Appellant compares
statements Bowman made prior to trial with those that Bowman made
during trial and argues they were inconsistent. The district court
determined that the statements appellant compares covered different
topics and that the questions were posed differently in each situation. The
distriet couvt also determined that the questions posed to Bowman
necessarily elicited different nnswers. Those statements were, therefore,
consistent statements that could not have been used for impeachment
purposes. See NRS 51.035(2)(a); Leonard v. State, 114 Nev. 639, 662-53,
958 P.2d 1220, 1230 (1998). The district court also determined that

appellant failed to demonstrate a reasonable probability that the outcome
of the trial would have been different hnd counsel questioned Bowman
about these statements. Appellant fails to demonstrate that the district
court’s determination was erroneous and we conclude that subsiantial
evidence supports the district court's determination. Therefore, the
district court did not err in denying this claim.

Next, appellant argues that the district court erred by
conducting an evidentiary hearing over only four of his claims and
dismissing the remnainder. Other than the claim concerning the use of

past convictions for adjudicating appellant as a habitual criminal,

appellant makes no specific argument for why an evidentiary hearing
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should have heen conducted concerning any other claims or why the
district court erred in dismissing any other claims. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at
502-03, 686 P.2d at 225. Because appellant’s claim was not supported by

specific argument, we conclude appellant failed to demonstrate the district

‘court erred. See Mazzan v. Warden, 116 Nev. 48, 75, 993 P.2d 25, 42

(2000).

Accordingly, having considered appellant's contentions and

concluding that they are without merif, we

ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.
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cc:  Hon. Steven P. Elliott, District Judge
Kay Ellen Armstrong
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick -
Washoe District Court Clerk
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

RONALD WAYNE BEALL, Supreme Court No,
Petitioner,

w5,
THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE Districl Couri Case No.

STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF
WASHOE; THE HONORABLE STEVEM P. ELLIOTT,
DISTRICT JUDGE; AND AMY HARVEY, WASHOE
COUNTY CLERK,

Respondents.

NOTICE IN LIEU OF REMITTITUR

TO THE ABOVE-NAMED PARTIES:

54899

CR31388

The decision and Order of the court in this matter having been entered on 12/03/09, and the period
for the filing of a petition for rehearing having expired and ne petition having been filed, nolice is
hereby given that the Drder and decision entered herein has, pursuant te the rules of this court,

tecome effective.

DATE: December 29, 2009

Tracie Lindeman, Clark of Court

By: 'q \ ﬁ/{—
Deputy Clerk

CC.  Howard W. Conyers, Washoe District Court Clerk

Alterney General/Carson City
fonald Wayne Beall
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Freexx IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE: CRO03P1263

Judge: STEVEN ELLIOTT

Official File Stamp: 12-30-2009:16:35:37

Clerk Accepted: 12-30-2009:16:36:27

Court: Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
Case Title: POST: FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI (D10)
Document(s) Submitted: Supreme Court Remittitur

Supreme Ct Clk's Cert & Judg
Supreme Court Order Affirming
Filed By: Cathy Kepler

You may review this filing by clicking on the
following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional
means (see Nevada electronic filing rules):

KAY ARMSTRONG
RICHARD GAMMICK, ESQ.
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FILED

Electronically
01-28-2010:10:21:31 AM
. Conyers

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NFYADHA: “over
Transaction # 1286820

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, No. 51622
Appellant, Ve w1 1]
Vs,
THE STATE OFF NEVADA, ' F I L E D
Respondent.
JAN 2 2 2010
TRAGIE K. LIIDEMAN

. CLERK OF SUPREME COURT

BY ‘5+‘Y'f)--—‘—+9\f
DEPUTY CLERK

ORDER DENYING MOTION TQ RECALL REMITTITUR AND

DENYING PERMISSION I'OR A LATE PETITION FOR REHEARING

On December 3, 2009, this court affirmed the order of the
district court denying appeilant’s post-conviction petition for a writ of
habeas corpus. On December 29, 2009, the remittituwr was issued in this
case, On January 6, 2010, this cowrt received a motion to recall the
remittitur and a petition for rehearing. Appellant failed to demonstrate

that that the remittitur should be recalled. See Wood v. Siate, 60 Nev.

139, 104 P.2d 187 (1940). TFurther, the petition for rehearing is untimely.
NRAP 40(a){1). No good cause appearing, this court denies the motion to
recall remittitur and denies permission to submit a late petition for

rehearing.
It is sa ORDERLED.

AAA A

cc:  Hon, Steven P. Elliott, District Judge
Kay Ellen Armstrong
Attorney General/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney
Washoe Distriet Court Clerk .~
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A filing has been submitted to the court RE: CRO03P1263

Judge: STEVEN ELLIOTT

Official File Stamp: 01-28-2010:10:21:31

Clerk Accepted: 01-28-2010:10:22:13

Court: Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
Case Title: POST: FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI (D10)
Document(s) Submitted: Supreme Court Order Denying

Filed By: Cathy Kepler

You may review this filing by clicking on the
following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional
means (see Nevada electronic filing rules):

KAY ARMSTRONG
RICHARD GAMMICK, ESQ.
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Distriet Court
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CRO3P1253
DOC
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Dept. No. {O

2013APR23 PM I: 43

SJEEY Gl e AASTINGS
CLEREF THE COURT

BY-

IN THE%:QUD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF | )*_3@545&:

* * % * *

ERLKLLT LPcsLL],

)
)
Petitioner, )
) PETITION FOR WRIT
-vs- ' ) OF HABEAS CORPUS
_ [_& ) . {POST-CONVICTTON)
OFES R GRAND \l\[kﬁ-%ﬂ ) S
t,gsdﬁﬁ-?l( (o<l CENTEL) WE
Respondent. ) S S 267 ooy SIRES ABEGN
o)
INSTRUCTIONS: E\ILDEJT‘L‘-&"@"Y QEQ;&.USG Q—E&‘Mb

{1) This petition must be legibly handwritten or
typewritten, signed by the petitioner and verified.

(2) Additional pages are not permitted except where noted
or with respect to the facts which you rely upon to support your
grounds for relief. No citation of authorities need be
furnished. 1If briefs or arguments are submitted, they should be
submitted in the form of a separate memorandum.

(3) If you want an attorney appointed, you must complete
the Affidavit in Support of Request to Proceed in Forma
Pauperis. You must have an authorized officer at the prison
complete the certificate as to the amount of money and
securities on deposit to your credit in any account in the
institution.

(4) You must name as respondent the person by whom you are
confined or restrained. If you are in a specific institution of
the Department of Corrections, name the warden or head of the
institution. If you are not in a specific institution of the
Department but within its custody, name the Director of the
Department of Corrections.

(5) You must include all grounds or claims for relief which

you may have regarding your conviction or sentence. Failure to
raise all grounds in this petition may preclude you from filing

V9.586
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future petitions challenging your conviction and sentence.

(6) You must allege specific facts supporting the claims in
the petition you file seeking relief from any conviction or
gentence. Failure to allege specific facts rather than just
conclusions may cause your petition to be dismissed. If your
petition contains a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel,
that claim will operate to waive the attorney-client privilege
for the proceeding in which you claim your counsel was
ineffective.

(7} When the petition is fully completed, the original and
one copy must be filed with the clerk of the state district
court for the county in which you were convicted. One copy must
be mailed to the respondent, one copy to the Attorney General's
Office, and one copy to the district attorney of the county in
which you were convicted or to the original prosecutor if you
are challenging your original conviction or sentence. Copies
must conform in all particulars to the original submitted for
filing.

PETITION

1. Name of institution and county in which you are presently
imprisoned or where and how you are presently restrained of your
liberty: Lovelock Correctional Center, Pershing County, Nevada.

2. Name and location of court which enteged the jydgment of
conwiction under attack: Sgcoeld WD AL Vst A,
dsdor, Coonry , STME of WevADX '

3. Date of judgment of conviction: l&&&iL.\ , 2
T ¥

4. Case number: C D2 - 23
5. ) Length of sentence: PNXTDVRE [ Fs Se gteced I T .
T MG uz,uv{{ PSS Gty L EMSCE AT Loy (ERM

(b) If sentence is death, state any date upon which
execution is scheduled: N/A

6. Are you presently serving a sentence for a conviction
other than the conviction under attack in this motion?

Yes No _X_

E*

If "yes," list crime, ¢ase number and sentence being
gerved at this time: Llf

Nature of offense involved in conviction being chgllenged:

bﬂ@' Y otlEkee e CSnsPiiey. RURGIARY pvp FassesSein

ms—m,«,wmne:s Syl 87 MR TN F Lioanhl STORRIL. LS 22RO

8. What was your plea? (check one)

—2-
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(a) Not guilty X

(b) Guilty

{c) Guilty but mentally ill
{(d) Nolo contendere

9. If you entered a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill
to one count of an indictment or information, and a plea of not
guilty to another count of an indictment or information, or if a
plea of guilty or guyilty but mentally ill was negotiated, give
details: e

+

10. If you were found guilty or guilty but mentally ill after
a plea of not guilty, was the finding made by: (check one}

(a} Jury x (b) Judge without a jury

11. Did you testify at the trial? Yes No
12. Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction?
Yes X No
13. If you did appeal, angwer the followipg:
(a) Name of court: & T
(b) Case number or citation: 4323
{c} Result:. T o G 0

(d} Date of result:
(Attach copy of order or decision, if available.)

14. If ye&ﬂ%ﬁ? not appeal, explain briefly why you did not:

15. Other than a direct appeal from the judgment of conviction
and sentence, have you previously filed any petitions,
applications or motions with respect to this judgment in any
court, state or federal? Yes X_ No

ls. If your answer to No. 15 was "yes," give the following
information:
(a} (1) Name of court: Td S SR

(2) Nature of proceeding: Uspcg i -_—[;L,& AS E £V Qg

AT 13 2% OSC % 2254

(3) Grounds raised: "
T);@z, (sl Greaos Vissedsed (1w %ﬁ. SkeRMSWE ?:gn WRTY

(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your
petition, application or motion? Yes No
PP — 7 — A
-3
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{5)  Result: C;:uu‘ Wz S’L’W P X "&ézm

{6) Date of result:

(7) If known, citations of any written opipion or

date of orders enterif ursuant to suchjresult: ?tZk%;
AIACKED ORDELS oL C(b z&aﬁ 1&:&%%
é.ksi. X e (W CSENS ST =\

(b) As to any second petition, application or motion,
give the same information:

(1) Name of court: &@&%@@M G@dt(

(2) Nature of proceeding: (}SR_LT £ Qn.é'&\mﬂhﬁ

LDsZ MBS I=Too o\uaL?-)

{4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your
petition, application or motion? Yes No X

{5) Result:
{€) Date of result: jJ%Qj <4 ’ ya-yn3

(7} If known, citations of any written opjinion or
date of orders entered pursuant to such result: <gs éggﬁéggg
W c RS -12e.3

(c) As to any third or subsequent additional applications
or motions, give the same information as above, list them on a
separate sheet and attach.

(d}) Did you appeal to the highest state or federal court
having jurisdiction, the result or action taken on any petition,
application or motion?

(1) First petition, application or motion?
Yes No X
Citation or date of decision: },!k‘
(2) Second petition, application or motion?
Yes A No
Citation or date of decision: i}f&)DMIG-
)
(3) Third or subsequent petitions, applications or
motions? Yes No

Citation or date of decision:

A
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{e) If you did not appeal from the adverse action on any
petition, application or motion, explaln briefly why you did
not. (You must relate specific facts in response to this
question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2
by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not
exceeg flve handwritten or typewritten pages in length.)

Tiror (etTisd (Fzocenc /2254 ). CooflAd i STELATIVELY
> (50D Cise. Jal0 1SUE0 A STY Joud ABeYIeRE JIwiap ~ ReboEs V.

Pzped’ S4q ]S 26 1 mas) ! N0\ _PeniOndG  HPPeieh sl
7L FORL W ENHA STRE ‘_JHIE.M&:C_ésM
17. Has any ground being raised in this petition been

previously presented to this or any other court by way of
petition for habeas corpus, motion, application or any other
postconviction proceeding? If so, identify:

(al Which of the grounds is the same: ;2§;£, (Erﬂj&hJDS —
=23 % (WNelJswe

(b) The proceedings in which these g ds w raised:
ST, T of Hdezis Gonpos ( Yost -L,Mm-hh:gl ef’e‘ci
Pex Ty s WS 394725~ 735 | AF N3S %2‘2’5*
(c) Brleffy explain why you afe again raising these

grounds. (You must relate specific facts in response to this
guestion. Your regponse may be included on paper which is 8 1/2
by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not
exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.)

) SUE; ORI ok S DY D AbsYdades Posadadt T
R T C

18. If any of the grounds listed in Nos. 23(a}, {(b), {(c) and
(d}, or listed on any additional pages you have attached, were
not previously presented in any other court, state or federal,
list briefly what grounds were not so presented, and give your
reasons for not presenting them. (You must relate specific facts
in response to this question. Your response may be included on
paper which is 8 1/2 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your
response may not exceed. five handwrittern orx typewritten pages in
length.) S e [ ;3( 1§Y ctsp;‘rﬁal!&

19. Are you filing this petition more than 1 year following
the filing of the judgment of conviction or the filing of a
decision on direct appeal? If so, state briefly the reasons for
the delay. (You must relate specific facts in response to this
question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2
by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not
exceed five handwritten typewritten pag kength.)

Ses  Racndfl  (7(aY ei(c, ApDVE

20. Do you have any petition or appeal now pending in any
court, either state or federal, as to the judgment under attack?

5=
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Yes K No

If yes, state what court and b%f caﬁhjnumber Llégggggz

K e

21. lee the name of each attorney who represented you 1n the

22, Do you have any future sentenc tc serve after you
complete the sentence imposed by the judgment under attack?

Yes No K

If yes, specify where and when it is to be served, if you
know: A f
23, State concisely every ground on which you claim that you

are being held unlawfully. Summarize briefly the facts
supporting each ground. If necessary you may attach pages
stating additional grounds and facts supporting same.

Supporting FACTS (Tell your story briefly without
citing cases or law.):

4 A
"N Bisy (o jop <oag Wnllau‘\
o G Coiga (: Dazr-—c;ami@éu_)

{(b) Ground two:

Supporting FACTS (Tell your story briefly without
citing cases or law.):

V9.594
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() Ground three:

Supporting FACTS (Tell your story briefly without
citing cases or law.):

{d) Ground four:

Supporting FACTS (Tell your story briefly without
citing cases or law.):

WHEREFORE, petitioner prays that the court grant petitioner
relief to which he may be entitled in this proceeding.

EXECUTED at jLovelock Correctional Center on [the day of
the month of [T of the vea
; D B ;
L ock Corr ighal Center

1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se
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VERIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he
is the petitioner named in the foregoing petition and knows the
contents thereof; that the pleading is true of his own
knowledge, except as to those matters stated on ormation and
belief, and as to such matters he beliey to/be true.

#

W@M
Lévelock Trectional Center

1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

I, E s . VPwziy hereby certify,pursuant to
N.R.C}P. 5(b), that on this \} day of the month of
M- of the year 2035, I mailed a true and correct
copy of the foregoing PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
addressed to:

Warden < —n_3)
Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada

Catherine Cortez Masto

Nevada Attorney General

100 No. Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717

% County District Attorney

LSS Sieste s~ ST
S5 A< a3 )
@ i) , Nevada 89 %2x-9%oY73

g_bm:t—f# 7 IR

Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada 894189

Petitioner In Pro Se
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AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030
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The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding _\J &AL o tnbeis

Copfos ( Poyt - @J‘m\mﬁ & e Se I G *L{?(Zzﬂo RS}

]

(Title of Document)

filed in District Court Case No. C_R>3-P 120>

X Does NOT contain the social security number of any person.
-OR-
Contains the social security number of a person as required by:

A. A specific state or federal law, to-wit:

(State specific law)
_or_

B. For the administration of a public program or for an application for a
federal or state grant.

Dated this L\ day of j‘scf’fqa,

—
e, ISPttt 798y
Lovelock Correctional Center

1200 Prison Road

L@f&lOCk, Nevada 89419

ST ADVER In Pro Se
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1{ CODE 1850
2
3
IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
{N AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
L Plaintif Case No. CR03-1263
11 VS,
Dept. No. 10
12 | FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
13 : : Defendant. p
14
15 JUDGMENT
16 The Defendant having baen found guilty by a jury, and no sufficient cause

17 | being shown by Defendant as to why judgment should not be pronounced against‘ him, the
18 || Court rendered judgment as foliows:

18 That Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli is guilty of the crimes of Conspiracy to Commit
20 | Crimes Against Property, a violation of NRS 199.480, NRS 205.060, NRS 205.0832, NRS
21 f 205.090, NRS 205.110, NRS 205.220, NRS 205.240, NRS 205.380 and NRS 205,965, a
22 | grogs misdemeanor, as charged in Count | of the Indictment, Burglary, a viol'étion of NRS
23 || 205.080, a felony, as charged in Counts {1 through IX of the Indictment.and Unlawful

24 || Possession, Making, Forgery or Counterfeiting of Inventory Pricing Labels, a violation of
25 | NRS 206.985(2) and (3), a felony, as charged in Count X of the Indictment and the Court
26 || having adjudged the Defendant to be an Habitual Criminal as provided under NRS 207.010,
27 || the Court hereby sentences the Defendant by imprisanment in the Washoe County Jail for
28 || the term of twelve (12) months, as to Count |, to run concurrently with the sentences
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imposed in Counts I through X. As to Count [i, he be punished by imprisonment in the
Nevada State Prison for the term of Life with parole eligibility beginning after ten (10) years
has been served. As to Count Ill, he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada State
Prison for the ferm of Life with parole eligibiiity beginning after ten (10) years has been ,
served, to run concurrently with Count Il. As to Count IV, he be punished by imprisonment
in the Nevada State Prison for the term of Life with parole eligibility beginning after ten (10)
years has been served, to run concurrently with Count {ii. As to Count V, he be punished
by imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for the term of Life with parole eligibility
beginning after ten (10) years has been served, to run concurrently with Count IV. As to
Count VI, he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for the term of Li:fe
with parole eligibility beginning after ten (10) years has been served, to run concurrently with
CountV. As to Count Vil, he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for
the term of Life with parole eligibility beginning after ten (10) years has been served, to run
concurrently with Count Vi. As to Count VIII, he be punished by imprisonment in the
Nevada State Prison for the term of Life with parole eligibility beginning after ten (10} years
has been served, to run concurrently with Count Vi, As to Count IX, he be punished by!
imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for the term of Life with parole eligibility beginping
after ten (10) years has been served, ta run concurrently with Count VIll. As to Count Xv he
be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada State Prison for the term of Life with parole
eligibility beginning after ten (10) years has been served, to run consecutively to Counts |l
through IX. The Defendant is further ordered to pay the statutory Twenty-Five Dollar
($25.00) administrative assessment fee, a One Hundred Fifty Dollar ($150.00) DNA testing
fee, restitution in the amount of Ten Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-Nine Dollars and
Sixteen Cents ($10,339.16) and reimburse the County of Washoe the sum of Five Hundred
Dollars ($500.00) for legal representation by the Washoe County Public Defender’s Office.
it
i
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1{ The Defendant is given credit for zero (0) days time served.

It is further ordered the above sentence shall run consecutively to any other

14
15
16 "
17

18
19
.
21

2 |
23
24
25
26
27
28

ll sentence the Defendant is obligated to serve.

DATED this 1st day of April, 2004.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA -
Appellant,

No. }43263 F "_E D

THE STATE OF NEVADA, | - MAY 0 72004

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,

. M. BLOOM
Respondent. c Leﬁﬁ”mf LBLOOM |
: YM"
g - '

ORDER OF LIMITED REMAND FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

This is a proper person appeal from a judgment of conviction.
We remand this appeal to the district court for the limited pizrpose -of
securing counsel for appellant.! The district court shall have 30 days from
the date of this order to appoint counsel for appellant. Within 5 days from
the date of appointment, the district court cler'k“shall transmit to the clerk
of this court a copy of the district court's written or minute order
appointing appellate counsel.

It is so ORDERED.

IS | DUNCISY

cc:  Hon. Steven P. Elliott, District Judge
Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli
Attorney General Brian Sandoval/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe District Court Clerk

1See Evitts v. Lucey, 469 U.S. 387 (1985).

e — e

EXHIBIT___
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, No. 43203
Appellant,

ve FILED
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent. JUN 2 9 2005

RETTE M.BLOOM

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE cu.mc
IEF DLPUTY CLERK

This is an appeal from a judgment of conviction, upon a jury
verdict, of eight counts of burglary, one count of conspiracy, and one count
of possession or making of counterfeit pricing labels. Second Judicial
District Court, Washoe County; Steven P. Elliott, Judge.

Appellant Ferrill Volpicelli asserts four errors on appeal of his
indictment, conviction, and sentencing. First, Volpicelli claims that the
district court erred in not quashing his indictment after the grand jury
heard inadmissible evidence of his prior burglary conviction. Next,
Volpicelli contends that the district court erred in finding him competent
to stand trial. Volpicelli also argues th_at the jury had insufficient
corroborating evidence of accomplice testimony to convict him. Finally,
Volpicelli claims that the district court abused its discretion in enhancing
his sentence after adjudicating him a habitual criminal. We disagree.

DISCUSSION

Grand jury indictment
Volpicelli cites no law, but contends that the district court

erred in not quashing his indictment based on the improper admission of

"his prior conviction, claiming that the jurors were tainted by the prior

conviction since they returned a true bill. The State cites State of Nevada

EXHIBIT
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v. Logan! and contends the applicable standard is whether the evidence
presented to the grand jury, without the disputed evidence, was sufficient
to sustain the indictment. The State further argues that there was more
than sufficient evidence presented to sustain the indictment.

NRS 172.155 calls for grand jury mdictment “when all the
evidence before them, taken together, establishes probable cause to believe
that an offense has been committed and that the defendant committed it.”
NRS 172.135 mandates that “the grand jury can receive none but legal
evidence, and the best evidence in degree, to the exclusion of hearsay or
secondary evidence.” But an indictment is not automatically quashed if
some of the evidence presented is not legal evidence.?

In Robertson v. State, this court held that although the grand

jury may have heard inadmissible hearsay evidence, the indictment could
be sustained where there was sufficient legal evidence.® This court

affirmed the dismissal of an indictment in Sheriff v. Frank, a case where

11 Nev. 509 (1865) (republished as 1-2 Nev. 427, 431) (‘IW]here
there is the slightest legal evidence, the court cannot inquire into its
sufficiency, or set it aside, because some illegal evidence was received with
it.”).

2Logan, 1-2 Nev. at 431:

That a grand jury should receive none but legal
proof, is an old and well-established rule, but that
the admission of evidence not strictly legal will
authorize a setting aside of an indictment, is a
proposition which seems to have no authority to
sanction it, and, if adopted, would only be an
impediment to the execution of criminal justicel.}

384 Nev. 559, 561-62, 445 P.2d 352, 363 (1968).
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the grand jury heard inadmissible evidence. However, contributing to
this court’s finding that the dismissal was proper was the omission by the
prosecutor of important exculpatory evidence;? and this court specifically
reiterated adherence “to the general rule announced in Robertson.”

Here, there was testimony from many witnesses as to
Volpicelli's involvement in the alleged burglary scheme. Additionally, the
prosecutor advised the grand jury that the prior burglary conviction was
being presented for a limited purpose,® and should not be considered in
determining whether there was sufficient probable cause to indict
Volpicelli. While the grand jury here heard inadmissible evidence, its
effect does not rise to the level of “clearly destroying” the independence,
and “irreparably impairing” the function, of the grand jury under Frank.
We conclude that there was sufficient legal evidence presented to the
grand jury to sustain the indictment; and that the district court did not err

in refusing to dismiss the indictment.

Competency
Again citing no law, Volpicelli argues on appeal that he may

not have been “competent during the crimes,” citing as evidence the

4103 Nev. 160, 734 P.2d 1241 (1987).

5I1d. at 165-66, 734 P.2d at 1245 (finding that the omission of
exculpatory evidence, along with the presentation of substantial
inadmissible evidence, “clearly destroyed the existence of an independent
and informed grand jury and irreparably impaired its function”).

We note that the prosecution incorrectly interpreted this court’s
holding in Lewis v. State, 109 Nev. 1013, 862 P.2d 1194 (1993) as
mandating formal notice in the charging documents of the State’s
intention to seek an enhanced sentence based on prior convictions.
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successful treatment of his “mental illness” since his incarceration. The
State assumes that since Volpicelli’s appeal brief refers to the competency
hearing, the competency being appealed was actually Volpicelli's
competency to stand trial.

This court will make the same assumption, in light of the fact
that the record contains no evidence that the defense of insanity was
considered or even mentioned. In Ogden v. State, this court noted that
“[clompetency at the time of trial is not to be confused with the defense of
insanity. Competency to stand trial is a judicial determination, whereas
the defendant’s sanity at time of commission of the act is a factual
question.”” The competency determination is based on “whether the
defendant has sufficient present ability to consult with his lawyer with a
reasonable degree of rational understanding, and whether he has a
rational and factual understanding of the proceedings against him.”® In
reviewing a district court’s determination of competency, this court will
sustain such a finding when substantial evidence exists to support it.?

Here, the judge reviewed evaluations from two different
doctors, and allowed several different attorneys for Volpicelli to be heard
on the matter of competency. The two evaluations both concluded that
Volpicelli understood his legal situation, and had sufficient ability to
consult with his attorneys. - We therefore com;,lude that substantial

706 Nev. 697, 698, 615 P.2d 251, 252 (1980).

8Jones v. State, 107 Nev. 632, 637, 817 P.2d 1179, 1182 (1991)
(citing Melchor-Gloria v. State, 99 Nev. 174, 178-80, 660 P.2d 109, 113
(1983)).

9Tanksley v. State, 113 Nev. 844, 847, 944 P.2d 240, 242 (1997)
(citing Qgden v. State, 96 Nev. 697, 698, 615 P.2d 251, 252 (1980)).
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evidence existed to support the district court’s determination that

Volpicelli was competent to stand trial.

Sufficiency of the evidence to corroborate accompiice testimony |

Next Volpicelli contends that the jury had insufficient
evidence to convict him on some of the charges, although which specific
charges were not supported by sufficient evidence is not enumerated in his
appeal. Volpicelli bases this contention on the State’s failure to provide
adequate corroboration of the testimony of Volpicelli’s alleged accomplice.
Volpicelli argues that with the exception of accomplice Brett Bowman,
nobody else testified to seeing Volpicelli commit any crimes.

The State counters that there was ample corroboration to
meet the statutory standard of independent evidence connecting the
defendant to the crime.l® The State argues that there was corroborative
testimony as to the planning and execution of the crimes, as well as
corroborative testimony connecting Volpicelli to physical evidence,
including both the instruments of the crimes and the “booty” of the crimes.

This court will not disturb a conviction if it is supported by
substantial evidence.l! NRS 175.291 requires that accomplice testimony

be corroborated:

1. A conviction shall not be had on the
testimony of an accomplice unleas he is
corroborated by other evidence which in
itself and without the aid of the
testimony of the accomplice, tends to

1ONRS 175.291.

UCoffman v. State, 93 Nev. 32, 34, 559 P.2d 828, 829 (1977).
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connect the defendant with the
commisgion of the offense; and the
corroboration shall not be sufficient if it
merely shows the commission of the
offense or the circumstances thereof.

2. An accomplice is hereby defined as one
who is liable to prosecution, for the
identical offense charged against the
defendant on trial in the cause in which
the testimony of the accomplice is given.

“Corroboration evidence need not be found in a single fact or
circumstance and can, instead, be taken from the circumstances and
evidence as a whole.”!2 However, such evidence must “independently
connect the defendant with the offense; evidence does not suffice as
corroborative if it merely supports the accomplice’s testimony.”13

Here, there was corroborative evidence that connected
Volpicelli with both the commission of the crimes and the merchandise
that was the object of the crimes. Volpicelli was placed at the scene of the
crime the day of the arrest by the testimony of multiple police officers.
Further, the State introduced independent testimony that Volpicelli (1)
closely inspected the bike that was ultimately found in the van with.the
two suspects; (2) purchased one of the comforters found in the van; (3)
owned both the van and the bag containing the label maker; and (4) was

seen in stores where much of the recovered merchandise had been

12Cheatham v. State, 104 Nev, 500, 504, 761 P.2d 419, 422 (1988)
(citing LaPena v. State, 92 Nev. 1, 544 P.2d 1187 (1976)).

13Heglemeier v. State, 111 Nev. 1244, 1250, 903 P.2d 799, 803
(1995). _
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purchased, recording UPC codes. Additionally, there was ample testimony
from various store representatives that supported the testimony of
Bowman as to the value of the various merchandise recovered in the
storage unit. Finally, there was independent testimony from both a ﬁolice
officer and the owner of the mini-storage business that connected
Volpicelli, and not Bowman, to the storage unit where much of the
merchandise was found.

We conclude, therefore, that there was sufficient corroboration
of accomplice Bowman’s testimony under NRS 175.291 to support all the
jury’s guilty verdicts against Volpicelli.

Habitual criminal status

Volpicelli contends that the district court abused its discretion
when it found habitual criminal status and ran two of the enhanced
sentences consecutively. Volpicelli's argument is based on the fact that
none of his prior convictions were violent, and that he had untreated
mental health problems. The State responds that the district court did not
abuse its discretion, based on case law that permits such discretion, and
the validity of the prior convictions.

NRS 207.010, the statute applied to Volpicelli's sentencing,
provides several different levels of sentence enhancement against
convicted criminals, depending on the offense committed and the °
offender’s prior convictions. From the use of three prior felony convictions,
along with the ten-to-life sentencing, we can make a reasonable
assumption that it was NRS 207.010(1)(b)(2) that was used in Volpicelli's

case, although the specific subsection is not cited in the record. That

subsection reads in pertinent part:
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1. Unless the person is prosecuted pursuant
to NRS 207.012 or 207.014, a person
convicted in this state of:

(b) Any felony, who has previously been

.three times convicted, whether in this state

or elsewhere, of any crime which under the
laws of the situs of the crime or of this state
would amount to a felony ... is a habitual
criminal and shall be punished for a
category A felony by imprisonment in the
state prison:

(2) For life with the possibility of parole,
with eligibility for parole beginning when a
minimum of 10 years has been served . ..

“The decision to adjudicate a person as a habitual criminal is
not an automatic one.”l4 It may be an abuse of discretion for a court to
adjudicate an offender a habitual criminal using convictions that are
remote in time and non-violent.!’® However, the statute “makes no special
allowance for non-violent crimes or for the remoteness of convictions;
instead, these are considerations within the discretion of the district

court.”® In exercising its discretion, a trial court considering habitual

14Clark v. State, 109 Nev. 426, 428, 851 P.2d 426, 427 (1993).

15]d. (citing Sessions v. State, 106 Nev. 186, 789 P.2d 1242 (1990)).

BArajakis v. State, 108 Nev. 976, 983, 843 P.2d 800, 806 (1992)
(citing French v. State, 98 Nev. 235, 645 P.2d 440 (1982)).
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criminal status must make a judgment on the question of “whether it [i]s
just and proper” for the offender to be adjudicated as a habitual criminal.l?
Here, it is clear from the record that the district court
considered the nature of Volpicelli's prior convictions, and considered the
impact of Volpicelli’s crimes on both law enforcement and society as a
whole. We conclude that this meets the requirements of Clark as to
“weighl[ing] the appropriate factors”!® and making a judgment that
Volpicelli “deserved to be declared a habitp.al criminal.”1? Accordingly we
ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED,

Parraguirre

cc:  Hon. Steven P. Elliott, District Judge
Mary Lou Wilson
Attorney General Brian Sandoval/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe Distriet Court Clerk

17Clark, 109 Nev. at 428, 851 P.2d at 427.
18]d,

191d. at 427, 851 P.2d at 427.
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

% K %
FERRILL J. VOLPICELLI,
| Petitioner, - Case No.: CRQ3P1263 \
VS, Dept. No.: 10
LENARD VARE, WARDEN,
Respondent.

l .
ORDER PARTIALLY DISMISSING PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
- I N D ORDER TO SET HEARING

On November 14, 2003, this Court convicted Petitioner of one count of conspiracy to
commit crimes against property, eight counts of burglary, and one count of uniawful

possession, making, forgery or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels. Petitioner was
adjudged to be an habitual criminal, under NRS 207.010, and was sentenced to
confinement in the Nevada State Prison for a term of 12 months for the conspiracy
conviction, he was given concurrent life sentences for each burglary conviction, and he was
given an additioﬁal'lifé sentence for the possession/counterfeiting conviction. Petitioner
was also ordered to pay restitution in the amount of $10,339.16, Those convictions were
affirmed by the Nevada Supreme Court. Petitioner filed a timely Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus as well as a Suppiemental Petition. Respondent filed a Motion for Partial Dismissal
of the Petition and Supplemental Petition, and Petitioner has opposed that motion.

" EXHIBIT.
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This Court will dismiss a petition for writ of habeas corpus without a hearing when
the petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the petition could
have been (1) presented to the trial court, (2) raised in a direct appeal, or (3) raised in any
other proceeding petitioner has taken to secure relief, NRS 34.810(1)(b). Claims of
Ineffective assistance of trial or appellate counsel are property raised for the first time ina
timely post-conviction petition. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 987, 923 P.2d 1102, 1107
(1996). Additionally, this Court will dismiss a petition without a hearing If the petitioner
falls to “sipport any claims withspecific factual allegations that if true would entitie him or
her to relief.” Pangallo v. State, 112 Nev. 1533, 1536, 930 P.2d 100, 102 (1996).

In the event the petitioner does allege specific facts to properly support a claim for
ineffective assistance of counsel, relief will only be granted if petitioner can show {1) his
counsel’s performance was deﬁciént, and (2) the deficiency prejudiced the petitioner.
Strickland v, Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (1984). To establish prejudice,'the claimant
must show that an omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on
appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. At 998, 923 P.2d at 1113. Judicial review of a fawyer’s
representation is highly deferential, and a claimant must overcome the presumption that a
challenged action might be considered sound strategy. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689.

Analysis

Petitioner alleges twenty-two grounds for habeas relief. Upon review, this Court
finds that only grounds 7, 11, 12, and 14 warrant an evidentiary hearing. The remaining
grounds for refief must be dismissed.

Ground One .

Petitioner argues that appeliate counsel failed to present issues in constitutional or
“federalized” terms, which, in turn, prevented the Nevada Supreme Court from applying
constitutional standards of review and also prevented petitioner from being able to petition | .
for relief in a federa! district court. The terms appellate counsel used are presumed“to be

part of a sound strategy and no amount of federal language used will allow a federal

V9.617
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district court to exercise appellate jurisdiction over a decision of the Nevada Supreme
Court, Thus, petitioner was not prejudiced by appellate counsef’s choice of language, and
Ground One must be dismissed.

Ground Two

Petitioner’s second ground for relief alleges that, on appellate review, the Nevada
Supreme Court applied the wrong law in its decision. This Court has no authority to
overrule the Nevada Supreme Court. Ground two is dismissed.

Grounds Three, Four, Five, and Six

In Grounds Three, Four, Five, and Six, petitioner argues issues that were either
argued and decided on appeal or should have been argued and decided on appeal. These
grounds must therefore be dismissed pursuant to NRS 34.810(b). |

Ground Seven

Ground Seven pertains to the restitution order, Specifically, petitioner claims that a
jury should have determined the precise amount of restitution, that the court failed to
consider petitioner’s ability to pay, and that counsel was ineffective in failing to contest the
amount of restitution. Only the latter allegation within Ground Seven warrants a hearing.
Courts that have considered the issue have determined that the precise amount of
restitution need not be decided by a jury. State v. Kinneman, 119 P.3d 350, 355 (Wash.
2005). Furthermore, an order for restitution is not dependant upon a defendant’s ability to
pay. Martinez v. State, 115 Nev. 9, 13, 974 P.2d 133, 135 (1999).

This Court is satisfied that the dlaim that counsel was ineffective for having failed to
contest the restitution amount does warrant a hearing. A hearing on this issue will be
fimited to a determination of the amount of restitution petitioner has been ordered to pay.

Ground Elght _

Here, Petitioner claims that the indictment was duplicitous (that he was charged
with either X or Y, and a jury was allowed to choose between crimes) and multiplicitous
(that he was charged more than once for the same crime), The indictment contains no

duplicitous counts, and each count represents a separate crime. Thus, Ground Eight is

V9.618-
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dismissed.

Ground Nine

Petitioner argues, in Ground Nine, that the conspiracy conviction is a lesser included
offense of his burglary convictions. A charge of conspiracy does not merge into the
completed crime. Gordon v. District Court, 112 Nev. 216, 230, 913 P.2d 240, 249 (1996).
Ground Nine is dismissed.

Ground Ten

Ground Ten is a claim that petitioner's conviction was a result of malicious
prosecution. This is yet another daim that either was or should have been raised on direct
appeal. It therefore must be dismissed pursuant to NRS 34.810(b).

Ground Eleven _

Here, petitioner argues that trial counsel was Ineffective for failing to impeach a

 prosecution witness with prior inconsistent statements. Such a failure on the part of trial

counsel, if true, may constitute a deficient performance that could have prejudiced the
petitioner, A hearing is wamranted on Ground Eleven,

Ground Twelve

Ground Twelve alleges that the prosecution withheld exculpatory evidence and that
trial counsel did not put forth sufficient effort to retrieve that evidence. " If true, this would
constitute deficient performance that may have prejudiced petitioner. A hearing is
warranted on Ground Twelve,

Ground Thirteen

Here, petitioner argues that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to suppress
certain evidence. Essentially, petitioner argues that physical evidence was improperly
admitted because it was obtained in violation of his Fourth Amendment right against
unreasonable search and selzure. The evidentiary Issue, itself, should have been raised on
direct appéal and is therefore barred from consideration under NRS 34.810(b). Petitioner’s | -
argument that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to suppress the evidence is
insufficient to overcome the presumption that trial counse! employed a sound strategy.
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Ground Thirteen is dismissed.

Ground Fourteen

This is essentially the same allegation as that in Ground Twelve—that the
prosecution withheld exculpatory evidence and that trial counsel put forth insufficient effort
to obtain the evidence. Ground Fourteen warrants a hearing.

Ground Fifteen ,

Ground Fifteen is an assertion that counsel was Ineffective for failing to quash the
indictment and for failing to immediately file an appeal when the indictment was upheld.
Pursuant to NRS 177.015, interlocutory orders In criminal cases are not immediately
appealable. In addition, petitioner’s argument In Ground One indicates that the Supreme
Court addressed this issue on direct appeél. This Court has no authority to overrule the
Supreme Court. Ground Fifteen must be dismissed.

Ground Sixteen )

This is an assertion that petitioner and trial counsel did not agree when it came to
various tactics and strategies. Such an assertion, if true, does not lead to a conclusion that
counsel was either deficlent or that any possible deficiency prejudiced the petitioner.
Therefore, Ground Sixteen does not present sufficient specific factual allegations that if
true would entitle him or her to relief. Ground Sixteen is dismissed.

Ground Seventeen ‘ .

In Ground Seventeen, petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to
present testimony at sentencing that may have projected petitioner in a more favorable
light. Aside from the issue of whether this constitutes a deficient performance, this Court
is not satisfied that but for such an omission, the result of sentencing would have been
different. Thus, Ground Seventeen is not supported with sufficient factual allegations that,
if true, would entitle petitioner to relief. It must be dismissed.

Ground Elghteen

Here, couched in terms of ineffective assistance of counsel, petitioner argues that
his status as an habitual criminal was Improper. This is one of the issues argued and
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declded on direct appeal to the Nevada Supreme Court. This Court has no authority to
overrule the Supreme Court. Ground Eighteen is dismissed.

Ground Nineteen

Ground Nineteen, again couched in terms of ineffective assistance of counsel, is an
argument that petitioner has received cruel and unusual punishment due to his status as
an habitual criminal. This has been argued and decided on direct appeal to the Nevada
Supreme Court. Ground Nineteen [s dismissed.

Ground Twenty

Here, petitioner argues that there was insufficient evidence to convict him of two of
the ten counts. This is an argument that could have been raised in a direct appeal. Itis
therefore barred by NRS 34.810(b) and must be dismissed.

Ground Twenty-One ‘

This is an argument that counsel was Ineffective in failing to argue that Nevada's
burglary statute is unconstitutionally vague. This Court is not convinced that this omitted
issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. It is therefore
dismissed. '

Ground Twenty-Two

Ground Twenty-Two is a general assertion that the cumulative effect of all tht_a
alleged deficiencies in each of the previous allegations has resulted in a miscarriage of
justice, This argument is not supported by any specific factual allegations that, if true,
would entitle petitioner to relief. No hearing is warranted for Ground Twenty-Two.

Having shown sufficlent grounds for relief warranting a hearing on Grounds Seven,
Eleven, Twelve, and Fourteen, an evidentiary hearing shall be set pertaining to those
grounds. The remainder of the Petition must be summarily dismissed.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that all grounds set forth in the
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus other than grounds 7, 11, 12, and 14 are DISMISSED.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the parties shall contact the Judicial Assistant for
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Department 10 for the purposes of setting a hearing regarding Grounds 7, 11, 12, and 14

within 20 (twenty) days of the issuance of this Order.

DATED this ___ > day of August, 2007. W

STEVEN P. ELLIOTT
District Judge
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
-
JRRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
10 Petitioner,
. u v. Case No. CRo3P1263
12 || LENARD VARE, WARDEN, Dept. No. 10
13 Respondent.
14 /
15 FINDINGS OF FACT. CONCLUSIONS QF LAW
AND JUDGMENT
16
17 This cause is before the court upon a petition for writ of habeas corpus {post-

18 || conviction). Petitioner Volpicelli was represented by counsel when he stood trial for several
19 || charges stemming from a scheme involving changing UPC price codes in retail stores. He was
20 || found guilty of several felonies and at sentencing the court sentenced him as a habitual

21 || criminal. He appealed, but the judgment was affirmed. He then filed a petition for writ of

22 || habeas corpus, asserting claims of ineffective assistance of counsel.

23 The State moved to dismiss some of the claims. On August 27, 2007 this court entered
24 | an order dismissing some of the claims and allowing a hearing on claims 7, 11, 12 and 14. The
25 [ court incorporates that interim order into this final judgment.

26 The surviving claims were scheduled for a hearing on September 20, 2007. The court

1
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11
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13
14
15
i6
17
18
19
20

21|

22

23

25
26

heard evidence from attorney Van Ry and from the prosecutor, Tammy Riggs. Petitioner
elected not to testify. Some of the claims concerned alleged prior inconsistent statements by a
witness at the trial. The alleged prior statements mostly arose during an interview between
that witness and police officers. The court was also able to review the transcripts of those
interviews. These findings are based on the evaluation of the record, the transeripts of the
police interviews and the evidence adduced at the habeas corpus hearing.

One of the claims involved restitution. The claim of ineffective assistance of counsel,
however, was based on a chart showing the disposition of stolen property. That chart was
prepared well after this litigation, by an Assistant City Attorney who was not involved in the
instant litigation. In argument, counsel for petitioner conceded that trial counsel could not be
ineffective in failing to utilize that which did not exist at the time. Accordingly, the claim that
counsel was ineffective in failing to challenge the amount of restitution is denied.

Another claim was that the prosecutor failed to produce exculpatory evidence. By the -
end of the hearing the petitioner had not adduced any evidence that had not been provided to
the defense. Accordingly, the claim of withholding evidence remains unproven and is denied.

Another claim is that trial counsel was ineffective in failing to adduce additional
evidence to show the extent of the plea bargain that was accepted by Volpicellis confederate,
witness Brett Bowman. The record reveals that Bowman had already been sentenced by the
time of Volpicelli’s trial and the details of the agreement were fully disclosed in the trial.
Petitioner has not introduced any evidence of any other or additional terms to Bowman's plea
agreement and so that claim, too, remains unproven.

Finally, the petition had a list of alleged prior statements by Bowman that could have
been used to impeach Bowman’s testimony. The court has reviewed the trial transcripts and
the transcripts of Bowman's interviews with police and finds nothing significant. Certainly
there is nothing that would probably have altered the outcome of the trial. On that subject, the

court notes that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing and thus there is no

2
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evidence at all about how Bowman would have responded if he had been questioned further

about his prior statements.

Most of the alleged inconsistent statements were not inconsistent at all. For example, at
trial Bowman was asked if he has purchased a certain bit of equipment at a Staples store in
California. He answered “no.” The alleged inconsistent statement arises from interview
transcripts in which he admitted purchasing the device, but without any reference to the name
of the store or the state in which it was purchased. Thus, the prior statement is not -
inconsistent at all. To the extent that the prior statement could have been used to start a
dialogue, the court notes again that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing and
there is therefore no evidence showing how he would have responded to additional questions
on the subject of purchasing the label making device. |

Similarly, at trial he was asked specifically if police officers helped him get a paychéck_ :
from the Sands casino and he denied getting such help. The interview transcripts do not
contradict that testimony as they only indicate that he had indeed got his paychecks but that
they were in his personal property. The police offered only to help him negotiate the checks.
That is not inconsistent with his trial testimony and there is no evidence showing how further
discussions would have helped petitioner in any way.

At trial, Bowman minimized his share of the loot. Volpicelli contends that he could have
been impeached with evidence that Bowman also acquired some home electronics. The
interview transcripts, however, are not inconsistent as they do not show that the home
electronics were stolen in the scheme with Volpicelli. Instead, Bowman claimed to have
purchased those items. Volpicelli has adduced no evidence to the contrary and so the claim

that counsel was ineffective in failing to impeach remains unproven.

The court has reviewed the evidence presented, including the transcripts of police
interviews, and finds nothing that would have been likely to alter the outcome of this litigation.

One who would claim ineffective assistance of counsel bears the burden of showing, by a

3
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1 I preponderance of the evidence, that the specific acts, omissions or decisions of counsel fell

2 || below an objective standard of reasonableness and that but for the failings of counsel a
different result was reasonably probable. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 5.Ct.
2052 (1984). This court has simply not been persuaded by the evidence that counsel acted

unreasonably or that the results would probably have been different if counse] had made

o AW

different decisions. Accordingly, the petition is denied.
DATED this ZZ day of April, 2008.
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OFWASHOE
ver
$RRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
Petitioner,
v, Case No. CRQ3P1263
LENARD VARE, WARDEN, Dept. No. 10
Resﬁondent.
/
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This cause is before the court upon a petition for writ of habeas corpus (m—-
conviction). Petitioner Volpicelli was represented by counsel when he stood trial for several
charges stemming from a scheme involving changing UPC price codes in retail stores. He was
found guilty of several felonies and at sentencing the court sentenced him as a habitual
criminal, He appealed, but the judgment was affirmed. He then filed a petition for-writ of
habeas corpus, asserting claims of meﬁ'echve assistance of counsel. ' |

The State moved to dismiss some of the claims. On August 27, 2007 this court entered
anorderdmmlsmngsomeofthaclaunsandallomngaheanngonclmms:?, 11, 12 and 14. The

court incorporates that interim order i lnto this final judgment.
The surviving claims were scheduled for a hearing. X gtembere I:T The court -

1
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heard evidence from attorney Van Ry and from the prosecutor, Tammy Riggs. Petitioner
elected not to testify. Some of the claims concerned alleged prior inconsistent statements by a -
witness at the trial. The alleged prior statements mostly arose during an interview between
| that witness and police officers. The.court was also able to review the transcripts ofthose

} interviews. These findings are based on the evaluation of the record, the transeripts of the

I police interviews and the evidence adduced at the habeas corpus hearing,

’ One of the claims involved restitution. The claim of ineffective assistance of counsel

|

|

l

|

| however, was based on a chart showing the disposition of stolen property. That chzlrt was -
9 prepared well after this hﬂgatlon, by an Assistant CltyAttomey who was not mvolved in the

| ineffective in failing to utilize that which did not exist at the time. Accordingly, the claim that

counsel was ineffective in failing to challenge the amount of restitution is denied. ‘
Another claim was that the prosecutor failed to produce exculpatbry evidence, By the

| end of the hearing the petitioner had not adduced any evidence that had not been provided t

| the defense. Accordingly, the claim of withholding evidence remains unproven and is denied.

Anothe:clmmmthattnaleounselwasmeffecnve mfaﬂmgtoadduceadd!honal '

Finally, the petition had a list of alleged prior statements by Bowrnan that could have -

| been used to impeach Bowman's testimony-. The court has reviewed the trial transcripts and

i the transcripts of Bowman's interviews with police and finds nothing significant. Certainly

25 | there is nothing that would probably have altered the outcome of the trial. On that subject, the
26 | court notes that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing and thus thereis o
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| evidence at all about how Bowman wou]d have responded if he had been questioned further
1 about his pnor statements,

* Most of the alleged inconsistent statements were not inconsistent at all. For example, at

6 | transcriptsinwhichheadmittedpurchasingthedevice,butwithoutanyreferencetothename
| of the store or the state in which it was purchased. Thus, the prior statement is not. -

inconsistent at all. To the extent that the prior statement could have been used to starta
dialogue, the court notes again that Bowman did not testify in the habeas corpus hearing ind
there is therefore no evidence showing how he would have responded to additional queshons

Similarly, at trial he was asked specifically if police officers helped him geta paycheck
from the Sands casino and he denied getting such help. The interview transcripts do not

| contradict that testimony as they only indicate that he had indeed got his paychecks but that

15 E: they were in his personal property. The police offered only to help him negotiate the checks.

That is not inconsistent with his trlaltwbmonyandtherels no evidence shmnnghowfurther
discussions would have helped petitioner in any way.

At trial, Bowman minimized his share of the loot. Volpicelli contends that he could have
 been impeached with evidence that Bowman also acquired some home electronics. The
interview transcripts, however, are not inconsistent as they do not show that the home

| electromm were stolen in the scheme with Volpwelh Instead, Bowman claimed to have

The court has reviewed the evidence presented, including the tranScripts of police
Interviews, and finds nothing that would have been likely to alter the outcome of this litigation.
One who would claim ineffective assistance of counsel bears the burden of showing, by a

3
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pr epénderance of the evideqoe, that the specific acts, omissions or decisions of counsel fell |
below an objective standard of reasonableness and that but for the failings of counsel a
different result was reasonably probable. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct.
2052 (1984). This court has simply ot been persuaded by the evidence that counsel acted -
unreasonably or that the results would probably have been different if oounsel had made
different decisions. Accordingly, the petition is denied.

DATED this _//__ day of April, 2008.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA .

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI, No. 51622
Appellant,
Vs.
THE STATE OF NEVADA, F I L E D
Respondent.
DEC 03 2008
S e
. BY D'éPUTY CL
ORDER QF AFFIRMANCE

This is an appeal from an order of the district court denying a
post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus. Second Judicial
District Court, Washoe County; Steven P. Elliott, Judge.

On April 1, 2004, the district court convicted appellant,
pursuant to a jury verdict, of one count of conspiracy to commit crimes
against property, eight counts of burglary, and one count of unlawful
possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels.
The district court adjudicated appellant a habitual criminal and sentenced
appellant to terms totaling life in the Nevada State Prison with the
possibility of parole after 20 years. Appellant was also ordered to pay
$10,339.16 in restitution. On appeal, this court confirmed the judgment of
conviction and sentence. Volpicelli v. State, Docket No. 43203 (Order of
Affirmance, June 29, 2005). The remittitur issued on July 26, 2005.

On November 9, 2005, appellant filed a prop‘er person post-
conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus in the district court. The
State opposed the petition. Counsel was appointed and filed a
supplement. On April 2, 2007, the district court entered an order

dismissing the majority of appellant’s claims and set an evidentiary

EXHIBIT
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hearing concerning the remaining claims. Following an evidentiary
hearing, the district court denied the remaining claims on April 14, 2008.
This appeal follows.

Appellant argues that the district court erred in denying four
of his ineffective assistance of trial counsel clai‘ms. To state a claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel sufficient to invalidate a judgment of
conviction, a petitioner must demonstrate that counsel’s performance was
deficient in that it fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and
prejudice such that counsel’s errors were so severe that they rendered the
jury's verdict unreliable. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687-88
(1984); Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432-33, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984)
(adopting the test in Strickland). The court need not address both
components of the inquiry if the petitioner makes an insufficient showing

on either one. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697. To warrant an evidentiary

hearing, a petitioner must raise claims that are supported by specific
factual allegations that are not belied by the record and, if true, would
entitle him to relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502-03, 686 P.2d-
222, 225 (1984). A petitioner must demonstrate the facts underlying a

claim of ineffective assistance of counsel by a preponderance of the
evidence, and the district court’s factual findings regarding a claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel are entitled to deference when reviewed
on appeal. Means v. State, 120 Nev, 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004); .
Riley v. State, 110 Nev. 638, 647, 878 P.2d 272, 278 (1994).

First, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective

for failing to objecf to the use of a 2004 Nevada conviction for aiding and

abetting in the commission of attempting to obtain money by false
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pretenses for adjudication as a habitual criminal. Appellant fails to
demonstrate that he was prejudiced.

The criminal activity for the 2004 conviction for attempting to
obtain money by false pretenses occurred after appellant had been charged
and was awaiting trial for this case. However, appellant was convicted of
attempting to obtain money by false pretenses prior to his conviction in
this case. After the trial for this case, the State sought adjudication of
appellant as a habitual criminal and filed the 2004 judgment of conviction
for obtaining monéy by false pretenses along with two other judgments of
conviction. The other judgments of conviction were a 1998 federal court
conviction of four counts of felony tax perjury and a 1998 Nevada
conviction for two counts of burglary. As the conviction for the attempt to
obtain money by false pretenses was not entered before the unlawful
actions leading to the instant offense occurred, the conviction for the
attempt to obtain money by false pretenses was not properly used as a
past conviction for purposes of adjudication as a habitual criminal in the
instant matter. Brown v. State, 97 Nev. 101, 102, 624 P.2d 1005, 1006

(1981). However, we conclude that any error was harmless because a

sufficient number of convictions was presented. See NRS 178.598 (stating
that “[a]ny error, defect, irregularity or variance which does not affect
substantial rights shall be disregarded”).

The two additional judgments of conviction list six additional
felonies which were properly considered when determining appellant’s
adjudication as a habitual felon. Appellant makes no argument that any
of the six other felonies were improperly considered. A review of the
record reveals that, at the sentencing hearing, the State presented

evidence that the felony tax perjury convictions stemmed from a plan




running over at least four years, with numerous transactions, through
which appellant fraudulently gained at least $800,000. Accordingly, the
previous tax perjury convictions were not the result of the same act,
transaction, or occurrence and may be used as four separate convictions
for purposes of habitual eriminal adjudication. Rezin v. State, 95 Nev.
461, 462, 596 P.2d 226, 227 (1979). Thus, even excluding the conviction
for the attempt to obtain money by false pretenses, there were sufficient
past felony convictions for the district court to adjudicate ap;:;ellant a
habitual criminal. NRS 207.010. Considéring the district court’s
statement at the sentencing hearing to appellant that he was the “poster
child for habitual criminality in that every time youre released from
custody it seems like youre out making a full-time living stealing,”
appellant fails to demonstrate a reasonable probability that the outcome of
the sentencing hearing would have been different had his trial counsel
objected to the use of the 2004 Nevada conviction for attempt to obtain
money by false pretenses when adjudicating him as a habitual criminal.
Therefore, the district court did not err in denying this claim.

Second, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to argue that the burglary offenses and the unlawful possession,
making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels offense
merged, and that conviction and sentence for both constitute a violation of
double jeopardy. Appellant fails to demonstrate that his trial counsel’s
performance was deficient or that he was prejudiced. To determine
whether multiple offenses violate double jeopardy principles “[t]he test is
whether the individual acts are prohibited, or the course of action which
they constitute. If the former, then each act is punishable separately. If
the latter, there can be but one penalty.” Blockburger v. United States,
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284 U.S. 299, 302 (1932) (quoting Wharton’s Criminal Law § 356 (11th
ed.)); see also United States v. Dixon, 509 U.S. 688, 696 (1993). Burglary
occurs when a person enters a building with the intent to commit any
felony, or to obtain money or property by false pretenses. NRS 205.060(1).
The uplawful possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of inventory
pricing labels occurs when a person possesses, makes, alters, forges, or
counterfeits any sales receipt or inventory pricing label with the intent to
cheat or defraud a retailer. NRS 205.965(1). Therefore, the acts of
burglary and the unlawful possession, making, forging or counterfeiting of
inventory pricing labels offense are distinct individual acts with different
elements. Thus, conviction and sentencing for the offenses do not violate
double jeopardy principles. Appellant fails to demonstrate a reasonable
probability that the outcome of the proceedings would have been different
had his trial counsel argued the conviction and sentence for both crimes
violated double jeopardy. Therefore, the district court did not err in
denying this claim.

Third, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to argue for a lesser restitution amount. Appellant argues that
the items taken from thé various businesses were retﬁrned after they were
recovered by the police, and therefore, the businesses did not lose the total
amount of the restitution that was imposed. Appellant fails to
demonstrate that he was prejudiced. Appellant fails to identify any way in
which to reasonably calculate the value lost by the businesses due to
appellant’s crimes. Hargrove v. State.' 100 Nev. 498, 502-03, 686 P.2d 222,
225 (1984); see also NRS 205.0831 (stating that the standard by which to
calculate the value of property obtained through theft is the fair market
value of the property at the time of the theft). The district court concluded
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that trial counsel was not ineffective for failing to argue for a lower
restitution amount and substantial evidence supports that conclusion.
Therefore, the district court did not err in denying this claim.

Fourth, appellant argues that his trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to cross-examine Brett Bowman concerning his inconsistent
statements. Appellant fails to demonstrate that his trial counsel’s
performance was deficient or that he was prejudiced. Appellant compares
staterﬁents Bowman made prior to trial with those that Bowman made
during trial and argues they were inconsistent. The district court
determined that the statements appellant compares covered different
topics and that the questions were posed differently in each situation. The
district court also determined that the questions posed to Bowman
necessarily elicited different answers. Those statements were, therefore,
consistent statements that could not have been used for impeachment
purposes. See NRS 51.035(2)(a); Leonard v. State, 114 Nev. 639, 662-53,
958 P.2d 1220, 1230 (1998). The district court also determined that

appellant failed to demonstrate a reasonable probability that the outcome
of the trial would have been different had counsel questioned Bowman
about these statements. Appellant fails to demonstrate that the district
court’s determination was erroneous and we conclude that substantial
evidence supports the district court’s determination. Therefore, the
district court did not err in denying this claim.

Next, appellant argues that the district court erred by
conducting an evidentiary hearing over only four of his claims and
dismissing the remainder. Other than the claim concerning the use of
past convictions for adjudicating appellant as a habitual criminal,

appellant makes no specific argument for why an evidentiary hearing




should have been conducted concerning any other claims or why the
district court erred in dismissing any other claims. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at
502-03, 686 P.2d at 225. Because appellant’s claim was not supported by
specific argument, we conclude appellant failed to demonstrate the district
court erred. See Mazzan v, Warden, 116 Nev. 48, 75, 993 P.2d 25, 42
(2000).

Accordingly, having considered appellant’s contentions and

concluding that they are without merit, we
ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED. |

, .

1 bons

cc: Hon. Steven P. Elliott, District Judge
Kay Ellen Armstrong
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick .
Washoe District Court Clerk
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLL No. 51622
Appellant,
VSs. ]
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ’ F ! L E D
Respondent. .
JAN2 2 2010
L AT
ey 3 UTY CL|

ORDER DENYING MOTION TO RECALL REMITTITUR AND
DENYING PERMISSION FOR A LATE PE ON FOR REH NG

On December 3, 2009, this court affirmed the order of the
district court denying appellant’s post-conviction petition for a writ of
habeas corpus. On December 29, 2009, the remittitur was issued in this
case. On January 6, 2010, this court received a motion to recall the
remittitur and a petition for rehearing. Appellant failed to demonstrate
that that the remittitur should be recalled. See Wood v. State, 60 Nev.
139, 104 P.2d 187 (1940). Further, the petition for rehearing is untimely.
NRAP 40(a)(1). No good cause appearing, this court denies the motion to
recall remittitur and denies permission to submit a late petition for
rehearing.

It is 3o ORDERED.

cc:  Hon. Steven P. Elliott, District Judge o

Kay Ellen Armstrong
Attorney General/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney [ & %

Washoe District Court Clerk
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEVADA
FERRILL JOSEPH VOLPICELLI,
Petitioner, 3:10-cv-00005-LRH-VPC
Vs.
ORDER
JACK PALMER, et al.,
Respondents.

This habeas matter under 28 U.S.C. § 2254 comes before the Court on respondents’ (#19) to
dismiss, petitioner’s motion (#34) for leave to file a traverse to the reply or in the alternative renewed
motion for counsel, and respondents’ motion (#36) to substitute party. Respondents seek the dismissal
of a large number of claims in the petition primarily for lack of exhaustion.

Background

Petitioner Ferrill Joseph Volpicelli challenges his Nevada judgment of conviction, pursuant to
a jury verdict, of one count of conspiracy to commit crimes against property, eight counts of burglary,
and one count of unlawful possession, making, forgery, or counterfeiting of inventory pricing labels.
Petitioner challenged his conviction on direct appeal and state post-conviction review.

Governing Exhaustion Law

Under 28 U.S.C. § 2254(b)(1)(A), a habeas petitioner first must exhaust state court remedies
on a claim before presenting that claim to the federal courts. To satisfy this exhaustion requirement,
the claim must have been fairly presented to the state courts completely through to the highest court

available, in this case the Supreme Court of Nevada. E.g., Peterson v. Lampert, 319 F.3d 1153, 1156
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(9th Cir. 2003)(en banc); Vang v. Nevada, 329 F.3d 1069, 1075 (9th Cir. 2003). In the state courts, the
petitioner must refer to the specific federal constitutional guarantee and must also state the facts that -
entitle the petitioner to relief on the federal constitutional claim. E.g., Shumway v. Payne, 223 F.3d 983,
987 (9th Cir. 2000). That is, fair presentation requires that the petitioner present the state courts with
both the operative facts and the federal legal theory upon which the claim is based. E.g., Castillo v.
McFadden, 399 F.3d 993, 999 (9th Cir. 2005). The exhaustion requirement insures that the state courts,
as a matter of federal-state comity, will have the first opportunity to pass upon and correct alleged
violations of federal constitutional guarantees. See,e.g., Coleman v. Thompson,501U.S. 722,731,111
S.Ct. 2546, 2554-55, 115 L.Ed.2d 640 (1991).

Under Rose v. Lundy, 455 U.S. 509, 102 S.Ct. 1198, 71 L.Ed.2d 379 (1982), a mixed petition
presenting both exhausted and unexhausted claims must be dismissed without prejudice unless the
petitioner dismisses the unexhausted claims or seeks other appropriate relief.

Discussion

Petitioner presents 23 grounds in the federal petition. Respondents challenge the exhaustion,
in full or in part, of every ground except Grounds 7 and 11. Sundry groupings of grounds share
common exhaustion issues. The parties have organized their argument by these groupings, and the
Court similarly organizes its discussion by these same groupings. The Court thereafter discusses any
remaining generalized across-the-board exhaustion arguments presented by petitioner.

Grounds 1, 2, 10, 12 through 17, and 19 through 22

The exhaustion issue with regard to Grounds 1, 2, 10, 12 through 17, and 19 through 22
essentially is whether these claims were fairly presented to the Supreme Court of Nevada on the state
post-conviction appeal.

In federal Ground 1, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistance of
counsel when appellate counsel failed to properly “federalize” direct appeal claims: (a) that the state
district court erred in finding the indictment lawful after the State presented a prior burglary conviction
to the grand jury; (b) that petitioner was not “competent” at the time of the crimes; (c) that the jury may
have convicted petitioner on insufficient evidence; and (d) that the district court abused its discretion

in finding habitual criminal status for two counts and running them consecutive.

-
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In Ground 2, petitioner alleges that he was denied due process and equal protection in violation
of the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendments when the state supreme court failed to provide
necessary and adequate appellate review on direct appeal by allegedly not protecting petitioner’s
constitutional rights when adjudicating the direct appeal claims presented.

In Ground 10, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistance of counsel
when trial counsel‘allegedly failed to protect him from a selective and vindictive prosecution.

In Ground 12, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistancg of counsel
when trial counsel failed to object to the prosecutor’s alleged vouching for the co-defendant’s allegedly
known perjured testimony.

In Ground 13, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistance of counsel
when trial counsel failed to investigate and argue that storage unit representatives allegedly acted as
agents for the police in derogation of his Fourth Amendment right to privacy.

In Ground 4, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistance of counsel
when trial counsel allegedly did not investigate “discovery issues related to prosecutorial transgressions,
so as to unveil the state’s purposeful withholding of exculpable [sic] evidence.”

In Ground 15, petitioner alleges that he was denied, infer alia, effective assistance of counsel
when trial counsel failed to appeal the state district court’s decision to not quash the indictment and
failed to investigate and proffer other alleged deficiencies in the indictment.

In Ground 16, petitioner alleges that he was denied, infer alia, effective assistance of counsel
because of an alleged “actual conflict of interest” between triél counsel and petitioner, although the
allegations presented do not reflect a true conflict of interest as opposed to a disagreement between
petitioner and trial counsel over “counsel’s and Petitioner’s tactics and theories on how to defend
Petitioner at trial.”

In Ground 17, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effegtive assistance of counsel
at sentencing when trial counsel allegedly failed to investigate and present “a bost of mitigating
information.”

In Ground 19, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistance of counsel

when counsel allegedly failed to protect him from an excessive sentence and unfair sentencing hearing.

23
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In Ground 20, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistanée of counsel
when trial counsel failed to protect him from prosecution on two counts that allegedly impermissibly
prosecuted him for his First Amendment freedofn of thought in that he allegedly was prosecuted on the
basis of law enforcement officer’s perceptions of his private thoughts.

In Ground 21, petitioner alleges that he was denied, inter alia, effective assistance of counsel
when trial counsel failed to protect him from prosecution under allegedly unconstitutionally vague
statutes in N.R.S. 205.060 and 205.965.

In Ground 22, petitioner alleges that he was denied rights to due process, equal protection,
effective assistance of counsel, and a fair tribunal due to the cumulative effect of errors by counsel, the
prosecution, and the court, including but not limited to, the allegations in the prior 21 grounds.

The factual allegations and argument presented — in federal court — in support of the foregoing
grounds collectively span 44 pages in the federal petition.

No such specificity was presented in the briefing to the Supreme Court of Nevada on the state
post-conviction appeal.

On state post-conviction review, the state district court dismissed all but four of petitioner’s
grounds in an interlocutory order and thereafter held an evidentiary hearing on the remaming four
grounds.'

On the state post-conviction appeal, the then-represented petitioner did not provide any
argument specific to any of the grounds dismissed by the interlocutory order, with the limited exception
of one conclusory reference to the habitual criminal adjudication.

Petitioner instead presented the following, in the main, conclusory argument:

I. The Trial Court Erroneously Dismissed all but Four of
Petitioner’s Grounds for Relief without a Hearing

An evidentiary hearing is required in regard to any claims thatare .
supported by specific factual allegations unrepelled by the record and
that would warrant reliefif true. Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, 621, 28
P.3d 498, 507 (2001).

This court recently held that the argument that counsel made

423, Ex. 100.
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1 reasonable strategic choices is in many instances a difficult assessment
to make without the benefit of counsel’s testimony at an evidentiary
2 hearing. Byford v. State, 123 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 9 (2007) at p.3.
3 Certainly the attorney’s decision to stipulate to the admission of
the “prior convictions” was not a reasonable strategic choice, and the
4 district court should have heard evidence on this issue.
5 || #25, Ex. 137, at 3; see also id., Ex. 143, at 1 (verbatim argument in reply brief, as amended).
6 The Supreme Court of Nevada stated as follows in this regard:
7 a
~ Next, a%pellant argues that the district court erred by conducting
8 an evidentiary hearing over only four of his claims and dismissing the
remainder. Other than the claim concerning the use of past convictions
9 for adjudicating ap?ellant as a habitual criminal, appellant makes no
specific argument for why an evidentiary hearing should have been
10 conducted conceming any other claims or wlﬁz the district court erred in
dismissing any other claims. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502-03, 686 P.2d at
11 225. Because appellant’s claim was not supported by specific argument,
we conclude appellant failed to demonstrate the district court erred. See
12 Mazzan v. Warden, 116 Nev. 48, 75, 993 P.2d 25, 42 (2000).
13 || #25, Ex. 147, at 6-7.
14 In the Mazzan decision invoked by the Supreme Court of Nevada, the state high court held as
15 || follows:
16
Mazzan also lists six other claims which he raised in his petition
17 and which the district court did not address: other instances of
ineffective assistance of counsel; destruction of material evidence by the
18 state; conflict-laden counsel; questioning by the state while Mazzan was
held without a probable cause hearing; an unconstitutional instruction on
19 reasonable doubt; and improper sentencing instructions. He does not
cite the record regarding these claims, does not discuss their merits, and
20 does not address whether they are procedurally barred. Contentions
unsupported by specific argument or authority should be summarily
21 r?'ected on appeal. See Jonesv. State, 113 Nev. 454, 468,937 P.2d 55,
64 (1997); Maresca v. State, 103 Nev. 669, 673, 748 P.2d 3, 6 (1987).
22 We therefore have not considered these claims.
23 || 1116 Nev. at 75, 993 P.2d at 42 (emphasis added).
24 The state supreme court’s citation to Mazzan thus reflects that the court summarily rejected the
25 || claims without considering the merits of the claims.
26 The grounds in question therefore were not fairly presented to the Supreme Court of Nevada and
V' 27 || exhausted because they were not presented through a procedure in which the merits of the claims would
28 || be considered. It is established law that presenting a claim in a procedural context in which the merits
-5
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of the claim will not be considered, or will be considered only in special circumstances, does not
constitute fair presentation of the claim. See,e.g., Castille v. Peoples, 489 U.'S. 346, 351, 109 S.Ct.
1056, 1060, 103 L.Ed.2d 380 (1989); Roettgen v. Copeland, 33 F.3d 36, 38 (9th Cir. 1994). Appellate
courts as arule generallyreview only claims and issues argued specifically and distinctly in the briefing,
and a bare assertion of a claim or issue does not preserve the claim or issue for appellate review.
See,e.g., Farmer v. McDaniel, 666 F.3d 1228, 1233 n.5 (9® Cir. 2012); Nevada Department of
Corrections v, Greene, 648 F.3d 1014, 1020 (9" Cir. 201 i), cert. denied, 80 U.S.L.W. (Mar. 26, 2012).
In the present case, the state high court’s citation to Mazzan confirms that the Supreme Court of Nevada
similarly did not review petitioner’s wholly bare assertion of a multitude of ¢laims in a blanket
conclusory fashion here.

In this regard, the presence of petitioner’s pro se state post-conviction petition in the record
appendix on the state post-conviction appeal does not lead to a different conclusion. Under Nevada
state practice, petitioner could not incorporate claims from materials in the appendix into the appellate
briefing even if counsel had attempted to do so. Under Rule 28(¢)(2) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate
Procedure (NRAP), parties may not incorporate briefs or memoranda filed in i:he_: state district court for
argument on the merits of an appeal. The provisions of NRAP 30(b}(2)(A) and (3) require the inclusion
of the district court pleadings in the appendix as a matter of course. The mere presence of a pleading
n an appendix on a Nevada appeal thus does not present any claim. Rather, the pleadings are present
in the appendix simply because that is what Nevada appellate rules require. Genérally, in orderto fairly
present a claim to a state appellate court, a petitioner must present the claim to the court within the four
comers of his appellate briefing. E.g., Castillo v. McFadden, 399 F.3d 993, 1000 & 1002 n.4 (9th Cir.
2005); see also Baldwin v. Reese, 541 U.S. 27, 32, 124 S.Ct. 1347, 1351, 158 L.Ed.2d 64 (2004)("We
... hold that ordinarily a state prisoner does not ‘fairly present' a claim to a state court if that court must
read beyond a petition or a brief (or a similar document) that does not alert it to the presence of'a federal
claim in order to find material, such as a lower court opinion in the case, that does so."). The state
supreme court’s citation to Mazzan in this case confirms that, under established Nevada appellate
practice, petitioner did not fairly present any of the claims in question to the Supreme Court of Nevada

because he did not present specific supporting argument within his briefing.

2
&
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Moreover, even ifthe Court were to assume, arguendo, that the state supreme court’s disposition
constituted a disposition on the merits of the claims in question, the claims nonetheless would not be
fairly presented and exhausted under established law. If the petitioner fundamentally alters the legal
claim presented to the state courts on federal habeas review, the claim in federal court is not exhausted.
See,e.g., Beaty v. Stewart, 303 F.3d 975, 989-90 (9™ Cir. 2002). Here, there can be no doubt that
presenting multiple specific claims in federal court with allegations and argument spanning 44 pages
fundamentally alters a bare reference to claims in globo with no specific argument as to any of the
claims in the state supreme court. None of the specifics presented in the federal petition were presented
to the state supreme court within the governing appellate briefing rules.

However the exhaustion issue is analyzed in this regard, it would stand the exhaustion doctrine
on its head to hold that petitioner’s bare assertion on appeal — without any specific argument as to any
of the claims in question — exhausted the corresponding 44 pages of claims in the federal petition.

Grounds 1, 2, 10, 12 through 17, and 19 through 22 therefore are not exhausted.”

Grounds 3 through 6 l
The exhaustion issue with regard to Grounds 3 through 6 is whether the claims presented in state

court were presented as federal constitutional claims rather than claims of state law error.

2As an alternative holding, the Court holds, in the event that a reviewing court concludes that the claims are
exhausted, that the state supreme court’s arguendo rejection of the conclusory presentation was neither contrary to nor
an unreasonable application of clearly established federal law as determined by the United States Supreme Court. In this
regard, federal courts are restricted on federal habeas review to the state court record when deciding claims previously
adjudicated on the merits by the state courts. Cullen v. Pinholster, __ US, _ _, 131 8.Ct. 1388,179 L.Ed.2d 557
(2011). In the present case, the state supreme court was presented with only the barest of assertions as to these claims in
the briefing on the state post-conviction appeal. Any arguendo rejection of the claims on the merits on thbat showing was
neither contrary to nor an unreasonable application of clearly established federal law.
ol

On the exhaustion issue, the Court further has assumed, arguendo, that the claims presented in federal court are
the same as the claims presented in the state district court. The critical issue is whether the claims were fairly presented
to the Supreme Court of Nevada on the post-conviction appeal.

The Court notes that it appears that state Grounds 12 and 14 were not dismissed in the interlocutory order. The
critical point, however, again, is that the claims therein were not fairly presented on the state post-conviction appeal.
The claims in federal Grounds 12 and 14 were not fairly presented to and/or considered on the state post-conviction
appeal, regardless of whether or not they were dismissed by the interlocutory order. See #25, Exhs. 137 & 147. If
Grounds 12 and 14 were not dismissed by the interlocutory order, then this weakens rather than strengthens the
argument for exhaustion of these claims, because the conclusory argument presented on the state post-conviction appeal
pertained to claims dismissed by the interlocutory order, not to other claims.

-7-
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In federal Ground 3, petitioner alleges that he was denied due process of law in violation of the
Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments when a prior burglary conviction was presented to the grand jury.

In the claim presented on direct appeal, petitioner did not invoke any federal constitutional
provisions, and he cited no state or federal cases in the argument applying federal constitutional law to
overturn an indictment. Indeed, the Supreme Court of Nevada noted in its decision on direct appeal that
petitioner “cite[d] no law” whatsoever supporting his contention that the state district court erred by not
quashing the indictment. Inthe appellant’s opening brief, petitioner asserted only that the state district
court “may have erred” in not quashing the indictment, without invoking federal constitutional
protections and/or citing applicable state or federal cases applying same.” -

In federal Ground 4, petitioner alleges that he was denied due process and equal protection of
the laws in violation of the Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendments due to his alleged “mental
incompetency” at the time of the alleged crimes, perhaps referring to an alleged lack of capacity at the
time of the offenses. Petitioner alleges that he was not “competent™ at the time of the burglaries and
related offenses because he suffered from, inter alia, asthma, sleep apnea, vertigo, depression, panic
anxiety disorder, and drug addiction.

In the claim presented on direct appeal, petitioner did not invoke any federal constitutional
provisions, and he cited no state or federal decisions whatsoever. Both the State and the Supreme Court
of Nevada - given the reference to competency rather than capacity — construed the claim presented on
direct appeal as a challenge to petitioner’s competency to stand trial. The state supreme court did not
apply constitutional doctrine in rejecting the claim as so construed. Any federal constitutional doctrine
arguendo applied necessarily would pertain to a claim challenging competency to stand trial, not a
challenge to capacity to commit the offenses.*

In Ground 5, petitioner alleges that he was denied due process and equal protection of the laws
inviolation of the Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments because insufficient evidence was presented

at trial due to a lack of corroboration of accomplice testimony required by N.R.S. 175.291.

35ee #22, [x. 59, at 8-0; id., Ex. 68, at 1-3.

see #22, Ex. 59, at 9-10; id., Ex. 68, at 3-5.

V9.650






